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Wendys/Arbys Group Inc is the third largest quick-service restau

WENDYSARBYS
GROUP

CRyING FRE DEAS DAILY

rant company in the United States and includes Wendys International Inc the

franchisor of the Wendys restaurant system and Arbys Restaurant Group Inc

the franchisor of the Arbys restaurant system The combined restaurant systems

include more than 0000 restau rants in the U.S and 26 other

countries and U.S territories worldwide as of March 2011

DEAR FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS

2010 was productive year tor the Company as we strength

ened Wendys core business for future growth made progress

on the early stages of Arbys turnaround and produced

$396.9 million in adjusted earnings before interest taxes

depreciation and amortization EBITDAI.1

Our adjusted EBITDA fell about 45/s on comparable basis

and our stock price traded in range of $3.83 to $5.55 during

the year To improve our ability to grow both earnings and

stockholder value we made the strategic decision to focus our

resources on continuing to build the Wendys brand As

result on January 20 2011 we announced that we are explor

ing strategic alternatives for Arbys including sale of the

brand We believe in the long term success of Arbys but we

also believe that the Wendys brand given its relative size and

scope will be our key driver of earnings growth and stock

holder return

Wendys currently has more than 6500 restaurants worldwide

and is one of the most attractive growth stories in the quick-

service restaurant OSRI industry We will focus our energies

on growing the Wendys brand via new store growth both in

North American and international markets and with increased

same store sales through the introduction of new dayparts and

core menu innovation

In 2010 we focused on brand building and strengthening

Wendys Real positioning with innovative great tasting high-

quality premium and value products that are made with real

and fresh ingredients We also invested in initiatives such as the

launch of our new breakfast menu and restaurant remodels

and we added to our pipeline for international expansion by

signing significant new development agreements

WENDYS UPGRADING CORE MENU

During 2010 we upgraded our core menu to reinforce our qual

ity reputation with consumers

We introduced four premium entree salads Apple Pecan

Chicken BLT Cobb Spicy Chicken Caesar and Baja each

with 11 different greens We also paired smaller sizes

of the salads with Wendys classic sides such as baked

potatoes chili and fries

We launched new natural cut skin on fries made from

premium Russet potatoes with sea salt

We introduced new everyday value platform called

My 99 which offers consumers the choice of several of

our great products at value price of 99 cents each

To further enhance our core hamburger product we

began testing new premium cheeseburger line called

Daves Hot Juicy Cheeseburgers which consists of

40% thicker patty made from fresh beef melted cheese

crinkle cut pickles red onions and butter toasted bun We

believe these will be the best cheeseburgers in the OSR

industry and plan to introduce this product line in the

second half of 2011

See Selected Financiai Oata and Heconciiration of EBITOA to adiusted EBITOA following this letter to stockholders
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We are also testing premium line of chicken sandwiches and

plan to introduce these new sandwiches later in 2011

WENDYS FOCUSING ON BREAKFAST REMODELING AND

NEW RESTAURANT GROWTH

Although Wendys already has one of the highest average unit

volumes IAUVs in the OSR industry it is the only major OSR

hamburger chain not currently serving breakfast In 2010 we

introduced new breakfast menu in four markets and were

encouraged with the early results Our goal is to win market

share in this fast growing daypart which accounts for roughly

25o of total OSR transactions and thereby grow our AUVs

We are offering differentiated and high quality menu con

sistent with our Real positioning including an artisan egg

sandwich grilled breakfast paninis warm oatmeal bar and

premium coffee program developed exclusively for our restau

rants We plan to expand breakfast to about 1000 company

and franchise restaurants by the end of 2011

We plan to take more aggressive approach to remodeling and

new store development to drive earnings growth We remod

eled approximately 100 Wendys restaurants in 2010 and have

plans to continue remodeling restaurants in 2011 featuring

new design Additionally Wendys has considerable new store

growth opportunities in North America where the brand is

uridei-puiiutiotud iii cvi toiii rriaikets uuiiipaied tu uui kvy uuiri

petitors As we grow our AUVs improve profit margins and add

new dayparts we believe the system can add approximately

1000 new stores in North America

Over the past two years we aggressively laid the groundwork

for international expansion of Wendys with new restaurant

development agreements in Singapore portions of the Middle

East and North Africa the Russian Federation portions of the

Eastern Caribbean Argentina and the Philippines and
loint

venture agreement to develop restaurants in Japan

Our international presence would grow to almost 1000 restau

rants in 46 countries and U.S territories outside of the U.S and

Canada if all current store development commitments are

fulfilled That number will increase as we layer on development

for additional new markets were targeting Brazil and China

are the two most significant markets in terms of opportunity

and expand agreements with existing franchisees Ultimately

we believe that earnings generated from international markets

will be significant component of our ability to generate long

term value for our stockholders

2010 FINANCIAL RESULTS AND LONG-TERM OUTLOOK

In 2010 consolidated revenues were $3 billion and fell approx

imately on comparable year over year basis excluding

the effect of the 53rd week that occurred in 2009 Adlusted

FRITDA fell epprnximatnly 4n no $396 millinn no compare

ble basis We reported net loss of $4.3 million or $0.01 per

share including net after tax special charges of $64 million

or $0.15 per share compared to net income of $3 million or

$0.01 per share including net after tax special charges of

$94.7 million or $0.19 per share in 2009 Our performance was

certainly affected by the weak economy intense competition

and rising commodity prices but we are committed to deliver

ing stronger results going forward

As strong cash flow generator we also believe in the impor

tance of returning capital to our stockholders In 2010 we

returned $201 million of capital in stock buybacks and cash

dividends and we currently have $250 million authorized and

available for additional stock repurchases In the fourth quarter

of 2010 our Board of Oirectors authorized 33% increase in

our quarterly cash dividend which further demonstrates

commitment to enhancing value for our stockholders

Looking ahead 2011 will be transition year as we complete

the strategic alternatives process for Arbys develop plans to

isducu uui cci pui ate GA tu suppurt sinyle brand in the event

of sale of Arbys and focus our resources on growth initiatives

for Wendys

Beginning in 2012 we expect Wendys to generate average

annual EBITOA growth of lO% to 15o which we view as

very attractive growth rate for generating stockholder value

Most importantly appreciate the collective work ethic and

dedication of our management team restaurant support center

employees restaurant operators and crew and franchisees

as we prepare for an exciting future continue to believe in

the long-term potential of our Company and look forward to

communicating with you about our progress

Sincerely

Roland Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer

Wendys/Arbys Orosrp inc 2010 Annuai Report



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
In Thousands iinanditedl

WENDYS

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc and Subsidiaries %%j9%J
ARBY
GROUP

2010 2009

S2weeks S3weeks

Revenues

RECONCILIATION OF EBITDA TO ADJUSTED EBITDA
In Thousands Itnanditedl

$3045317 $3198348

371097 382487

$3580835$3416414

Plus

Integration costs in general and administrative GA
SSG purchasing co-op expenses in GA
Incremental advertising tor Wendys new breakfast

Reversal of pension withdrawal expense in cost of sales

Wendys purchasing co op start up costs in GA
Facilities relocation and corporate restructuring

Benefit from vacation policy standardization in

Benefit from vacation policy standsrdization in cost of sales

5514 16598

5145

1192

4975 4915

15500

11024

3339

3925

Binciosare Reeardioe Nao-GAAP Fieaoccai Measures

Earnings betare interest tanes depreciation and amnrtioatinn lEITGAl is used by the Company an performance measure for benchmarkint agaiost the Companys peers and

competitors The campony hehenes neiTnA is useful to innestors because it is frequentiy osed by securities analysts innestars and other interested parties to enaiuate companies

in the restaorant iodostry The Company also uses adiosted EeiTtA which enclades certoin special or non-recurring enpeoses net of certain special or ono-recarring benefits

detailed in the reconciliation table abone as an internal measure of bnsiness operating performance The Company belienes adiusted EBITSA proniden meoningfoi perspectine

of the underlying operating performance of the Companys corrent boniness EeITDA and adiusted EBITDA are out recognioed terms under u.s Generafly Accepted Accounting

Principles IGAAPI Because at companies do not calculate EBITDA or nimdarly titled financial measures in the same way those measures as used by other companies may net be

consistent with the way the Company calculates sach measures and should not be considered an alternatine measures of operating profit or net income Inns The Cnmpanys

presentation of neiTtA and adinsted EBITOA is not intended ta replace the presentation of the Companys financial resalts in accordance with GAAP

Sales

Franchise revenues

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of long-lived assets

384031

182172

69477

384359

190251

82132

Operating profit

Interest expense

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Investment income expense net

Other than temporary losses on investments

Other income net

132388

137229

26197

5261

3782

111916

126708

3008

3916

1523

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Benefit from income taxes

21995

17670

20133

23649

Loss income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes

4325 3516

1546

Net loss income 4325 5062

2010 2009

52weeks S3weeks

EBITDA $384037 $384359

Adusted EBITDA

Less

EBITDA effect of additional week in 2009

396913 425192

13600

Normalized 52 weeks adusted EBITDA $396913 $411592

Adusted EBITOA Growth -36%

Wnsdys/Arbyn Group Inc 20tt Annual tepurt



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGF ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR FNDED JANUARY 2011

OR

fl TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANCE ACT OF
FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC
Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter

Commission File Number 1-2207

Delaware 38 0471180

State or other jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer

incorporation or organization Identification No
1155 Perimeter Center West Adanta Georgia 30338

Address of
principal

exeentive offices Zip Code

Registrants Telephone Niamber Including Area Code 678 514 4100

Secnrities Registered Pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Nanse of Eacls Exchange on

Title of Each Class Which Registered

Common Stock $.10 par alue New Yot Stocle Exchange

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section l2g of the Act None

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC
Exact Name of Registrant as Specified ii1 its Charter

Commission File Number 333 161613

Delaware 380471180

State or other jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer

incorporation or organization Identification No
1155 Perimeter Center West Adanta Georgia 30338

Address of
principal

executive offices Zip Code

Registrants Telephone Number Including Area Code 678 514 4100

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Nonc

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12g of the Act

None

Indicate by check mark if either
registrant

is ass elI knoss seasoned issucr as defined in Rule 405 of the 5cc uritics Act

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Yes fl No

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC fl Yes No

Indicate by check marIe if each
registrant is not iequued to file

ieports psosu.snt to Section 13 or 15d of the Act

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc fl Yes No

Wendys/Arbys Restatirants LLC Yes fl No
Indicate by check maik whether each

registrant
has filed all

reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the

preceding 12 months or tor such shorter period that the
registiant was required to file ssich reports and has been

subject to such
filing requirements for the

past 90 days

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Yes fl No

Weisdys/Arbys Restaurants LLC fl Yes No
Indicate by check mark whether each

registrant
has submitted

elecrionically
aisd posted ois its eorpoiare Web sire if any every

Interactive Data File required to be

submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulstion 232.405 of this chaptci during thc preceding 12 months or for such sltoi ter period that the
registrant

was required to submit and
post

suds files

Wendys/Arbys Group lise Yes fl No

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC fl Yes fl No
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation is not containcd herein and will not he contained to the best of

each
registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information staiements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Foim 10 or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by cheek mark whether the recistrants are
large

acceleiated filers accelerated filers non accelerated filers or snsaller
reporting companies See the

definitions oflarge accelcrated filer aecelerategfilei and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b of the Exchange Act

Wendys/Arby Group Inc

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non aeceleiated filer Smaller reporting company

5Xendys/A rhvs Resra iran ts

Large accelerated filer fl Accelerated filer fl Non accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
Indicate by checle mark ss hether either

registrant
is shell company as defined in Rule 12b ol the Act fl Yes No

The
aggregate

market value of common equity held by non affiliates of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc as ofJuly 2010 was approximately $1250922364 As of

February 25 2011 theie svere 419005869 shaies ofcVendys/Arbys Gioup Inc Common Stock outstanding

As litnited liability company Wendys/Arbys Restasirants does not issue common stocle bitt has one member nstemest mssucd and outstanding Wendys

Arbys Restaurants LLCs sole member is Wendys/Arby Group Inc Theme is no aggregate madeet value fom Wendvs/Arbys Restaurants LI members interest as of

February 25 2011

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction I1a and of Form 10-K and is therefore
filing

this Form 10

with the reduced disclosure format

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants EEC has filed all
reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the period it was

required to file such reports

DOCUMEN INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The information reqsnred by Part III raf this Form 10 to the extent not set forth herein is incorporated herein by meferenee from Wendy s/Arbys Group Inc.s

definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Seesmrities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulatmomm 4A not later than 120 days alter Januan 2011
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Explanatory Note

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is combined
report being Bled separately by Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LC Wendys/Arbys Restaurants direct lOO0o owned

subsidiary holding company of Wendys/Arhys Unless the context indicates otherwise any
reference in this

report to

the Companies we us and our refers to Wendys/Arbys together
with its diteet and indirect subsidiaries

including WendysArbys Restaurants Each registrant hereto is filing on its own behalf all of the infoimation

contaioed in this annual
repoit

that relates to such registrant Each
registrant

hereto is not filing any
information that

does not relate to such registrant and therefore makes no representation as to any
such information

The principal subsidiaries of Wendys/Arhys Restaurants are Wendys International Inc Wendys and

Arbys Restaurant Group Inc Arbys and their subsidiaries Substantially all of the operating results of Wendys

Arbys are derived from the operating results of WendysArbys Restaurants except expenses
of Wendys

Arbys Where information or an explanation is provided that is substantially the same for each company such

information or explanation has been combined in the Annual Report on Form 10-K Where information or an

explanation is not substantially the same for each company we have provided separate
information and

explanation In addition separate
financial statements for each company are included in Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data

PART

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Projections

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and oral statements made from time to time by representatives of the

Companies may contain or incorporate by reference certain statements that are not historical facts including most

importantly information concerning possible or assumed future results of operations of the Companies Those

statements as well as statements preceded by followed by or that include the words may believes plans

expects anticipates or the negation thereof or similar expressions constitute forward-looking statements

within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 the Reform Act All statements that

address future operating financial or business performance strategies or expectations future synergies efficiencies or

overhead savings anticipated costs or charges future capitalization and anticipated financial impacts of recent or

pending transactions are forward looking statements within the meaning of the Reform Act The forward-looking

statements are based on our expectations at the time such statements are made speak only as of the dates they are

made and are susceptible to number of risks uncertainties and other factors Our actual results performance and

achievements may differ materially from any future results performance or achievements expressed or implied by our

forward-looking statements For all of our forward-looking statements we claim the protection of the safe harbor for

forward-looking statements contained in the Reform Act Many important factors could affect our future results and

could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by the forward-looking statements

contained herein Such factors all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are

beyond our control include but are not limited to the following

uncertainty regarding the outcome of the Companies exploration of strategic alternatives for the Arbys

brand and its impact on the Companies businesses

competition including pricing pressures aggressive marketing and the potential impact of competitors

new unit openings on sales of Wendys and Arbys restaurants

consumers perceptions of the relative quality variety affordability and value of the food products we offer

food safety events including instances of food-borne illness such as salmonella or coli involving

Wendys or Arbys or their respective supply chains

consumer concerns over nutritional aspects
of beef poultry French fries or other products we sell or

concerns regarding the effects of disease outbreaks such as mad cow disease and avian influenza or bird

flu

success of operating and marketing initiatives including advertising and promotional efforts and new

product and concept development by us and our competitors

the
impact of general economic conditions and high unemployment rates on consumer spending

particularly in geographic regions that contain high concentration of Wendys or Arbys restaurants



changes in consumer tastes and preferences and in discretionary consumer spending

changes in spending patterns and demographic trends such as the extent to which consumers eat meals

away from home

certain factors affecting our franchisees including the business and financial viability of franchisees with

significant number of Arhys franchisees having experienced prolonged period of declining sales and

profitability the timely payment of such franchisees obligations due to us or to national or local

advertising organizations and the ability of our franchisees to open new restaurants in accordance with

their development commitments including their ability to finance restaurant development and remodels

changes in commodity costs including beef and chicken labor supply fuel utilities distribution and

other operating costs

availability location and terms of sites for restaurant development by us and our franchisees

development costs including real estate and construction costs

delays in opening new restaurants or completing remodels of existing restaurants

the timing and impact of acquisitions and dispositions of restaurants

our ability to successfully integrate acquired restaurant opcrations

anticipated or unanticipated restaurant closures by us and our franchisees

our ability to identify attract and retain potential franchisees with sufficient experience and financial

resources to develop and operate Wendys and Arbys restaurants successfully

availability of qualified restaurant personnel to us and to our fianchisees and the ability to retain such

personnel

our ability if necessary to secure alternative distribution of supplies of food equipment and other

products to Wendys and Arbys restaurants at competitive rates and in adequate amounts and the

potential financial impact of any interruptions in such distribution

availability and cost of insurance

adverse weather conditions

availability terms including changes in interest rates and deployment of capital

changes in and our ability to comply with legal regulatory or similar requirements including franchising

laws accounting standards payment card industry rules overtime tules minimum wage rates wage and

hour laws government-mandated health care benefits tax legislation and menu-board labeling

requirements

the costs uncertainties and other effects of legal environmental and administrative proceedings

the effects of charges for impairment of goodwill or for the impairment of othet long-lived assets due to

deteriorating operating results

the effects of war or terrorist activities and

other risks and uncertainties affecting us and our subsidiaries referred to in this Form 10-K see especially

Item 1A Risk Factors and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations and in our other current and periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission

All future written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are

expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section New risks and

uncertainties arise from time to time and it is impossible for us to predict these events or how they may affect us We

assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the date of this Form 10-K as result of new

information future events or developments except as required by federal securities laws In addition it is our policy

generally not to endorse
any projections regarding future performance that may be made by third parties



Item Business

Introduction

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Wcndys/Arby js is the parent company of irs 100% owned subsidiary holding

company Wendys/Arbys Resraurants LLC Wendys/Arbys Resrauranrs Wendys/Arbys Resrauranrs is the

parent company ufVcndys Intctnatioiial InL Wcndys and Arbys Rcstaurant Group Inc Arbys which arc

the owners and franchisors of the Wendys and Arhys restauranr sysrems respecrively As used in rhis report

unless the context requires otherwise the term Companies refers to Wendys/Arbys and its direct and indirect

subsidiaries including 1OVendys/Arbys Restaurants

As ofJanuary 2011 thc Wendys restaurant system was comprised of 6576 restaurants ofwhich 1394 were

owned and operated by the Companies As of January 2011 the Arbys restaurant system was comprised of 3649

restaurants of which 1144 were owned and
operated by the Companies References in this Form 10-K to restaurants

that we own or that are company owned include owned and leased restaurants Wendys/Arbys corporate

predecessor was incorporated in Ohio in 1929 and was reincorporated in Delaware in June

1994 Effective September 29 2008 in conjunction
with the

merger with Wendys Wendys/Arbys corporatc name

was changed from Triarc Companies Inc nate to Wendys/Arbys Group Inc The Companies principal

executive offices are located at 1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta Georgia 30338 and their telephone number is

678 514-4100 We make our annual
reports on Form 10 quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on

Form and amendments to such
reports as well as the Wendys/Arbys annual proxy statement available free of

charge on our website as soon as teasonably practicable
after such

repoits ate electronically filed with or furnished to

the Securities and Exchange Commission Out website address is www.wendysarbys.com Information contained on

that website is not pai
of this Annual

Report on Form 101K

Merger with Wendys

On Scptcrnbcr 29 2008 riarc ud /Vcndys coiiiplcrcd
thcii

picviuusly aiiiiuunced uieigei tIle Weudys
Meigei in an all-stock transaction in which Wendys shareholders received 4.25 shares of Wendys/Arbys Class

common stock for each Wendys common share owned

In the Wendys Mergei approximately 377000000 shares of Wendys/Arbys Class common stock were

issued to Wendy shareholders The
merger

value of
approximately $2.5 billion for financial reporting purposes is

based on the 4.25 conversion factor of the Wendys outstanding shares as well as previously issued restricted stock

awards both at value of $6.57 pci
shaie which represented the average closing market price of Triarc Clss

common stock two days befoie and aftei the
meigei announcement date of April 24 2008 Wendys shareholders

held approximately 80o in the
aggregate

of Wendys/Arbys outstanding Class common stock immediately

following the Wendys Merger In addition effectue on the date of the Wendys Merger Wendys/Arbys Class

common stock was converted into lass common stock In connection with the May 28 2009 amendment and

restatement of Wendys/Atby Cci tificate of Incorpoiation Class common stock was redesignated as Common
Stock

The Wendys and Arhy hiands continue to operate independently with headquarters in Dublin Ohio and

Atlanta Georgia respectively consolidated
support center is based in Atlanta Georgia and oversees all public

company responsibilities as svell as other shared service functions

Fiscal Year

The Companies use 52/53 week fiscal
year convention whereby their fiscal year ends each year on the Sunday

that is closest to December 31 of that
year

Each fiscal
year generally is comprised of four 13-week fiscal quarters

although in the
years

with 53 weeks including 2009 the fourth
quartet represents 14-week period

Business Segments

We
operate

in two business
segments Wendys and Arbys See Note 27 of the Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data included in Item herein for financial information attributable to our business segments
and

geogiaphie areas



The Wendys Restaurant System

Wendys is the third largest restaurant franchising system
in the United States speciali7ing in the hamburger

sandwich
segment

of the quick service restaurant industry According to Nationc Restaurant News Wendys is the

fourth largest quick service restaurant chain in the United States

Wendys is primarily engaged in the business of operating developing
and franchising system

of distinctive

quick-service restaurants serving high quality food At January 2011 there were 6576 Wendys restaurants in

operation in North America and in 22 foreign countries other than Canada and United States territories Of these

restaurants 1394 were operated by Wendys and 5182 by total of 490 franchisees See Item Properties for

listing of the number of company owned and franchised locations in the United States and in foreign countries and

United States territories

The revenues from our restaurant business are derived from three
principal sources sales at company-owned

restaurants sales of bakery items and kids meal
promotional items to franchisees and others and franchise

royalties received from all Wendys franchised restaurants

Wendys is also 50% partner in Canadian restaurant real estate joint venture with Tim Hortons Inc The

joint venture owns Wcndys/Tiin Hortuns combo units in Canada As of January 2011 there were 105 Wendys
restaurants in operation that were owned by the joint venture The Tim Hortons menu includes premium coffee

flavored cappuccinos specialty teas home-style soups fresh sandwiches and fresh baked goods

Wendys Restaurants

Wendys opened its first restaurant in Columbus Ohio in 1969 During 2010 Wendys opened new

company-owned restaurants and closed generally underperforming company-owned restaurants In addition

Wendys sold company-owned restaurants to its franchisees During 2010 Wendys franchisees opened 69 new

restaurants and closed 39 generally underperforming restaurants In 2009 71 franchised restaurants were closed in

Japan at year-end upon the
expiration of the related franchise agreement

The
following table sets forth the number of Wendys restaurants at the beginning and end of each year from

2008 to 2010

2010 2009 2008

Restaurants open at beginning of period 6541 6630 6645

Restaurants opened during period 78 63 97

Restaurants closed during period 43 152 112

Restaurants open at end of period 6576 6541 6630

During the period from December 31 2007 through january 2011 238 Wendys restaurants were opened

and 307 generally underperforming Wendys restaurants were closed

Operations

Each Wendys restaurant offers relatively standard menu featuring hamburgers and filet of chicken breast

sandwiches which are prepared to order with the customers choice of condiments Wendys menu also includes

chicken nuggets chili baked and French fried potatoes freshly prepared salads soft drinks milk FrostyTM desserts

floats and kids meals In addition the restaurants sell variety of promotional products on limited basis Wendys
has tested breakfast in certain markets and plans to expand its breakfast initiative in 2011

Free-standing Wendys restaurants generally include pick-up window in addition to dining room The

percentage of sales at company-owned Wendys restaurants through the pick-up window was 64.9% 64.6% and

63.8% in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Wendys strives to maintain quality and uniformity throughout all restaurants by publishing detailed

specifications for food products preparation and service continual in-service training of employees restaurant

operational audits and field visits from Wendys supervisors In the case of franchisees field visits are made by

Wendys personnel who review operations including quality service and cleanliness and make recommendations to

assist in compliance with Wendys specifications



Generally Wendys does not sell food or supplies other than sandwich buns and kids meal
toys to its

franchisees However prior to 2010 Wendys arranged for volume purchases of many food and supply

products Commencing in 2010 the purchasing function was transfeired to new purchasing co op as described

below in Raw Materials and Purchasing

The New Bakery Co of Ohio Inc the Bakery 100% owned subsidiary of Wendys is pioducer of buns

for some Wendys restaurants and to lesser extent for other outside parties including one distributor to thc Arbys

system At January 2011 the Bakery supplied 709 restaurants operated by Wendys and 2551 restaurants operated

by franchisees As of that date the Bakery also directly supplied 10 Arbys restaurants on test basis The Bakery also

manufactures and sells some products to customers in the grocery and other food service businesses

Raw Materials and Purchasing

As of January 2011 independent processors total production facilities supplied all of Wendys

hamburger in the United States In addition independent processors total production facilities supplied all of

Wendys chicken in the United States

Wendys and its franchisees have not experienced any
material shortages of food equipment fixtures or other

products that are necessary to maintain restaurant operations Wendys anticipates no such shortages of products and

believes that alternate suppliers are available Suppliers to the Wendys system must comply with United States

Department of Agriculture USDA and United States Food and Drug Administration FDA regulations

governing the manufacture packaging storage distribution and sale of all food and packaging products

During the 2009 fourth quarter Wendys entered into purchasing co-op relationship agreement the Co-op

Agreement to establish new Wendys purchasing co-op Qualiry Supply Chain Co-op Inc QSCC QSCC

manages food and related product purchases and distribution services for the Wendys system in the United States

and Canada Through QSCC Wendys and Wendys franchisees purchase food proprietary paper and operating

supplies under national contracts with pricing based upon total system volume

QSCCs supply chain management facilitates the continuiry of supply and provides consolidated purchasing

efficiencies while monitoring and seeking to minimize possible obsolete inventory throughout
the Wendys North

America supply chain The systems purchasing function for 2009 and prior was performed and paid for by

Wendys In order to facilitate the orderly transition of the 2010 purchasing function for North America operations

Wendys transferred certain contracts assets and certain Wendys purchasing employees to QSCC in the first
quarter

of 2010 Pursuant to the terms of the Co-op Agreement Wendys was required to pay $1 5.5 million to QSCC over

an 18 month period through May 2011 in order to provide funding for start-up costs operating expenses
and cash

reserves In addition to the initial funding by Wendys since the third quatter of 2010 all QSCC members including

Wendys began paying sourcing fees on products sourced through QSCC Such sourcing fees will be the primary

means of funding QSCCs operations after the initial funding by Wendys is completed

During the 2010 second quarter QSCC and ARCOP Inc ARCOP Arbys independent purchasing

cooperative in consultation with Wendys/Arbys Restaurants established the Strategic Sourcing Group Co-op LLC

SSG SSG was formed to manage and operate purchasing programs which combine the purchasing power of both

Wendys and Arbys company-owned and franchised restaurants to create buying efficiencies for certain

non-perishable goods equipment and services

In order to facilitate the orderly transition of this purchasing function for the Companies North America

operations Wendys/Arbys Restaurants transferred certain contracts assets and certain Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

purchasing employees to SSG in the second quarter
of 2010 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had committed to pay

approximately $5.2 million of SSG expenses
which was expensed in 2010 and was to be paid over 24 month period

through March 2012 We made
payments of $2.0 million in 2010

Should sale of Arbys occur as discussed in The Arbys Restaurant System herein under the change of

control provisions in the
agreement

that established SSG the activities of SSG would be wound up In the wind up

process
the assets personnel and functions of SSG would be transferred to QSCC and ARCOP as such parties and

Wendys/Aibys Restaurants agree In contemplation of possible sale the parties are in discussion regarding the

dissolution of SSG and transferring SSGs assets personnel and functions to QSCC and ARCOP



Trademarks and Service Marks

Wendys or irs subsidiaries have regisrered certain tradematks and service marks in rhe Unired States Patent and

Trademark Office and in international jurisdictions some of which include Wendys Old Fashioned Hamburgers
and Quality Is Our Recipe Wcndys believes that these and other related marks are of material importance to its

business Domestic trademarks and service marks expire at various times from 2011 to 2020 while international

trademarks and service marks have various durations of 10 to 15 years Wendys generally intends to renew

trademarks and service marks that are scheduled to expire

Wendys entered into an Assignment of Rights Agreeoienr with the companys founder David Thomas and

his wife dated as of November 2000 the Assignment Wendys had used Mr Thomas who was Senior

Chairman of the Board until his death on January U02 as spokesperson and focal point for its products and

services for many years
With the efforts and attributes ot Mr Thoma5 Wendys has through its extensive investment

in the advertising and promotional use of Mr Thomas name likeness image voice caricature endorsement rights

and photographs the Thomas Persona made rIse Thomas Persona well known in the United States and

throughout North America and valuable asset for both Wendys and Mr Thomas estate Under the terms of the

Assignment Wendys acquired the entire right title interest and ownership in and to the Thomas Persona including

the sole and exclusive right to commercially use the Thomas Persona

Seasonality

Wendys resrauianr operations are moderately seasonal Wendys average restaurant sales are normally higher

during the summer months than during the winter months Because the business is moderately seasonal results for

any quarter are not necessarily indicatis of the results that may be achieved for
any

other
quartet or for the full fiscal

year

Competition

Each Wendys restaurant is in competition with other food service operations within the same geographical

area The quick-service restaurant segment is highly competitive and includes well established competitors such as

McDonalds Burget King Taco Bell Kentucky Fried Chicken and Arbys Wendys competes
with other

restaurant companies and food outlets primarily through the quality variety convenience price and value

perception of food products offered The number and location of units quality and speed of service attractiveness of

facilities effectiveness of marketing and new product development by Wendys and its competitors are also important

factors The price charged for each menu item may vary from market to market and within markets depending on

competitive pricing and the local cost structure Wendys also competes within the food service industry and the quick

service restaurant sector not only for customers but also for personnel suitable real estate sites and qualified

franchisees

Wendys competitive position is differentiated by focus on quality its use of fresh never frozen ground beef in

the United States and Canada and certain other countries its unique and diverse menu its promotional products its

choice of condiments and the atmosphere and decor of its restaurants

Many of the
leading testautant chains have focused on new unit development as one strategy to increase market

share through increased consumer awareness and convenience This has led to mci eased competition for available

development sites and higher development costs for those sites although the recent decline in commercial real estate

values has somewhat offset those costs Competitors also employ marketing strategies such as frequent use of price

discounting frequent promotions and heavy advertising expenditures Continued price discounting in the quick

service iestauraiit iudustiy and the emphasis on value menus has had and could continue ro have an adversc impact on

Wendys In addition the
growth of fast casual chains and other in-line competitors could cause some fast food

customers to trade up to more traditional dining out experience while keeping the benefits of
quick service dining

Other restaurant chains have also competed by offering high quality sandwiches made with fresh ingredients

and artisan breads and there are several emerging restaurant chains featuring high quality food served at in-line

locations Several chains have also sought to compete by targeting certain consumer groups such as capitalizing on

trends toward certain types of diets e.g low carbohydrate or low trans fat by offering menu items that are promoted

as being consistent with such diets



Additional competitive ptessures
for prepared food purchases come from operators outside the restaurant

industry number of major grocery
chains offer fresh ci Ii sandwiches and fully prepared food and meals to go as

part
of their deli sections Some of these chains also havu n_store cafes with service counters and tables where

consumers can order and consume full menu prepared especially for that portion of the

operation Additionally convenience stores and retail ntiltr
gas

stations frequently offer sandwiches and other

foods

Quality Assurance

Wendys quality assurance program is designed to verif that the food products supplied to our restaurants are

processed in safe sanitary environment and in compliance with our food safety and quality standards Wendys

quality assurance personnel conduct multiple on-site sanitation and production audits throughout
the

year at all of

our core menu product processing facilities which include beef poultry pork buns French fries FrostyTM dessert

ingredients and produce Animal welfare audits are also conducted every year at all beef poultry
and pork facilities to

confirm compliance with our required animal welfare and handling policies and procedures In addition to our facility

audit program weekly samples of beef poultry and other core menu products from our distribution centers are

randomly sampled and analyzed by third parry laboratory to test conformance to our quality specifications
Each

year Wendys representatives conduct unannounced inspections of all company and franchise restaurants to test

conformance to our sanitation food safety and operational requirements Wendys has the right to terminate

franchise agreements if franchisees fail to comply with quality standards

Acquisitions and Dispositions of Wendy is Restaurants

Wendys has from time to time acquired the interests of and sold Wendys restaurants to franchisees and it is

anticipated that the company may have opportunities for such transactions in the friture Wendys generally
retains

right of first refusal in connection with any proposed sale of franchisees interest Wendys will continue to sell and

acquire restaurants in the future where prudent

Franchised Restaurants

As of January 2011 Wendys franchisees operated 5182 Wendys restaurants in 49 states Canada and 22

other countries and United States territories

The rights
and

obligations governing
the

majority
of franchised restaurants operating in the United States are

set forth in the Wendys Unit Franchise Agreement This document provides the franchisee the right to construct

own and
operate Wendys restaurant upon site accepted by Wendys and to use the Wendys system

in connection

with the operation of the restaurant at that site The Unit Franchise Agreement provides for 20-year term and

10-year renewal subject to certain conditions Wendys has in the
past

franchised under different
agreements on

multi-unit basis however Wendys now generally grants new Wendys franchises on unit-by-unit basis

The Wendys Unit Franchise Agreement requires that the franchisee
pay royalty of 40o of sales as defined in

the agreement from the
operation

of the restaurant The
agreement

also typically requires that the franchisee
pay

Wendys technical assistance fee In the United States the standard technical assistance fee required under newly

executed Unit Franchise Agreement is currently $25000 for each restaurant

The technical assistance fee is used to defray some of the costs to Wendys in providing technical assistance in

the development of the Wendys restaurant initial training of franchisees or their
operator

and in providing other

assistance associated with the opening of the Wendys restaurant In certain limited instances like the regranting of

franchise rights or the relocation of an existing restaurant Wendys may charge reduced technical assistance fee or

may waive the technical assistance fee Wendys does not select or employ personnel on behalf of franchisees

Wendys has announced program to encourage
the development of new restaurants in the United

States Under the program provided certain conditions are met the technical assistance fee for franchised restaurants

opened from April 2011 through December 2013 will be reduced to $15000 and royalties paid on sales from those

restaurants will be reduced to 2o for the first 12 months and to 30 for the second 12 months After 24 months the

monthly royalty rate reverts to the prevailing 40 rare for the remaining term of the franchise agreement



Wendys currently does not offer
any financing arrangements or enter into

guarantees
of financing

arrangements to franchisees seeking to build new franchised units However Wendys had previously made such

financing available to qualified franchisees and Wendys had guaranteed payment on portion of the loans made by

third-parry lenders to those franchisees

Effective February 2011 certain lenders are offering financing to Wendys United States franchisees to purchase

new equipment and smallwares and modiæt other equipment needed to implement Wendys new hamburger product

roll out Wendys has agrced to subsidize portion of the interest that would otherwise be payable by the franchisees

participating in this financing program The financing program is expected to end in September 2011

See Management Discussion and Analysis Liquidity and Capital Resources Guarantees and Other

Contingencies in Item herein for further information regarding guarantee obligations

Franchised restaurants are required to be operated under uniform operating standards and specifications relating

ro the selection quality and preparation of menu items signage decor equipment uniforms suppliers maintenance

and cleanliness of premises and customer service Wendys monitors franchisee
operations

and inspects restaurants

periodically to ensure that required practices and procedures are being followed

See Note and Note 23 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item herein and

the information under Managements Discussion and Analysis in Item herein for further information regarding

reserves commitments and
contingencies involving franchisees

Advertising and Marketing

In the United States and Canada Wendys advertises nationally on nerwork and cable television programs

including nationally relcvised events Locally in the United States and Canada Wendys primarily advertises through

regional network and cable television radio and
newspapers Wendys participates in two national advertising funds

established to collect and administer funds contributed for use in advertising through television radio newspapers

the Internet and variety of promotional campaigns Separate national advertising funds are administered for

Wendys United States and Canadian locations Contributions to the national advertising funds are required to be

made from both company-owned and franchised resrauranrs and are based on percent
of restaurant retail sales In

addition to the contributions to the national advertising funds Wendys requires additional contributions to be made

for both company-owned and franchised restaurants based on percent
of restaurant retail sales for the

purpose
of

local and regional advertising programs Required franchisee contributions to the national advertising funds and for

local and regional advertising programs are governed by the Wendys Unit Franchise Agreement Required

contributions by company-owned restaurants for advertising and promotional programs are at the same percent
of

retail sales as franchised restaurants within the Wendys system Currently the contribution rate for United States and

Canadian restaurants is generally 3% of retail sales for national advertising and 1% of retail sales for local and regional

advertising

See Note 26 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item herein for further

information regarding advertising

International Operations and Franchising

As of January 2011 Wendys had 136 company-owned and 232 franchised restaurants in Canada and 325

franchised resrauranrs in 22 other countries and U.S territories Wendys is aggressively pursuing international

development opportunities Since the second
quarter

of 2009 new development agreements
have been announced for

Wendys locations in Singapore Trinidad and Tobago and other eastern Caribbean countries Argentina and the

Philippines and dual branded Wendys and Arbys locations in the United Arab Emirates and 11 other countries in

the Middle East and North Africa and the Russian Federation In March 2011 Wendys also announced that it had

entered into joint venture to develop Wendys restaurants in Japan Wendys has granted development rights in the

certain countries and territories listed under Item of this Form 10-K

Wendys Restaurants of Canada Inc WROC 100% owned subsidiary of Wendys holds master franchise

rights for Canada The rights and obligations governing the majoriry of franchised restaurants operating in Canada are

set forth in Single Unit Sub-Franchise Agreement This document provides the franchisee the right to construct

own and
operate Wendys restaurant upon site accepted by WROC and to use the Wendys system in connection



with the operation
of the restaurant at that site The Single Unit Sub-Franchise Agreement provides for 20-year

term and 10-year renewal subject to certain conditions The sub-franchisee pays to WROC monthly royalty of 4%

of sales as defined in the agreement from the operation of the restaurant or C$ 1000 whichever is greater The

agreement
also

typically requires that the franchisee
pay

WROC technical assistance fee The standard technical

assistance fee is currently C535000 for each restaurant

Franchisees who wish to operate Wendys restaurants outside the United States and Canada enter into

agreements
with Wendys that

generally provide franchise rights
for each restaurant for an initial term of 10 years or

20 years depending on the
country and typically include 10-year renewal provision subject to certain

conditions The
agreements

license the franchisee to use the Wendys trademarks and know-how in the
operation of

Wendys restaurant at specified
location Generally the franchisee

pays Wendys technical assistance fee or an

other per restaurant fee and monthly fees based on percentage
of

gross monthly sales of each restaurant In certain

foreign markets Wendys may grant
the franchisee exclusivity to develop territory in exchange

for the franchisee

undertaking to develop specified number of new Wendys restaurants in the territory based on negotiated

schedule In these instances the franchisee
generally pays Wendys an upfront development fee annual development

fees or per restaurant fee In certain circumstances Wendys may grant franchisee the right to sub-franchise in

stated territory subject to certain conditions

Wendys also continually evaluates non-franchise opportunities for
development of Wendys restaurants in

international markets including through joint ventures with third parties and
opening company-owned restaurants

The Arbys Restaurant System

Arbys is the
largest restaurant franchising system specializing in the roast beef sandwich segment

of the quick

service restaurant industry According to Nation Restaurant News Arbys is the second largest
sandwich chain

restaurant in the United States In January 2011 Wendys/Arbys announced that it is exploring strategic alternatives

for the Arbys brand including
sale of the brand

As the franchisor of the Arbys restaurant system Arbys through its subsidiaries owns and licenses the right to

use the Arbys brand name and trademarks in the
operation

of Arbys restaurants Arbys provides Arbys franchisees

with services designed to increase both the revenue and profitability of their Arbys restaurants The most important

of these services are providing strategic leadership for the brand product development quality control operational

training and counseling regarding site selection

At January 2011 there were 3649 Arbys restaurants in operation in North America and in foreign

countries other than Canada Of these restaurants 1144 were operated by Arbys and 2505 by total of 460

franchisees See Item Properties for listing of the number of company-owned and franchised locations in the

United States and in foreign countries

The revenues from the Arbys restaurant business are derived from two principal sources sales at company-

owned restaurants and franchise royalties received from all Arbys franchised restaurants

Arbys also owns the Tj Cinnamons
concept

which consists of gourmet cinnamon rolls gourmet coffees and

other related products As of January 2011 there were total of 90 Tj Cinnamons outlets 82 of which are dual-

branded with domestic Arbys restaurants

Arby Restaurants

Arbys opened its first restaurant in Boardman Ohio in 1964 During 2010 Arbys closed 17 generally

underperforming company-owned restaurants In addition Arbys sold company-owned restaurants to its

franchisees During 2010 Arbys franchisees opened 4-s new Arbys restaurants and closed 96 generally

underperforming Arbys restaurants In addition during 2010 Arbys franchisees closed 18 T.J Cinnamons outlets

14 of which were located in Arbys units and others not dual-branded with Arbys units



The following table sets forth the number of Arbys restaurants at the beginning and end of each
year

from

2008 to 2010

2010 2009 2008

Restaurants open at beginning of period 3718 3756 3688

Restaurants opened during period 44 59 127

Restaurants closed during period 113 97 59

Restaurants open at end of period 3649 3718 3756

During the period from December 31 2007 through January 2011 230 Arbys restaurants were opened and

269 generally underperforming Arbys restaurants were closed

Operations

In addition to various slow-roasted roast beef sandwiches Aibys offers an extensive menu of chicken turkey

and ham sandwiches snack items and salads including its Mailcer Fresh line of premium sandwiches and fresh

salads made with premium ingredients and Toasted Subs In 2010 Arbys implemented its everyday value menu In

addition the restaurants sell variety of promotional products on limited basis

Freestanding Arbys restaurants generally include pickup window in addition to dining room The

percentage
of sales at company-owned Arbys restaui ants through the pick up

window ssas 58.20o 57.2o and 57.7o

in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Genei ally Arbys does nor sell food or supplies to Arbys fianchisees

Raw Materials and Purchasing

As of January 2011 independent meat piocessors
total production facilities supplied all of Aibys beef

for roasting in the United States Franchise operators are required to obtain beef for roasting from these approved

suppliers

Arbys and its franchisees have nor expeiienced any material shortages of food equipment fixtures or other

products
that are necessary to maintain restaurant operations Arbys anticipates no such shortages of products and

believes that alternate suppliers are available

ARGOP negotiates contracts with
approved suppliers on behalf of Arbys and Arbys franchisees Suppliers to

the Ashys system must comply with USDA and FDA regulations governing the manufacture packaging storage

distribution and sale of all food and packaging products Generally franchisees may obtain other products including

food ingredients paper goods equipment and
signs

from
any source that meets Arbys specifications and

approval Through ARGOP Arbys and Arbys franchisees purchase food beverage proprietary paper
and operating

supplies under national contracts with
pricing

based upon total
system volume

During the 2010 second
quarter

ARGOP and QSGG in consultation with Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

established the SSG SSG was formed to manage and
operate purchasing programs

which combine the purchasing

power of both Wendys and Ashys company-owned and franchised restaurants to create buying efficiencies for certain

non-perishable goods equipment and services

In order to facilitate the orderly transition of this purchasing function for the Gompanies North America

operations Wendys/Arbys Restaurants transferred certain contracts assets and certain Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

purchasing employees to SSG in the second quarter of 2010 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had committed to
pay

approximately $5.2 million of SSG expenses which was expensed in 2010 and was to be paid over 24 month period

through March 2012 We paid payments of $2.0 million in 2010

Should sale of Arbys occur as discussed in The Arbys Restaurant System herein under the change of

control provisions in the
agreement

that established SSG the activities of the SSG would be wound up In the wind

up process
the assets personnel and functions of SSG would be transferred to QSGG and ARGOP as such parties

and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants agree In contemplation of possible sale the parties are in discussion regarding the

dissolution of SSG and transferring SSGs assets personnel and functions to QSGG and ARGOP
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Trademarks and Service Marks

Arbys through its subsidiaties owns several trademarks that it considers to be material to its restaurant

business including Arbys Arbys Market Fresh Market Fresh Horsey Sauce Arbys Sauce and

Sidekickers Arbys believes that these and other related mades are of material importance to its business Domestic

trademarks and service marks expire at various times from 2011 to 2020 while international trademarks and service

marks have varionc durations of to years Arhys generally
intends to renew trademarks and service marks that

are scheduled to expire

Seasonality

Arbys restaurant operations are not significantly impacted by seasonality However Arbys restaurant revenues

are somewhat lower in the first quarter

Competition

Arbys faces direct and indirect competition from numerous well-established competitors including national

and regional non-burger sandwich dams such as Panera Biead SubwayC arid Quiaiios as well as hamburger

chains such as McDonalds Burger King and Wendys and other quick service restaurant chains such as Taco

Bell Chick_Fil_A and Kentucky Fried Chicken In addition Arbys competes with locally owned restaurants

drive-ins diners and other similar establishments Key competitive factors in the quick service restaurant industry are

price quality of products convenience quality and speed of service advertising brand awareness restaurant location

and attractiveness of facilities Arbys also competes within the food service industry and the quick service restaurant

sector not only for customers but also fot personnel suitable real estate sites and qualified franchisees

Many of the leading restaurant chains have focused on new unit development as one strategy to increase market

share through increased consumer awareness and convenience This has led to increased competition for available

development sites and higher development costs for those sites although the recent decline in commercial real estate

values has somewhat offset those costs Competitors also employ marketing strategies
such as frequent use of price

discounting frequent promotions and heavy advertising expenditures Continued price discounting in the quick

service restaurant industry and the emphasis on value menus has had and could continue to have an adverse impact on

Arbys In addition the growth of fast casual chains and other in line competitors could cause some fast food

customers to trade up to mote traditional dining out experience while keeping the benefits of quick service dining

Other restaurant chains have also competed by offering high quality sandwiches made with fresh ingredients

and artisan breads and there are several emerging restaurant chains featuring high quality food served at in-line

locations Several chains have also sought to compete by targeting certain consumer groups such as capitalizing on

trends toward certain
types

of diets e.g low carbohydrate or low trans fat by offering menu items that are promoted

as being consistent with such diets

Additional competitive pressures for prepared food purchases come from operators
outside the restaurant

industry number of major grocery chains offer fresh deli sandwiches and fully prepared food and meals to go as

part
of their deli sections Some of these chains also have in-store cafes with service counters and tables where

consumers can order and consume full menu of items prepared especially for that portion of the

operation Additionally convenience stores and retail outlets at gas stations frequently offer sandwiches and other

foods

Quality Assurance

Arbys has developed quality assurance program designed to maintain standards and the uniformity of menu

offerings at all Arbys restaurants Arbys assigns quality assurance employee to each of the independent facilities that

process
beef for domestic Arbys restaurants The quality assurance employee inspects the beef for quality uniformity

and to assure compliance with quality and safety requirements of the USDA and the FDA In addition Arbys

periodically evaluates randomly selected samples of beef and other products from its supply chain Each
year Arbys

representatives conduct announced and unannounced inspections of operations of number of franchisees to ensure

that required policies practices and procedures are being followed Arbys field representatives also provide variety of

on-site consulting services to franchisees Arbys has the right to terminate franchise
agreements

if franchisees fail to

comply with quality standards
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Acquisitions
and

Dispositions ofArby Restaurants

Arbys has from time to time acquired the interests of and sold Arbys restaurants to franchisees and it is

anticipated that the company may have opportunities for such transactions in the future Arbys will continue to sell

and acquire restaurants in the future where prudent

Franchised Restaurants

As of January 2011 Arbys franchisees operated 2505 Arbys restaurants in 47 states Canada and other

countries

Arbys offers franchises for the development of both
single and multiple traditional and non-traditional

restaurant locations The initial term of the typical traditional franchise agreement is 20 years As compared to

traditional restaurants non-traditional restaurants generally occupy smaller retail space
offer no or very

limited

seating may cater to captive audience have limited menu and possibly have reduced services labor and
storage

and different hours of operation Arbys generally grants new Arbys franchises on unit-by-unit basis All franchisees

are required to execute standard franchise agreements Arbys standird United States franchise
agreement

for new

Arbyo traditional rcstaurant franchiscs currcntly rcquircs an initial $37500 franLhisc fec fr the first franLhibed unit

$25000 for each subsequent unit and monthly royalty payment equal to 4.0o of restaurant sales for the term of the

franchise agreement Arbys non traditional restaurant franchise
agreement requires an initial $12500 franchise fee for

the first and all subsequent units and monthly royalty payment ranging from 4.OOo to 7.0o depending upon the

non-traditional restaurant category
Franchisees of traditional restaurants typically pay $10000 commitment fee

and franchisees of non-traditional restaurants typically pay $12500 commitment fee which is credited against the

franchise fee
during the development process

for new restaurant

Arbys currently does not offer
any financing arrangements to franchisees seeking to build new franchised units

In 2007 in order to increase development of traditional Arbys restaurants in selected markets our Select

Market Incentive SMI program was introduced Arbys franchise agreement for participants in the SMI program

currently requires an initial $27500 franchise fee for the first franchised unit $15000 for each subsequent unit and

monthly royalty payment equal to .0o of restaurant sales for the first 36 months the unit is open After 36 months

the monthly royalty rate reverts to the prevailing 40o rate for the remaining term of the agreement The commitment

fee is $5000 per restaurant which is credited against the franchise fee during the development process
The SMI

program remains in effect and does not have stated expiration dare However Arbys has the right to discontinue

offering the program at any time

Because royalty rates of less than 40o are still in effect under certain older franchise agreements the
average

royalty rate paid by United States Arbys franchisees was approximately 3.6o in each of 2010 2009 and 2008

Franchised restaurants are required to be operated under uniform operating standards and specifications relating

to the selection quality and preparation of menu items signage decor equipment uniforms suppliers maintenance

and cleanliness of premises and customer service Arbys monitors franchisee operations and inspects restaurants

periodically to ensure that required practices and procedures are being followed

See Note and Note 23 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item herein and

the information under Managements Discussion and Analysis in Item herein for further information regarding

reserves commitments and contingencies involving franchisees

Advertising and Marketing

Arbys advertises nationally on cable television nenvorks In addition from time to time Arbys will
sponsor

nationally televised event or participate in promotional tie-in for movie Locally Arbys primarily advertises

through regional network and cable television radio and
newspapers

The AFA Service Corporation AFA an

independent membership corporation in which
every

domestic Arbys franchisee is required to participate was formed

to create advertising
and perform marketing

for the Arbys system Arbys Chief Marketing Officer currently serves as

president of AFA AFA is managed by Arbys pursuant to Management Agreement as described below AFA is

funded primarily through member dues From January 2010 and through March 2010 Arbys and most domestic

Arbys franchisees
paid l.2o of sales as dues to AFA Beginning in April 2010 and for the remainder of 2010 the

AFA Board
approved dues increase based on tiered rate structure for the payment of the advertising and marketing
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service fee
ranging

berween 1.4% and 3.6% of sales As result the
avetage Atbys advertising and marketing service

fee
percentage

from April 2010 to the end of the 2010 fiscal
yeat was approximately 2.3o In addition Atbys

partially
subsidized the

top two rate tiers in 2010 thereby decreasing franchisees effective advertising and marketing

service fee
percentages

This subsidy required payments by Aibys of approximately $2.6 million to AFA in 2010

Beginning
in January 2011 and for the remainder of 2011 the AFA Board approved modified tiered rate structure

for the payment of the advertising and marketing service fee ranging between 1.25% and 3.5o Arbys will partially

subsidize the
top two rate tiers in 2011 thereby decreasing franchisees effective advertising and marketing service fee

percentages
This subsidy is expected to require payments by Arbys of approximately $2.9 million for

2011 Domestic franchisee participants in the SMI program pay an extra 1% premium on the advertising and

marketing service fee 2.20o total through March 2010 and based on the tiered rate structure an extra 1% on the

advertising and marketing service fee through December 2011 up to maximum of 3o as AFA dues for the first 36

months of operation their AFA dues then revert to the standard advertising and marketing service fee rate without the

10o premium

Effective October 2005 Arbys and AFA entered into management agreement the Management

Agreement pursuant to which Arbys assumed general responsibility for the day-to-day operations of AFA including

preparing annual operating budgets developing the brand marketing strategy and plan recommending advertising

and media buying agencies and implementing all marketing/media plans Arbys performs these tasks subject to the

approval of AFAs Board of Directors Under the Management Agreement Arbys is obligated to pay for the general

and administrative costs of AFA other than the cost of an annual audit of AFA and certain other expenses specifically

retained by AFA Under the Management Agreement Arbys is also required to provide AFA with appropriate office

space at no cost to the AFA The Management Agreement with AFA continues in effect until terminated by Arbys

upon one years prior written notice or by AFA upon six months prior written notice See Note 24 of the Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item herein for furrhei information on AFA

In addition to their contributions to AFA Arbys and its domestic franchisees are also required to spend

reasonable amount but not less than 30 of sales of their Arbys restaurants for local advertising however with the

new AFA tiered rate structure discussed above any AFA dues paid above 1.20o will be credited against the local

advertising spend requirements Most existing franchise agreements now require and new franchise agreements
will

require domestic franchisees to spend minimum aggregate advertising amount of 4.20o of sales for national and

local advertising which includes the advertising and marketing fee The amount of expenditures for local advertising

is divided between individual local market advertising expenses and ii expenses of cooperative area advertising

program Contributions to the cooperative area advertising program in which both company-owned and franchisee-

owned restaurants participate are determined by the local cooperative participants and are generally in the
range

of

30o to 50 of sales Domestic franchisee participants in our SMI program are not however required to make
any

expenditure for local advertising until their restaurants have been in operation for 36 months

Canadian Arbys franchisees contribute to the Arbys Franchise Association of Canada AFAC an

independent niemhership mnrpnnirinn
in which

every
Canadian Arhys franchisee is required to participate which was

formed to create advertising
and

perform marketing
for the Arbys system in Canada Effective May 2006 Arbys and

AFAC entered into management agreement the Canadian Management Agreement pursuant to which Arbys

assumed general responsibility for the day-to-day operations of AFAC including preparing annual operating budgets

developing the brand
marketing strategy

and plan recommending advertising and media buying agencies and

implements all
marketing/media plans Arbys performs these tasks subject to the approval of AFACs Board of

Directors Under the Canadian Management Agreement Arbys is obligated to pay
for the general and administrative

costs of AFAC other than the cost of an annual audit of AFAC and certain other
expenses specifically retained by

AFAC AFAC is funded
primarily through

member dues Through August 2010 most Canadian franchisees paid 3%
of sales as dues to AFAC Beginning in September 2010 most Canadian franchisees

pay 1.25o of sales as dues to

AFAC

In addition to their contributions to AFAC Canadian Arbys franchisees were required through August 2010 to

contribute 2.2500 of sales for local advertising Beginning in September 2010 Canadian Arbys franchisees are now

required to contribute 40 of sales for local advertising However Canadian franchisees participating in the Canadian

Incentive Program CIP are not required to contribute to local advertising for the first 36 months after restaurant

is opened

See Note 26 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item herein for further

information regarding advertising
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International Operations and Franchising

As of January 2011 Arbys had 106 franchised restaurants in Canada and 20 franchised restaurants in

othei countries In June 2010 Arbys announced new development agreement
for Turkey Arbys has

granted

development rights in the countries listed under Item of this Form 10 IC

Arbys is also the franchisor for the Arbys brand in Canada The tights and obligations governing the

franchised restaurants operating in Canada are set forth in franchise agreement his document provides the licensee

the right to own and
operate an Arbys restaurant upon site accepted by Arbys and to use the Arbys system in

connection with the operation of the restaurant at that site The traditional fianchise agreement provides for
20-year

term and offers renewal term subject to certain conditions The franchisee pays to Arbys monthly royalty of 4% of

sales as defined in the agreement from the operation of the restaurant The agreement also typically requires that the

franchisee pay Arbys franchise fee The standard franchise fee is currently C842500 for the first restaurant and

C$27500 fot each
subsequent iestauranr

In 2007 in order to increase development of traditional Arbys restaurants in selected Canadian markets the

CIP was introduced Arbys franchise agreement for participants in the CIP currently requires an initial C$27500

franchise fee for the first franchised unit C$12500 for each subsequent unit and monthly royalty payment equal to

1.Oo of restaurant sales for the first 36 months the unit is open After 36 months the monthly royalty rate reverts to

the prevailing 4% rate for the remaining term of the agreement The commitment fee is C$5000 per restaurant

which is credited against the fianchise fee during the development process The CIP remains in effect and does not

have stated expiration date However Arby has the tight to discontinue offering the CIP at any time

Our marker entry strategy and terms for the development and operation of Arbys restaurants in markets

outside of the United States and Canada vary depending upon market conditions

General

Governmental Regulations

Various state laws and the Federal Tiade Commission regulate Wendys and Arbys franchising activities The

Federal Trade Commission requires that fianchisors make extensive disclosure to prospective franchisees before the

execution of franchise agreement Seveial states require registration and disclosure in connection with franchise

offers and sales and have franchise relationship laws that limit the ability of franchisors to terminate franchise

agreements or to withhold consent to the renewal or transfer of these agreements In addition Wendys and Arby

and their respective franchisees must comply with the federal Fair Labor Standards Act and similar state and local

laws the Americans with Disabilities Act the ADA which requires that all public accommodations and

commercial facilities meet federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons
and various state and

local laws governing matters that include for example the handling preparation and sale of food and beverages the

provision of nutritional information on menu boards minimum wages overtime and other working and safety

conditions Compliance with the ADA requirements could require removal of access barriers and non-compliance

could result in imposition of fines by the United Stares government or an award of damages to private litigants As

described more fully under Item Legal Proceedings one of Arbys subsidiaries was defendant in lawsuit

alleging failure to comply with Title III of the ADA at approximately 775 company-owned restaurants acquired as

part of Arbys July 2005 acquisition of the RTM Restaurant Group RTM Under court approved settlement of

that lawsuit we estimate that Arbys will spend approximately $1 .15 million
per year

of capital expenditures over

seven-year period which commenced in 2008 to bring these restaurants into compliance with the ADA in addition

to paying certain legal fees and
expenses

We do not believe that the costs related to this matter or any
other costs

relating to compliance with the ADA will have material adverse effect on the Companies consolidated financial

position or results of operations We cannot predict the effect on our operations particularly on our relationship with

franchisees of any pending or future legislation

Environmental Matters

Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants past
and

present operations are governed by federal state and

local environmental laws and regulations concerning the
discharge storage handling and disposal of haxardous or

toxic substances These laws and
regulations provide for

significant fines penalties and liabilities sometimes without

regard to whether the owner or operator
of the

properry
knew of or was responsible for the release or presence

of the
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hazardous or toxic stibstanees Jo addition third parties may make claims against owners or operators
of properties for

pcrsonal injuries and
property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic substances We cannot piedict

what environmental legislation or regulations will be enacted in the future or how existing or future laws oi

regulations will be administered or interpreted We similarly cannot predict the amount of future expenditures that

may be requiied to comply with
any

environmental laws or regulations or to satis any
claims relating to

environmental laws ot regulations We believe that our operations comply substantially with all applicable

environmental laws and regulations Accordingly the environmental matters in which we aie involved generally relate

either to properties that our subsidiaries own but on which they no longer have
any operations or properties that we

or our subsidiaiies have sold to third parties but for which we or our subsidiaries remain liable or contingently liable

for
any

related environmental costs Our company-owned Wendys and Arbys restaurants have not been the subject

of
any

material environmental matters Based on currently available information including defenses available to us

and/or our subsidiaries and our current reserve levels we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of the

environmental matters in which we are involved will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial

position or results of operations

Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants are involved in litigation and claims incidental to our current

and prior businesses As of January 201 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had reserves for all legal and environmental

matters aggregating $3.7 million which are included in the $3.9 million reserved by Wendys/Arhys for all legal and

environmental matters Although the outcome of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty and some of these

matters may be disposed of unfavorably to us based on currently available information including legal defenses

available to us and given the aforementioned reserves and insurance
coverage we do not believe that the outcome of

these legal and environmental matters will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or

results of operations

Employees

As of January 2011 the Companies and their subsidiaries had approximately 64100 employees including

approximately 6300 salaried employees and approximately 51800 hourly employees We believe that our employee

relations are satisfactory
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Item 1A.Risk Factors

We wish to caution readers that in addition to the important factors described elsewhere in this Form 10- we

have included below the most significant factors that have affected or in the future could affect our actual results and

could cause our actual consolidated results during 2011 and beyond to differ materially from those expressed in any

forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf

Risks Related to Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

The impact and results of our announcement that Wendys/Arbys is exploring strategic alternatives for the

Arbyc brand including sale of the brand are uncertain and cannot be determined

In January 2011 Wendys/Arbys announced that it is exploring strategic alrernatives for the Arbys brand

including sale of the brand There can be no assurance that the review of strategic alternatives will result in
any

agreement or transaction or that if an agreement
is executed that transaction will be consummated We do not

intend to disclose developments with respect to this review whether or not material unless and until the Board of

Directors has approved specific course of action or terminated the cploration of strategic alternatives In connection

with uur expluiatiou uf stiategic alternatives we expect to incur
expenses including expcnses

in cuzuiectiun with the

retention of key personnel and consultants The
process

of exploring strategic alternatives may be disruptive to our

business The inability to effectively manage the process and any resulting agreement or transaction could materially

and adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

Our success depends in
part upon the continued retention of certain key personnel

We believe that over time our success has been dependent to significant extent upon the efforts and abilities of

our senior management team The failure by us to retain members of our senior management team could adversely

affect our ability to build on the efforts we have undertaken to increase the efficiency and profitability of our

businesses The retention of members of our seniot management team may be more difficult following Wendys

Arbys announcement that it is exploring strategic alternatives for the Arbys brand including the sale of the brand

Growth of our restaurant businesses is significantly dependent on new restaurant openings which may be

affected by factors beyond our control

Our restaurant businesses derive earnings from sales at company-owned restaurants franchise royalties received

from franchised restaurants and franchise fees from franchise restaurant operators
for each new unit opened Growth

in our restaurant revenues and earnings is significantly dependent on new restaurant openings NumeroOs factors

beyond our control may affect restaurant openings These factors include but ate not limited to

our ability to attract new franchisees

the availability of sitc locations for new retaurant

the ability of potential restaurant owners to obtain financing

the ability of restaurant owners to hire train and retain qualified operating personnel

construction and development costs of new restaurants particularly in highly-competitive markets

the ability of restaurant owners to secure required governmental approvals and permits in timely manner

or at all and

adverse weather conditions

Wendys andArhysJanehisees could take actions that could hann our husinecc

Wendys and Arbys franchisees are contractually obligated to operate their restaurants in accordance with the

standards set forth in agreements with them Each brand also provides training and support to franchisees However

franchisees are independent third parties that we do not control and the franchisees own operate and oversee the

daily operations of their restaurants As result the ultimate success and quality of any franchise restaurant rests with

the franchisee If franchisees do not successfully operate restaurants in manner consistent with required standards

royalty payments to us will be adversely affected and the brands image and reputation could be harmed which in

turn could hurt our business and operating results
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Our success depends onfranchiseesparticipation in brand strategies

Wendys and Arbys franchisees are an integral part
of our business Each brand may be unable to successfully

implement brand strategies that it believes are necessary
for further growth if franchisees do not participate in that

implementation Our business and operating results could be adversely affected if significant number of franchisees

do not participate in brand strategies

Our financial
results are affected by the operating

results
ofjanchisees

As of January 2011 approximately 790o of the Wendys system
and 6900 of the Arbys system were franchise

restaurants We receive revenue in the form of royalties which are generally based on percentage of sales at

franchised restaurants rent and fees from franchisees Accordingly substantial portion of our financial results is to

large extent dependent upon the operational and financial success of our franchisees If sales trends or economic

conditions worsen for franchisees their financial results may worsen and our royalty rent and other fee revenues may
decline In addition accounts receivable and related allowance for doubtful accounts may increase When company-

owned restaurants are sold one of our subsidiaries is often required to remain responsible for lease payments for these

restaurants tn the extent rhat the purchasing franchisees default nn their leases During perinds
nf

declining
sales and

profitability of franchisees such as have been recently experienced by significant number of Arbys franchisees and

minimal number of Wendys franchisees the incidence of franchisee defaults for these lease payments increases and

we are then required to make those payments and seek recourse against the franchisee or agree to repayment

terms Additionally if franchisees fail to renew their franchise agreements or if we decide to restructure franchise

agreements in order to induce franchisees to renew rhese agreements then our royalty revenues may decrease Further

we may decide from rime to rime to acquire resraurants from franchisees that experience significant financial hardship

which may reduce our cash and equivalents

As of January 2011 there were approximately 350 Arbys franchised restaurants with amounts payable to

Arbys for royalties rent and/or other fees that were at least 60 days past due The financial condition of number of

Arbys franchisees was one of the factors that resulted in net decrease of 44 and 31 in the number of franchised

restaurants for fiscal 2010 and 2009 respectively During those periods 96 and 74 franchised Arbys restaurants were

closed respectively The trend of declining sales at franchised Arbys restaurants has resulted in decreases in royalties

and other franchise revenues In addition Arbys franchisee accounts receivable and related allowance for doubtful

accounts have increased significantly and may continue to grow as result of the deteriorating financial condition of

some of our franchisees Franchisees financial difficulties and the closure of franchised restaurants have also caused

reductions in the contributions to and extent of advertising programs Continuation of these trends would affect our

revenues and may have material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition

In December 2009 and as amended in February and August 2010 AFA entered into revolving loan

agreement
with Arbys The terms of this agreement allow AFA to have revolving loans of up to $14.0 million

outstanding with an expiration date of March 2012 and bearing interest at 7.5o per annum In February 2011 the

maximum principal amount was reduced to $11.0 million As of January 2011 the outstanding balance under this

agreement was $4.5 million and rheie were no amounts past
due Due to declining sales and profitability of Arbys

franchisees it is possible that our ability in the future to collect principal and interest
payments

from AFA could be

adversely affected

Each brand may be unable to manage effectively the acquisition and disposition of restaurants which could

adversely affect our business and financial results

Each brand acquires restaurants from franchisees and in some cases re-franchises these restaurants by selling

them to new or existing franchisees The success of these transactions is dependent upon the availability of sellers and

buyers the availability of financing and the brands ability to negotiate transactions on terms deemed acceptable In

addition the operations of restaurants that each brand acquires may not be integrated successfully and the intended

benefits of such transactions may not be realiaed Acquisitions of franchised restaurants pose
various risks to brand

operations including

diversion of management attention to the integration
of

acquired restaurant operations

increased operating expenses
and the inability to achieve expected cost savings and operating efficiencies
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exposure to liabilities arising out of sellers prior operations of acquired restaurants and

incurrence or assumption of debt to finance acquisitions or improvements and/or the assumption of long-

term non-cancelable leases

In addition engaging in acquisitions and dispositions places increased demands on the brands operational and

financial management resources and may require us to continue to expand these resources If either brand is unable to

manage the acquisition and disposition of restaurants effectively its business and financial results could be adversely

affected

Arby does not exercise ultimate control over advertising for its restaurant
system

which could harm sales and

the brand

Arbys franchisees control the provision of national advertising and marketing services to the Arbys fianchise

system through AFA company controlled by Arbys franchisees Subject to Arbys right to protect its trademarks

AFA has the right to
approve

all significant decisions regarding national marketing and advertising strategies and the

creative content of advertising for the Arbys system Although Ashys has entered into management agreement

pursuant to which Arbys on behalf of AFA manages the day-to-day operations of the AFA many areas are still

subject to ultimate approval by AFAs independent board of directors and the management agreement may be

terminated for any reason by Arbys upon one years prior notice or by AFA upon six months prior notice See Item

Business The Arbys Restaurant System Advertising and Marketing In addition local cooperatives run by

operators of Arbys restaurants in particular local area including Arbys make their own decisions regarding local

advertising expenditures subject to the requirement to spend at least the specified minimum amounts Arbys lack of

control over advertising could hurt sales and the Arbys brand

Neither Wendy nor Arby exercises ultimate control over purchasing for their respective restaurant system

which could harm sales or profitability and the brand

Although Wendys and Arbys ensure that all suppliers to their respective systems meet quality control

standards each brands franchisees control the purchasing of food proprietary paper equipment and other operating

supplies
from such suppliers through purchasing co ops controlled by each brands franchisees The

co-ops negotiate

national contracts for such food equipment and supplies Wendys is entitled to appoint two representatives on the

board of directors of QSCC and participates in QSCC through its company-owned restaurants but otherwise does

not control the decisions and activities of QSCC except to ensure that all suppliers satis Wendys quality control

standards Arbys is entitled to appoint one representative on the board of directors of ARCOP and parçicipates in

ARCOP through its company-owned restaurants but otherwise does not control the decisions and activities of

ARCOP
except to ensure that all suppliers satisf3t Arbys quality control standards During the 2010 second quarter

QSCC and ARCOP in consultation with Wendys/Arbys Restaurants established SSG to manage and operate

purchasing programs
which combine the

purchasing power of both Wendys and Arbys company-owned and

franchised restaurants to create buying efficiencies for certain non-perishable goods equipment and services If
any of

these
co-ops

does not properly estimate the product needs of its respective system makes poor purchasing decisions

or decides to cease its operations system
sales and

operating costs could be adversely affected and the financial

condition of Wendys or Ashys or the financial condition of each
systems franchisees could be hurt

Should sale of Arbys occur as discussed in BusinessThe Arbys Restaurant System in Item herein

under the change of control provisions in the
agreement

that established SSG the activities of SSG would be wound

up In the wind
up process

the assets personnel and functions of SSG would be transferred to QSCC and ARCOP as

such parties and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants agree
In contemplation of possible sale the parties are in discussion

regarding the dissolution of SSG and transferring SSGs assets personnel and functions to QSCC and ARCOP The

dissolution of SSG could be disruptive to our business and the operations of QSCC and ARCOP result in the loss of

experienced personnel and adversely affect the financial condition of Wendys or Arbys or the financial condition of

each systems franchisees

Shortages or interruptions in the supply or deliveiy ofperishable food products could damage the Wendys

and/or Arby brand reputation and adversely affect our operating results

Each brand and its franchisees are dependent on frequent deliveries of perishable food products that meet brand

specifications Shortages or interruptions in the supply of perishable food products caused by unanticipated demand
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problems in production or distribution disease or food-borne illnesses inclement weather or other conditions could

adversely affect the availability quality and cost of ingredients which could lower our revenues increase operating

costs damage brand reputation and otherwise harm our business and the businesses of our franchisees

Food safety events including instances offood-borne illness such as salmonella or Coli involving Wendys or

Arhy or their respective supply chains could create negative publicity and adversely affect sales at either or both

brands

Food safety is

top priority and we dedicate substantial resources to ensure that our customers enjoy safe

quality food products However food safety events including instances of food-borne illness such as salmonella or

Coli have occurred in the food industty in the
past

and could occur in the future

Food safety events could adversely affect the price and availability of beef poultty or other meats As result

Wendys and/or Arbys restaurants could experience significant increase in food costs if there are food safety events

whether or not such events involve Wendys or Arbys restaurants or restaurants of competitors

In addition food safety events whether or not involving Wendy or Arbys could result in negative publicity

for Wendys and/or Arbys or for the industty or market
segments

in which we operate
This negative publicity as

well as any other negative publicity concerning types of food products Wendys or Arbys serves may reduce demand

for Wendys and/or Arbys food and could result in decrease in
guest

traffic to our restaurants as consumers shift

their preferences to other products or food types decrease in guest traffic to our restaurants as result of these

health concerns or negative publicity could result in decline in sales at company-owned restaurants or in royalties

from sales at franchised restaurants

Consumcr concerns regarding the nutritional aspects of beef poull-ty French flies or other products we sell or

concerns regarding
the

effects of disease outbreaks such as mad cow disease and avian influenza or bird flu
could affect demand

for our products

Consumer concerns regarding the nutritional
aspects

of beef pouluy French fries or other products we sell or

concerns regarding the effects of disease outbreaks such as mad cow disease and avian influenza or bird flu could

result in less demand for our products and decline in sales at company-owned restaurants and in the royalties that

we receive from franchisees

Changes in consumer tastes and preferences and in discretionary consumer spending could result in decline in

sales at company-owned restaurants and in the
royalties that we receive from franchisees

The
quick service restaurant industty is often affected by changes in consumer tastes national regional and

local economic conditions discretionary spending priorities demographic trends traffic
patterns

and the
type

number and location of competing restaurants Our success depends to significant extent on discretionary consumer

spending which is influenced by general economic conditions and the availability of discretionaty

income Accordingly we may experience declines in sales during economic downturns Any material decline in the

amount of
discrerionaty spending or decline in consumer food-away-from-home spending could hurt our revenues

results of operations business and financial condition

If company-owned and franchised restaurants are unable to adapt to changes in consumer preferences and

trends Øompany-owned and franchised restaurants may lose customers and the resulting revenues from company-

owned restaurants and the royalties that we receive from franchisees may decline

The
disruptions in the national and global economies and the financial markets may adversely impact our

revenues results ofoperations business and financial condition

The disruptions in the national and global economies and financial markets and the related reductions in the

availability of credit have resulted in high unemployment rates and declines in consumer confidence and spending

and have made it more difficult for businesses to obtain financing If such conditions persist then they may result in

significant declines in consumer food-away-from-home spending and customer traffic in our restaurants and those of

our franchisees Such conditions may also adversely impact the ability of franchisees to build or purchase restaurants

remodel existing restaurants renew expiring franchise
agreements

and make timely royalty and other payments There

can be no assurance that government responses to the disruptions in the financial markets will restore consumer
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confidence stabilize the markers ot inctease liquidity and the availability of ctedit If we ot our ftanchisees ate unable

to obtain bottowed funds on acceptable terms or if conditions in the economy and the financial matkets do not

improve our revenues results of opetations business and financial condition could be adversely affected

Additionally we have entered into interest rate swaps and other derivative contracts as described in Note 12 to

the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item herein and we may enter into additional swaps

in the future We are exposed to potential losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties on these

instruments which could adversely affect our results of
operations financial condition and liquidity

Changes in commodity costs including beef and chicken supply JiteL utilities distribution and other

operating costs could harm results of operations

Our profitability depends in part on our ability to anticipate and react to changes in commodity costs

including beef and chicken supply fuel distribution and other operating costs Any increase in these costs

especially
beef or chicken prices could harm operating results In addition each brand is susceptible to increases in

these costs as result of other factors beyond irs control such as weather conditions global demand food safety

concerns product recalls and government regulations Additionally prices for feed ingredients
used to produce

beef

and chicken could be adversely affected by changes in global weather patterns
which are inherently

unpredictable Increases in gasoline prices
would result in the imposition of fuel surcharges by our distributors which

would increase our costs Significant increases in gasoline prices
could also result in decrease in customer traffic at

our restaurants which could adversely affect our business We cannot predict whether we will be able to anticipate

and react to changing
food costs by adjusting our purchasing practices and menu prices

and failure to do so could

adversely affect our operating
results In addition we may not seek to or be able to pass along price increases to our

customers

Competition from other restaurant companies or poor customer experience at Wend/c or Arbyc restaurants

could hurt our brands

The market segments in which company owned and franchised Wendys and Arbys restaurants compete are

highly competitive
with

respect to among other things price food quality and presentation service location

convenience and the nature and condition of the restaurant facility If customers have poor experience at Wendys

or Arbys restaurant whether at company-owned or franchised restaurant we may experience decrease in guest

traffic Further Wendys and Arbys restaurants compete with variety of locally-owned restaurants as well as

competitive regional
and national chains and franchises Several of these chains compete by offering menu items that

are targeted at certain consumer groups or dietary trends Additionally many of our competitors have introduced

lower cost value meal menu options Our revenues and those of our franchisees may be hurt by this product and

price competition

Moreover new companies including operators
outside the quick service restaurant industry may enter our

market areas and target our customer base For example additional competitive pressures
for prepared food purchases

have come from deli sections and in-store cafes of number of major grocery store chains as well as from convenience

stores and casual dining outlets Such competitors may have among other things lower operating costs better

locations better facilities better management better products more effective marketing and more efficient

operations Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial marketing personnel and other resources

than we do which may allow them to react to changes in pricing and marketing strategies in the quick service

restaurant industry better than we can Many of our competitors spend significantly more on advertising and

marketing
than we do which may give them competitive advantage through higher levels of brand awareness among

consumers All such competition may adversely affect our revenues and profits by reducing revenues of company-

owned restaurants and royalty payments from franchised restaurants

Current restaurant locations may become unattractive and attractive new locations may not be available for

reasonable price ifat all

The success of any restaurant depends in substantial part on its location There can be no assurance that our

current restaurant locations will continue to be attractive as demographic patterns change Neighborhood or

economic conditions where our restaurants are located could decline in the future thus resulting in potentially

reduced sales in those locations In addition rising real estate prices in some areas may restrict our ability and the

ability of franchisees to purchase or lease new desirable locations If desirable locations cannot be obtained at

reasonable prices each brands ability to execute its growth strategies will be adversely affected
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Wendyc andArbyc business could be burt by increased labor costs or labor
shortages

Labor is primary component in the cost of operating our company-owned restaurants Each brand devotes

significant resources to recruiting and training its
managers

and hourly employees Increased labor costs due to

competition increased minimum wage or employee benefits costs including government mandated health care

benefits or other factors would adversely impact out cost of sales and operating expenses
In addition each brands

success depends un its ability tu atuact mutivatc and retain qualified cmpluyccs including restaurant managers
and

staff If either brand is unable to do so our results of operations could be adversely affected

Each brands leasing and ownership of significant amounts of real estate exposes it to possible liabilities and

losses including liabilities associated with environmental matters

As of January 2011 Wendys leased or owned the land and/or the building for 1394 Wendys restaurants

and Arbys leased or owned the land and/or the building for 1144 Atbys testaurants Accordingly each brand is

subject to all of the risks associated with leasing and owning real estate In particular the value of our teal
propetty

assets could decrease and costs could increase because of changes in the investment climate for teal estate

demographic trends supply or demand for the use of the restaumants which may result from competition from similar

restaurants in the area and liability for envimonmental matters

Each brand is subject to federal state and local environmental health and safety laws and
regulations

concerning the discharge storage handling
release and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances These

environmental laws provide for
significant fines penalties and liabilities sometimes without regard to whether the

owner operator or occupant
of the

property
knew of or was responsible for the release or presence

of the hazardous

or toxic substances Third patties may also make claims against owners operators or occupants
of

properties for

personal injuries and
property damage associated with releases of or actual or alleged exposure to such substances

number of our restaurant sites were formerly gas stations or are adjacent to current or former
gas stations or were

used for other commercial activities that can create environmental impacts We may also acquire or lease these
types

of sites in the future We have nor conducted comprehensive environmental review of all of our properties We may

not have identified all of the potential environmental liabilities at our leased and owned properties and
any

such

liabilities identified in the future could cause us to incur significant costs including costs associated with litigation

fines or clean up responsibilities In addition we cannot predict what environmental
legislation or regulations will be

enacted in the future or how existing or future laws or regulations will be administered or interpreted We cannot

predict the amount of future expenditures that may be requited in order to comply with
any

environmental laws or

regulations or to satisfV any
such claims See Item Business-General-Environmental Matters

Each brand leases real
property generally for initial terms of 20

years
with two to four additional options to

extend the term of the leases in consecutive five-year increments Many leases provide that the landlord may increase

the rent over the term of the lease and any renewals thereof Most leases requite us to pay
all of the costs of insurance

taxes mmmaimmteuammce arid utilities We generally cannot cancel these leases If an existing or future restaurant is not

profitable
and we decide to close it we may nonetheless be committed to perform our obligations under the

applicable lease including among other things paying the base tent for the balance of the lease term In addition as

each lease
expires we may fail to negotiate additional renewals or renewal options either on commercially acceptable

terms or at all which could cause us to close stores in desirable locations

Coæiplaints or litigation may hurt each brand

Wendys and Arbys customers file complaints or lawsuits against us alleging that we are responsible for an

illness or injury they suffered at or after visit to Wendys or Arbys testaurant or alleging that there was problem

with food quality or operations at Wendys or Arbys restaurant We are also subject to variety of other claims

arising in the ordinary course of our business including personal injury claims contract claims claims from

franchisees which tend to increase when franchisees experience declining sales and profitability and claims alleging

violations of federal and state law megarding workplace
and employment matters discrimination and similar matters

including class action lawsuits related to these matters Regardless of whether any claims against us are valid or

whether we are found to be liable claims may be
expensive to defend and may divert managements attention away

from operations and hurt our performance judgment significantly in excess of our insurance coverage
for

any

claims could materially adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations Further adverse
publicity

resulting from these claims may hurt us and our franchisees
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Additionally the rcstautant industry has been subject to number of claims that the menus and actions of

restaurant chains have led to the obesity of certain of their customers Adverse publicity resulting from these

allegations may harm the reputation of our restaurants even if the allegations are not directed against our restaurants

or are not valid and even if we are not found liable ot the concerns relate only to single restaurant or limited

number of restaurants Moreover complaints litigation or adverse publicity experienced by one or more of Wendys

or Atbys franchisees could also hurt our business as whole

Our current insurance may not provide adequate levels of coverage against claims that may be/lied

We curienrly maintain insurance we believe is adequate for businesses of our siae and
type However there are

types
of losses we may incur that cannot be insured against or that we believe are not economically reasonable to

insure such as losses due to natural disasters or acts of terrorism In addition we currently self-insure significant

portion of expected losses under workers compensation geneial liability and
property

insurance

programs Unanticipated changes in the actuarial assumptions and management estimates underlying our reserves for

these losses could result in materially diffetent amounts of
expense

under these programs which could harm our

business and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition

Changes in legal or regulatory requirements including franchising laws accounting standards payment card

industay rules overtime rules minimum wage rates government-mandated health care benefits tax legislation

and menu-board labeling requirements may hurt our ability to open new restaurants or otherwise hurt our

existing
and

future operations and results

Each Wendys and Atbys restaurant is subject to licensing and regulation by health sanitation safety and other

agencies in the state and/or municipality in which the restaurant is located as well as to Federal laws rules and

regulations and requirements of non-governmental entities such as payment card industry rules State and local

government authorities may enact laws rules or regulations that impact restaurant operations and the cost of

conducting those operations For example recent efforts to require the listing of specified nutritional information on

menus and menu boards could adversely affect consumer demand for our products could make our menu boards less

appealing and could increase our costs of doing business There can be no assurance that we and/or our franchisees

will not experience material difficulties or failures in obtaining the necessary licenses or approvals for new restaurants

which could delay the
opening

of such restaurants in the future In addition more stringent and varied requirements

of local
governmental bodies with respect to tax zoning land use and environmental factors could delay or prevent

development of new restaurants in particular locations

Federal laws rules and regulations address many aspects of our business such as franchising minimum
wages

and taxes We and our franchisees are also subject to the Fair Labor Standards Act which
governs

such inatrers as

minimum wages overtime and other working conditions along with the ADA family leave mandates and variety of

other laws enacted by the states that govern these and other employment law matters As described more fully under

Item Legal Proceedings one of our subsidiaries was defendant in lawsuit alleging failure to comply with Title

III of the ADA at approximately 775 company-owned testaurants acquired as part of the RTM acquisition by Arbys

in July 2005 Under court approved settlement of that lawsuit Arbys estimates that it will spend approximately

$1.15 million
per year of capital expenditures over seven year period which commenced in 2008 to bring these

restaurants into compliance with the ADA in addition to paying certain legal fees and expenses We cannot predict

the amount of
any other future expenditures that may be required in order to permit company owned restaurants to

comply with
any changes in existing regulations or to comply with any future regulations that may become applicable

to our businesses

Recent Federal
legislation regarding changes in government-mandated health care benefits are also anticipated

to increase our costs and the costs of our franchisees and may result in significant modifications to our employment

and hiring practices Because of the absence of implementing regulations we currently cannot predict the timing or

amount of those cost increases or modifications to our business practices However the cost increases may be material

and such modifications to our business practices may be distuptive to our operations and impact our ability to attract

and retain personnel

Our operations are influenced by adverse weather conditions

Weather which is unpredictable can impact Wendys and Arbys restaurant sales Harsh weather conditions

that keep customers from
dining out result in lost

opportunities for our restaurants heavy snowstorm in the

Northeast or Midwest or hurricane in the Southeast can shut down an entire metropolitan area resulting in
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reduction in sales in that area Our first quarter includes winter months and historically has lower level of sales at

company-owned restaurants Because significant portion of our restaurant operating costs is fixed or semi-fixed in

nature thc loss of sales duiing these periods hurts our operating margins and can result in restaurant operating

losses For these reasons quarter-to-quartet comparison may nor be good indication of either brands performance

or how it may perform in the future

Due to the concentration of Wendy and Arby restaurants in particular geographic regions our business

results could be impacted by the adverse economic conditions prevailing in those regions regardless of the state of

the national economy as whole

As of January 2011 we and our franchisees operated Wendys or Arbys restaurants in 50 states and 24

foreign countries As of January 2011 as detailed in Item Properties the leading states by number of

operating units were Ohio Florida Texas Michigan Georgia Pennsylvania California and North Carolina This

geographic concentration can cause economic conditions in particular areas of the country to have disproportionate

impact on our overall results of operations It is possible that adverse economic conditions in states or regions that

contain high concentration of Wendys and Arbys restaurants could have material adverse impact on our results of

operations in the future

Wendys/A rhys Restaurants and its subsidiaries are subject to various restrictions and substantially all of their

72012-real estate assets are pledged and subject to certain restrictions under Credit Agreement

On May 24 2010 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants entered into $650000 Credit Agreement which includes

$500000 senior secured term loan facility and $150000 senior secured revolving credit facility The obligations

under the Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of the non-real estate assets of Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants and its domestic subsidiaries other than certain unrestricted subsidiaries the stock of its domestic

subsidiaries other than certain unrestricted subsidiaries 65o of the stoclc of certain of its foreign subsidiaries as well

as by mortgages on certain restaurant properties
The affirmative and negative covenants in the Credit Agreement

include among others preservation of corporate existence payment of taxes and maintenance of insurance and

limitations on indebtedness including guarantee obligations of other indebtedness liens mergers consolidations

liquidations and dissolutions sales of assets dividends and other payments in respect of capital stock investments

payments
of certain indebtedness transactions with affiliates changes in fiscal year negative pledge clauses and

clauses restricting subsidiary distributions and material changes in lines of business The financial covenants

contained in the Credit Agreement are consolidated interest coverage ratio ii consolidated senior secured

leverage ratio and Hi consolidated senior secured lease adjusted leverage ratio The covenants generally do not

restrict Wendys/Arbys or any of Wendys/Arbys subsidiaries that are not subsidiaries of Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants If the Borrowers are unable to generate
sufficient cash flow or otherwise obtain the Rinds

necessary to

make requircd payments
of interest or principal under or are unable to comply with covenants of the Credit

Agreement then they sould be in default under the terms of the agreement which would preclude the payment of

dividends to Wendys/Arbys restrict access to the revolving credit facility and under certain circumstances permit

the lenders to accelerate the maturity of the indebtedness See Note 11 of the Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data included in Item herein for further information regarding the Credit Agreement

Wendy VArby Restaurants and its subsidiaries have significant amount of debt outstanding Such

indebtedness along with the other contractual commitments of our subsidiaries could adversely affect our

business financial condition and results of operations as well as the ability ofcertain of our subsidiaries to meet

payment obligations under the Senior Notes and other debt

Certain of Wendys/Arbys subsidiaries have significant amount of debt and debt service requirements As of

January 2011 on consolidated basis there was approximately $1.6 billion of outstanding debt

This level of debt could have significant consequences on our future operations including

making it more difficult to meet payment and other obligations under the Senior Notes and other

outstanding debt

resulting in an event of default if our subsidiaries fail to comply with the financial and other restrictive

covenants contained in debt agreements which event of default could result in all of our subsidiaries debt

becoming immediately due and payable
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reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital capita expenditures acquisitions and

other genera corporate purposes and imiting our abiity to obtain additional financing for these purposes

subjecting us to the risk of increased sensitivity to interest rare increases on our indebtedness with variahe

interest iates incuding borrowings under the Credit Agreement

limiting our flexibiity in panning for or reacting to and increasing our vulnetabiiry to changes in our

business the industry in which we operate and the general economy and

pacing us at competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that are less leveraged

In addition certain of our subsidiaries also have significant contractual requirements for the purchase of soft

drinks Wendys has also provided loan guarantees to various lenders on behalf of franchisees entering into pooled

debt facility arrangements for new store development and equipment financing Certain subsidiaries also guarantee or

are contingently liable for certain leases of their respective franchisees for which they have been indemnified In

addition certain subsidiaries also guarantee or are contingently liable for certain leases of their respective franchisees

for which they have not been indemnified These commitments could have an adverse effect on our liquidity and the

ability of our subsidiaries to meet payment obligations under the Senior Notes and other debt

The ability to meet payment and other obligations under the debt instruments of our subsidiaries depends on

their ability to genetate significant cash flow in the future This to some extent is subject to general economic

financial competitive legislative and regulatory factors as well as other factors that are beyond our control We cannot

assure you that our business will generate cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be available to us

under existing or any future credit facilities or otherwise in an amount sufficient to enable our subsidiaries to meet

their payment obligations under the Senior Notes and other debt and to fund other liquidity needs If our subsidiaries

are nor able to generate sufficient cash flow to service their debt obligations rhey may need to refinance or restructure

debt including the Senior Notes sell assets teduce or delay capital investments or seek to raise additional capital If

our subsidiaries are unable to implement one or more of these alternatives they may not be able to meet payment

obligations under the Senior Notes and other debt and other obligations

We and our subsidiaries may still be able to incur substantially more debt This could exacerbate further the

risks associated with our substantial leverage

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness including additional

secured indebtedness in the future The terms of the Senior Notes indenture and the Credit Agreement restrict but

do not completely prohibit us or our subsidiaries from doing so In addition the Senior Notes indenure allows

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants to issue additional Senior Notes under certain circumstances which will also be

guaranteed by the guaranrors of the Senior Notes The indenture also allows Wendys/Arbys Restaurants to incur

certain secured debt and allows our foreign subsidiaries to incur additional debt which would be effectively senior to

the Senior Notes In addition the indenture does not prevent Wendys/Arbys Restaurants from incurring other

liabilities that do not constitute indebtedness If new debt or other liabilities are added to our current consolidated

debt levels the related risks that we now face could intensi

To service debt and meet its other cash needs Wendy VArbyc Restaurants will require significant amount of

cash which may not be generated or available to it

The ability of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants to make payments on or repay or refinance its debt including the

Senior Notes and the Credit Agreement and to fund planned capital expenditures dividends and other cash needs

will depend latgely upon its future operating performance Future performance to certain extent is subject to

general economic financial competitive legislative regulatory and other factors that are beyond our conttol In

addition the ability of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants to borrow funds in the future to make payments on its debt will

depend on the satisfaction of the covenants in its credit facilities and other debt agreements including the indenture

governing the Senior Notes the Credit Agreement and other
agreements it may enter into in the future Specifically

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants will need to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy financial condition tests There

is no assurance that the Wendys/Arbys Restaurants business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that

future borrowings will be available under irs credit facilities or from other sources in an amount sufficient to enable it

to pay its debt including the Senior Notes and Credit Agreement or to fund its or Wendys/Ashys dividend and

other liquidity needs
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We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property which could hann the value of our brands

and hurt our business

Our intellectual property is material ro the conduct of our business We rely on combination of rrademaiks

copyrighrs service marks rrade secrers and similar intellectual
property rights ro prorecr our brands and orhei

intellectual property The success of our business strategy depends in
part on our continued

abilit1 to use our

existing trademarks and service marks in order to increase brand awareness and further develop our branded products

in both existing and new markets If our efforts to protect our intellectual
property are nor adequate or if any third

party misappropriares or infringes on our intellectual property either in print or on the Internet the value of our

brands may be harmed which could have material adverse effect on our business including the failute of our biands

to achieve and maintain market
acceptance

This could harm our image brand or competitive position and if we

commence litigation to enforce our rights cause us to incur significant legal fees

We franchise our restaurant brands to various franchisees While we try to ensure that the quality of our brands

is maintained by all of our franchisees we cannot assure you that these franchisees will not take actions that hurt the

value of our intellectual
property or the reputation

of the Wendys and/orArbys restaurant system

We have registered certain trademarks and have other trademark registrations pending in the United States and

certain foreign jurisdictions The trademarks that we currently use have not been registered in all of the countries

outside of the United States in which we do business or may do business in the future and may never be registered in

all of these countries We cannot assure you that all of the steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property in

the United States and foreign countries will be adequate The laws of some foreign countries do not protect

intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States

In addition we cannot assure you that third parties will nor claim infringement by us in the future Any such

claim whether or not it has merit could be time-consuming result in costly litigation cause delays in introducing

new menu items require costly modifications to advertising and promotional materials or require us to enter into

royalty or licensing agreements As result any such claim could harm our business and cause decline in our results

of operations and financial condition

Wendys plans to expand its new breakfast initiative in 2011 The breakfast daypart remains competitive and

markets may prove difficult to penetrate

The roll out of breakfast at Wendys has been accompanied by challenging competitive conditions varied

consumer tastes and
discretionaty spending patterns that differ from lunch snack dinner and late

night honrs In

addition breakfast sales can cannibalize sales during other parts of the day and may have
negative impacts on food

and labor costs advertising and restaurant margins Wendys plans to expand its breakfast initiative in 2011 Capital

investments will be required at company-owned restaurants that are added to the breakfast initiative In addition

franchisees will be required to make capital investments in their restaurants that participate in the breakfast

initiative As result of all of these factors breakfast sales and
resulting profits may take

longer
than expected to reach

targeted levels or the planned rollout of breakfast may be delayed or may not occur

Our international operations are subject to various factors of uncertainty and there is no assurance that

international operations will be profitable

In addition to many of the risk factors described throughout this Item 1A each brands business outside of the

United States is subject to number of additional factors including international economic and political conditions

differing cultures and consumer preferences the inability to adapt to international customer preferences inadequate

brand infrastructure within foreign countries to support our international activities inability to obtain adequate

supplies meeting our quality standards and product specifications or interruptions in obtaining such supplies

currency regulations and fluctuations diverse government regulations and tax systems uncertain or differing

interpretations of rights and obligations in connection with international franchise agreements and the collection of

royalties from international franchisees the availability and cost of land construction costs other legal financial or

regulatory impediments to the development and/or operation of new restaurants and the availability of experienced

management appropriate franchisees and joint venture partners Although we believe we have developed the support

structure required for international growth there is no assurance that such growth will occur or that international

operations will be profitable
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We rely on computer systems
and information technology to run our business Any material failure interruption

or security breach of our computer systems or information technology may adversely affect the operation of our

business and results of operations

We are significantly dependent upon our computer systems
and information technology to properly conduct

our business failure or interruption of computer systems or information technology could result in the loss of data

business interruptions ut delays in busincos operations Alsu despite our cunsidcrable efforts and
teLhnolugiLal

resources to secure our computer systems
and information technology security breaches such as unauthorized access

and computer viruses may occur resulting in system disruptions shutdowns or unauthorized disclosure of

confidential information Any security breach of our computer systems or information technology may result in

adverse publicity loss of sales and profits penalties competitive disadvantage or loss resulting from misappropriation

of information

We may be required to recognize additional asset impairment and other asset-related charges

We have significant amounts of long-lived assets goodwill and intangible assets and have incurred impairment

charges in the past with respect to those assets In accordance with applicable accounting standards we test for

impairment generally annually or more frequently if there are indicators of impairment suLh as

significant adverse changes in the business climate

current period operating or cash flow losses combined with history of operating or cash flow losses or

projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with long-lived assets

current expectation that more-likely-than-not e.g likelihood that is more than 50% long-lived assets

will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of their previously estimated useful life

and

significant drop in our stock price

Based upon future economic and capital market conditions as well as the operating performance of our

reporting units future impairment charges could be incurred

Risks Related to Wendys/Arbys

There can be no assurance regarding whether or to what extent Wendy VArby will pay dividends on its

Common Stock in the future

Holders of Wendys/Arbys Common Stock will only be entitled to receive such dividends as its Board of

Directors may declare out of funds legally available for such payments Any dividends will be made at the discretion of

the Board of Directors and will depend on Wendys/Arbys earnings financial condition cash requirements and such

other facrorc as the Board of Directors may deem relevant from time to time

Because Wendys/Ashys is holding company its ability to declare and
pay

dividends is dependent upon cash

cash equivalents and short-term investments on hand and cash flows from its subsidiaries The ability of its subsidiaries to

pay
cash dividends and/or make loans or advances to the holding company will be dependent upon their respective

abilities to achieve sufficient cash flows after satisfying their respective cash requirements including subsidiasy-level debt

service and revolving credit
agreements to enable the payment of such dividends or the making of such loans or

advanaes The ability of
any

of its subsidiaries to pay
cash dividends or other

payments to Wendys/Ashys will also be

limited by restrictions in debt instruments currently existing or subsequently entered into by such subsidiaries including

the Credit Agreement and the Senior Notes indenture which are described eadier in this Item 1A

substantial amount of WendyilArbyc Common Stock is concentrated in the hands of certain stockholders

Nelson Peltz Wendys/Arbys Chairman and former Chief Executive Officer and Peter May Wendys/Arbys

Vice Chairman and former President and Chief Operating Officer beneficially own shares of Wendys/Arbys

outstanding Common Stock that collectively constitute approximately 24% of its total voting power

Messrs Peltz and May may from time to time acquire beneficial ownership of additional shares of Common

Stock On November 2008 in connection with the tender offer of Trian Fund Management L.P and certain

affiliates thereof for
up to 40 million shares of our Class common stock Wendys/Arbys entered into an agreement

such agreement as amended the Trian Agreement with Messrs Peltz and May and several of their affiliates the
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Co\ ered Persons which provides among orher things that to the extent the Covered Persons acquire any rights

in respect of our common stock so that the effect of such acquisition would increase their aggregate beneficial

ownership in Wendys/Arbys common stock to greater than 25% the Covered Persons may not engage in business

combination within the meaning of Section 203 of the Delaware Ceneral Corporation Law for period of three

years following the date of such occurrence unless such transaction would be subject to one of the exceptions set forth

in Section 203b3 through assuming for these
purposes

that 150o in the definition of interested stockholder

contained in Section 203 was deemed to be 250o for so long as Wendys/Arbys has class of equity securities

that is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange or any other national securities exchange none of the

Covered Persons shall solicit proxies or submit any proposal for the vote of irs stockholders or recommend or request

or induce any other person to take any such actions or seek to advise
encourage

or influence any other person with

respect to Wendys/Arbys common stock in each case if the result of such action would be to cause the Board of

Directors to be comprised of less than majority of independent directors and Hi for so long as Wendys/Arbys has

class of equity securities that is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange or any other national securities

exchange none of the Covered Persons shall
engage

in certain affiliate transactions with Wendys/Arbys without the

prim approval of majority of the Audit Committee or other committee of the Board of Directors that is comprised

of independent directors The Trian Agreement will terminate upon the earliest to occur of the Covered Persons

beneficially owning less than 150o of Wendys/Arbys common stock November 2011 with respect to clauses

ii and Hi of the preceding sentence and Hi at such time as any person not affiliated with the Covered Persons

makes an offer to purchase an amount of Wendys/Arbys common stock which when added to Wendys/Arbys

common stock already beneficially owned by such
person

and its affiliates and associates equals or exceeds 50o or

more of outstanding Wendys/Arbys common stock or all or substantially all of Wendys/Arbys assets or solicits

proxies with respect to majority slate of directors

This concentration of ownership gives Messis Peltx and May significant influence over the outcome of actions

requiring stockholder appioval If in the future Messrs Pelta and May were to acquire more than majority of

Wendys/Arbys outstanding voting power they would be able to determine the outcome of the election of members

of the Board of Directors and the outcome of corporate actions requiring majority stockholder approval including

mergers consolidations and the sale of all or substantially all of Wendys/Arbys assets They would also be in

position to prevent or cause change in control of Wendys/Arbys

Wendy r/Arby certificate of incorporation contains certain anti-takeover provisions and permits our Board of

Directors to issue prefrrred stock without stockholder approval and limits its ability to raise capital from

affiliates

Cci rain provisions in Wendys/Arbys certificate of incorporation are intended to discourage or delay horile

takeover of control of Wendys/Arbys Wendys/Arbys certificate of incorporation authorixes the issuance of shares of

blank check preferred stock which will have such designations rights and preferences as may be determined from

time to timc by its Board of Directors Accordingly its Board of Directors is empowered without stockholder

approval to issue preferred stock with dividend liquidation conversion voting or other rights that could adversely

affect the voting power and other rights of the holders of its common stock The preferred stock could be used to

discourage delay or prevent change in control of Wendys/Arbys that is determined by its Board of Directors to be

undesirable Although Wendys/Arbys has no present intention to issue any shares of preferred stock it cannot assure

you that it will nor do so in the furure

Wendys/Arbys certificate of incorporation prohibits the issuance of preferred stock ro affiliates unless offered

ratably to the holders of Wendys/Arbys common stock subject to an exception in the event that Wendys/Arbys is

in financial distress and the issuance is approved by its audit committee This
prohibition

limits the ability to raise

capital from affiliates

Risks Related to Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

Wendy VArby Restaurants is dependent on dividends and/or loans or advances from its subsidiaries to meet its

debt service obligations

The ability of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants subsidiaries to pay cash dividends and/or make loans or advances to

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants will be dependent upon their respective abilities to achieve sufficient cash flows after

sarising their respective cash requirements including subsidiaty-level debt service and revolving credit
agreements

to enable the payment of such dividends or the making of such loans or advances The ability of any
of its subsidiaries
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to pay
cash dividends or other payments to Wendys/Arbys Restatirants will also be limited by restrictions in debt

instruments currently existing or subsequently entered into by such subsidiaries including
the Credit Agreement and

the Senior Notes indenture which are described above in this Item 1A

Item lB Unresolvea Staff comments

None

Item Properties

We believe that our properties taken as whole are generally well maintained and are adequate for our current

and foreseeable business needs

The
following

table contains information about our principal
office facilities as of January 2011

APPROXIMATE

SQ FT OF
ACTIVE FACILITIES FACILITIESLOCATION LAND TITLE FLOOR SPACE

Corporate and Arbys Headquarters Atlanta GA Leased 184251

Former Corporate Headquarters New York NY Leased 31 237
Wendys Headquarters Dublin OH Owned 249025
Wendys Restaurants of Canada Inc Oakville Ontario Canada Leased 35125

ARCOP the independent Arbys purchasing cooperative and the Arbys Foundation not-for-profit charitable

foundation in which Arbys has non-controlling representation on the board of directors sublease
approximately

4500 and 3800 square feet respectively
of this

space from Arbys In addition SSG the
purchasing

cooperative formed by ARCOP and QSCC to manage and operate purchasing programs
which combine the

purchasing power of both Wendys and Arbys company-owned and franchised restaurants to create buying

efficiencies for certain non-perishable goods equipment and services subleases approximately 2300 square
feet

of this
space from Arbys As discussed above in Item Business in contemplation

of possible sale of Arbys

QSCC and ARCOP are in discussion regarding
the dissolution of SSG and transferring SSGs assets to them

Should such dissolution be completed the sublease would be cancelled

management company formed by Messrs Nelson Peltz our Chairman and former Chief Executive Officer

Peter May our Vice Chairman and former President and Chief Operating Officer and Edward Garden

our Former Vice Chairman and member of our Board of Directors subleases approximately 26600 square
feet

of this space from us

QSCC the independent Wendys purchasing cooperative in which Wendys has non-controlling representation

on the board of directors leases approximately 9300 square
feet of this

space
from Wendys QSCC leased an

additional approximately 5000 square
feet of this

space
from Wendys effective January 2011

At January 2011 Wendys and its franchisees operated 6576 Wendys restaurants Of the 1394 company-

owned Wendys restaurants Wendys owned the land and building for 640 restaurants owned the building and held

long-term land leases for 474 restaurants and held leases covering land and building for 280 restaurants Wendys land

and building leases are generally written for terms of 10 to 25 years
with one or more five-year renewal options In certain

lease
agreements Wendys has the option to purchase the real estate Cci tam leases require the payment of additional rent

equal to percentage generally less than 6o of annual sales in excess of specified amounts As of January 2011

Wendys also owned 55 and leased 212 properties that were either leased or subleased principally to franchisees Surplus

land and buildings are generally held for sale and are not material to our financial condition or results of operations

The Bakery operates two facilities in Zanesville Ohio that produce buns for Wendys restaurants and other

outside parties including certain distributors to the Arbys system The buns are distributed to both company-owned

and franchised restaurants using primarily the Bakerys fleet of trucks As of January 2011 the Bakery employed

approximately 350 people at the two facilities that had combined sixe of approximately 205000 square
feet

As of January 2011 Arbys and its franchisees operated 3649 Arbys restaurants Of the 1144 company
owned Arbys restaurants Arbys owned the land and/or the

buildings
with

respect to 129 of these restaurants and

leased or subleased the remainder As of January 2011 Arbys also owned 14 and leased 84 properties that were

either leased or subleased principally to franchisees Our other subsidiaries also owned or leased few inactive facilities

and undeveloped properties none of which are material to our financial condition or results of operations
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State

Alabama

Iowa

Kansas

Kentucky

ouisina

Maine

Maryland

Massachusetts

Michigan

Minnesota

Mississippi

Missouri

Montana

Nebraska

Nevada

New Hampshire

New Jersey

New Mexico

New York

North Carolina

North Dakota

Ohio

Oklahoma

Oregon

Pennsylvania

Rhode Island

South Carolina

South Dakota

Tennessee

Texas

Utah

Vermont

Virginia

Washington

West Virginia

Wisconsin

Wyoming
District of Columbia

Domestic Subtotal

Canada

North America Subtotal

Wendys

Company Franchise

96

46 5c

64

56 216

47 80

45

15

186 299

55 241

30

98 94

P3

45

11 63

140

56 73

15

115

22

249

67

88

56

17

34

46

21

118

38

156

217

349

38

33

178

11

131

180

321

30

160

45

51

62

14

4625

232

4857

Arbys

Company Franchise

70 32

83

44

92

62

17

80

55

21

125

80

54

52

84

27

32

78

21

81

19

50

30

10

30

86

78

14

178

95

16

57

64

15

58

104

35

107

24

35

87

15

2379
106

2485

The location of company-owned and franchised restauranrs as of January 2011 is set forth below

Alaska

Ari7ona

Arkansas

Californis

Colorado

Connecticut

Delaware

Florida

Georgia

Hawaii

Idaho

Illinois

Indiana

71

21

35

28

12

90

92

99

48

17

107

83

17

60

102

21

88

13

52

68

33

22

63

40

76

19

78

73

57

53

22

1258

136

1394

1144

1144
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Wendys Arbys

Country/Territory Company Franchise Company Franchise

Aruba

Bahamas

Cayman Islands

Costa Rica

Curacao

Dominican Republic

El Salvador 14

Guam

Guatemala

Honduras 29

Indonesia 27

Jamaica

Malaysia

Mexico 25

New Zealand 16

Panama

Philippines 31

Puerto Rico 72

Singapore

Qatar

Turkey 14

United Arab Emirates

Venezuela 39

Vitgin Islands

International Subtotal 325 20

Grand Total 1394 5182 1144 2505

Item Legal Proceedings

In November 2002 Access Now Inc and Edward Resnick later
replaced by Christ Sotei Tavantxis on their

own behalf and on the behalf of all those similarly situated brought an action in the United States District Court for

the Southern District of Florida against RTM Operating Company RTM which became subsidiary of Arbys

following Arbys acquisition of the RTM Restaurant Group in July 2005 The complaint alleged that the

approximately 775 Arbys restaurants owned by RTM and its affiliates failed to comply with Title III of the

ADA The plaintiffs requested class certification and injunctive relief
requiring RTM and such affiliates to comply

with the ADA in all of their restaurants The complaint did not seek
monetary damages but did seek attorneys

fees Without admitting liability RTM entered into settlement
agreement

with the plaintiffs on class-wide basis

which was approved by the court on August 10 2006 The settlement
agreement

calls for the restaurants owned by

RTM and certain of irs affiliates to be brought into ADA compliance over an eight year period at rate of

approximately 00 restaurants per year
The settlement

agreement
also applies to restaurants subsequently acquired by

RTM and such affiliates Arbys estimates that it will spend approximately $1.15 million
per year

of capital

expenditures over seven-year period which commenced in 2008 to bring the restaurants into compliance undet the

settlement agreement in addition to paying certain legal fees and
expenses

In addition to the legal matter described above we are involved in other litigation and claims incidental to our

and prior businesses As of January 2011 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had reserves for all legal and

environmental matters aggregating $3.7 million which are included in the $3.9 million reserved by Wendys/Arbys

for all legal and environmental matters Although the outcome of these matters cannot be piedicted with certainty and

some of these matters may be disposed of unfavorably to us based on our currently available information including

legal defenses available to us and given the aforementioned reserves and insurance coverages we do not believe that

the outcome of these legal and enviionmental matters will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial

position or results of operations

Item Removed and Reserved
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PART II

Item Market for Registrant common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Wendy c/A rby

The
puncipal market for Wendys/Aibys Common Stock is the Ne Yolk Stock Fxchange symbol WEN

The high and low market prices for Wendys/Arbys Common Srock as reported in the consolidated transaction

repotting system are set forth below

Market Price

Common Stock

Fiscal Quarters High Low

2010

First Quarter ended April $5.22 $4.26

Second Quarter ended July 5.55 3.95

Third Quarrer ended Ocroher 4.73 83

Fourth Quarter ended January 5.09 4.28

2009

First Quarter ended March 29 $5.80 $3.86

Second Quarter ended June 28 5.78 3.55

Third Quarter ended September 27 5.54 3.80

Fourth Quarter ended January 5.04 3.95

Wendys/Arbys Common Stock is entitled to one vote per share on all matters on which stockholdets are

entitled to vote Wendys/Arbys has no class of equity securities currently issued and outstanding except for its

Common Stock However it is currently authorized to issue up to 100 million shares of preferred stock

During its 2010 fiscal year Wendys/Arbys paid quarterly cash dividends of $0.0 15 per
share on its Common

Stock on March 15 2010 June 15 2010 and September 15 2010 The quarterly cash dividend paid on

December 15 2010 was $0.02 per share of Common Stock

During irs 2009 fiscal year Wendys/Arbys paid regular quarterly cash dividends of $0.0 15 per share of

Common Stock

During the 2011 first quarter Wendys/Arbys declared dividends of $0.02 pci share to be paid on March 15

2011 to shareholders of record as of March 2011 Although Wendys/Arbys cuitently intends to continue to

declare and
pay quarterly cash dividends there can be no assurance that any additional quatterly cash dividends will

he declared or paid or the amotinr or timing of such dividends if any Any future dividends will he made at the

discretion of their Boaid of Directors and will be based on such factors as Wendys/Arbys earnings financial

condition cash
requirements and other factors

As of February 25 2011 there weie approximately 46206 holdeis of record of Wendys/Arbys Common
Stock
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The following table provides iofbrmation ss uh respect to repurebases of shares of Wendy s/Athy Common

Stock by us and ottr affiliated ptuchasers as defined in Rule Oh 1843 tinder the Sectuiries Exchange Act of

1934 as amended during the fourth ftscal
quarter

of 2010

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities

Total Nomber of Approximate Dollar

Shares Porchased Valoe of Shares

Aserage as Part of that May Yet Be

otal Nomber of Price Paid Publirly Aonouoeed Porchased Uoder
Period Shares tirchasedU per Share Plan2 the Plao2

October 2010

th rottgh

November 2010 5176 $-s.4-t 79.517373

November 2010

through

December52010 $249517373

December 2010

through

January 2011 802 Si 63 $2 95 17373

lotal 5978 $4.46 $249517373

Includes 5978 sha -es eaeqtt red by Wendy s/Arhy from holders of resrricted stock awards to satisfy rax

withholding requirements The shares wete alttecl at the as erage of the high and loss rrading prices of SfTetidys/

Arbys Common Stock on the esring date of sttc Ii awards

On January 27 2010 March 22 2010 and May 27 2010 Wendy slAthy Board of Directors attthoriied

management when and if marker conditions warrant and to rhe extent legally permissible to repttrchase throttgh

Janttary 2011
up to an additional $75.0 million $50 million and $75.0 million respec tis ely of Wendy sI

Arbys Common Stock On November 11 2010 Wendy s/Arhy Board of Directors aurhoriied the extension of

the cttrrenr stock repurchase program throttgh Janttary 2012 and attrhoriied the
repttrcbase

of
tip

to an

additional $170.0 million of Wetidy s/Arhys Common Stock britigitig the roral amottnt ettrrenrly attrhorized to

approximately $250.0 tiiillion The stotk
repttrc

base
ptogram

will allosv Wendys/Arbys to make repttrchases as

market conditions watrant atid to the extent legally permissible

Wendy /Arby Restanrant9

As limited liability company Wetidys/Arhy Restattrants does not isstte conitnon stock The registrants sole

member is Wetidys/Arhys There is ti market fnr WendyslArbys Besrattrants members interest It has nn securities

authorized for issuance tinder equity compensation plans

total of $443.7 million and $1 15.0 millioti of
intercompatiy

cash dividends were paid to 4Xendys/Arby in

2010 and 2009 respectively

Wendy VA rby is and Wendy VA rhy it Restaurants

The Compatiies ability to meet their cash rcqttirements is ptimarily depetidetit ttOti
their cash and cash

eqttivalenrs on hand and cash flows fioni \X/endy and Arhys iticlttding loans and cash dividends Addiriotially

Wetidys/Arbys ability to meet its cash reqttirenients is also dependent ttpoti paytiienrs by iO1etidys and Arbys tttider

tax sharing agreetiienr
The Compatiies cash requirements inclttde bttr are tior liniited to ititerest and principal

paymenrs on their indebtedness Under the rertiis of the Credit Agreement see Itetii 1A Risk Factors Risks

Related to \Xtetidys atid Arbys Bttsitiesses Wendys/Arhy Restattratits and irs sttbsidiaries ate stthject to various

restrictions atid substantially all of their non teal estate assets are pledged sttbjeet to certain restrictions ttttder

Credit Agreement there are restrictions on the ability ufWendys/Arhys Resrattrants and irs sttbsidiaries to
pay any

dividends or make any loans or advances to Wendys/Arhys The ability of Wendys and Arbys to pay
cash dividends

to the Companies or make
any

loans or advances as well as to make
payments

under the tax sharing agreement to

1tendys/Arbys is also dependent upon their ability to achieve sufficient cash flows after satisfying their cash

requirements including debt service As of January 2011 under the terms of the Credit Agreement there was
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$25.6 million available for the payment of dividends directly to Wendys/Arbys from Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

Wendys or Arbys See Note 11 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in Item herein and

Managements Discussion and AnalysisResults of Operations and Liquidity and Capital Resources in Item

herein for further information on the Credit Agreement

Item Selected Financial Data

Wendy s/A rby

Year Ended

January January December 28 December 30 December 31
2011 2010 20082 20072 20062

In Millions except per share amounts

Sales $3045.3 $3198.3 $1662.3 $1113.4 $1073.3

Franchise revenues 371.1 382.5 160.5 87.0 82.0

Asset management and related fees 63.3 88.0

Revenues 3416.4 3580.8 1822.8 1263.7 1243.3

Operating profit loss 132.45 112.06 413.67 19.98 44.6

Loss income from continuing operations 4.35 3.56 482.07 15.18 0.79

Income from discontinued operations 1.6 2.2 1.0

Net loss income 4.35 5.16 479.87 16.18 10.99
Basic and diluted income loss per share

Continuing operations

Common stock .01 .01 3.06 .15 .13
Class common stock N/A N/A 1.26 .17 .13

Discontinued operations

Common stock N/A .01 .01 N/A

Class common stock N/A N/A .02 .01 N/A

Net loss income

Common stock .01 .01 3.05 .16 .13
Class common stock N/A N/A 1.24 .18 .13

Cash dividends
per

share

Common stock .07 .06 .26 .32 .77

Class common stock N/A N/A .26 .36 .81

Weighted average
shares outstanding

Common stock 426.3 466.2 137.7 28.8 27.3

Class common stock N/A N/A 48.0 63.5 59.3

January2 January3 December28 December30 December31
201.1 2010 20082 20072 20062

In Millions

Working capital deficiency 333.3 403.8 121.7 36.9 161.2

Properties 1551.3 1619.2 1770.4 504.9 488.5

Total assets 4732.7 4975.4 4645.6 1454.6 1560.4

Long-term debt including current portion 1572.4 1522.9 1111.6 739.3 720.0

Stockholders equity 2163.2 2336.3 2383.4 449.8 492.0

Wendys/Arbys reports on fiscal
year consisting of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to

December 31 Except for the 2009 fiscal year which contained 53 weeks each of Wendys/Arbys fiscal
years

presented above contained 52 weeks All references to years relate to fiscal
years

rather than calendar
years

The

financial
position and results of operations of Wendys are included commencing with the date of the Wendys

Merger September 29 2008 Immediately prior to the Wendys Merger each share of our Class common
stock was converted into Class common stock on one for one basis In connection with the May 28 2009

amendment and restatement of Wendys/Arbys Certificate of Incorporation Wendys/Arbys former Class

common stock is now referred to as Common Stock Deerfield Company LLC Deerfield in which

Wendys/Arbys held 63.6% capital interest from July 22 2004 through its sale on December 21 2007
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Deerfield Opportunities Fund LLC which commenced on October 2004 and in which our investment was

effectively redeemed on September 29 2006 and DM Fund LLC which commenced on March 2005 and in

which Wendys/Arbys investment was effectively redeemed on December 31 2006 reported on calendar
year

ending on December31 through their respective sale or redemption dates

Selected financial data reflects the changes related to the adoption of the following accounting standards

As of December 29 2008 Wendys/Arbys adopted new accounting guidance
related to non-controlling

interests formerly referred to as minority interests This adoption resulted in the retrospective reclassification of

minority interests from its former presentation as liability to Stockholders equity The reclassifications were

$0.1 million $0.9 million and $14.2 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Additionally in accordance

with the new guidance the loss from continuing operations in 2006 excludes the effect of income attributable to

non-controlling interests of $11.5 million Income attributable to non-controlling interests in 2008 and 2007 was

not material

As of January 2007 Wendys/Arbys utilized recognition threshold and measurement attribute for

financial statement recognition and measurement of potential tax benefits associated with tax positions taken or

expected to be taken in income tax returns Wendys/Arbys utilized two-step process of evaluating tax

position whereby an entity first determines if it is more likely than not that tax position will be sustained upon

examination including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes
based on the technical merits of

the position tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is then measured for

purposes of financial statement recognition as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely

of being realized upon being effectively settled There was no effect on the 2007 or prior period statements of

operations However there was uet reduction of $2.3 million in stockholders equity as of January 2007

For the
purposes

of calculating income
per

share amounts for 2007 net income was allocated between the shares

of Wendys/Arbys Class common stock and Wendys/Arbys Class common stock based on the actual

dividend payment ratio For the
purposes

of calculating loss
pei share the net loss for all

years through 2008 was

allocated equally between Class common stock and Class common stock

The number of shares used in the calculation of diluted income per share in 2009 and 2007 consist of the

weighted average common shares outstanding for each class of common stock and potential shares of common

stock reflecting the effect of 483 dilutive stock options and nonvesred restricted shares for 2009 and 129 for

Wendys/Arbys Class common stock and 759 for Wendys/Arbys Class common stock for 2007 The

number of shares used in the calculation of diluted income loss per
share is the same as basic income loss per

share for 2010 2008 and 2006 since all potentially dilutive securities would have had an anridilutive effect based

on the loss from continuing operations for these
years

Reflects certain significant charges recorded during 2010 as follows $69.4 million charged to operating profit for

impairment of
long-lived assets other than goodwill $43.0 million charged to loss from continuing operations

and net loss related to these charges and $16.2 million charged to loss from continuing operations
and net loss

related to costs incurred for the early extinguishment of debt which was comprised
of premium payment

required to redeem the Wendys 6.25o senior notes the write-off of the unaccrered discount of the Wendys

6.25o senior notes and the write off of deferied costs associated with the repayment
of the Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants prior senior secured term loan

Reflects significant charges recorded in 2009 of $82.1 million charged to operating profit for impairment of long-

lived assets other than goodwill and $50.9 million charged to income from continuing operations
and net income

related to these charges

Reflects certain significant charges and credits recorded during 2008 as follows $460.1 million charged to

operating loss consisting of goodwill impairment for the Arbys company owned restaurant reporting unit

$484.0 million charged to loss from continuing operations and net loss representing the aforementioned $460.1

million charged to operating loss and other than
temporary

losses on investments of $112.7 million partially

offset by $88.8 million of income tax benefit related to the above charges

Reflects certain significant charges and credits recorded during 2007 as follows $45.2 million charged to

operating profit consisting of facilities relocation and restructuring costs of $85.4 million less $40.2 million from

the gain on sale of Wendys/Arbys interest in Deerfield $16.6 million charged to income from continuing

operations and net income representing the aforementioned $45.2 million charged to operating profit offset by
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$15.8 million of income tax benefit related to the above chatge and $12.8 million previously unrecognized

prior year contingenr tax benefit related to certain severance obligations to certain of Wendys/Arbys former

executives

Reflects significant charge recorded during 2006 as follows $9.0 million charged ro loss from conrinuing

operations and net loss representing $14.1 million loss on early exringuishmenrs of debt related to conversions

nr effecrive rnnvercinnc nFWendyc/Arhyc S0n cnnvertihle nnres due 2023 and
prepayments

ni term Inans tinder

Wendys/Arbys senior secured term loan facility partially offset by an income tax benefit of $5.1 million related

to the above charge

Wendy s/A rby Restaurants

Omitted
pursuant to General Instruction of Form 10-K

Item Managements Discussion andAnalysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of Operations

This Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of Wendys

Arbys Group Inc Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Ar bys Restaurants LLC Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes that
appear

elsewhere

within this
report Certain statements we make under this Item constitute forward-looking statements under the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 See Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and

Projections in Part preceding Item Business You should consider our forward-looking statements in light

of the risks discussed under the heading Risk Factors in Item 1A above as well as our consolidated financial

statements related notes and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this report and our other filings with

the Securities and Exchange Commission

Except where otherwise indicated this discussion relates to the consolidated financial statements for both

Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants thc Companies References herein to Wendys/Atbys corporate

Corporate represents Wendys/Atbys parent company functions only and their effect on the consolidated results

of operations and financial condition

Wendys/Arbys is the
parent company of its 100o owned subsidiary holding company Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants Wendys/Atby Restaurants is the
paient company of Wendys International Inc Wendys and

Arbys Restaurant Group Inc Arbys which ate the owners and franchisors of the Wendys and Atbys
restaurant systems respectively On September 29 2008 Wendys/Arbys formerly Triarc Companies Inc or

Triare completed the merge the Wendys Merger with Wendys described below under Introduction and

Executive Overview Merger with Wendys International Inc

Wendys/Atbys Restaurants sole asset at formation consisted of the contribution by Wendys/Arbys of its

investment in Wendys In Match 2009 Wendys/Arbys contributed its longstanding investment in Arbys to

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants Wendys/Arbys Restatrtants has no operations other than those of Wendys and Arbys

and their respective subsidiaries

The Wendys Merger was completed on the first day of our 2008 fourth
quarter

and the results of operations of

Wendys are included in out results beginning in the fourth
quarter

of 2008 The results of operations discussed

below for 2008 are not indicative of future results due to the consummation of the Wendys Merger

Introduction and Executive Overview

Our Business

We currently manage and internally report out operations as two business segments
the operation and

franchising of Wendys restaurants including its wholesale bakery operations
and the

operation
and franchising of

Arbys restaurants As of January 2011 the Wendys restautant system was comprised
of 6576 restaurants of

which 1394 were owned and operated by the Companies As of January 2011 the Arbys restaurant system was

comprised of 3649 restaurants of which 1144 were owned and operated by the Companies The 2538 Wendys and

Arbys company-owned restaurants are located principally in the United States and to lesser extent in Canada the

North America Restaurants In January 2011 we announced that we are exploring strategic
alternatives for Arbys

including sale of the brand
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Wendys and Arbys revenues and operating resuirs have been impacted by number of factors including

generally negative sales and traffic trends in the restaurant industry high unemployment negative general economic

trends and intense price competition

We continue to believe there are long term growth opportunities for our brands Wendys opportunities include

product innovation continued emphasis on our everyday value menu expanding dayparrs

moderni7ing our facilities new unit development and expanding internationally Our Arbys opportunities

include our value strategy which includes our everyday affordability proposition our remodeling program

new brand positioning to be introduced in 2011 and product innovation

As of January 2011 there were approximately 350 Arbys franchised restaurants with amounts payable to

Atbys for royalties rent and/or other fees that were at least 60 days past
due The financial condition of number of

Arbys franchisees was one of the factors that resulted in net decrease of 44 and 31 in the number of franchised

restaurants for fiscal 2010 and 2009 respectively During those periods 96 and 74 franchised Arbys restaurants were

closed respectively The trend of declining sales at franchised Arbys restaurants has resulted in decreases in royalties

and other franchise revenues In addition Arbys franchisee accounts receivable and related allowance for doubtful

accounts have increased significantly and may continue to grow as result of the continued deteriorating financial

condition of some of our franchisees Franchisees financial difficulties and the closure of franchised restaurants have

also caused reductions in the contributions to and extent of advertising programs Continuation of these trends would

affect our revenues and may have material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition

Restaurant business revenues for 2010 include $2946.8 million of sales from company-owned restaurants

$98.5 million from the sale of bakery items and kids meal promotion items to our franchisees $345.0 million

from royalty income from franchisees and $26.1 million of other franchise related revenue and other

revenues Most of our Wendys and Arbys royalty agreements provided for royalties of 4.0% of franchise revenues for

the year ended January 2011

Key Business Measures

We track our results of operations and manage our business using the following key business measures

Same-Store Sales

We
report Wendys North America Restaurants same-store sales commencing after store has been open

for at least 15 continuous months as of the beginning of the fiscal year Arbys North America Restaurants

same-store sales are reported
after store has been open for 15 continuous months These methodologies

are consistent with the metrics used by our management for internal reporting and analysis Same-store

sales exclude the
impact of currency

translation

Restaurant Margin

We define restaurant margin as sales from company-owned restaurants less cost of sales divided by sales

from company-owned restaurants Cost of sales includes food and
paper restaurant labor and occupancy

advertising and other operating costs Sales and cost of sales exclude amounts related to bakery items and

kids meal promotion items sold to franchisees Restaurant margin is influenced by factors such as

restaurant openings and closures price increases the effectiveness of our advertising and marketing

initiatives featured products product mix the level of our fixed and semi-variable costs and fluctuations

in food and labor costs

Merger with Wendy International Inc

On September 29 2008 Wendys/Arbys completed
the Wendys Merger in an all-stock transaction in which

Wendys shareholders received 4.25 shares of Wendys/Arbys Class common stock for each share of Wendys

common stock owned Immediately prior to the Wendys Merger each share of Wendys/Arbys Class common

stock was converted into Class common stock on one for one basis the Conversion As result of the May 28

2009 amendment and restatement of Wendys/Arbys Certificate of
Incorporation Wendys/Arbys Class common

stock is now referred to as Common Stock
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Credit Agreement

As fuither described in iquidiry and Capital Resources Long-term Debt Credit Agreement below on

May 24 2010 Wendys/Arhys Restaurants enteied into $650.0 million Credit Agreement the Credit

Agteement which includes $500.0 million senior secured term loan facility the Term Loan and

$150.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility the Credit Facility

The ompanies recogni7ed loss on early extinguishment of debt of $26.2 million in the second quarter of

2010 primarily related to the
repayment

of the Wendys 6.250o senior notes from the proceeds of the Teim Loan

This loss consisted of $1 5.0 million premium payment required to redeem the Wendys 6.250o senior notes

$5.5 million for the write off of the uuaccretcd discount of the Wendys 6.25% senior notes recorded in

connection with the Wendys Merger and $5.7 million for the write-off of deferred costs associated with the

repayment of the prior senior secured term loan

senior Notes

On June 23 2009 Wendy slArbys Restaurants issued $565.0 million principal amount of Senior Notes the

Senior Notes The Senior Notes will mature on July 15 2016 and accrue intetest at 1O.000o per annum payable

semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 the first payment of which was made on January 15 2010 The Senior

Notes were issued at 97.5330o of the principal amount representing yield to matutity of 1O.500o and resulting in

net proceeds of $551.1 million The $13.9 million discount is being accreted and the related charge included in

Interest cxpeusc until the Senior Notes mature The Senior Notes ate fully and unconditionally guaranteed jointly

and severally on an unsecured basis by certain direct and indirect domestic strbsidiaries of Wendys/Atbys

Restaurants collectively the Grratantots

Dcc field

Wendy VA rby 11

On December 21 2007 Wendys/Atbys sold its 63.6% capital interest in Deerfreld Company IC

Deetfield an asset management business and subsidiary of Wendys/Arbys trntil its sale to Deerfield Capital

Corp DFR the Deetfreld Sale The Dectficld Sale resulted in non cash proceeds to Wendy slArbys

aggregating $134.6 million cousisting of 9.6 million convertible preferred shares the Preferred Stock of

subsidiary of DFR with an estimated fair value of $88.4 million at the date of the Deerfreld Sale and $48.0 million

principal amount of series senior secured notes of DFR dtre in December 2012 the DFR Notes svith an

estimated fair value of $46.2 million at the date of the Deetfield Sale

On Match 11 2008 DFR stockholders apptoved the one-for one conversion of all its outstanding convertible

preferred stock into DFR common stock which converted the Preferred Stock held by WendyslArbys into like

number of shares of DFR common stock On Match 11 2008 WendyslAtbys Board of Directots approved the

distribution of the shares of DFR common stock then held by WendyslArbys to Wendys/Arbys stockholders The

disttibution in the form of dividend which was valued at $14.5 million was paid in 2008 to holders of record of

WendyslArbys then outstanding Class common stock and Class common stock

In March 2008 in response to unanticipated credit and liquidity events in the first quarter of 2008 DFR

announced that it was repositioning its investment portfolio to focus on agency only residential mortgage-backed

securities and away from its principal investing segment to its asset management segment with its fcc-based revenue

streams In addition it stated that during the fitst quartet of 2008 its portfolio was adversely impacted by

deterioration of the
global credit matkets and as result it sold $2.8 billion of its agency and $1.3 billion of its

AAA-rated non agency mortgage backed securities and reduced the net notional amount of interest rate swaps used to

hedge purtiurm
uf its mrmumtgagc-backcd securities by $4.2 hilliuri a11 at net after-tax loss uf $294.3 rrrilhiurr tu DFR

Based on these events described above and their negative effect on the market price of DFR common stock

Wendys/Arhys concluded that the fair value and therefore the carrying value of its investment in the DFR common

shares was impaired As result as of March 11 2008 WendyslAtbys recorded an other than
temporary loss which

is included in Other than
temporary

losses on investments for the
year

ended December 28 2008 of

$68.1 million As result of the
subsequent

distribution of the DFR common stock the income tax loss that resulted

ftom the decline in value of $68.1 million was not deductible for income tax purposes
and no income tax benefit was

recorded related to this loss
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During tile fouith
quarter

of 2008 Wendy slArbys recognized an allowance for collectability of $21.2 miHion

to redtice tile then cartying amount of the DFR Notes to $25.0 milhon On June 2010 pursuant to March 2010

agieement
between XTend1 slArbys and DFR Wendys/Arbys received cash

proceeds
of $31.3 miHion including

interest in consideration for the
repayment

and cancellation of the DFR Notes The proceeds represented 64.10o of

the $48.0 mihon
aggregate principal amount of the DFR Notes Wendys/Arbys recognized income of $4.9 milhon

during the
yeai

ended January 2011 as the
repayment proceeds exceeded the carrying value of the DFR Notes This

gain is included in Investment income expense net

Related Party Transactions

Supply
ha/n Relationship Agreement

During the 2009 foutth
quarter Wendys enteted into purchasing co-op reiarionship agreement the Co-op

Agieemenr to establish new Wend1 purchasing co-op Quahry Supply Chain Co-op Inc QSCC QSCC

manages food and related product purchases and distribution services for the Wendys system
in the United States

and Canada Through QSCC Wendys and Wendys franchisees jurchase food proprietary paper
and operating

supplies undct national LonnaLts with priLing based upon total
systcm

volume

QSCCs supply chain management facilitates the continuity of supply and provides consolidated purchasing

efficiencies while monitoring and seeking to minimize possible obsolete inventory throughout the Wendys North

America supply chain The systems purchasing function for 2009 and prior was performed and paid for by Wendys
In ordei to facilitate the orderly nansition of the 2010 purchasing function for North America operations Wendys
transfei red certain contracts assets and certain Wendys purchasing employees to QSCC ill the first quarter of

2010 Pursuant to the terms of the Co
op Agreement Wendys was required to pay

$15.5 million to QSCC over an

18 month period through May 2011 in order to provide funding for
start-up costs operating expenses and cash

reserves The required payments by Wendys under the Co-op Agreement were expensed in the fourth quarter of

2009 and included in General and administrative Wendys made
payments

of $15.2 million in 2010 In addition

to the initial funding by Wendys since the third quarter of 2010 all qSCC members including Wendys began

paying sourcing fees on products soureed through QSCC Such sourcing fees will be the primary means of funding

QSCCs operations after the initial funding by Wendys is completed In connection with the ongoing operations of

QSCC duiing 2010 QSCC reimbuised Wendys $0.9 million for amounts Wendys had paid primarily for payroll-

related expenses for certain Canadian QSCC purchasing employees Effective January 2010 the QSCC leased

9333 square feet of office space from Wendys for two year period for an average
annual rental of $0.1 million with

five one year ienewal options

ARCOP Inc ARCOP nor for-profit purchasing eooperati\e negotiates contracts with approved

suppliers on behalf of Arbys and Arbys franchisees and
operates

under previously established agreement similar to

the Wendys Co-op Agreement

Reooloing credit
flee/I/ties

In December 2009 and as amended in February and August 2010 AFA Service Corporation AFA entered

into revolving loan agreement with Arbys The terms of this agreement allow AFA to have revolving loans of up to

$14.0 million outstanding with an expiration date of March 2012 and bearing interest at 7.50o per annum In

February 2011 the maximum principal amount of revolving loans was reduced to $11.0 million As of January

2011 the outstanding revolving loan balance was $4.5 million

Strategic Sourcing Group Agreement

On April 2010 QSCC and ARCOP in consultation with WendyslArbys Restaurants established Strategic

Sourcing Group Co op LLC SSG SSG was formed to manage and
operate purchasing programs

which combine

the purchasing powex
of both Wendys and Arbys company-owned and franchised restaurants to create buying

efficiencies for certain non-perishable goods equipment and services

In order to facilitate the orderly transition of this
purchasing function for the Companies North America

operations WendyslArbys Restaurants transferred certain contracts assets and certain WendyslArbys Restaurants

purchasing employees to SSG in the second quarter
of 2010 WendyslArbys Restaurants had committed to pay
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approximately $5.2 million of SSG
expenses

which were expensed in 2010 and included in General and

administrative and was to be paid over 24 month period through March 2012 We made
payments

of $2.0 million

in 2010 Effective April 2010 the SSG leased 2300 square
feet of office

space fiom Arbys until December 31

2016 unless terminated earlier for an annual base rental of $51 thousand

Should sale of Arbys occur as discussed in Introduction and Executive Overview Our Business bet em

under the change of control provisions in the agreement that established SSG the activities of SSG would he wound

up In the wind up process
the assets personnel and functions of SSC would be transferred to QSCC and ARCOP as

such parties and Wendys/Atbys Restaurants agree In contemplation of possible sale the parties ate in discussion

regarding the dissolution of SSG and transferring SSGs assets personnel and functions to QSCC and ARCOP

Wendy i/Arby

Equities Account

In 2005 Wendys/Arby invested $75.0 million in brokerage accOunts the Equities Account which were

managed by management company the Management Company formed by the Chairman and then Chief

Executive Officer and the Vice Chairman and then President and Chief Operating Officer of Wendys/Arbys the

Former Executives and director who is Wendys/Arbys former Vice Chairman collectively with the Formet

Executives the Principals The Equities Account was invested principally in equity securities cash equivalents and

equity derivatives of limited number of publicly-traded companies In addition the Equities Account sold securities

short and invested in market
put options in order to lessen the impact of significant market downturns

On June 10 2009 Wendys/Aibys and the Management Company entered into withdiawal
agreement the

Withdrawal Agreement which provided that Wendys/Arbys would be permitted to withdraw all amounts in the

Equities Account on an acceletared basis the Early Withdrawal effective no later than June 26 2009 Prior to the

Withdrawal Agreement and as result of an investment management agreement with the Management Company
which was terminated on June 2o 2u09 Wendys/Arbys had not been permitted to withdraw

any amounts from the

Equities Account until December 31 2010 although $47.0 million was released from the Equities Account in 2008

subject to an obligation to return that amount to the Equities Account by specified date In consideration for

obtaining such Early Withdrawal right Wendys/Arbys agreed to pay
the Management Company $5.5 million the

Withdrawal Fee was not required to return the $47.0 million referred to above and was no longer obligated to pay

investment management and incentive fees to the Management Company The Equities Account investments were

liquidated in June 2009 for $37.4 million the Equities Sale of which $31.9 million was received by Wendys

Arbys net of the Withdrawal Fee and for which WendysArbys realized gain of $2.3 million in 2009 which are

both included in Investment income expense net

Subease of New York Office Space

In July 2008 and July 2007 WendysArbys entered into agreements
under which the Management Company

is subleasing office
space on two of the floors of WendysArbys former New York headquarters During the second

quarter of 2010 WendysArbys and the Management Company entered into an amendment to the sublease

effective Aptil 2010 pursuant to which the Management Companys early termination right was cancelled in

exchangc for reduction in rent Under the terms of the amended sublease the sublease is not cancelable prior to the

expiration of the prime lease and the Management Company pays rent to WendysArbys in an amount that covers

substantially all of WendysArbys rent obligations under the prime lease for the subleased
space

cesAeemests

WendysArbys and the Management Company entered into new services agreement the New Services

Agreement which commenced on July 2009 and will continue until June 30 2011 unless sooner terminated

Under the New Services Agreement the Management Company assists WendysArbys with strategic merger
and

acquisition consultation corporate finance and investment banking services and related legal matters Pursuant to the

terms of this agreement WendysArbys is paying the Management Company service fee of $0.25 million
per

quarter payable in advance commencing July 2009 In addition in the event the Management Company provides

substantial assistance to WendysArbys in connection with
merger or acquisition corporate

finance andor similar
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transaction that is consummated at any rime duting the period commencing on the date the New Services Agreement

was executed and ending six months following the expiration of its term Wendys/Aibys will negotiate success fee

to be paid to the Management Company which is reasonable and
customary

for such transactions

Undei prior services agreement which commenced on June 30 2007 and expired on June 30 2009 the

Seivices Agreement the Management Company provided broader range of professional and strategic services to

Xendys/Arbys in cujuiectiun with its 200 iestrucrunng cud the related tiansitiuji 0f executive nialiagenient

responsibilities

The Companies paid approximately $2.5 million and $5.4 million in 2010 and 2009 respectively in fees for

corporate finance advisory services under the New Services Agreement in connection svith the negotiation and

execution of the CteditAgteement in 2010 and the issuance of the Senior Notes in 2009

Liquidation Services Agreement

On June 10 2009 Wendys/Arbys and the Management Company entered into liquidation services

agreement the Liquidation Services Agreement pursuant to which the Management Company assists Wendys

Arhys in the sale liqnidarinn nr nther dispnsirinn
uf irs cnsr investmenrs and DFR Nnres the egacy Assets which

are not related to the Equities Account As of the date of the Liquidation Setvices Agreement the Legacy Assets were

valued at $36.6 million the Target Amount of which $5.1 million was owned by Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants The Liquidation Services Agreement which expites June 30 2011 required Wendys/Arbys to pay the

Management Company fee of $0.9 million in two installments in June 2009 and 2010 which is being amortiLed

over the term of the agreement and included in General and administrative In addition in the event that any or all

of the Legacy Assets aie sold liquidated or otheiwise disposed of and the
aggregate net pioceeds to us are in excess of

the Target Amount WendysArbys would be required to pay the Management Company success fee equal to 10%

of the aggiegate net proceeds in excess of the Target Amount Assuming current liquidation of all remaining egacy

Assets the aggregate pioceeds $32.2 million as of January 2011 primarily related to the cancellation and

repayment of the DFR Notes would not be expected to be in excess of the Target Amount

Aircraft Agreement

In August 2007 WendysArbys entered into time share
agreements

under which the Former Executives and

the Management Company used two WendysArbys corporate
aircraft in exchange for payment of certain

incremental flight and related costs of such aircraft Those time share
agreements expired during the second quarter of

2009 and in the third quarter of 2009 one of the aircraft was sold to an unrelated third
party

In June 2009 WendysArbys and TASCO LLC an affiliate of the Management Company TASCO
entered into an aircraft lease agreement the Aircraft Lease Agreement for the other aircraft that was previously

under time share agreement The Airciaft Lease Agreement originally provided that WendysArbys would lease

such corporate aircraft to TASCO from July 2009 until June 30 2010 On June 24 2010 WendysArbys and

TASCO renewed the Aircraft Lease Agreement for an additional one year period expiring June 30 2011 Under the

Aircraft Lease Agteement TASCO pays $10 thousand per month for such airciaft plus substantially all operating

costs of the aircraft including all costs of fuel inspection servicing and storage as well as operational and flight crew

costs relating to the operation of the aircraft and all transit maintenance costs and other maintenance costs required

as result of TASCOs usage of the aircraft WendysArbys continues to be responsible for calendar based

maihtenanee and any extraordinary and unscheduled repairs andor maintenance for the aircraft as well as insurance

and other costs The Aircraft Lease Agreement may be terminated by WendysArbys svithour penalty in the event it

sells the aircraft to third party subject to right of first refusal in favor of the Management Company with
respect

to such sale

Presentation of Financial Information

The Companies fiscal reporting periods consist of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to

December 31 and are referred to herein as the year ended January 2011 or 2010 which consisted of 52

weeks the year ended January 2010 or 2009 which consisted of 53 weeks and the
year ended

December 28 2008 or 2008 which consisted of 52 weeks All refeiences to years and quartets relate to fiscal

periods rather than calendar periods Certain percentage changes between these years are consideted not measurable or

non meaningful nm
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Results of Operations

For each of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants the following tables included throughout Item

set forth the consolidated results of operations for the
years

ended January 2011 January 2010 and

December 28 2008 dollars in millions except company-owned average
unit volumes which are in thousands

Wendy s/A thy

2010 2009 2008

Amount Change Amount Change Amount

Revenues

Sales $3045.3 $053.0 $3198.3 $1536.0 $1662.3

Franchise revenues 371.1 11.4 382.5 222.0 160.5

3416.4 164.4 3580.8 1758.0 1822.8

Costs and
expenses

Costofsales 2610.8 117.6 2728.4 1312.9 1415.5

General and administrative 416.6 36.1 452.7 204.0 248.7

Depreciation and amortization 182.2 8.1 190.3 102.0 88.3

Goodwill impairment 460.1 460.1

Impairment of long-lived assets 69.4 12.7 82.1 62.9 19.2

Facilities relocation and restructuring 11.0 11.0 7.1 3.9

Other operating expense net 5.0 0.7 4.3 3.6 0.7

3284.0 184.8 3468.8 1232.4 2236.4

Operating profit loss 132.4 20.4 112.0 525.6 413.6

Interest
expense 137.2 10.5 126.7 59.7 67.0

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 26.2 26.2

Investment income expense net 5.2 8.2 3.0 12.4 9.4

Other than
temporary

losses on investments 3.9 3.9 108.8 112.7

Other income net 3.8 2.3 1.5 1.2 2.7

Loss from continuing operations before income

taxes 22.0 1.9 20.1 561.1 581.2

Benefit from income taxes 17.7 5.9 23.6 75.7 99.3

Loss income from continuing operations 4.3 7.8 3.5 485.4 481.9

Income from discontinued operations net of income

taxes 1.6 1.6 0.6 2.2

Net loss income 4.3 9.4 5.1 484.8 479.7
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Wendy VA rby Restaurants

2010 2009 2008

Amount Change Amount Change Amount

Revenues

Sales $3045.3 $053.0 $3198.3 $1536.0 $1662.3

Franchise revenues 31.1 çl1 382.5 222.0 160.5

3416.4 164.4 3580.8 1758.0 1822.8

Costs and
expenses

Cost of sales 2610.8 117.6 2728.4 1312.9 1415.5

General and administrative 408.4 34.3 442.7 229.5 213.2

Depreciation and amortization 180.3 8.2 188.5 103.5 85.0

Goodwill impairment 460.1 460.1

Impairmenr of long-lived assets 69.4 10.6 80.0 70.4 9.6

Facilities relocation and restructuring 8.0 8.0 4.8 3.2

Other operating expense net 5.2 2.0 3.2 2.5 0.7

3274.1 176.7 3450.8 1263.5 2187.3

Operating profit loss 142.3 12.3 130.0 494.5 364.5

Interest expense 136.2 10.8 125.4 58.5 66.9

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 26.2 26.2

Other income expense net 2.7 5.7 3.0 6.2 3.2

Loss income before income taxes 17.4 19.0 1.6 429.8 428.2

Benefit from income taxes 14.8 6.8 8.0 55.1 63.1

Net loss income 2.6 12.2 9.6 374.7 365.1

Sales

Wendys $1980.6 $2035.2 504.7

Arbys 966.2 1064.1 1131.4

Bakery and kids meal promotion items sold to

franchisees 98.5 99.0 26.2

Total sales $3045.3 $3198.3 $1662.3

oof eeof %of

Cost of sales
Sales Sales Sales

Wendys
Food and

paper
638.8 32.2o 654.1 32.2% 175.6 34.8%

Restaurant labor 590.0 29.8% 615.2 30.2o 152.7 30.2%

Occupancy advertising and other operating

costs 458.6 23.2o 462.2 22.7% 117.4 23.3%

Total Wendys cost of sales 1687.4 85.2% 1731.5 85.1% 445.7 88.3%

Arbys

Food and
paper 265.1 27.4% 290.6 27.3% 322.8 28.5%

Restaurant labor 317.7 32.9% 332.8 1.3% 339.6 30.0%

Occupancy advertising and other operating

costs 271.0 281o 293.0 27.5% 287.3 25.4%

TotalArbyscostofsales 853.8 88.4% 916.4 86.1% 949.7 83.9%

Bakery and kids meal promotion items sold to

franchisees 69.6 nlm 80.5 nlm 20.1 nlm

Total cost of sales $2610.8 85.7o $2728.4 85.3% $1415.5 85.2%
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2010 2009 2008
Margin

Wendys $293.2 $303.7 59.0

Arbys 112.4 147.7 181.7

Bakery and kids meal promotion items sold to fraochisees 28.9 18.5 6.1

Total margin $434.5 $469.9 246.8

Restaurant margin 00

Wendys 14.8% 14.9% 11.7%

Arbys 11.6o 13.9% 16.1%

Total restautant margin 00 13.8o 14.6% 14.7%

Franchise revenues

Wendys $296.4 $302.8 74.6

Arbys 74.7 79.7 85.9

Total franchise revenues $371.1 $382.5 $160.5

Depreciation and amortization

Wendys $113.1 $128.0 23.8

Arbys 55.3 56.2 61.2

Shared services center 11.9 4.3

Total depreciation and amortization Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 180.3 188.5 85.0

Corporate 1.9 1.8 3.3

Total depreciation and amortization Wendys/Arbys $182.2 $190.3 88.3

Impairment of long-lived assets

Wendys 26.3 23.5 1.6

Arbys 43.1 56.5 8.0

Total impairment of long-lived assets Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 69.4 80.0 9.6

Corporate 2.1 9.6

Total impairment of long-lived assets Wendys/Arbys 69.4 82.1 19.2

Other operating expense net

Wendys 3.5 2.4 0.7

Arbys 1.7 0.8

Total other operating expense
net Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 5.2 3.2 0.7

Corporate 0.2 1.1

Total other operating expense net Wendys/Arbys 5.0 4.3 0.7

Operating profit loss net

Wendys $204.9 $167.8 30.8

Arbys 50.7 29.2 395.3

Shared services center 11.9 8.6

Total operating profit loss net Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 142.3 130.0 364.5

Corporate 9.9 18.0 49.1

Total operating profit loss net Wendys/Arbys $132.4 $112.0 $413.6
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Wendy s/A rby and Wendy s/A rby Restaurants

Fourth

Quarter

Restaurant statistics 2L9

Wendys same-store sales

North America company-owned restaurants .7% .7% 3.6%

North America franchised restaurants 0.30 0.3% 3.8%

North America system wide O.6o 0.7% 3.7o

Arbys same store sales 2.2 i29

North America company owned resraurants 7.0% 8.2% 5.8%
North America franchised restaurants 5.2% 9.0% 3.6%
North America system wide 5.8% 8.8% 4.3%

Restaurant count Company-owned Franchised Systemwide

Wendys restaurant count

Restaurant count at December 28 2008 1406 5224 6630

Opened 10 53 63

Closed 13 139 152
Net sold to purchased by franchisees 12 12

Restaurant count at January 2010 1391 5150 6541

Opened 69 78

Closed 39 43
Net sold to purchased by franchisees

Restaurant count atjanuary 2011 1394 5182 6576

Arbys restaurant count

Restaurant count at December 28 2008 1176 2580 3756

Opened 54 59

Closed 23 74 97
Net purchased from sold by franchisees 11 11

Restaurant count at January 2010 1169 2549 3718

Opened 44 44

Closed 17 96 113
Nct sold to purchascd by franchisces

Restaurant count at January 2011 1144 2505 3649

Total restaurant count at January

2011 2538 7687 10225

2010 2009 2008

Company-owned average
unit volumes 52 weeks

WendysNorth America $1417.8 $1421.9 $1452.9

ArbysNorth America 838.4 896.7 966.9

Wendys data for 2008 other than
average

unit volumes is only for the period commencing with the

September 29 2008
merger

date through the end of the fiscal
year

Wendys Operating profit loss net includes the margin dollars for the bakery and kids meal promotion items

sold to franchisees
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Sales

Change

2010 2009

Wendy 54.6 $1530.5

Aibys 97.9 67.3

Bakeiy and kids meal
piuniotion items sold to ii anjnsees 0.5 2.8

$053.0 $1536.0

The dcci ease in sales in 2010 was pi
imat

ily
di iven by one less week of sales wben compared to 2009 Sales for

the 5.3id seek iii 2009 for Wendys and Aibys sseie b.3 nnllioti and $15.9 million iespectively In addition sales

in 2010 wei negatively impacted by the decline in Wendys aiid Ai bys Noi th America company owned same stoic

sales of 00 and 7.10o iespecrively Wendys and Aibys Not di America
coiiipany

owned same stoic sales fot both

2010 and 2009 weme inmpacted by tIme geneially imegative econonoc tiends amid competitive prcssores
described in

Intiodoction and Fxecotive Os eivics Oor Bosimmess

Wcndys Not tIm Aniet ica company owned same stoic sales for 2010 dcci eased pi imarily doe to .90o decline

in the nomber of ctistoiner ti ansactions in 2010 as compai ed to 2009 Wendys Canada company owned sante store

sales decteased $5.9 million
pi

iniai
ily

doe to an inctease in valne added sales tax in ccitain Canadian piovioces in tIme

thu
qnam rcr of 2010 The negative factoi inipacting Wendys sales svei pat tially

offset by $22.4 million

positive inpact
ft oni Ioi eign coiteitcy

tmanslation for tIme
year

coded Jaimoamy 2011 as compared to the poor year

amid an appioxiioatc I0u blendcd
poce

mci case takco
pm

ioiam
ily

in late 2009 Weimdys locatioims sold or closed

doting ot sobscqoent to die
year

cimdcd Jano.tiy 2010 cstmltm.m.l in iedoction in sales of $16.7 imollion for 2010

which was pai tially
offset by mci cnieotal sales of $11.0 itnllion in the

yeai
ended Jantiaiy 2011 fioni new stores

opcimcd doting fiscal 2009 and 2011

.1 lie iocicase in sales in 2009 was pi
iniam

ily
doe to the Wendys Mciger Wendys Noitlm Anmerica company

owned amc stoic salc hr 2019 exclodiimg tIme impact of fewer mcstaoiants seiving bieaklast in 2009 as conmpaicd to

2008 and the effect of tIme 53td sseek in 2009 wotmld liase dcci eased appioxintately 0.30o

Am by Noi rh Ainei ica company owncd sante stoic sales for 2010 weme impacted by the effects of decrease

of 8.30o in otir avei age per costomer clmeck aoioont pmimmmamily as mesolt of the expansion in 2010 of Aibys everyday

valoe strategy decmease of appioximnatcly .20o doe to cemtain instoic pionmorional discotomts that incieased

costomer tiaffmc donog 2009 which did not mecor in 2010 and iedtiction in advertising expenditoics dunng

2010 lhese negarise factois weie somcwhat mitigated by .20o iociease in the ntimber of ctistomer transactions in

2010 as coompamed to 2009 pnomamily dnveim by expansion of oor cveiyday valoe
strategy

Fransaction tiends have

impmoved since the end of 2009 with tIme roost significant mci ease in the foot tIm

qtiarter
of 2010 as coompamed to the

period in 2009 Aibys locations sold or closed dining or sobseqtmenr to the 12 nmonths ended Janoaiy 2010

geneiated $10.i imolhion of sales in that penod which was pat daily offset by sales of $8.0 million in the year ended

Jantiamy 2011 hoot stoics act1oiied fmoom fianclosee doi ing the flist
qoarter

of 2010

In 2009 Ambys company owned samestoic sales decmcascd 8.20o primarily dtie to 7.00o decline in the

nomber of costoiner tiansacrions in 2009 as comnpaied to 2008 dectease of l.20o in oor avciagc per costomer

check amoont and edtictioo in the ntinmber of national advem rising campaigns which was sonmewhar mitigated

by ceitjin aggiessive iii stoic pioinotiooal discotoits hese negative factois sseie pamtially offset by sales for rIme 53rd

week in 2009 of $1 5.9 million

Franchise Reve noes

Change

2010 2009

Wendys 6.4 $228.2

Aibys 5.0 6.2

511.4 $222.0
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lhc decrease in franchise revenues for 2010 was primarily due to the declioe in NVendys and Arbys North

America franchised restaurant same-store sales of 0.3o and 5.20o respectively The increase in franchise revenues in

2009 was primaiily due to the Wendys Merger Franchise revenues for the 53rd weelt in 2009 for Wendys and

bys sserc approximately $4.8 million and $1.3 million respectively

Wendys North America franchised restaurant same-store sales for 2010 were impacted by the same factors

described above for Wendys company-owned restaurants although we believe
price increases taken by certain

ftanchiscd restaurants which weie not taken by Wendys company-owned restaurants mitigated some of the decline

in same store sales Wendys fianchised restaurant closings include 71 restaurants in Japan which closed at the

expiration of the franchise
agreement on December 31 2009

Arbys North America franchised restaurant same-store sales for 2010 were impacted by the same factors

discussed above for Arbys company-owned restaurants although Arbys North America franchised restaurants in

2010 were comparing to sveaker 2009 sales levels than at company-owned restaurants as result of fewer in-store

promotional discounts offered by franchisees during 2009 and had
higher check average as result of

pricing

and menu mix as compared to company-owned restaurants

The decrease in Arbys franchise revenues in 2ut19 was primarily attributable to the 9.Uo decrease in same-store

sales foi North America franchised restaurants In addition the franchised restaurants were disproportionately

negatively
affected by less national media advertising as certain underpenetrated franchise markets did not have

sufficient local media advertising to offset the decrease in national advertising

Cost of Sales

Change

2010 2009

Wendys O.10o points 3.20o points

Arbys 2.3o points
2.2 points

Consolidated 0.40o points 0.1 0o points

Wendys North America company-owned restaurant cost of sales remained relatively
flat as percentage

of sales

in 2010 as compaied to 2009 The increase in occupancy advertising and other operating expenses of 0.5o points io

2010 as compared to 2009 was mostly offset by decrease in restaurant labor costs of 0.4o points
for the same

comparable periods The increase in occupancy advertising
and other operating expenses

was due to increases in

utilities credit and debit card fees and insurance expenses combined with an increase in advertising expenses

associated with the launch of the brands breakfast daypart in certain test markets The decrease in Wendys restaurant

labor costs in 2010 as compared to 2009 was primarily
due to O.5o point decrease in incentive compensation

expense
and O.30o point decrease in salaries and wages

which was the result of the apptoximate 1o blended price

increase taken piimarily in late 2009 partially offset by 0.40o point increase due to the deleverage
effect of the

decline in Wendys same-store sales without similar reductions in fixed and semi-variable costs Food and paper costs

were unchanged as percent
of sales in 2010 as compared to 2009 These costs were impacted by O.6o point

increase in commodity costs primarily in the second half of 2010 which was offset by 0.300 point decline in food

costs from the approximate 10o blended price increase taken
primarily late in 2009 and by 0.3o points

from other

individually insignificant factors which comprised the remainder of the offset

The percentage decrease in Wendys North America company-owned restaurant cost of sales in 2009 as

compared to tbc fourth quattet of 2008 was primarily attributable to improvements in restaurant labor costs and

certain occupancy advertising and other operating expenses partially due to ongoing operational improvements and

the effect of puce iucieases in 2009 As percent of sales the impact of the 53rd week in 2009 un cost of sales was

not material

As percentage of sales Arbys North America compauy owned restaurant cost of sales increased in 2010 as

compared to 2009 primarily due to higher restaurant labor costs and occupancy advertising and other operating

expenses and to lesse extent an increase in food and paper costs Restaurant labor costs and occupancy advertising

and other operating expenses were mainly affected by increases of l.3o points and 1.0o points respectively due to

the deleverage effect of the decline in Arbys same-store sales without similar reductions in fixed and semi-variable

costs excluding advertising These increases were offset in part by O.5o point decrease in advertising
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expenditutes The increase in food and paper costs was comprised principally of 0.7o point increase in commodity

costs primauly in the second half of 2010 partially offset by 0.6% point decrease related to certain in-store

promotional discounts offered during 2009 which did not recur during 2010

The percentage increase in the Arby North America companyowned restaurant cost of sales in 2009 as

compared to 2008 was primarily attributable to higher restatirant labor and occupancy advertising and other

operating costs due to the effect of the decrease in Arbys same-store sales without compaiable icductions in fixed and

semi variable costs and
higher

food and
paper costs related to the targeted product discounting of number of Arbys

menu items which was paitially offset by decreases in commodity costs As percent of sales the impact of the 53rd

week in 2009 on cost of sales was not material

General and Adnlini3 Irative

2010 Change

Wendys/Arbys Wendys
Restanranu Corpnraie Arhys

Wend1s/Arbys support services costs $34.1 34.1

Purchasing co op start
tip

costs 10.4 10.4

Integiarion costs related to the Wendys Merger 7.5 3.6 11.1

legal fees 6.1 1.0 7.1

Incentive compensation 4.7 2.4 7.1

Compensation 9.8 15.4 5.6

Fianchisc incentives 4.7 4.7

Professional services 5.0 2.5 2.5

Severance 2.3 0.1 2.2

401 Ic expense 2.5 0.7 1.8

Services agreements 2.8 2.8

Other net 4.2 7.4 3.2

$34.3 1.8 $36.1

2009 Change

WendysArbys Wendys
Restaurants Corporate Arhys

WendysMerger $145.5 $16.2 $161.7

WendyslArbys support seivices costs 34.1 34.1

Wendys Co op Agreement 15.5

Integration costs related to the Wendys Merger 11.1 3.2 14.3

Incentive compensation 8.9 0.8 9.7

Piovision for doubtful accounts 6.5 6.5

Management services agieemenr 6.5 6.5

Salaries and
svages 1.9 5.9 4.0

Services
agreements 5.3 5.3

Aitcraft
expenses 2.1 2.1

Other net 3.3 3.6 0.3

$229.5 $25.5 $204.0

Wendy YA rby

The decrease in general and administrative expenses in 2010 was primarily related to the non recui rcncc in

2010 of the amounts recorded in the 2009 fourth quarter as tesulr of the Wendys Co op Agiecmcnt declines in

Wendys related integration costs resulting from the completion of integration efforts in early 2010 ieductions in

legal rcsetvcs for matters accrued in prior years decreases in incentive compensation
accruals due to lower

47



operating performance as compared to plan in 2010 versus 2009 reductions in staffing at our shared seivices

center in Atlanta Geotgia and rhe formation of the Wendys Co-Op in 2009 and declines in fees under our

ielared pai ty sen ices agreement rhat was renegotiared in June 2009 The decreases weie pairially offset by the costs

incuried in 2010 ielated to the formation of SSG increases in franchise incentives offered in cenjtinction with the

\XTendys iemodeling program increases in professional services fees associated piimarily with information

technology piojecrs increases in severance costs related to the termination of certain senior Arbys executives and

increased 401k expense associated with certain legacy Wendys plans that have since been niemged into the

Wendys/Arbys plan

The incieases for 2009 were primarily due to the effects of the Wendys Merger as well as increases in

integration costs related to the Wendys Merger and salaries and
wages

due to staffing and other expenses

associated with the establishment of the shared services center in Atlanta Georgia Oum 2009 genemal and

administrative expenses were also significantly impacted by required futuie
payments expensed in the 2009 fouirh

quarter as result of the Wendys Co-op Agreement increases in incentive compensation accruals due to stronger

operating performance versus plan in 2009 than in 2008 and an increase in the provision for doubtful accounts

primarily associated with the collectability of Arbys franchise meceivables lIe 2009 increases in geneial and

administrative expenses were partially offset by decrease in fees under the services agreement with the

Management Company and decrease in costs associated with our corporate aircraft agmeements with the

Principals and the Management Company and the sale of one of the aircraft in 2009

Wendy VA rby Restaurants

The decrease in general and administrative
expenses

in 2010 was primarily telated to Wendys/Ambys

support
services costs charged to Wendys/Arbys Restaurants during the first

quatter
of 2009 which weme incurmed

directly by Wendys/Arbys Restaurants after the 2009 first
quarter

the non iecurrence in 2010 of the amounts

recorded in the 2009 fourth
quarter as result of the Wendys Co op Agreement declines in Wendys melated

integration costs resulting from the completion of integration efforts in early 2010 reductions in legal meserses for

legal nutters accrued in prior years
and decreases in incentive compensation icc ruals clue to lower operating

performance as compared to plan in 2010 versus 2009 The decreases were partially offset by the costs incurmed in

2010 related to the formation of 550 increases in compensation costs as 2009 first
quarter compensation costs

were included in the Wendys/Arbys support services charge increases in franchise incentives offered in

conjunction with the Wendys remodeling program increases in professional seivices fees associated primarily

with information technology projects increases in severance costs related to the termination of cci tam senior

Arbys executives and increased 401k expense
associated with certain legacy Wendys plans that have since been

merged into the Wendys/Arbys plan

The increases for 2009 were primarily due to the Wendys Merger Our 2009 genetal and administiative

expenses were also significantly impacted by Wendys/Aibys support services costs charged to Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants during the first
quarter

of 200 which were incurred directly by Wendys/Arbys Restaurants after the

2009 first
quarter required future payments expensed in the 2009 fourth quarter as result of the Wendys Co-op

Agreement integration costs related to the Wendys Merger increases in incentive compensation acctuals doe

to stronger operating performance versus plan in 2009 than in 2008 an increase in the provision for doubtful

accounts primarily associated with the collecrabiliry of Arbys franchise receivables and 2009 increase in fees

related to the 2005 Atbys management services agreement
with Wendys/Arbys as compared to net credit in fees in

the prior year
cltme to the reimbursement of certain costs from Wendys/Arbys to Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

Depreciation and Amortization

Change

2010 2009

Wendys restaurants primarily properties $14.9 $104.2

Arbys iesraoranrs primarily properties 0.9 5.0

Shared services center assets 7.6 4.3

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 8.2 103.5

Corporate 0.1 1.5

Total Wendys/Arbys 8.1 $102.0
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The 2010 decrease in depreciation and amortization was primarily related to an adjustment of $6.5 million

in the prior year
related to one-time increase in depreciation as result of refinements to the Wendys purchase price

allocation including long-lived assets and reduction in depreciation related to Wendys and Arbys previously

impaired long-lived assets These decreases were partially offset by increases in the amortization of software and related

costs capitalized in connection with the establishment of the shared services center

The 2009 increase was primarily related to the increase in lung lived assets as result of the Wendys Metgei

The 2009 increase was also affected by one rime increase in depreciation and an increase in the amortization of

capitalized software related to the establishment of the shared services center both as discussed above These 2009

increases were partially offset by the reduction in depreciation of Arbys long lived assets related to impairment

charges previously recorded

Goodwill Impairment

We
operate

in two business
segments consisting of two restaurant brands Wendys restaurants and

Arbys restaurants Each
segment

includes reporting units for company-owned restaurants and franchise operations

fnr
purpnses

of measuring gondwill impairment

We performed our annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth
quarters

of each of the fiscal years presented

In 2008 as result of the acceleration of the general economic and marker downturn as well as continued decreases

in Arbys same-store sales we concluded that the carrying amount of the Arbys company-owned restaurant reporting

unit exceeded its fair value Accordingly we recorded impairment charges of $460.1 million in 2008

Impairment ofLong-Lived Assets

Change

2010 2009

Wendys restaurants primarily properties at underperforming locations 2.8 $21.9

Arbys restaurants primzrilyproperties at underperforming locations 13.4 48.5

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 10.6 70.4

Corporate aircraft 2.1 7.5

Total Wendys/Arbys $12.7 $62.9

The increase in charges for impairment of Wendys long-lived assets in 2010 was primarily the result of the

deterioration in operating performance of certain Wendys company-owned restaurants The decline in Arbys

company-owned restaurants impairment was primarily due to the level of impairment charges taken in prior

periods On consolidated basis the decline in Arbys-related impairment charges more than offset the increase in

Wendys-related impairment charges Wendys/Arbys impairment charges were further impacted by impairment

recorded in 2009 related to one of our corporate aircraft which did nor recur in 2010 The aircraft was classified as

held for sale in the 2009 second quarter and sold in July 2009

The 2009 increase in charges for the impairment of long-lived assets was primarily the result of the

deterioration in operating performance of certain Wendys and Arbys restaurants As discussed above Wendys

Arbys also recorded impairment on one of their corporate aircraft during 2009 but to lesser extent as compared to

impairment charges recorded in 2008
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Interest Expense

Change

2010 2009

Senior Notes 28.9 32.0

TermLoan 2.6 11.2

Wendys debt 10.5 31.6

Amortization of deferred financing costs 6.5 6.1

Wendys interest rate swaps 5.0

Arbys debt 0.6 1.1

Other 1.9 1.1

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 10.8 58.5

Corporate debt 0.5 0.8

Other 0.2 0.4

Total Wendys/Arbys $10.5 $59.7

The increase in interest expense in 2010 was principally affected by the full year impact in 2010 of interest

on the Senior Notes issued in June 2009 and higher principal amounts outstanding during 2010 under the Term

Loan than were outstanding during 2009 under the prior Arbys credit agreement as partially offset by the lower

effective interest rate of the Term Loan as compared to the prior Arbys credit agreement These increases in interest

expense were partially offset by the redemption of the Wendys 6.25% senior notes in the second quarter of 2010

as further described in Liquidity and Capital ResourcesLong-term Debt Credit Agreement below the effect

of the 2009 first half write-off of deferred debt costs relating to prepayments on the term loan under the prior Arbys

credit agreement and favorable impact of interest rate swaps on the Wendys 6.20o and 6.25o senior notes

entered into during 2009 and 2010 This favorable impact included $1.9 million gain on the cancellation of the

swaps related to the Wendys 6.25o senior notes in connection with the redemption of those notes in the second

quarter of 2010

The 2009 increase in interest expense was principally affected by interest on the Senior Notes issued in June

2009 as well as the full
year impact in 2009 of interest expense on debt assumed in the Wendys Merger Excluding

the effect of the Senior Notes issuance and the effect of the Wendys debt assumed the decrease in 2009 interest

expense was primarily due to net decrease in the senior secured term loan interest expense as result of significant

prepayments partially offset by the write-off of financing costs related to these
prepayments as discussed above and an

increase in the interest rate on such loan

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

The loss on early extinguishment of debt in 2010 of $26.2 million consisted of $1.0 million premium

payment required to redeem the Wendys 6.25% senior notes as discussed below in Liquidity and Capital

Resources Long-term DebtCredit Agreement $5.5 million for the write-off of the unaccreted discount of the

Wendys 6.25% senior notes recorded in connection with the Wendys Merger and $5.7 million for the

write-off of deferred costs associated with the repayment of the Wendys/Arbys Restaurants prior senior secured term

loan as discussed below in Liquidity and Capital ResourcesLong-term DebtCredit Agreement

Investment Income Expense Net

Wendy s/Arby

Change

2010 2009

DFR Notes 4.9

Withdrawal Fee 5.5 5.5

Recognized net gains 1.7 4.5

Interest income 0.2 1.0

Other 0.3 1.4

8.2 $02.4
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The increase in investment income primarily related to the recognition of income on the DFR Notes as

discussed above in Inrroducrion and Executive OverviewDeerfield and an early withdrawal fee incurred in

2009 that did not recur in 2010 These increases were partially offset by net investment gains recogniaed in the prior

year
that did not recur in 2010 As of January 2011 our remaining investments include joint venture investment

and certain cost investments

Our 2009 net gains included realiaed gains on available-for-sale securities and cost method investments and

unrealized and realized gains on derivative instruments The change in our recogniaed net gains in 2009 was primarily

due to $2.8 million of net unrealiaed and realized losses on swap derivatives held in 2008 $2.3 million of net

gains that were realized upon the Equities Sale and $2.2 million decrease in net realized losses on available for

sale securities held in 2008 as offset by $9.0 million decrease in net unrealized and realized gains on securities

sold short which were held in 2008 $1.2 million of realized losses on securities sold short in 2009 $0.8

million decrease in unrealized gains on put and call option derivatives that were sold in 2009 and $0.8 million

decrease in gains from the sale of cost method investments The Withdrawal Fee relates to the fee paid to the

Management Company for the Equities Sale as discussed in Introduction and Executive OverviewRelated Parry

TransactionsEquities Account

Other Than Temporary Losses on Investments

Wendy s/A rby

Change

2010 2009

Cost method investments $3.1 7.2
Available-for-sale securities including CDOs 0.8 12.3
DFR common stock 68.1

DFRNores 21.2

$3.9 $108.8

We did not recognize any other than
temporary

losses on our remaining investments during 2010 As such the

2010 change reflects 2009 other than temporary losses on investments which did nor recur in 2010 Due to marker

conditions and other factors present during 2009 and 2008 we recorded other than
temporary

losses of $3.9 million

and $112.7 million respectively The following discussion highlights the acriviry related to changes in other than

temporary losses on investments in 2009 as compared to 2008

Losses due to the reduction in value of our investments

Based on review of our unrealized investment losses we determined that the decreases in the fair value

of certain of our investments in 2009 and 2008 were other than temporary due to the severiry of the

decline the financial condition of the investee and the prospect for future recovery in the market value of

the investment Accordingly we recorded other than temporary losses on certain common stock certain

available-for-sale securities and certain cost method investments

The 2009 decrease in losses due to the reduction in value of our investments was principally impacted by

the
non-recurring 2008 loss on our DFR common stock discussed in Introduction and Executive

Overview Deerfield In addition 2009 losses on certain available-for-sale securities were not as

significant due primarily to the Equities Sale in June 2009 Losses in 2009 related to cost method

investments were not as significant due to improved market conditions as compared to 2008

Losses due to investment collectabiliry

The 2009 decrease in losses due to investment collectabiliry was impacted by the non-recurring allowance

for doubtfli.l collectabiliry on the DFR Notes recorded in 2008 discussed above in Introduction and

Executive OverviewDeerfield

Losses due to illiquidiry

The 2009 decrease in losses due to illiquidiry was due to the 2008 write-down of $8.5 million on our

then entire cost method investment in Jurlique International Pry Lrd privately-held Australian upscale

skin care company Jurlique that did not recur in 2009
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Benefit from Income Taxes

Change

Wendys/Arbys

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

2010 2009 2010 2009

Federal and srate benefir provision on variance in loss income from

continuing operations before tax $3.3 $200.8 7.3 $156.7

Foreign tax credits net of tax on distribution of foreign earnings 6.6 9.2 6.6 9.2

Recognition of tax benefit of state net operating losses as result of dissolution of

our captive insurance company 9.6 9.6 9.6 9.6

Goodwill impairment 99.7 99.7

DFR common stock 20.3

Other 0.4 4.7 2.5 1.5

$5.9 75.7 6.8 55.1

Our income taxes in 2010 2009 and 2008 were impacted by variations in loss income from continuing

operations before tax adjusted for recurring items such as non-deductible expenses state income taxes and

adjustments related to prior year tax matters as well as non-recurring discrete items Discrete items may occur in any

given year but are not consistent from year to year Taxes changed as result of discrete items of the 2010 and

2008 tax benefit of foreign tax credits net of related taxes on the distribution of foreign earnings the 2009 tax

benefit on recognizing previously unrecognized state net operating losses net of valuation allowances in connection

with the dissolution of our captive insurance company the 2008 tax provision on the impaitment of goodwill as

described above in Goodwill Impairment as result of non-deductible financial reporting goodwill in excess of tax

goodwill and the 2008 tax provision on loss which is not deductible for tax purposes in connection with the

decline in value of our investment in the common stock of DFR and related declared dividend as described in

Introduction and Executive Overview Deerfield

Income from Discontinued Operations Net of Income Taxes

Wendy s/A rby

Change

2010 2009

Income from discontinued operations before income taxes $0.7 0.5

Income tax changes due to settlements of income tax matters 1.1 0.6

Provision for benefit from income taxes 0.2 0.5

$1.6 $0.6

The changes in the income from discontinued opetations for 2010 and 2009 represent transactions in 2009 and

2008 respectively related to the settlement of income tax and other matters from out former premium beverage and

soft drink concentrate business and our former utility and municipal services and refrigeration business segments

Outlook for 2011

Sales

We anticipate that certain of the factors described above which affected our 2010 company-owned same-store

sales including current restaurant industry-wide sales trends the uncertain economic environment high

unemployment and competitive discounting will continue to have an impact on sales for 2011 We
expect

that

Wendys sales will be favorably impacted by product innovation expanding dayparts and modernizing our

facilities We anticipate that Arbys sales in 2011 will be favorably impacted by our new brand positioning

highlighted by new marketing campaign the introduction of new premium products and continued focus

on everyday value For 2011 the net impact of new store openings and closings is not expected to have significant

impact on consolidated sales
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Franchise Revenues

We expect that the sales ttends fot franchised restautants at Wendys and Arhys will continue to he genetally

impacted by many of the same factors described above under Sales Arbys franchise revenues may also be impacted

by certain franchisees financial difficulties and the closure of franchised restaurants

Cost of Sales

We
expect

that the factors described above which affected cost of sales for company-owned restaurants in 2010

for the Wendys and Arbys brand will continue to impact cost of sales in 2011 In addition we expect both Wendys
and Arbys cost of sales to be negatively impacted due to an overall increase in commodity costs

Depreciation and snortization

We expect that our depreciation and amortization expenses will increase in 2011 primarily due to the effect on

depreciation of capital expenditures at Wendys related to our continued remodeling of company-owned

restaurants and the opening of new company owned restaurants and various capital projects

Interest Fxpense

We expect our interest
expense

for 2011 will decrease slightly compared to 2010 primarily as result of the

effect of the redemption of the Wendys 6.250o senior notes and cancellation of related interest rate swaps in May

2010 partially offset by an increase in interest expense due to higher principal amounts outstanding during 2011

under the Term Loan than were ontstanding during 2010 under the Term Loan issued in May 2010 and the prior

Achys credit agreement prior to May 2010 and by the lower effective interest rate of the Term Loan as compared to

the prior Arbys credit agreement

Arby Strategic Alternatives

In January 2011 WendyslArbys announced that it is exploring strategic alternatives for Arbys including

sale of the brand This process is in its early phases and there is no assurance as to any particular outcome To address

uncertainties for our employees created by this process Wendys/Arbys has implemented retention program the

payment of portion of which is conditioned on the sale of Arbys While the process is pending Arbys will continue

to execute its growth initiatives
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

For each of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants the following tables included throughout

Liquidity and Capital Resources present
dollars in millions

Net ark Provider by Operating Activities

2010 Compared with 2009

Net cash provided by operating activities for Wendys/Arbys was $226.3 million for rhe
year

ended January

2011 as compared to $298.8 million for the
year

ended January 2010 Net cash provided by operating activities for

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants was $231.3 million for the
year

ended January 2011 as compared to $321.7 million

for the year
ended January 2010 The significant components which accounted for the overall decreases in net cash

provided by operating activities of $72.5 million and $90.4 million for Wendys/Atbys and Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants respectively for the
year

ended January 2011 as compared to the
year

ended January 2010 were as

follows

Change

Wendys/Arbys
Restaurants Corporate Wendys/Arbys

Accrued
expenses

and other current liabilities

Incentive compensation $32.7 0.2 $32.5

QSCC Co-op Agreement 30.5 30.5

Interest 29.8 0.4 29.4

Income taxes 4.5 1.0 3.5

Accounts payable 38.4 0.7 37.7

Tax sharing agreement 28.9 28.9

Net loss income and non-cash adjustments net 13.0 16.4 29.4

Other net 1.6 6.5 8.1

$90.4 $17.9 $72.5

The net decrease in the comparative operating cash flow principally resulted from an increase in amounts

paid under incentive compensation plans in 2010 versus 2009 for fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively combined

with decrease in the amounts accrued in 2010 as compared to 2009 due to lower operating performance the

payment of start-up costs to QSCC in 2010 which were accrued in 2009 and interest payments in 2010 primarily

resulting from interest payments in January and July 2010 on the Senior Notes and decrease in interest expense due

to the redemption of the Wendys 6.250o senior notes in the second quartet of 2009 partially offset by an increase in

interest expense accruals on the Senior Notes issued in June 2009 The net decrease in comparative operating cash

flow was partially offset by the effect of the income tax benefit recorded in 2010 as compared to the provision for

income taxes recorded in 2009 primarily due to variations in loss income before income taxes of out subsidiaries in

2010 and 2009 These changes were partially offset by the net impact of the following which affected accounts

payable decrease in the 2009 amounts payable
for

non-recurring items more rypically included in accrued

expenses
rather than accounts payable with no comparable amounts in 2010 decrease in the volume of

transactions processed as received from third
parties

due in part to the decrease in sales in 2010 as compared to 2009
reduction in amounts paid to the Wendys national

advertising cooperative in 2010 as compared to 2009 due to

changes in the
timing

of royalry payments to them and shift of product testing to the advertising co op and

amounts paid in 2009 associated with certain outstanding 2008 lease payments
which did not recur in

2010 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants comparative operating cash flow was also impacted by an increase in amounts

accrued in 2010 versus 2009 for Federal and state income taxes under tax sharing agreement
with Wendys/Arbys

partially offset by 2009 tax payments
under this agreement which were settled in cash with Wendys/Arbys

Additionally for the
year

ended January 2011 the Companies had the following significant sources and uses

of cash other than from operating activities

Proceeds from the term loan of $497.5 million

Repayments of $250.8 million of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants amended senior secured term loan
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Payment of $215.0 million including premium of $15.0 million ro redeem rhe Wendys 6.250o senior

nores

Cash capiral expenditures totaling $148.0 million which included $50.1 million for the remodeling of

iesrauianrs $10.9 million for the construction of new restaurants and $87.0 million for various capital

projects

Defetted financing costs of$16.n million

Wendy YArby

Repurchases of Common Stock of $167.7 million including commissions of $0.7 million and excluding

$5.8 million of 2009 purchases that were not settled until 2010

Proceeds of $30.8 million excluding interest from the
repayment and cancellation of the DFR Notes

Dividend payments of $27.6 million and

Wendy VA rhy Restaurants

Intercompany dividend
payments

of $443.7 million to Wendys/Arbys

The net cash used in continuing operations before the effect of exchange rate changes on cash was

approximately $80.8 million and $341.8 million for Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arhys Restaurants respectively

2009 compared with 2008

Net cash provided by operating activities for Wendys/Arbys was $298.8 million for the
year

ended January

2010 as compaied to $73.6 million for the
year

ended December 28 2008 Net cash provided by operating activities

for Wendys/Aibys Restaurants was $321.7 million for the
year

ended January 2010 as compared to $101.0

million for the
yeai

ended December 28 2008 The significant components which accounted for the overall increase

in nct Lash providcd by opcrating autivitics 0f $225.2 million and $2207 million f01 Wcndys/Arbys and Wcndys/

Arbys Restaurants respectively for the
year

ended January 2010 as compared to the
year

ended December 28

2008 were as follows

Change

Wendys/Arbys
Restaorants Corporate Wendys/Arbys

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Incentive compensation 31.2 7.5 38.7

Inteiesr 32.5 0.6 31.9

QSCC Co op Agreement 15.4 15.4

Key executive agreements 13 13s

Intercompany transactions 25.1 25.1

Income taxes 11.0 5.2 5.8

Accounts payable 67.1 7.5 59.6

Tax sharing payment 47.0 47.0

Net income loss and non-cash adjustments net 132.4 57.3 189.7

Other net 1.8 0.3 1.5

$220.7 4.5 $225.2

The net increase in the comparative operating cash flow principally resulted from an increase in amounts

accrued under incentive compensation plans in 2009 due to higher operating performance as compared to plan in

2009 versus 2008 partially offset by amounts paid under the plans in 2009 versus 2008 for fiscal 2008 and 2007

respectively an increase in interest
expense

accruals on the Senior Notes issued in June 2009 and the debt

assumed as result of the Wendys Merger in September 2008 partially offset by interest
payments

in 2009 primarily

for the debt assumed in the Wendys Merger amounts accrued during the 2009 fourth
quarter

related to funding

start-up costs and other operating expenses
for the QSCC without similar accruals in 2008 and amounts paid in

2008 undet key executive
agreements

assumed in the Wendys Merger These changes were partially offset by the net

impact of the following which affected accounts payable decrease in the amounts payable for non-recurring
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items more typically included in accrued
expenses

rather than accounts payable decrease in amounts payable for

food costs in 2009 as compared to 2008 primarily due to lower commodity costs during the end of 2009 versus the

cod of 2008 an accumulation of certain payables associated with Arbys lease
agreements

which were accrued at

the end of 2008 and paid in 2009 an increase in amounts payable at the end of 2008 that were paid in 2009

related to the timing of receipt of vendor invoices and an increase in amounts paid to Wendys national

advertising cooperative in 2009 combined with decrease in amounts payable to the Wendys national advertising

cooperative at the end of 2009 versus 2008 In addition the net increase in comparative operating cash flow was

partially offset by an increase in income tax payments
in 2009 as compared to 2008 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants net

increase in comparative operating cash flow was also impacted by an increase in amounts accrued in 2009 versus

2008 for Federal and state income taxes under tax sharing agreement
with Wendys/Arbys combined with

decrease in tax payments made in 2008 versus 2009 under this agreement and decrease in certain non-recurring

intercompany transactions during 2008 which eliminate in the consolidation of Wendys/Arbys

Additionally for the
year ended January 2010 the Companies had the following significant sources and uses

of cash other than from
operating activities

Proceeds of $607.5 million primarily from the issuance of the Senior Notes discussed below under Long-
term Debt

Net
repayments

of other long-term debt of $209.5 million including prepayment of$132.5 million on our

senior secured term loan

Cash
capital expenditures totaling $101.9 million which included $19.1 million for the remodeling of

restaurants $18.1 million for the construction of new restaurants and $64.7 million for various capital

projects

Deferred financing costs of $38.4 million

Wendy i/Arby

Net investment proceeds of $38.1 million

Repurchases of Common Stock of $72.9 million including commissions of $0.3 million and excluding $5.8

million of repurchases that were not settled until after year end

Dividend
payments

of $28.0 million and

Wendys/Arby Restaurants

Intercompany dividend
payments

of $115.0 million to Wendys/Arbys

The net cash provided by continuing operations before the cffcct uf exchange rate changes on eah was

approximately $502.6 million and $473.1 million for Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Ashys Restaurants respectively

Sources and Uses of Cash for 2011

The Companies anticipated consolidated cash requirements for continuing operations for 2011 exclusive of

operating cash flow requirements consist principally of

Cash
capital expenditures of approximately $184 million as discussed below in Capital Expenditures

Scheduled debt principal repayments aggregating $18 million

Any potential business
acquisitions or dispositions and

The costs of any potential business acquisitions or financing activities

Wendy s/A rby

Quarterly cash dividends aggregating up to approximately $33.5 million as discussed below in Dividends

Potential repurchases of Common Stock of up to $250.0 million under the currently authorized stock

repurchase program and
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Wendy s/A rby Restaurants

Potential intetcompany dividends and fees

Based upon cutrent levels of
operations

the Companies expect
that cash flows from

operations
and available

cash will provide sufficient liquidity to meet operating
cash requirements for at least rhc next 12 months

Capitalization

Year End 2010

Wendys/Arbys
Restaurants Wendys/Arbys

Long-term debt including current portion $1559.7 $1572.4

Stockholders equity Invested equity

Common stock 47.0

Additional paid-in capital 2771.1

Other capital 2423.5

Accumulated deficit 499.5 412.5

Advances to Wendys/Arbys 155.0

Common stock held in treasury 249.5

Accumulated other comprehensive income 7.7 7.1

$3336.4 $3735.6

Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants total capitalization at January 2011 decreased $123.6

million and $363.4 million from $3859.2 million and $3699.8 million each respectively at January 2010 and

was principally impacted by the following

The net increase in long-term debt is principally due to the Credit Agreement entered into in May 2010 as

further discussed below in Long-term DebtCredit Agreement partially offset by the $250.8 million

repayment of the prior senior secured term loan and $215.0 million from the redemption of the Wendys

6.25% senior notes

Wendys/Arbys

Repurchases of Common Stock of$173.5 million including commissions of $0.7 million

Cash dividends paid of $27.6 million

Net loss of $4.3 million

Wendy s/A rby Restaurants

Intercompany cash dividend
payments

of $443.7 million to Wendys/Arbys and

Net loss of $2.6 million

Long-term Debt

Year End

2010

Senior Notes 553.3

Term Loan 495.2

6.20% senior notes 217.8

Sale-leaseback obligations excluding interest 121.9

Capitalized lease obligations excluding interest 86.7

7% Debentures 81.2

Other 3.6

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 1559.7

6.54% aircraft term loan 12.7

Total Wendys/Ashys Group $1572.4
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Except as described below there were no material changes to the terms of any debt obligations since January

2010 See Note 11 of the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data contained in Item of this document for

more information related to our long-term debt obligations

Credit Agreement

On May 24 2010 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants entered into $650.0 million Credit Agreement the Credit

Agreement which includes $500.0 million senior secured term loan facility the Term Loan and

$150.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility the Credit Facility The Credit Agreement contains

provisions for an uncommitted increase of up to $300.0 million principal amount in the
aggregate

in the Credit

Facility and/or Term Loan subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions The Credit Facility includes sub-facility

for the issuance of up to $70.0 million of letters of credit The obligations under the Credit Agreement are secured by

substantially all of the non-real estate assets of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and its domestic subsidiaries other than

certain unrestricted subsidiaries the stock of its domestic subsidiaries other than certain unrestricted subsidiaries

650o of the stock of certain of its foreign subsidiaries as well as by mortgages on certain restaurant properties

The Term Loan was issued at 99.50o of the principal amount which represented an original issue discount of

0.5% and resulted in net proceeds paid to us of $497.5 million The $2.5 million discount is being
accreted and the

related charge included in interest expense through the maturity of the Term Loan The Term Loan will mature on

May 24 2017 and requires quarterly principal installments which commenced on September 30 2010 equal to

10o
per

annum of the initial principal amount outstanding with the balance payable on the maturity date

Should our strategic alternatives for Arbys result in sale of the brand we may be required to utilize portion

of the sale proceeds to reduce the Term Loan

The Credit Facility expires not later than May 24 2015 An unused commitment fee of 50 basis points per

annum is payable quarterly on the
average

unused amount of the Credit Facility until the maturity date

The interest rare on the Term Loan is based on il the Eurodollar Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement but

not less than 1.50o plus 3.500o or Base Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement but not less than 2.500o plus

2.500o Since the inception of the Term Loan we have elected to use the Eurodollar Rate which resulted in an

interest tate on the Term Loan of 5.00o as ofJanuaty 2011

The Companies incurred approximately $16.4 million in costs related to the Credit Agreement which is being

amortized to interest
expense

over the Term Loans term utilizing the effective interest rate method

Proceeds from the Term Loan were used to repay approximately $253.8 million of existing indebtedness

including fees and interest under the then existing Wendys/Arbys Restaurants amended senior secured term loan

which replaced the prior Arbys credit
agreement

in March 2009 and which was scheduled to be due in 2012

redeem the Wendys 6.250o senior notes scheduled to be due in 2011 and
pay

fees and
expenses

related to the

Credit Agreement The remaining Term Loan proceeds were used for working capital and other general corporate

purposes

The Companies recognized loss on early extinguishment of debt of $26.2 million in the second quarter of

2010 related to the repayment of debt from the proceeds of the Term Loan This loss consisted of $15.0 million

premium payment requited to redeem the Wendys 6.250o senior notes $5.5 million for the write-off of the

unaccreted discount of the Wendys 6.25% senior notes recorded in connection with the Wendys Merger and

$5.7 million for the write-off of deferred costs associated with the repayment of the prior senior secured term loan

Debt Covenants

The affirmative and negative covenants in the Credit Agreement include among others preservation of

corporate existence payment of taxes and maintenance of insurance and limitations on indebtedness including

guarantee obligations of other indebtedness liens mergers consolidations liquidations and dissolutions sales of

assets dividends and other
payments

in respect of capital stock investments payments
of certain indebtedness

transactions with affiliates changes in fiscal year negative pledge clauses and clauses restricting subsidiaty

distributions and material changes in lines of business The financial covenants contained in the Credit Agreement

are consolidated interest
coverage ratio ii consolidated senior secured leverage ratio and iii consolidated

senior secured lease adjusted leverage ratio The covenants generally do not restrict Wendys/Arbys or any of its
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subsidiaries that are not subsidiaries of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants Wendys/Arbys Restaurants was in compliance

with all covenants of the Credit Agreement as of January 2011 and we expect to remain in compliance with all of

these covenants for the next 12 months

The indentures that
govern Wendys 6.20% senior notes and 7% debentures contain covenants that speci

limits on the incurrence of indebtedness secured by liens and sale-leaseback transactions We were in compliance with

these covenants as of January 2011 and we expect to remain in compliance with these covenants for the next

12 months

significant number of the underlying leases in the Arbys restaurants segment
for sale-leascback obligations

and capitalized lease obligations as well as operating leases require or required periodic financial reporting of certain

subsidiary entities within Arbys or of individual restaurants which in many cases have not been prepared or reported

The Companies have negotiated waivers and alternative covenants with their most significant lessors which substitute

consolidated financial reporting of Arbys for that of individual subsidiary entities and which modi restaurant level

reporting requirements for more than half of the affected leases Nevertheless as of January 2011 we were not in

compliance and remain not in compliance with the reporting requirements under those leases for which waivers and

alternative financial reporting covenants have not been negotiated However none of the lessors has asserted that we

are in default of
any

of those lease
agreements

We do not believe that such non-compliance will have material

adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations

Derivatives

In connection with the redemption of the Wendys 6.25% senior notes discussed above under Credit

Agreement we cancelled four interest rate swaps
with notional amounts totaling $175.0 million that had swapped

the fixed rate interest rates on these senior notes for floating rates We recognized gain on the cancellation of

$1.9 million in the second
quarter

of 2010 which is included in Interest expense

Other Revolving Credit Facilities

In December 2009 and as amended in February and August 2010 AFA entered into revolving loan

agreement
with Arbys The terms of this

agreement
allow AFA to have revolving loans of up to $14.0 million

outstanding with an expiration date of March 2012 and bearing interest at 7.5% per annum In February 2011 the

maximum principal amount was reduced to $11.0 million As of January 2011 the outstanding revolving loan

balance was $4.5 million

Convertible Notes

Wendy s/Arby

On June 17 2010 Wendys/Arbys repurchased the remaining 5% convertible notes for $2.1 million

including accrued interest The convertible notes were repurchased at price of 100% of their principal amount plus

accrued interest
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the expected payments
under our outstanding contractual obligations at

January 2011

Fiscal Years

2011 20122013 20142015 After2Ol5 Total

Long-term debt $114.9 $228.5 $438.7 $1316.1 $2098.2

Sale-leaseback obligations 14.9 30.2 30.5 137.5 213.1

Capitalized lease obligations 15.9 25.1 26.8 108.7 176.5

Operating leases 150.5 272.1 233.3 1032.9 1688.8

Purchase obligations 90.4 70.1 56.8 77.7 295.0

Othere 4.1 0.7 4.8

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 390.7 626.7 786.1 2672.9 4476.4

Corporate long-term debt 1.4 11.3 12.7

Corporate operating leases 16 0.7 2.3

Other Corporate 0.2 0.1 0.3

Total Wendys/Ashys $393.9 $638.8 $786.1 $2672.9 $4491.7

Excludes sale-leaseback and capitalized lease obligations which are shown separately in the table The table above

includes interest of approximately $709.4 million for Wendys/Arbys We have estimated the interest on our

variable-rate debt based on current base rates the current inteiest rate margin and the amortization schedule in

our Credit Agreement The table above also reflects the effect of interest rate swaps
entered into in 2009 which

lowered our interest rate on our 6.200o Wendys senior notes These amounts exclude the effects of the original

issue discount on our Senior Notes and the fair value adjustments related to certain debt assumed in the

Wendys Merger

Should our strategic alternatives fot Arbys result in sale of the brand we may be required to utilize portion of

the sale proceeds to reduce the Term Loan

Excludes related sublease rental receipts of $8.1 million on sale-leaseback obligations and $2.7 million on

capitalized lease obligations The table above includes interest of approximately $91.2 million for sale-leaseback

obligations and $89.8 million for capitalized lease obligations

Represents the minimum lease cash payments Excludes related sublease rental receipts of $85.5 million for

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and additional sublease rental receipts for Wendys/Arbys of$1.9 million

Includes $215.0 million remaining for beverage purchase requirements for Wendys and Arbys restaurants

$2.8 million for advertising commitments ç3 $33.5 million for capital expenditures and $43.7 million

of other purchase obligations

Represents $0.3 million for funding of QSCC $3.0 million for funding
related to SSC $1.4 million

for potential additional capital investment requirements and $0.1 million and $0.3 million in severance for

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and Wendys/Arbys respectively

Excludes
obligations for uncertain income tax positions of $26.3 million and $36.4 million for Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants and Wendys/Arbys respectively We are unable to predict when and if cash payments on any of

this accrual will be required

Capiral E.vpenairurcs

In 2010 cash capital expenditures amounted to $148.0 million and non-cash capital expenditures consisting of

capitalized leases and certain sale-leaseback obligations amounted to $5.7 million In 2011 we expect that cash

capital expenditures will amount to approximately $184 million principally relating to remodeling approximately

100 Wendys company-owned restaurants ongoing maintenance capital expenditures for our company-owned

restaurants the
opening of an estimated 21 new Wendys company-owned restaurants and various capital

projects We have $18.2 million of outstanding commitments for capital expenditures as of January 2011 of which

we expect $14.5 million to be
paid in 2011
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Div/dent/s

Wendy s/A rby

On March 15 2010 June 15 2010 and September 15 2010 Wendys/Arbys paid quarterly cash dividends nf

$0015 per
share nn irs Common Stock aggregaring $19.3 million On December 15 2010 Wendys/Arbys paid

quarrerly
cash dividend of $0.02 per

chare nn irs nmmon Stnck aggregaring to $8.3 million During the 701 first

quarrer Wendys/Arhy declared dividends of $0.02 per
share to be paid on March 15 2011 to shareholders of

record as of March 2011 If Wendys/Arbys pays tegular quarterly cash dividends for the remainder of 2011 at the

same rate as declared in our 2011 first
quarter Wendys/Arbyss total cash requirement for dividends for all of 2011

would be approximately $33.5 million based on the number of shares of its Common Stock outstanding at

February 25 2011 Weudys/Aibys currently intends to continue to declare and
pay quarterly cash dividends

however there can be no assurance that
any quarterly dividends will be declared or paid in the future or of the

amount or timing
of such dividends if any

1Yendy VA rby Restaurants1

During 2010 $443.7 million of intercompany dividends were paid to Wendys/Arbys During 2009

$115.0 million of dividends were paid to Wendys/Arbys No dividends were paid to Weudys/Arhys during

2008 Dtitiog the fourth
quarter

of 2008 Wendys advanced an aggregate
of $155.0 million to Wendys/Arbys

which were tised to fund $150.2 million of capital contributions to Arbys Arbys used portion of these capital

contributions to prepay the term loan tinder the prior Arbys credit
agreement in an aggregate principal amount of

$143.2 oiilliou These advances do not hear interest and Wendys/Atbys does not currently intend to repay
such

advances

As of Jaouary 2011 uodei the terms of the Ciedir Agreement there was $25.6 million available f6r the

payment of dividends directly to Wendys/Arbys

Stock Rep urchases

Wendy VArby

As ofJaouary 2010 our Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase ofup ro total of$125.0 million

of our Common Stock through January 2011 when and if market conditions warrant and to the extent legally

permissible On January 27 2010 Match 22 2010 and May 27 2010 out Boatd of Directors aurhori7ed the

iepurchase of
tip

to an additional $75.0 million $50.0 million and $75.0 million respectively of our Common Stock

thtoiigh January 2011 when aod if market conditions warrant and to the extent legally permissible As of

January 2011 Weudys/Arhys had repurchased 52.3 million shares with an aggregate purchase price of

$245.5 million excluding commissions of $1.0 million

On November 11 2010 our Board of Directors aurhoriaed the extension of the current stock repurchase

program through Januaiy 2012 and authorized the repurchase of
up to an additional $170.0 million of otir

Common Stock bringing
the total amount currently authorized to approximately $250.0 million The stock

repurchase program will allow Weodys/Arbys to make repurchases as market conditions warrant and to the extent

legally permissible

Guarantees and Other Contingencies

Year End

2010

Lease guarantees
and

contingent tent on leases 81.3

Loan guarantees 13.0

Letters of credit 32.4

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 126.7

Letters of credit 0.7

Total Wendys/Arbys $127.4
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Wench is contingently liable for cci tam leases and other obligations primarily Ii om company owned restaurant

locations noss operated by franchises amounring to $67.3 million as of Januaiy 2011 These leases extend

through 2030 In addition Wendys is contingently liable for certain leases which have been assigned to unrelated

third parties who have indemnified Wend1 against future liabilities arising tinder the leases of $9.8 million

These leases expire on various dates through 2021 RTM one of our subsidiaries guarantees the lease obligations

of eight R7 restaurants formerly operated by affiliates of RIM as of January 2u ii the Affiliate Lease

Guarantees Ceitain former stoekholdeis of RTM have indemnified us with respect to the Affiliate Lease

Guaiantees In addition RIM remains contingently liable for 10 leases for restaurants sold by RIM pi ioi to the

acquisition of RIM in 2005 if the respective purchasers do not make the reqtured lease payments collectively

with the Affiliate Lease Guarantees the Lease Guarantees The Guarantees which extend thiough 2020

could aggregate maximum of approximately $4.2 million as of January 2011

Wendys provided loan
guarantees to variotis lenders on behalf of fianehisees undei debt

arrangements foi new

store deselopment and equipment financing Recourse on the majotity of these loans is limited generally to

percentage
of the original loan amount or the current loan balaiee on indi\ iclual franchisee loans or an aggregate

minimum for the entire loan arrangement

WendyslAibys Restaurants and Corporate have outstanding letters of credit of $32.4 million and $0.7 million

iespectively with vai ious parties however otir management does not expect any material loss to result from these

letteis of credit because we do not believe performance will be required

Universal 5lJelfReçi3tration Statement

WiAuly VA rhy

In December 2008 Wendys/AWy filed univeisal shelf iegistiation statement with the Secutiries and

Lxchange Commission in connection svith the possible
ftittue offet and sale from time to time of an indetei minatc

amount of otir Common Stoclc pieferred stock debt seeuiiries and warrants to purchase any
of these

types
of

securities This
registration statement became effective automatically upon filing

Unless otherwise desei ihed in the

applicable prospectus supplement relating to any
offeted secuiiries WendyslArhys anticipates using the net proceeds

of each
offering

for
general corporate ptirposes ineltiding financing of acquisitions and capital expendituies additions

to working capital and
repayment

of
existing

debt WendyslArhys has not presently
made

any
decision to isstie

any

specific seetirities under this tiniversal shelf registi ation statement

Inflation and Changing Prices

We believe that inflation did not have significant
effect on our consolidated results of operations during the

icpoitiig pciiods since inflation rates gcncially
rcuiaiucd at ielativcly low levels

Seasonality

Oui iestaurant operations aie moderately impacted by seasonality Wendys restaurant revenues are normally

higher dtuing the summer months than during the winter months and Arbys restaurant reventies are somewhat

lowei in out fist qtiarter Because our btisinesses are moderately seasonal restilts foi any ftiture qtiarter will not

necessarily be indicative of the iesulrs that may be achieved for any other quarter or foi the full fiscal year

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The prepaiation of otir consolidated financial statements in conformity with accotinring principles generally

accepted in the United States of America
reqtnres tis to malce estimates and assumptions in applying our etitical

accounting policies that affect the teported amotints of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amotint of reventies and
expenses

during the reporting period Our estimates and asstimptions concern among othei things goodwill impairment

impairment of long lived assets Federal and state income tax tincermainties and allowance for dotibtftil accounts We

evaluate those estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis based on historical experience and on variotis other

factors which we believe ate reasonable under the circumstances
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We believe that the following represent our more critical estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of

our consolidated financial statements

Goodwill impairment

The Gompanies operate in two business
segments consisting

of two restaurant brands Wendys

restaurant operations and Arbys restaurant operations In 2010 the Arbys segment
included

company-owned restaurants and franchise
reporting units and the Wendys segment

included Wendys
North America and international restaurant reporting units As of January 2011 substantially all

Wendys goodwill of $866.0 million was associated with its North America reporting unit and Arbys

goodwill of$17.6 million relates entirely to the its franchise
reporting unit

We test goodwill for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the asset may be impaired using two step process Under the first step the fair value of the

reporting unit is compared with irs carrying
value

including goodwill If the fair value of the reporting

unit is less than its carrying value an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and

we must perform step two of the impairment test measurement Step two of the impairment test if

necessary requires the estimation of the fair value for the assets and liabilities of reporting unit in order

to calculate the
implied

fair value of the
reporting units goodwill Under step two an impairment loss is

recognized to the extent the
carrying amount of the

reporting units goodwill exceeds the implied fair value

of goodwill The fair value of the
reporting unit is determined by management and is based on the results

of estimates we made
regarding

the
present value of the anticipated cash flows associated with each

reporting unit the income approach and the indicated value of the reporting units based on

comparison and correlation of the Gompanies and other similar companies the market approach

The income approach which considers factors unique to each of our reporting units and related long range

plans that may not be comparable to other companies and that are not yet publicly available is dependent

on several critical management assumptions These assumptions include estimates of future sales growth

gross margins operaring costs income tax rares rerminal value growrh rares rapiral expendirliTes and rhe

weighted average cost of
capital discount rate Anticipated cash flows used under the income approach

are developed every
fourth

quarter in conjunction with our annual budgeting process
and also incorporate

amounts and
timing

of future cash flows based on our long range plan

The discount rates used in the income approach are an estimate of the rate of return that market

participant would expect of each reporting unit To select an appropriate rate for discounting the future

earnings stream review was made of short-term interest rate yields of long-term corporate and

government bonds as well as the typical capital structure of companies in the industry The discount rates

used for each
reporting unit may vary depending on the risk inherent in the cash flow projections as well

as the risk level that would be perceived by market participant terminal value is included at the end of

the projection period used in our discounted Lash flow analyses to refleLt the remaining value that eaLh

reporting unit is expected to generate The terminal value represents the present value in the last year of the

projection period of all subsequent cash flows into perpetuity The terminal value growth rate is key

assumption used in determining the terminal value as it represents the annual growth of all subsequent

cash flows into perpetuity

Under the market approach we apply the guideline company method in estimating fair value The

guideline company method makes use of market price data of corporations whose stock is actively traded

in public market The corporations we selected as guideline companies are engaged in similar line of

business or are subject to similar financial and business risks including the opportunity for growth The

guideline company method of the marker approach provides an indication of value by relating the equity

or invested capital debt plus equity of guideline companies to various measures of their earnings and cash

flow then applying such multiples to the business being valued The result of applying the guideline

company approach is adjusted based on the incremental value associated with controlling interest in the

business This control piemium represents
the amount new controlling shareholder would pay for the

benefits resulting from synergies and other potential benefits derived from controlling the enterprise

We performed our annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2010 Our assessment of

goodwill of the Wendys North America Restaurants in the fourth
quarter of 2010 indicated that there had

been no impairment and that the fair value of this
reporting unit of $3080 million was approximately
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12% in excess of its carrying value Our assessment of the Arbys franchisc rcstatrrant reporting unit in the

fourth
quarter

of 2010 indicated that there had hcen no impairmcnr and that its fair valuc significantly

cxceeded its cattying value

The estimated fait value of our tepotting tinits ate subject to changc as tcsult of many factors including

among othets any changes in ont busincss plans changing economic conditions and the competitive

environment Should actual cash flows and our futute estimates vary adversely from those estimates we use

we may be required to recognize goodwill impairment chaiges in future years

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets include out Wendys and Ar bys company owned restaurant assets their intangible assets

which include trademarks franchise
agreements

favorable leases and reacquired rights under fianchise

agreements
and certain prepaid assets

As of January 2011 the net carrying value of Wendys restaurant segment long lived tangible and

intangible assets were $1145.7 million and $1312.6 million which includes $903.0 million associated

with Wendys non amorti7ing trademarks respectively arrd Arbys restaurant scgment long lived tangible

and
intangible assets were $382.4 uulliurr and $2o.5 rrrillion respectively

We review long lived tangible and amortizing intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Wc assess the

recoverability of property and equipment and finite-lived other intangible assets by comparing the carrying

amount of the asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the

carrying amount of the long lived asset is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis then

impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds its fair value and is included in

Impairment of long-lived assets Orrr critical estimates in this review
process

include the anticipated

future cash flows of each of Wendys and Arbys company owned iesrauranrs used in assessing the

recoverability of their respective long lived assets

Nonamortizing intangible assets are tested for impairment at least annrrally by comparing their carrying

value to fair value any excess of carrying value over fair valtre ssould represent impairment and

corresponding charge would be recorded Our critical estimates in the determination of the fair value of

the non an-rortizing intangible assets include the anticipated frrttrre revcnrres of company owned and

franchised restaurants and the
resulting cash flows

Our restaurant impairment losses principally reflect impairment charges restrlting
from the deterioration in

operating performance of certain company owned restaurants Those estimates are or were subject to

change as result of many factors including among others any changes in our business plans changing

economic conditions and the competitive environment Shorrld actual cash flows and otrr future estimates

vary adversely from those estimates we used we may he
reqtured to rerogni7e

additional impairment

charges in future
years

Federal and state income tax uncertainties

We measure income tax uncertainties in accordance with two step process
of evaluating tax

position We first determine if it is more likely than not that tax position will he sustained upon

examination based on the rechoical merits of the position tax position that meets the more likely

than-not recognition threshold is then measured for
purposes

of financial statement recognition as the

largest amount that has
greater

than
fifty percent

likelihood of being reali7ed upon effective

settlement Wendys/Arbys has unrecognized tax benefits of $36.4 million and $39.1 million which if

resolved favorably would reduce their tax expense by $25.2 million and $27.1 million at January 2011

and January 2010 respectively Wendys/Arbys Restaurants has unrecognized tax benefits of

$26.2 million and $28.4 million which if resolved favorably would reduce their tax expense by

$17.1 million and $18.5 million at January 2011 and January 2010

We recognize interest accrued related to uncertain tax positions in Interest expense and penalties in

General and administrative expenses At January 2011 and January 2010 Wendys/Arbys had

$5.0 million and $4.3 million accrued for interest and $1.5 million and $1.0 million accrued for penalties

both respectively Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had $4.7 million and $4.1 million accrued for interest and

$1.2 million and $0.8 million accrued for penalties both respectively
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Wendys/Arbys participates in the Internal Revenue Service the IRS Compliance Assurance Program

CAP As
part

of CAP tax years are audited on contemporaneous
basis so thar all or most issues are

resolved prior to rbe filing of the tax return As such our December 28 2008 and January 2010 rax

returns along with the Wendys pre-merger tax returns have been settled Our U.S Federal income tax

returns for 2007 and September 29 2008 are not currently under examination Certain of the Wendys

Arbys state income tax returns from its 1998 fiscal
year

and forward remain subject to examination We

believe that adequate provisions have been made for
any liabilities including interest and penalties that

may result from the completion of these examinations

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The need for an allowance for doubtful accounts on receivables related to franchisee
obligations consisting

primarily of royalties franchise fees and rents is reviewed on specific
franchisee basis based upon past

due balances and the financial strength of the franchisee If
average

sales or the financial health of

franchisees were to deteriorate it could result in an increase to the allowance for doubtful accounts related

to franchise receivables In 2010 Wendys and Arbys franchisee related accounts receivable and notes

receivable and estimated reserves for uncollectibility have increased significantly
and may continue to

increase as result of the deteriorating financial condition of some of our franchisees For the
year ended

January 2011 the Companies recorded $9.7 million in provision for doubtful accounts which related

to the Wendys and Arbys franchisees

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Certain statements the Companies make under this Item 7A constitute forward-looking statements under the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 See Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and

Projections in Part preceding Item

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes changes in commodity prices changes in the fair value of

our investments and
foreign currency fluctuations primarily related to the Canadian dollar In the normal course of

business we employ established policies
and

procedures to manage our
exposure

to these changes using financial

instruments we deem
appropriate

Interest Rate Risk

Our objective in managing our exposure to interest rate changes is to limit the
impact on our earnings

and cash

flows Our policy is to maintain target over time and subject to market conditions of between 50o and 75% of

Long-term debt as fixed rate debt As of January 2011 WendysArbys and WendysArbys Restaurants long-

term debt including current portion aggregated $1572.4 million and $1559.7 million respectively Long-term
debt

consisted of $868.6 million and $s55.9 million of fixed-rate debt at WendysArbys and WendysArbys

Restaurants respectively and $495.2 million of variable interest rate debt and $208.6 million of
capitalized

lease and

sale-leaseback obligations for both companies The Companies variable interest rate debt consists of $495.2 term loan

borrowings under variable-rate senior secured term loan facility due
through 2017 the Term Loan The interest

rate on the Term Loan is based on the Eurodollar rate which has floor of 1.50% plus 3.50% or base rate which

has floor of 2.50% plus 2.50% Since the inception of the Term Loan and as of January 2011 we have elected

to use the Eurodollar Rate which resulted in an interest rate on the Term Loan of 5.00% as of January 2011

Consistent with our policy we entered into several outstanding interest rate swap agreements the Interest

Rate Swaps during the third
quarter

of 2009 and the first
quarter

of 2010 with notional amounts totaling

$186.0 million and $39.0 million respectively that swap the fixed rate interest rates on the Wendys 6.20% senior

notes for floating rates The Interest Rate Swaps are accounted for as fair value hedges At January 2011 the fair

value of our Interest Rate Swaps was $9.6 million and was included in Deferred costs and other assets and as an

adjustment to the carrying amount of the Wendys 6.20o senior notes Our policies prohibit the use of derivative

instruments for trading purposes
and we have procedures in place to monitor and control their use If

any portion of

the hedge is determined to be ineffective any changes in fair value would be recognized in our results of operations
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Commodity Price Risk

In our resraurant segments we purchase certain food producrs such as beef poultry pork and cheese that are

affected by changes in commodity prices and as result we are subject to variability in our food costs While price

volatility can occur which would impact profit margins there are generally alternative suppliers available Our ability

to recover increased costs through higher pricing is at times limited by the competitive environment in which we

operate Management monitors our exposure to commodity price risk

Arbys does not enter into financial instruments to hedge commodity prices or hold
any significant inventories

of these commodities In order to ensure favorable pricing for its major food products as well as maintain an adequate

supply of fresh food products we are members of purchasing cooperative along with our franchisees that negotiates

contracts with approved suppliers on behalf of the Arbys system These contracts establish pricing arrangements
and

historically have limited the variability of these commodity costs but do not establish
any

firm purchase

commitments by us or our franchisees

In 2010 Wendys along with our franchisees became members of purchasing cooperative established in

2009 that negotiates contracts with approved suppliers on behalf of the Wendys system
in order to ensure favorable

pricing for its major food products as well as maintain an adequate supply of fresh food products The purchasing

contracts which established pricing arrangements
and historically have limited the variability of these commodity

costs but did not establish any firm purchase commitments by us or our franchisees were transferred to the

purchasing cooperative in Januaty 2010

Foreign Currency Risk

Our
exposures

to foreign currency risk are primarily related to fluctuations in the Canadian dollar relative to the

U.S dollar for our Canadian operations Exposure outside of North America is limited to the effect of rate

fluctuations on royalties paid by franchisees We monitor these
exposures

and periodically determine our need for the

use of strategies intended to lessen or limit our exposure to these fluctuations We have
exposure to our equity

investment in Canadian restaurant real estate joint venture TimWen with Tim Hortons Inc investments in

Canadian subsidiaty and export revenues and related receivables denominated in foreign currencies which are

subject to foreign currency fluctuations Our Canadian subsidiaty exposures
relate to its restaurants and administrative

operations The exposure to Canadian dollar exchange rates on the Companies cash flows primarily includes imports

paid for by Canadian operations in U.S dollars and
payments

from the Companies Canadian operations to the

Companies U.S operations in U.S dollars and to lesser extent royalties paid by Canadian franchisees Revenues

from
foreign operations for the year ended Januaty 2011 represented 10o of our total franchise revenues and 80o

of our total revenues For the year ended January 2010 the same percentages were 9% and 7o
respectively Accordingly an immediate 10% change in foreign currency exchange ates versus the United States

dollar from their levels at Januaty 2011 and January 2010 would not have material effect on our consolidated

financial
position or results of operations

Equity
Market Risk

Our objective in managing our
exposure to changes in the market value of our investments is to balance the risk

of the
impact

of these changes on their earnings and cash flows with their expectations for long-term investment

returns
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Overall Market Risk

Our overall market risk as of January 2011 with the exception of our equiry investment in TimWen was not

material As of January 2011 and January 2010 our invesrment in TimWen was classified in the consolidated

balance sheets as follows in millions

Year End 2010

At Fair

At Value Carrying

Type Cost Value

Non-currenr equity investmenr $80.7 $98.6 $98.6

Year End 2009

At Fair

At Value Carrying

Li
Non-current equity investment $89.0 $97.5 $97.5

There was no assurance at January 2011 or January 2010 that the Companies would have been able to sell

this investment at this amount

The Companies believe that the fair value of their equity interest in TimWen is at least equal to its carrying value

as there have been no indications of its impairment

Wendys is partner in TimWen and our 50% share of the joint venture is accounted for in accordance with

the equity method of accounting

Sensitivity Analysis

Market risk
exposure for Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants is presented for each class of

financial instruments held by the Companies at January 2011 and January 2010 for which an immediate adverse

market movement would cause potential material impact on their financial position or results of operations We

believe that the adverse market movements described below represent the hypothetical loss to our financial position or

our results of operations and do not represent the maximum possible loss nor any expected actual loss even under

adverse conditions because actual adverse fluctuations would likely differ As of January 2011 we did not hold
any

market-risk sensitive instruments which were entered into for trading purposes As such the table below refleds the

risk for those financial instruments entered into as of January 2011 and January 2010 based upon assumed

immediate adverse effects as noted below in millions

Year End 2011

Interest Equity Foreign

Carrying Rate Price Currency

Value Risk Risk Risk

Non-current equity investment 98.6 $9.9 $9.9

Interest rate swaps 9.6 7.7

Long-term debt excluding capitalized
lease and sale-leaseback

obligations-variable rate 495.2 30.7

Long-term debt excluding capitalized lease and sale-leaseback

obligations-fixed rate

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 855.9 79.0

Corporate 12.7 0.7

Wendys/Arbys $868.6 79.7
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Year End 2009

Interest Equity Foreign

Carrying Rate Price Currency

Value Risk Risk Risk

Non-current equity investment 97.5 $9.8 $9.8

Interest rate swaps
1.6 5.6

1nng-rerm debt exrliiding capitali7ed lease and c2le-leaseback

obligations-variable rate 251.5 5.3

Long-term debt excluding capitalized lease and sale-leaseback

obligations-fixed rate

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 1035.3 36.6

Corporate 21.0 0.1

Wendys/Arbys 1056.3 $36.7

The sensitivity analysis of financial instruments held at Januaty 2011 and January 2010 assumes an

instantaneous one percentage point adverse change in market interest rates and an instantaneous 10% adverse change

in the foreign currency exchange rates versus the U.S dollar each from their levels at Januaty 2011 and January

2010 respectively and with all other variables held constant The equity price risk reflects the impact of 10%

decrease in the carrying value of our non-current equity investment in the tables above The sensitivity analysis also

assumes that the decreases in the equity markets and foreign exchange rates are other than temporaty

As of January 2011 the Companies had amounts of both fixed-rate debt and variable interest rate debt On
the fixed-rate debt the interest rate risk presented with

respect to long-term debt excluding capitalized lease and sale

leaseback obligations primarily relates to the potential impact decrease in interest rates of one percentage point has

on the fair value of $868.6 million of fixed-rate debt for Wendys/Arbys and $855.9 million of fixed-rate debt for

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and not on the Companies financial position or results of operations However as

discussed above under Interest Rate Risk the Companies have interest rate swap agreements on portion of their

fixed-rate debt The interest rate risk of fixed-rate debt presented in the tables above excludes the effect of the

$225.0 million for which we designated interest rate swap agreements as fair value hedges for the terms of the swap

agreements As interest rates decrease the fair market values of the interest rate swap agreements increase The interest

rate risk presented with
respect to the interest rate swap agreements represents the potential impact the indicated

change has on our results of operations On the variable interest rate debt the interest rate risk presented with
respect

to long-term debt excluding capitalized lease and sale-leaseback obligations represents
the potential impact an

increase in interest rates of one percentage point has on our results of operations related to our $495.2 million of

variable interest rate long-term debt outstanding as of January 2011 The Companies variable-rate long-term debt

outstanding as of Januaty 2011 had weighted average remaining maturity of approximately six years
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Boatd of Ditectots of

Wendys/Arhys Gtoup Inc

Atlanta Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc and subsidiaries the

Company as of January 2011 and January 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations

stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended January 2011 Our audits also

included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 These financial statements and financial

statement schedule are the responsibility of the Gompanys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material
respects

the financial position of

the Company as of January 2011 and January 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each

of the three
years

in the period ended January 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of Atnerica Also in our opinion such financial statement schedule when considered in relation to

the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material
respects

the information set

forth therein

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

Stares the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of January 2011 based on the criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission and our report
dated March 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting

Is Deloitre Touche LLP

Atlanta Georgia

March 2011
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts and notes receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Deferred income tax benefit

Advertising funds restricted assets

Total current acserc

Properties

Other intangible assets

Goodwill

Investments

Notes receivable

Deferred costs and other assets

512508

84258

754788

1551261

18415

81361

245157

76553

421486

1553987

11460

412293

170254

47042

2771126

412464

249547
7017

2163174

$4732654

591719

88004

23024

29212

66557

80476

878.992

1619248

1392883

881019

107020

39295

56959

$4975416

22127

103454

269090

80476

475147

1500784

13195

475538

174413

47042

2761433

380480

85971

5685

2336339

$4975416

WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In Thousands

January January

2011

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current
portion

of
long-term

debt

Accounts payable

Acctued
expenses

and other current liabilities

Advertising funds restricted liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income

Deferred income taxes

Other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders equity

Common stock $0.10 par value 1500000 shares authorized 470424 shares

issued

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Common stock held in treasury at cost

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Year Ended

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

Revenues

Sales $3045317 $3198348 $1662291

Franchise revenues 371097 382487 160470

3416414 3580835 1822761

Cosrs and expenses

Cost of sales 2610761 2728484 1415534

General and administrative 416606 452713 248718

Depreciation and amortization 182172 190251 88315

Goodwill impairment 460.075

Impairment of long-lived assets 69477 82132 19203

Facilities relocation and restructuring 11024 3913

Other operating expense net 5010 4255 653

3284026 3468859 2236411

Operating profit loss 132388 111976 413650
Interest expense 137229 126708 67009
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 26197
Investment income expense net 5261 3008 9438

Other than temporary losses on investments 3916 112741

Other income net 3Th2 1523 2710

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 21995 20133 581252
Benefit from income taxes 17670 23649 99294

Loss income from continuing operations 4325 3516 481958

Income from discontinued
operations net of income taxes 1546 2217

Net loss income 4325 5062 479741

Basic and diluted loss income per share

Continuing operations

Common stock .0 .01 3.06

Class common stock N/A N/A 1.26

Discontinued operations

Common stock N/A .01

Class common stock N/A N/A .02

Net loss incomt

Common stock .01 .01 3.05

Class common stock N/A N/A 1.24

Dividends
per

share

Common stock .07 .06 .26

Class common stock N/A N/A .26

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLI DATED STATEM ENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

In Thousands

Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Income Loss

Unrealized

Balance at January 2010

Comprehensive income

Ner loss

Change in unrealized gain on

available forsale securiries

Change in unrecognized pension

loss

Foreign currency translation

adjustiticut

Comprehensive income

Cash dividends

Accrued dividends on nonvested

restricted stock

Repurchases of common stock

Share-based compensation

expense

Common stock issued upon

exercises of stock optious

Restricted common stock issued

Other

Balance at January 2011

13704

38
167743

562 1840

2765 2765

_______
684

_________
438

$47042 $2771126 $412464 $249547

Unrecognized

Pension Loss Total

$1048 $2336339

4325

59

95 95

12666 12666

8377

27621

38
167743

1278

1122

953 $2163174

Balance at December 28 2008

Comprehensive income

Net income

Change in unrealized gain on

available-for sale securities

Comprehensive income

Cash dividends

Accrued dividends on nonvested

restricted stock

Repurchases of common stock

Share-based compensation

Common stock issued upon exercises

of stock options

Restricted common stock issued

Non-controlling interests primarily

distributions

Other

Balance at January 2010

129

_______
376 230

$47042 $2761433 $380480 $85971

Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Income Loss

Unrecognized

Pension Loss Total

$1048 $2383445

5062

49

25
78720

15294

1966

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Common
Additional

Paid-in

Common
Accumulated Stock Held

Gain on

Avallable-

for-Sale

Foreign

Currency

Translation

Stock Capital Deficit in Treasury Securities Adjustment

$47042 $2761433 $380480 85971 $59 4696

4325

59

27621

13704

7970

Common Unrealized

Additional

Stock

Held

Gain on

Avallable

Foreign

Currency

Common Paid-in Accumulated in for-Sale Translation

Stock Capital Deficit Treasury Securities Adjustment

$47042 $2753141 $357541 $05944 $108 $42313

Foreign currency
translation

adjustment

5062

49

37617 37617

42630

27976 27976

expense 15294

25
78720

6686

1777

4720
1777

$59 4696

129

______
146

$1048 $2336339
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITYCONTINUED
In Thousands

Balance at December 30 2007

Comprehensive loss

Ner loss

Chaoge in unrealized
gain on

available for sale

secorities

Change in unrealized loss on

cash flow hedges

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Unrecognized pension loss

Comprehensive loss

Cash dividends

Accrued dividends on nonvested

resrricred srock

Distribution of DeerfIeld

Capital Corp common

srock

Share-based compensation

expense

Wendys Inrernarional Inc

merger-relared rransactions

Conversion of Class common

stock ro Class common

stock

Value of Wendys stock oprions

converred into Wendys/

Arbys Group Inc

options

Common stock issuance related

ro merger of Triarc

Companies Inc and

Wendys Inrernational

Inc

Common stock issued upon

exercises of stock options

Restricted common stock

issued

Common stock withheld as

payment for withholding

taxes on capital
stock

transactions

Non-controlling interests

primarily distributions

Dther

Balance at December 28 2008

804

______
441

$1048 $2383445

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Retained

Class

Common

Class Additional

Common Paid-in

Earnings/

Accumulated
Stock Stock Capital Deficit

2955 6402 292080 $167267

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Loss

UurealiLcd

Loss
Common Gain on Unrealized Foreign

Stock Available Loss on Currency Unrecognized

Held in for-Sale Cash Flow Translation Pension

______
Treasury Securities Hedges Adjustment Loss Total

$06774 $2104 $055 689 528 449832

479741 479741

2212 2212

155 155

43002 43002

520 520

520896

30538 30538

65 65

14464 14464

9127 9129

6410 6410

18495 18495

37678 2438519 2476197

45 60 15

3654 3627 26

2989 2989

804
577

________
132

$47042 $2753141 $357541 515944 108 542313
______ _________
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In Thousands

4730 6074
394 1879

1514 3987

15795 53474
29508 50947

226250 298798

101914
38141

10882

2357

608
352 237

497661 607507

474791 210371
173537 72927
27621 27976
16353 38399

156
491 1715

88315

19203

2452

2864

9129

8885

670

3103

6459
105357

1974
105276

2217
460075

3886

4187
140

8808

6135

511

73605

106989
51066

1322

9622
199785

18403
228

Year Ended

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

4325 5062 $479741

182172

69477

15016

13980

13704

11779

9694

9334

587
5201
9459

29779

1430

190251

82132

10400

14583

15294

15820

8169

12618

791
2484

8499
40127
1546

4317

Cash flows from
continuing operating

activities

Net loss income

Adjustments to teconcile net loss income to net cash provided by continuing

operating
activities

Depieciation and amorti7arion

Impairment of longlived assets

Accretion of long term debt

Distributions eceived ft om joint venture

Share based
compensation provision

Write off and amorriiation of deferi ed financing costs

Piovision for doubtful accounts

Non cash rcnr expense
Net recognition of deferied vendor incentive

Operating investment adjustments net see below

Equiry in earnings in joint venture

Deferred income tax benefit

Income ft om discon tinned
operations

Goodwill impairment

Orher ncr

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts and notes receivable

1nentories

Prepaid expenses
antI other current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued
expenses

and other eon ent liabilities

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities

Cash flows from continuing investing activities

Capital expenditures

Invesrnsenr activities net see belosv

Proceeds fions dispositions

Cost of acquisitions less cash acquired

Increase in cash from
merger

with Wendy
Cosr of merger with Wendys
Other net

Net cash used in provided by continuing investing

activities

Cash flows front continuing flnanciitg activities

Proceeds from long term debt

Repayments of notes payable and long term debt

Repurchases of common stock

Dividends paid

Defçi ted financing costs

Distributions to non controlling interests

Other net

Net cash used in piovided by continuing financing

activities

Net cash used in provided by continuing operations before effect of exchange rare

changes on cash

Effect of exchange rare changes on cash

Net cash used in piovided by continuing operations

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued opeiarions

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

147969
32158

5660

3123

112922 ç55o19 llb931

37753

177883

30538

1144
1113

194150 259393 172925

80822 502572

1611 2725

79211 505297

3668

79211 501629

591719 90090

$512508 $591719

17611

4123

13488

1514

11974

78116

90090
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWSCONTINUED
In Thousands

Year Ended

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

Detail of cash flows related to investments

Operating investment adjustments net

Income on collection of DFR Notes 4909
Other than

temporary losses on investnsents 3916 112741

Other net recogni7ed gains 292 1432 7384

5201 2484 105357

Investment activities net

Proceeds fiom sales of investments 1810 31289 136748

Decrease in restricted cash held for investment 26681 17724

Proceeds from repayment of DFR Notes 30752

nst of investments purchased and payments to enver shnrt positions in

securities 404 19829 103406

32158 38141 51066

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year
in continuing operations for

Interest $127753 86439 61192

Income taxes net of refunds 14262 14952 5094

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities

Total capital expenditures $153744 $108284 115419

Cash capital expenditures 147969 101914 106989

Non cash capitalized lease and certain sales-leaseback obligations 5r5 630 8q30

Non cash transactions

Value of equity consideration issued in
merger

with Wendys
Common stock N/A N/A $2476197

Stock options N/A N/A 18296

Assumption of debt N/A N/A 553438

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Membci of

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

Atlanta Gcoigia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LC and subsidiaries

wholly owned subsidiary of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc the Company as of January 2011 and January

2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations
invested

eqtuty and cash Bows for each of the three
years

in the period ended January 2011 These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United Stares Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the fiuancial statements are fiee of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we

engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial
reporting Our audits included consideration of

internal control over financial
reporting as basis for

designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal

control over financial
reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence
supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating
the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion
such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of

the Company as of January 2011 and January 2010 and the results of its opelations
and its cash Bows for each

of the three
years in the period ended January 2011 in confoimity with

accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America

Is Deloitte Touche LLP

Atlanta Georgia

March 2011
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WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In Thousands Except Share Information

January January

2011 2010

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 198686 538864

Accounts and notes receivable 83352 87607

Inventories 22694 23024

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 24032 27837

Deferred income tax benefit 45067 47556

Advertising funds restricted assets 76553 80476

Total current assets 450384 805364

Properties 1541853 1607858

tither intangible assets 1358574 1392M43

Goodwill 888921 886296

Investments 102406 102140

Notes receivable 12612 13599

Deferred costs and other assets 61947 55750

Total assets $4416697 $4863890

LIABILITIES AND INVESTED EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt 17047 16178

Accounts payable 81148 95839

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 244300 268181

Advertising funds restricted liabilities 76553 80476

Total current liabilities 419048 460674

Long-term debt 1542684 1485732

Due to Wendys/Arbys 30808 42915

Deferred income 11460 13195

Deferred income taxes 478472 502979

Other liabilities 157595 160488

Commitments and contingencies

Invested equity

Member interest $0.01 par value 1000 shares authorized one share issued and

outstanding

Other capital 2423459 2854775

Accumulated deficit 499500 496862
Advances to Wendys/Arbys 155000 155000
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 7671 5006

Total invested equity 1776630 2197907

Total liabilities and invested equity $4416697 $4863890

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSI DIARI ES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In Thousands

Year Ended

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

Revenues

Sales $3045317 $3198348 $1662291

Franchise revenues 371097 382487 160470

3416414 3580835 1822761

Costs and
expenses

Cost of sales 2610761 2728480 1415530

General and administrative 408419 442686 213161

Depreciation and amortiaation 180310 188506 85058

Cnndwill impairment 460075

Impairment of long-lived assets 69477 79956 9580

Facilities relocation and restructuring 8016 3221

Other operating expense net 5147 3239 652

3274114 3450883 2187277

Operating profit loss 142300 129952 364516
Interest expense 136193 125392 66925
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 26197
Other income expense net 2667 2973 3234

Loss income before income taxes 17423 1587 428207
Benefit from income taxes 14785 8062 63121

Net loss income 2638 9649 365086

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Balance at December 30

2007

Wendys International Inc

merger consideration net of

tax benefits

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Change in unrealized loss

on cash flow hedges

Foreign currency

translation

adjustment

Unrecognized pension

loss

Comprehensive loss

Advances to Parent

Capital contributions from

Parent

Share-based compensation

expense

Other

Balance at December 28

2008

Comprehensive income

Net income

Foreign currency

translation

adjustment

Comprehensive

income

Cash dividends to Parent

Share-based compensation

expense

Other

Balance at January 32010

Comprehensive income

Net loss

Foreign currency

translation

adjustment

Comprehensive

income

Cash dividends to Parent

Share-based compensation

expense

Other

Balance at January 2011

8770

4574
_________ ________

2958921 506511 155000

9649

443700

12790

406

$2423459 $499500 $155000

Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Income Loss

2638

12666 12666

10028

443700

11

7970 $299

12790

395

$1776630
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

WEN DYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INVESTED EQUITY
In Thousands

Advances to

Member Other Accumulated Wendys
Interest Capital Deficit Atbys

294735 $141425

2509813

365086

155000

150177

Unrealized

Gain Loss on Currency

Cash Translation Unrecognized

Flow Hedges Adjustment Pension Loss Total

$053 689 $084 153662

2509813

365086

153 153

43002 43002

138 138

408073

155000

150177

8770

__________ _________ _________ ________
4574

42313 322 2254775

9649

37617 37617

47266

115000 115000

13570 13570

2716 12 2704

2854775 496862 155000 4696 310 2197907

2638



180310

69477

15016

13980

12790

11763

9694

9334

1052

587
8032
9459

25752

504

4193
394

755

14184
27962

231254

147969
5660

3123

1263

497661

466461
16353

443700

21

188506

79956

10400

14583

13570

15796

8169

12618

40413

10417
791

14114

8499
68541

5553

7679
1.879

1121

52560
53841

321681

607507

209482
38399

115000

85058

9580

2452

2864

8770

3753

670

3103

17000
6459

5263

1974
62723

460075

4352

1367
140

19800

14532

64558

100965

17753

175521

150177

155000

659

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSI DIARI ES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In Thousands

Year Ended

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

Cash flows from continuing operating activities

Net loss income 2638 9649 $365086

Adjustments ro reconcile net loss income to net cash provided by continuing

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of long-lived assets

Accretion of long-term debt

Distributions received from joint venture

Share-based compensation provision

Write-off and amortization of deferred financing costs

Provision for doubtful accounts

Non-cash rent expense

Tax sharing payable to Wendys/Arbys net

Tax sharing payments to Wendys/Arbys

Net recognition of deferred vendor incentive

Other operaring transacrions with Wendys/Arbys

Equity in earnings in joint venture

Deferred income tax benefit

Goodwill impairment

Other net

Changes in
operating assets and liabilities

Accounts and notes receivable

Inventoriec

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued
expenses

and other current liabilities

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities

Cash flows from continuing investing activities

Capital expenditures 101914 105924
Proceeds from dispositions 10882 1322

Cost of acquisitions less cash acquired 2357 9622
Increase in cash from merger with Wendys 199785

Other net 192 129

Nt Lrsh used ii piuvided by cuntinuing investiug

activities 144169 93197 85432

Cash flows from continuing financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayments of notes payable and long-term debt

Deferred financing costs

Capjral contributions from Wendys/Arbys

Dividends/advances to Wendys/Arbys

Other net

Net cash used in provided by continuing financing

activities 428874 244626 163250

Net cash used in provided by continuing operations before effect of exchange rate

changes on cash 341789 473110 23147

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 1611 2725 4123

Net cash used in provided by continuing operations 340178 475835 19024

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations 51
Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 340178 475784 19024

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 538864 63080 44056

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year $198686 $538864 63080
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WEN DYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARI ES

CONSOLI DATED STATEM ENTS OF CASH FLOWSCONTINUED
In Thousands

Year Ended

January January Decembcr 28
2011 2010 2008

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow infotmation

Cash paid duting the yeat in continuing opetations fot

Intetest $126589 84085 60446

Income taxes net of tefunds 9830 9529 3130

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities

Total capital expenditutes $153744 $108284 114354

Cash capital expenditutes 147969 101914 105924

Non cash capitalized lease and certain sales-leaseback obligatiods 5775 6370 8430

Non-cash transactions

Value of equity consideration issued in merger with Wendys
Common stock N/A N/A $2476197

Stock options N/A N/A 18296

Assumption of debt N/A N/A 553438

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Crnporate Structure

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Wendys/Arbys and togerher with its subsidiaries the Company is

Delaware corporation On September 29 2008 the Closing Date the Company completed the
merger the

Wendys Merger with Wendys International Inc Wendys and our former
corporate name Triarc Companies

Inc Triarc was changed to Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Wendys/Arbys is the
parent company of its lOO0o

owned subsidiary holding company Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC Wendys/Arbys Restaurants The

principal lOO0o owned subsidiaries of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants as of January 2011 are Wendys and Arbys

Restaurant Group Inc Arbys and their subsidiaries Wendys and Arbys are the franchisors of the Wendys and

Arbys restaurant systcms The opetations of Wendys and Arbys each
represent reportable business segment

Except where otherwise indicated these notes relate to the consolidated financial statements for both Wendys

Arbys and WendysArbys Restaurants the Companies References herein to WendysArbys corporate

Corporate represents WendysArbys parent company functions only and their effect on the consolidated results

of operations and nancial condition

In Januaiy 2011 WendysArbys announced that it is exploring strategic
alternatives for Arbys including

sale of the brand This
process is in its early phases and there is no assurance as to any particular outcome To address

uncertainties for our employees created hy this
process WendysArbys has implemented retention program the

payment of portion of this
program

is conditioned on the sale of Arbys While the
process is pending Arbys will

continue to execute its growth initiatives Arbys did not meet the financial
accounting requirements to be classified as

held for sale or to be reported as discontinued operations as of January 2011 As of January 2011 the carrying

value of our Arbys business defined as total assets less all non-intercompany liabilities was $164000 See Notes

and 27 for further
segmcnt information

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP and include all of each Companies

subsidiaries The accounts of Wendys are included subsequent to the Closing Date All intercompany balances and

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

The Companies participate in three national advertising funds established to collect and administer funds

contributed for use in advertising and promotional programs
for company-owned and franchised stores The revenue

expenses and cash flows of all such advertising funds are not included in the Companies consolidated statements of

operations or consolidated statements of cash flows because the contributions to these advertising funds are designated

for specific purposes and the Companies act as an agent in substance with regard to these contributions The assets

and liabilities of these funds are reported as Advertising funds restricted assets and Advertising funds restricted

liabilities

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

20d liahiliries ar rhe dare nf the rnncnlidated financial smarements and the
repnrted amount nfrevenues 2nd

expenses

during the reporting period Actual results could differ materially from those estimates

Fiscal Year

The Companies fiscal reporting periods consist of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to

December 31 and are referred to herein as the year
ended January 2011 or 2010 which consisted of 52

weeks the year
ended January 2010 or 2009 which consisted of 53 weeks and the

year ended

December 28 2008 or 2008 which consisted of 52 weeks
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WEN DYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Cash Equivalents

All
highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when acquired are considered cash

equivalents The Companies cash equivalents principally consist of cash in bank money market and mutual fund

money market accounts and are primarily nor in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured accounts

We believe that our vulnerability to risk concentrations in our cash equivalents is mitigated by our policies

restricting the eligibility credit quality and concentration limits for our placements in cash equivalents and

insurance from the Securities Investor Protection Corporation of up to $500
per

account as well as supplemental

private insurance
coverage

maintained by substantially all of our brokerage firms to the extent our cash equivalents

are held in brokerage accounts

Accounts and Notes Receivable

Accounts and notes receivable consist primarily of royalties franchise fees rents due principally from

franchisees and credit card receivables The need for an allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed on specific

identification basis based upon past
due balances and the financial strength of the obligor As of January 2010

notes receivable non-current for Wendys/Arbys also included the series senior nores that Wendys/Arbys

received from Deerfield Capital Corp DFR the DFR Notes in connection with the sale of our interest in DFR

in 2007 See Note 3DFR Notes for additional information

Inventories

The Companies inventories are stared at the lower of cost or market with cost determined in accordance with

the first-in first out method and consist primarily
of restaurant food items kids meal toys

and
paper supplies

Investments

Investments in which the Companies have significant influence over the investees includes their 5Oo share in

partnership in Canadian restaurant real estate joint venture TimWen with Tim Hortons Inc THI Such

investments are accounted for on the equity method under which results of operations include their share of the

income or loss of the investees Invesrmenrs in limited partnerships and other non-current investments in which the

Companies do nor have significant influence over the investees are recorded at cost with related realized gains and

losses reported as income or loss in the period in which the securities are sold or orherwise disposed

The difference if any between the carrying value of
equity investments and the

underlying equity in the net

assets of each investee is accounted for as if the investee were consolidated subsidiaty Accordingly the carrying

value difference is amortized over the estimated lives of the assets of the invesree to which such difference would have

been allocated if the equity investment were consolidated subsidiary To the extent the carrying value difference

represents goodwill it is not amortized

The Companies review investments wirh unrealized losses and recognize investment losses currently for any

unrealized losses deemed to be other than temporary These investment losses are recognized as component of net

loss income The Companies consider such factors as the length
of rime the market value of an investment has been

below its carrying value the severity of the decline the financial condition of the investee and the prospect for future

recovery in the market value of the investment including the Companies ability and intent to hold the investments

for period of time sufficient for forecasted
recovery

The cost-basis component of investments represents original

cost less permanent reduction for
any

unrealized losses that were deemed to be other than temporary

Properties and Depreciation and Amortization

Properties are stated at cost including internal costs of employees to the extent such employees are dedicated to

specific restaurant construction projects less accumulated depreciation and amortization Depreciation and
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

amortization of properties is computed principally on the
straight-line basis using the following estimated useful lives

of the related major classes of properties to 15 years for office and restaurant equipment to 15 years for

transportation equipment ro 30 years for buildings and to 20 years for owned site improvements Leased assets

capitalized and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the terms of

the respective leases including periods covered by renewal options that the Companies believe they are reasonably

assured of exercising

The Companies review properties for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset group may not be recoverable If such review indicates an asset group may not be

recoverable an impairment loss is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of an asset

group to be held and used or over the fair value less cost to sell of an asstt to be disposed Asset groups are primarily

cnmpriced nf ur individual restaurant properties

Goodwill

Coodwill representing the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of the acquired net assets

is not amortized For goodwill purposes Wendys includes rwo reporting units comprised of its North America

company owned and franchise restaurants and ii international operations Arbys reporting units represent

company-owned restaurants and ii franchise restaurants Substantially all goodwill at January 2011 and

January 2010 was associated with Wendys North America restaurants The Companies test goodwill for

impairment annually during the fourth quarter or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the asset may be impaired by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit using both discounted cash flows and

market multiples based on earnings to the carrying value to determine if there is an indication that potential

impairment may exist

If the Companies deterniine that impairment may exist the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the

excess if any of the carrying amount of the goodwill over its implied fair value In determining the implied fair value

of the repoiring units goodwill the Companies allocate the fair value of reporting unit to all of the assets and

liabilities of that unit as if the unit had been acquired in business combination and the fair value of the reporting

unit was the price paid to acquire the reporting unit The excess of the fair value of the unit over the amounts asigned

to the assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill If the carrying amount of reporting units goodwill

exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess

Our fair value estimates are subject to change as result of many factors including among others any changes

in our business plans changing economic conditions and the
competitive environment Should actual cash Bows and

our future estimates vary adversely from those estimates we use we may be required to recognize
additional

goodwill

impairment charges in future
years

Other Intangible Assets and Deferred Costs

Aræortizing intangible assets are amortized on the straight-line basis using the following estimated useful lives of

the related classes of intangibles the terms of the respective leases including periods covered by renewal options that

the Companies are reasonably assured of exercising for favorable leases 19 to 21
years

for franchise agreements to

years for costs of computer sofrware 20 years for reacquired rights under franchise agreements and 20 years for

trademarks with definite life and distribution rights Trademarks acquired in the Wendys Merger have an indefinite

life and are not amortized

The Companies review intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount of the intangible asset may not be recoverable Indefinite lived intangible assets are also

reviewed for impairment annually If such reviews indicate the intangible asset may not be recoverable an impairment

loss is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the intangible asset

Deferred financing costs are amortized as interest expense over the lives of the respective debt using the effective

intetest rate method
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WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Derivative Instruments

The Companies derivative instruments are recorded at fair value Changes in the fair value of derivative

instruments that have been
designated as fair value

hedging instruments are recorded as an adjustment to the

underlying debt balance being hedged to the extent of the effectiveness of such hedging instruments Changes in the

fair value of derivative instruments that have been
designated as cash flow hedging instruments are included in the

Unrealized gain loss on cash flow hedges component of Accumulated other comprehensive income loss to the

extent of the effectiveness of such hedging instruments Any ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the

designated hedging instruments is included in results of
operations

Share-Based
Compensation

Wendys/Arbys has granted share-based compensation to certain employees of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

under several equity plans of Wendys/Arbys Wendys/Ashys Restaurants recognizes such share based compensation

as capital contributions from Wendys/Arbys Wendys/Arbys Restaurants has not gianted any
of its member

interests as share-based compensation

The Companies measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of
equity instruments

which include
grants of employee stock

options
and restricted stock based on the fair value of the award at the date of

grant
Share-based compensation expense is recognized net of estimated forfeitures determined based on historical

experience The Companies recognize compensation costs ratably over the
equisite service period

for each separately

vesting portion of the award unless the awards are subject to performance conditions in which case they recognize

compensation expense over the requisite service period to the extent performance conditions are considered probable

The Companies determine the grant-date fair value of stock options using Black Scholes Merton option pricing

model the Black-Scholes Model unless the awards are subject to market conditions in which case we use Monte

Carlo simulation model The Monte Carlo simulation model utilizes multiple input variables to estimate the

probability that market conditions will be achieved

Foreign Currency Translation

Substantially all of the Companies foreign operations are in Canada where the functional
currency

is the

Canadian dollar Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are prepared in their functional currency then translated

into United States dollars Assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date and

revenues costs and expenses are translated at monthly average exchange rate Net gains or losses resulting from the

translation adjustment are charged or credited directly to the Foreign currency translation adjustment component of

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Income Taxes

The Companies record income tax liabilities based on known obligations and estimates of potential obligations

deferred tax asset or liability is recognized whenever there are future tax effects from temporary differences between

the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating

loss capital loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates

expected to apply to the
years in which those differences are expected to be recovered oi settled When considered

necessary
the Companies record valuation allowance to reduce the carrying amount of deferred tax assets if it is

more likely than not all or portion of the asset will not be realized

The Companies apply recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition

and measurement of potential tax benefits associated with tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax

returns Uncertain Tax Positions two-step process of evaluating tax position is followed whereby we first

determine if it is more likely than not that tax position will be sustained upon examination including resolution of
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WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

any
related appeals or litigation processes

based on the technical merits of the
position tax position that meets the

more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is then measured for
purposes

of financial statement recognition as the

largest amount of benefit that is greater
than 50 percent likely of being realized upon being effectively settled

Interest accrued for Uncertain Tax Positions is charged to Interest expense Penalties accrued for Uncertain

Tax Positions are charged to General and administrative

Revenue Recognition

Sales includes revenues recognized upon delivery of food to the customer at company-owned restaurants and

revenues for shipments of bakery items and kids meal promotional items to our franchisees and others Sales

excludes sales taxes collected from the Companies customers

Franchise revenues includes royalties franchise fees and rental income Royalties from franchised restaurants

are based on percentage
of net sales of the franchised restaurant and are recognized as earned Initial franchise fees

are recorded as deferred income when received and are recognized as revenue when franchised restaurant is opened

as all material services and conditions related to the franchise fee have been substantially performed upon the

restaurant opening Renewal franchise fees are recognized as revenue when the license
agreements are signed and the

fee is paid since there are no material services and conditions related to the renewal franchise fee Franchise

commitment fee deposits are forfeited and recognized as revenue upon the termination of the related commitments to

open new franchised restaurants Rental income from locations owned by the Companies and leased to franchisees is

recognized on straight-line basis over the respective operating lease terms

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes food and paper restaurant labor and occupancy advertising and other operating costs

Vendor Incentives

The Companies receive incentives from their vendors These incentives are recognized as earned and are

generally classified as reduction of Cost of sales

Advertising Costs

The Companies incur various advertising costs including contributions to certain advertising cooperatives

based upon percentage of net sales by company-owned restaurants All advertising costs are expensed as incurred

with the exception of media development costs that are expensed beginning in the month that the advertisement is

first communicated and are included in Cost of sales

Self- insurance

We are self-insured for most workers compensation health care claims general liability and automotive

liability losses We provide for their estimated cost to settle both known claims and claims incurred but not yet

reported Liabilities associated with these claims are estimated in part by considering the frequency and severity of

historical claims both specific to us as well as industry-wide loss experience and other actuarial assumptions We

determine casualty insurance obligations with the assistance of actuarial firms Since there are many estimates and

assumptions involved in recording insurance liabilities and in the ease of workers compensation significant period

of time before ultimate resolution of claims differences between actual future events and prior estimates and

assumptions could result in adjustments to these liabilities
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WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Leases

We operate restaurants that are located on sites owned by us and sites leased by us from third
parties At

inception each lease is evaluated to determine whether the lease will be accounted for as an operating or capital lease

based on lease terms When
determining

the lease term we include
option periods for which failure to renew the lease

imposes significant economic detriment The primary penalty to which we may be subject is the economic

detriment associated with the existence of unamortized leasehold improvements which might
be

impaired
if we

choose not to exercise the available renewal options

For operating leases minimum lease payments including minimum scheduled rent increases are recognixed as

rent expense ou straight line basis Straight-Line Rent over the applicable lease terms Lease terms are generally

initially for 20 years and in most cases provide for rent escalations and renewal
options

The term used for Straight-

Line Rent expense is calculated initially from the date we obtain
possession

of the leased
premises through the

expected lease termination date We expense rent from possession date to the restaurant opening date There is

period under certain lease
agreements

referred to as rent holiday Rent Holiday that generally begins on the

possession date and ends on the rent commencement date During the Rent Holiday period no cash rent payments

are typically due under the terms of the lease however expense is recorded for that period on straight-line basis

consistent with the Straight-Line Rent policy

For leases that contain rent escalations we record the rent payable during
the lease term as determined above

on the straight line basis over the term of the lease including the rent holiday period beginning upon possession of

the premises and record the excess of the Straight-Line Rent over the minimum tents paid as deferred lease liability

included in Other liabilities Certain leases contain provisions referred to as contingent rent Contingent Rent
that require additional rental

payments
based upon restaurant sales volume Contingent Rent is expensed each period

as the liability is incurred

Fa\ orable and unfavorable lease amounts when we purchase restaurants are recorded as components of Other

intangible assets and Other liabilities respectively and are amortixed to Cost of salesboth on straight-line

basis over the remaining term of the leases When the expected term of lease is determined to be shorter than the

original amortization period the favorable or unfavorable lease balance associated with the lease is adjusted to reflect

the revised lease term and gain or loss recognized

Management makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding each new lease agreement lease renewal and

lease amendment including but not limited to property values market rents property lives discount rates and

probable term all ot which can impact
the classification and

accounting
for lease as capital or operating

the

rent holiday and escalations in payment that are taken into consideration when calculating straight-line rent the

term over which leasehold improvements for each restaurant are amortized and the values and lives of favorable

and unfavorable leases Different amounts of depreciation and amortization interest and rent expense
would be

reported if different estimates and assumptions were used

Acquisitions and Dispositions

Merger with Wendy International Inc

On September 29 2008 Wendys/Atbys completcd the Wcndys Mcrycr in an all-stock transaction in which

Wendys shareholders received fixed ratio of 4.25 shares of Wendys/Arbys Class common stock for each shate of

Wendys common stock owned

The
merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and Wendys/Arbys concluded that it

was the acquirer for financial accounting purposes
The total

merger
consideration was allocated to Wendys net

tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values with the excess recognized as

goodwill of which $42282 is deductible for tax purposes
The total consideration included

merger
related costs in

accordance with the applicable guidance effective as of the Closing Date
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The computation of the total
merger

consideration and the allocation of the consideration to the net tangible

and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed was finalized during the year ended January 2010 and is

presented in the table below

Value of shares of Wendys/Arbys common stock issued in exchange for Wendys common shares $2476197

Value of Wendys stock options converted into Wendys/Arbys options 18296

Wendys Merger costs 21028

Total merger
consideration 2515521

Net book value of Wendys assets acquired and liabilities assumed 712794

Excess of
merger consideration over net book value of Wendys assets acquired and liabilities

assumed 1802727

Changes to fair values of assets and liabilities and deferred income tax liability related to the merger

Increase /decrease in

Current assets

Accounts and notes receivable 694

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 985

Investments 64852

Properties 46527
Other

intangible assets

Trademark 900109
Franchise

agreements 353000
Favorable leases 121620

Computer software 9572

Deferred costs and other assets 377

Increase/decrease in

Accrued
expenses

and other current liabilities 1956

Long-term debt including current portion of $228 56337
Other liabilities 31378
Unfavorable leases 70762

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants deferred income tax liability 557995

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants total adjustments 933624

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants goodwill 869103

Decrease in Wendys/Arbys deferred income tax liability 5277

Wendys/Ashys goodwill 863826

In the Wendys Merger 376776 shares of Wendys/Arbys Class common stock were issued to Wendys
shareholders The equity consideration was based on the 4.25 conversion factor of the Wendys outstanding shares at

value of $6.57 per
share which represented the

average closing market price of Triarc Class common stock two

days before and after the
merger announcement date of April 24 2008 Immediately prior to the Wendys Merger

each share of Wendys/Arbys Class common stock was converted into Class common stock on one for one

basis the Conversion In connection with the May 28 2009 amendment and restatement of Wendys/Arbys

Certificate of Incorporation their former Class common stock is now referred to as Common Stock

Outstanding Wendys stock options were converted upon completion of the
merger into stock options with

respect to Wendys/Arbys Common Stock based on the 4.251 exchange ratio The value of Wendys stock options

that have been converted into Wendys/Arbys stock options of $18296 was calculated using the Black-Scholes

option pricing model as of April 24 2008
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The
acquired franchise agreements have weighted average amorti7ation period of approximately 21 years and

the acquired trademark has an indefinite life so there is no related amortization The acquired favorable and

unfavorable leases have weighted average amortization period of approximately 19 and 16 years respectively

The following unaudited supplemental pro forma consolidated summary operating data the As Adjusted for

2008 has been prepared by adjusting the historical data as set forth in the accompanying consolidated statements of

operations for the year ended December 28 2008 to give effect to the Wendys Merger and the Conversion as if they

had been consummated as of the beginning of 2007

2008

As Reported As Adjusted

Revenues

Sales $1662291 $3279504

Franchise revenues 160470 383137

Total revenues 1822761 3662641

Wendy s/A rby

Operating loss 413650 392854
Net loss 479741 492026
Basic and diluted loss

per
share

Common Stock 3.05 1.05

Class common stock 1.24 N/A

Wendy VA rby Restaurants

Operating loss 364516 343719
Net loss 365086 377371

This unaudited
pro

forma information is provided for informational
purposes only and does not purport to be

indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred if the
merger

had been completed on the date set forth

above nor is it necessarily indicative of the future operating results of the combined company The As Reported and

As Adjusted amounts include the effect of $84231 of Special Committee costs incurred by Wendys before the date

of the Wendys Merger in 2008 The As Adjusted loss per share data for 2008 assumes that the conversion of all

Class common stock to Common Stock occurred prior to 2008

Other Restaurant Acquisitions and Dispositions

During the year ended January 2011 the Companies received proceeds from dispositions of $5660

consisting of $2332 from the sale of two company-owned Wendys restaurants and 11 company-owned Arbys

restaurants to franchisees of the respective brands $1231 from the sale of land and building related to the exercise

of puiehase option by franchisee $227 from the sale of surplus properties and $1870 related to other

dispositions These sales resulted in net loss of $35 which is included in Depreciation and amortization

During the year ended January 2010 the Companies received proceeds from dispositions of $10882

consisting of $5045 from the sale of twelve Wendys units to franchisee $4529 from the sale of surplus properties

and $1308 related to other dispositions These sales resulted in net gain of $1203 which is included as an offset to

Depreciation and amortization

The Companies completed the acquisitions of the operating assets net of liabilities assumed of 45 Arbys

franchised restaurants including 41 restaurants in the California market in two separate transactions during fiscal

2008 The total net consideration for acquisitions including deal costs was $15861 consisting of $9622 of cash

and the assumption of $6239 of debt

Other restaurant acquisitions and dispositions during the periods presented were not significant
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DFR Notes

Wendy s/A rby

On December 21 2007 Wendys/Arbys sold irs 63.6% capiral inreresr in Deerfield Company LLC

Deerfield an asser managemenr business and subsidiary of the Company until irs sale ro DFR rhe Deerfield

Sale The Deerfield Sale resulted in non-cash proceeds to rhe Company aggregating approximately $134608

consisting of 9629 convertible preferred shares the Preferred Stock of subsidiary of DFR with an estimated

fair value of $88398 at the date of rhe Deerfield Sale and $47986 principal amount of the DFR Notes due in

December 2012 with an esrimated fair value of $46210 at the date of rhe Deerfield Sale

portion of the gain on the Deerfield Sale $6945 could not be recognized at the sale date due ro rhe

Companys approximare 15% at December 31 2007 conrinuing inrerest in DFR rhrough its ownership in the

Preferred Stock on an as-if converted basis and common stock of DFR it already owned Certain former officers of

Wendys/Arbys had an approximate 1.5o ownership interest in DFR as of December 30 2007 We accounted for

rhe DFR Preferied Stock as an available-for-sale debt security due to their mandatory redemption requirement

On March 11 2008 DFR stockholders approved
the one-for-one conversion of all its outstanding convertible

preferred stock into DFR common stock which converted the Preferred Stock we held into like number of shares of

DFR common stock On March 11 2008 our Board of Directors approved the distribution of our shares of DFR

common stock to our stockholders The distribution in the form of dividend which was valued at $14464 was

paid in 2008 to holders of record of our then outstanding Class common stock and Class common stock

In March 2008 in
response to unanticipated credit and liquidity events in the first quarter of 2008 DFR

announced that it was repositioning its investment portfolio to focus on agency-only residential mortgage-backed

securities and away from its principal investing segment to its asset management segment
with its fee based revenue

streams In addition it stated that during the first
quarter

of 2008 its portfolio was adversely impacted by

deterioration of the global ciedir markets and as result it sold $2800000 of its agency
and $1300000 of its

AAA-rated
non-agency mortgage-backed securities and reduced the net notional amount of interest rate swaps

used to

hedge portion of its mortgage-backed securities by $4200000 all at net after-tax loss of $294300 to DFR

Based on the events described above and their negative effect on the market price of DFR common stock we

concluded that the fair value and therefore the carrying value of our investment in the DFR common shares was

impaired As result as of March 11 2008 we recorded an other than temporary loss which is included in Other

than temporary losses on investments for the year ended December 28 2008 of $67594 without tax benefit as

described below which included $11074 of pre-tax unrealized holding losses previously recorded as of December 30

2007 and which were included in Accumulated other comprehensive income loss These common shares were

consideted available-for-sale securities due to the limited period they were to be held as of March 11 2008 the

Determination Date before the dividend distribution of the shares to our stockholders We also recorded an

additional impairment charge which is also included in Other than temporary losses on investments from

March 11 2008 through the March 29 2008 record date of the dividend of $492 As result of the distribution the

income tax loss that resulted from the decline in value of $68086 is not deductible for income tax purposes and no

income tax benefit was recorded related to this loss

Additionally from December 31 2007 through the Determination Date we recorded approximately $754 of

equity in net losses of DFR which are included in Other income expense net for the
year

ended December 28

2008 related to our investment in the common shares of DFR already owned discussed above which were accounted

for under the equity method through the Determination Date

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company recognized an allowance for collecrabiliry of $21227 to

reduce the then carrying amount of the DFR Notes to $24983 On June 2010 pursuant to March 2010

agreement berween Wendys/Arbys and DFR the Company received cash proceeds of $31330 including interest in

consideration for the repayment and cancellation of the DFR Notes The proceeds represented 64.1% of the $47986
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aggregate principal amnnnr of the DPR Notes We
recogniied

income of $4909 dining
the

year
ended January

2011 as the repayment proceeds exceeded the carrying value of the DFR Notes his gain is included in Investment

income expense net

Income Loss Per Share

Wendy i/A rhy i1

Basic income loss pet share for 2010 and 2009 was computed by dividing net income loss by the
weighted

average number of common shares outstanding Prior to the Wendys Merger the Company had Class common

stock which was converted to Class common stock and is now referred to as Common Stock as discussed in

Note

The number of shares used to calculate basic and diluted income loss per
share was as follows

2010 2009 2008

Common Stock

Basic shaies weighted average
shares outstanding 426247 466204 137669

Dilutive effect of stock options and iestiicted shares 483

Diluted shares 426247 466687 137669

Class common stock

Basic shares weighted avelage shares outstanding 47965

Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted shares

Diluted shares 47965

Represents the weighted average for the full year even though the Class common stock was converted into

Common Stock on September 29 2008

Basic loss per share for 2008 was computed by dividing the allocated loss for the Companys Class common

stock and the Companys Class common stock by the weighted average number of shares of each class Net loss for

2008 was allocated equally among each share of our Class common stock and Class common stock up until the

date of the Conversion subsequent to the Conversion net loss was only allocated to our Common Stock since

Class common stock no longer existed

Diluted income per share for 2009 was computed by dividing income for our Common Stock by the weighted

average number of shares outstanding plus the potential common share effect of dilutive stock options and of

testricred shares computed using the treasury
stock method Options and restricted shares to purchase 17194 of

common shares were excluded from the calculation of the 2009 diluted earnings per
share because they were anti-

dilutive Diluted loss per share for 2010 and 2008 was the same as basic loss per
share for each share since the

Company reported net loss and therefore the effect of all potentially dilutive securities on the net loss
per

share

would have been anridilutive The shares used to calculate diluted income per
share exclude

any
effect of the

Companys 5c convertible notes due 2023 the Convertible Notes which would have been anridilurive since the

after-tax interest on the Convertible Notes per
share obtainable on conversion exceeded the reported basic income

from continuing operations per
share

As of January 2011 our potential common shares consisted of the following outstanding stock options

which can be exercised into 28074 shares of our Common Stock and 3092 restricted shates of our Common

Stock

94



WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Loss per share in 2008 was computed by allocating the loss as follows

2008

Common Stock

Continuing operations $42 1599

Discontinued operations 1378

Net loss $420221

Class common stock

Continuing operations 60359
Discontinued operations 839

Net loss 59520

Cash and Receivables

Vi/endy YArby Restaurants

Year End

2010 2009

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash $194618 $301191

Cash equivalents 4068 237673

$198686 $538864

Restricted cash equivalents

Current

Trust for termination costs for former Wendys executives 919 964

Other 149 150

1068 1114

Non-current

Trust for rermination costs for former Wendys execiirives 3.562 5.352
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VVendy s/A rby

Year Fnd

2010 2009

Cash and cash
equivalents

Cash $508364 $353283

Cash
equivalents 4144 238436

$512508 $591719

Restricted cash equivalents

Current

Trust for termination costs for former Wendys executives 919 964

Other 149 150

1068 1114

Non current

Trust foi termination costs for former Wendys executives 3562 5352
Collateral stipporting letters of credit securing payments

due under

leases 685 890

4247 6242

Included in Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Included in Deferred costs and other assets

Corporate cash was $313746 and $52092 at 2010 and 2009 respectively

Corporate cash equivalents were $76 and $763 at 2010 and 2009 respectively

Wendy VArby Restaurants

Year End

2010 2009

Accounts and Notes Receivable

Current

Accounts receivable

Franchisees $73214 $74555

Other 15131 16693

88345 91248

Notes receivable

Franchisees 2328 2899

90673 94147

Allowance for doubtful accounts 7321 6540

$83352 $87607

Non-Current

Notes receivable

Franchisees $11932 9850

AFA Service Corporation 4458 5089

16390 14939

Allowance for doubtful accounts 3778 1340

$12612 $13599
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Wendy s/A rby

Year End

2010 2009

Accounts and Notes Receivable

Current

Accounts receivable

Franchisees $73214 74555

Other 16037 17090

89251 91645

Notes receivable

Franchisees 2328 2899

91579 94544

Allowance for doubtful accounts 7321 6540

$84258 88004

Non-Current

Notes receivable

DFR 46922
Franchisees 11932 9850

AFA Service Corporation 4458 5089

16390 61861

Allowance for doubtful accounts 3778 22566

$12612 39295

The following is an analysis of the allowance for doubtful accounts

Wendys/Arbys

2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of
year

Current 6540 887 166

Non-current 22.566 1.804 354

Provision for doubtful accounts

DFR Notes see Notes and 19 21227 21227
Franchisees 9694 8342 783

Other 173 113
Uncollectible accounts written off net of recoveries 6474 1754 274

Balance at end of
year

Current 7321 6540 887

Non-current 3778 22566 21804

Total $11099 $29106 $22691
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Pledged assets

The following is summary of assets pledged as collateral for certain debt

Year End 2010

Wendya
/Arbys Wendys

Restaurants Cnrpnrare IArbys

Cash and cash equivalents 172921 172921

Accounts and notes receivable including long-term 92336 92336

Inventories 21558 21558

Properties 497420 9183 506603

Goodwill 841156 841156

Other intangible assets 1233530 1233530

Other assets 24309 13 24322

$2883230 $9196 $2892426

Year End 2009

Wendys

/Arbys Wendys
Restaurants Cnrpnrare /Arbys

Cash and cash equivalents 515655 515655

Accounts and notes receivable
including long-term 98320 98320

Inventories 2l80 21870
Investments 4664 4664

Properties 520722 10812 531534

Other intangible assets 1256800 1256800

$2418031 $10812 $2428843

Investments

The following is summary of the carrying value of our investments

Year End

2010 2009

At equity Joint venture with THI 98631 97476

Cost investment 3775 4664

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 102406 102140

Cost investments 4817 4880

Total Wendys/Arbys $107223 $107020

Investment in joint venture with Tim Hortons Inc

Wendys is
partner

in TimWen and our 50% share of the joint venture is accounted for using the equiry

method of accounting Our equiry in earnings from this joint venture is included in Other operating expense

net The carrying value of our investment in TimWen exceeded the Companies interest in the underlying equity of

the joint venture by $60306 and $59446 as of January 2011 and January 2010 respectively primarily due to

purchase price adjustments recorded in the Wendys Merger net of accumulated amortization This purchase price

adjustment is being accounted for as if TimWen were consolidated subsidiary and is assumed to have been allocated

to net amortizable assets with an average
life of2l.2

years
from the Closing Date
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Presented below is activity related to our portion of TimWen included in our consolidated balance sheets and

consolidated statements of operations as of and for the years ended January 2011 and January 2010 and the

quarter ended December 28 2008

2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of period 97476 89771 41649

Purchase price adjustments 65455

97476 89771 107104

Equity in net earnings
for the period 12316 11334 2630

Amortization of purchase price adjustments 2857 2835 656

9459 8499 1974

Distributions 13980 14583 2864
Currency translation

adjustment included in Comprehensive

income loss 5676 13789 16443

Balance at end of
period 98631 97476 89771

Presented below is summary of financial information of TimWen as of and for the years and quarter ended

January 2011 January 2010 and December 28 2008 respectively in Canadian dollars The summary balance

sheet financial information does not distinguish between current and long-term assets and liabilities

Year End

January January

2011 2010

Balance sheet information

Properties C$78769 C$83078

Cash and cash equivalents 1639 75

Accounts receivable 4529 4989

Other 3001 3150

C$87938 C$91292

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities C$ 2169 C$ 2257
Other liabilities 9339 9081

Partners equity 76430 79954

C$87938 C$91292

Quarter ended

December 28
2010 2009 2008

Income statement information

Revenues C$38361 C$38471 C$9462

Income before income taxes and net income 24976 27532 6325

Wendy s/A rby

Investment in jurlique International Pty Ltd

We account for our approximately 11% investment in Jurlique International Pry Ltd Jurlique an

Australian manufacturer and multi-channel global marketer which sells high-end series of natural skincare products

in certain department stores duty-free shops company and franchised locations under the cost method since our

voting interest does not provide us the ability to exercise significant influence over Jurliques operational and financial

policies Jurlique was affected by the global economic recession leading to lower than anticipated sales and margins
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Based on financial results provided by the company which noted significant declines in operations in 2008 economic

conditions and our internal valuations of the company we determined that our investment in this company was mote

than likely not recoverable Therefore we recorded other than
temporary losses of $8504 in 2008 In the third

quartet
of 2010 the Company made an additional investment of $325 in Jutlique As of January 2011 based on

our review of the companys most recent results of operations and financial condition we concluded that the carrying

value of this cost investment was recoverable

Investment Activity

Wendys/A rbys

Proceeds from sales of current and non-current available-for sale seLurities and
gross

realized gains and
gross

realized losses on those transactions which are included in Investment income expense net are as follows

2010 2009 2008

Proceeds from sales $288 $32243 $87301

Gross realized gains $125 3035 4222

Gross realized losses 618 5809

$125 2417 1587

The following is summary of the components of the net change in unrealized gains and losses on

available-for-sale securities included in other comprehensive income loss

2010 2009 2008

Unrealized holding gains losses arising during the
year 101 $4505

Reclassifications of prior year
unrealized holding gains losses into net

income or loss 101 168 8206

Equity in change in unrealized holding losses gains arising duting
the

year _____ _____
201

101 67 3500

Income tax benefit provision 42 18 1288

59 49 2212

Properties

Year End 2010

Wendys/Arbys
Restaurants Corporate Weodys/Arbys

Owned

Land 467715 467715

Buildings and improvements 426958 426958

Office restaurant and transportation equipment 454768 24434 479202

Leasehold improvements 393904 3499 39/403

Leased

Capitalized leases 111622 111622

Sale-leaseback assets 123791
________

123791

1978758 27933 2006691

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 436905 18525 455430

$1541853 9408 $1551261
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Year End 2009

WendyJArby
Restaurants Corporate Wendys/Arbys

Owned

Land 467249 467249

Buildings and improvements 411671 411671

Office restaurant and transportation equipment 411391 24433 435824

Leasehold improvements 402755 3499 406254

Leased

Capitalized leases 110363 110363

Sale-leaseback assets 134648 134648

1938077 27932 1966009

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 330219 16542 346761

$1607858 11390 $1619248

These assets principally include buildings and imptovements

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following is summary of the components of goodwill
for each business segment

2010 2009

Arbys Wendys Arbys Wendys
Restaurant Restaurant Restaurant Restaurant

Segment Segment Total Segmtnt Segment Total

Balance at beginning of
year

Goodwill 499692 $868679 $1368371 499692 $841435 $1341127

Accumulated impairment

losses 482075 482075 482075
_________

482075

Total Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants goodwill 17617 868679 886296 17617 841435 859052

Corporate goodwill-related

deferred tax adjustment
________

5277 5277
________

5277 5277

Total Wendys/Arbys

goodwill 17617 863402 881019 17617 836158 853775

Changes in goodwill

WendysMerger 18195 18195

Currency translation

adjustment
_________

2625 2625
_________

9049 9049

Balance at end of year

Goodwill 499692 871304 1370996 499692 868679 1368371

Accumulated impairment

losses 482075 482075 482075 482075

Total Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants goodwill 17617 871304 888921 17617 868679 886296

Corporate goodwill-related

deferred tax adjustment
_________

5277 5277
________

5277 5277

Total Wendys/Arbys

goodwill 17617 $866027 883644 17617 $863402 881019
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The following is summary of the components of other intangible assets

Year End 2010 Year End 2009

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Net Cost Amortization Net

Non-amortizable

Wendys trademarks 903000 903000 903000 903000

Amortizable

Franchise
agreements 353771 38077 315694 352630 21148 331482

Favorable leases 134445 27867 106578 144683 20627 124056

Reacquired rights under

franchise
agreements 15716 4172 11544 17348 3721 13627

Computersoftware 39649 17891 21758 32150 11432 20718

$1446581 $88007 $1358574 $1449811 $56928 $1392883

Aggregate amortization expense

Actual for fiscal
year

2008 13466

2009 44837

2010 45720

Estimate for fiscal
year

2011 326S4

2012 31198

2013 30374

2014 29069

2015 26364

Thereafter 305915

Includes $11012 $7674 and $1096 of impairment charges related to other intangible assets in 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively which have been recorded as reduction in the cost basis of the related intangible asset

Wendys/Arbys included additional amortization
expense

in 2008 of $4 This additional
expense

did not occur

in
any

other
year presented
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10 Accrued Expenses

Accrued compensation
and related benefits

Insurance reserves

Accrued taxes

Accrued interest

Other

Accrued compensation
and related benefits

Insurance reserves

Accrued taxes

Accrued interest

Other

Wendys/Arbys
Restaurants

81864

54924

40952

34283

56158

$268181

Wendys/Arbys

81864

54924

38762

34569

58971

$269090

11 Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following

Senior Notes due in 2016

Term Loan due in 2017

Senior secured term loan

6.200o senior notes due in 2014

6.25% senior notes

Sale-leaseback obligations due through 2029

Capitalized lease obligations due through 2040

7% debentures due in 2025

Other

Less amounts payable within one year

Year End

2009

551779

251488

204303

193618

125176

89886

80081

5579

1501910

16178

1485732

18901

2100

5949

$1500784

Year End 2010

Wendys/Ashys
Restauranrs Corporate Wendys/Ashys

83036 111 83147

58811 58811

38081 1192 36889

29901 62 29963

34471 1876 36347

$244300 857 $245157

Year End 2009

Corporate

2190
286

2813

909

2010

553258

495226

217855

121884

86670

1559731

17047

12671

1368

$1553987

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants long-term debt

6.54% aircraft term loan due in 2013

5% convertible notes

Less amounts payable within one year

Total Wendys/Ashys long-term debt
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Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt excluding the effect of purchase accounting adjustments

discounts and interest rate swaps as of January 2011 were as follows

Wendys/Arbys
Fiscal Year Restaurants Corporate Wendys/Arbys

2011 17047 1368 18415

2012 16261 1460 17721

2013 15493 9843 25336

2014 241057 241057

2015 17591 17591

Thereafter 1292240 1292240

$1599689 $12671 $1612360

On June 23 2009 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants issued $565000 principal amount of Senior Notes the Senior

Notes The Senior Notes will mature on July 15 2016 and accrue interest at 10.00% per annum payable semi

annually on January 15 and July 15 the first payment of which was made on January 15 2010 The Senior

Notes were issued at 97.533o of the principal amount representing yield to maturity
of 10.50% and resulting

in net proceeds
of $551061 The $13939 discount is being accreted and the related charge included in Interest

expense until the Senior Notes mature The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed jointly and

severally on an unsecured basis by certain direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries of Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants collectively
the Guarantors Wendys/Arbys Restaurants incurred approximately $21599 in

costs related to the issuance of the Senior Notes which are being amortized to Interest expense over the term of

the Senior Notes utilizing the effective interest rate method

An indenture for the Senior Notes dated as of June 23 2009 the Indenture among Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants the Guarantors and U.S Bank National Association as trustee the Trustee includes certain

customary covenants that subject to number of important exceptions and qualifications limit the ability of

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and its restricted subsidiaries to among other things incur debt or issue preferred or

disqualified stock pay
dividends on equity interest redeem or repurchase equity interests or prepay or repurchase

subordinated debt make some types
of investments and sell assets incur certain liens engage

in transactions with

affiliates except on an arms-length basis and consolidate merge or sell all or substantially all of their assets The

covenants generally do not restrict Wendys/Arbys or any of Wendys/Arbys subsidiaries which are not

subsidiaries of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

On May 24 2010 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants entered into $650000 Credit Agreement the Credit

Agreement which includes $500000 senior secured term loan facility the Term Loan and $150000

senior secured revolving credit facility the Credit Facility The Credit Agreement contains provisions for an

uncommitted increase of up to $300000 principal amount in the aggregate in the Credit Facility and/or Term

Loan subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions The Credit Facility includes sub-facility for the issuance of

up to $70000 of letters of credit The obligations under the Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of

the non-real estate assets of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and its domestic subsidiaries other than certain

unrestricted subsidiaries the stock of its domestic subsidiaries other than certain unrestricted subsidiaries 65%

of the stock of certain of its foreign subsidiaries as well as by mortgages on certain restaurant properties

The Term Loan was issued at 99.5% of the principal amount which represented an original issue discount of

0.5% and resulted in net proceeds of $497500 The $2500 discount is being accreted and the related charge

included in interest
expense through the maturity of the Term Loan The Term Loan will mature on May 24

2017 and requires quarterly principal installments which commenced on September 30 2010 equal to 1% per

annum of the initial principal amount outstanding with the balance payable on the maturity date

Should our strategic alternatives for Arbys result in sale of the brand we may be required to utilize portion of

the sale proceeds to reduce the Term Loan
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The Credit Facility expires not later than May 24 2015 An unused commitment fee of 50 basis poinrs per

annum is payable quarterly ou the
average

unused amount of the Credit Facility until the maturity date

The interest rare on rhe Term Loan is based on the Eurodollar Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement bur nor

less than 1.50o plus 3.50% or Base Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement but not less than 2.50% plus

2.50% Since the inceprion of rhe Term Loan we have elected to use the Eurodollar Rate which resulted in an

intetest rate on the Term Loan of 5.00o as of January 2011

The Companies incurred approximately $16353 in costs related to the Credit Agreement which is being

amorrized to interest
expense over the Term Loans term utiliaing the effective interest rate method

Proceeds from the Term Loan were used to repay approximately $253849 of existing indebtedness including

fees and interest under the then existing Weridys/Arbys Restaurants amended senior secured term loan which

replaced the prior Arbys credit agreement in March 2009 and which was scheduled to be due in 2012 redeem

the Wendys 6.25o senior notes scheduled to be due in 2011 and pay fees and expenses related to the Credit

Agreement The remaining Term Loan proceeds were used for working capital and other general corporate purposes

The Companies recognized loss on early extinguishnsent of debt of $26197 in the second quarter of 2010

related to the repayment of debr fiom the proceeds of the Term Loan This loss consisted of $14953

premium payment required to redeem the Wendys 6.25o senior notes $5477 for the write-off of the

unaccrered discount of the Wendys 6.25o senior notes recorded in connection with the Wendys Merger and

$5767 for the write-off of deferred costs associated with the iepaynient of the prior senior secured term loan

The affirmative and negative covenants in the Credit Agr cement include among others preservation of corporate

existence payment of taxes and maintenance of insurance and limitations on indebtedness including guarantee

obligations of other indebtedness liens mergers consolidations liquidations and dissolutions sales of assets

dividends and other payments in respect of capiral stock investments payments of certain indebtedness

transactions with affiliates changes in fiscal year negative pledge clauses and clauses restricting subsidiary

distributions and material changes in lines of business lhe financial covenants contained in the Credit

Agreement are consolidated interest coverage ratio ii consolidated senior secured leverage ratio and iii

consolidated senior secured lease adjusted leverage ratio The covenants generally do not restrict Wendys/Arbys

or any of Wendys/Arbys subsidiaries that are not subsidiarics of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants was in compliance with all covenants of the Credit Agreement as ofJanuary 2011

Wendys 6.20o senior notes were reduced to fair value at the date of and irs connection with the Wendys

Merger based on outstanding principal of $225000 and an effective interest rates of 7.0o The fair value

adjustment is being accreted and the related charge included in Interest expense until the notes mature The

value of the Wendys senior notes is adjusted to reflect the fair value of interest rate swaps
associated with this

debt As of January 2011 and January 2010 this adjustment increased the value of the 6.20o senior notes

by $9623 and $682 respectively These notes are unsecured and are redeemable prior to maturity at our option

The Wendys senior notes contain covenants that restrict the incurrence of indebtedness secured by liens and sale

leaseback transactions Wendys was in compliance witls these covenants as of January 2011

Wendys 7o debentures are unsecured and were reduced to fair value at the date of and in connection with the

Wendys Merger based on their outstanding principal of $100000 and an effective interest rate of 8.6% The fair

value adjustment is being accreted and the related charge included in Interest expense until the debentures

mature These debentures contain covenants that restrict the incurrence of indebtedness secured by liens and sale

leaseback transactions Wendys was in compliance with these covenants as of January 2011

During 2008 Wcndys/Arbys entered into $20000 frnarrcing facility for an aircraft The facility requires

monthly payments including interest of approximately $180 througlr August 2013 with final balloon payment

of approximately $10180 due September 2013 During tIre first
quarter

of 2010 we made $5000 prepayment

on the loan This loan is secured by an aircraft with net book valtre of $9183 and $10812 as of January

2011 and January 2010 respectively
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On June 17 2010 Wendys/Arbys repurchased the remaining 5% convertible notes fot $2100 including

accrued interest The convettible notes were reputchased at price of IOUo of their principal amount plus

accrued interest

significant number of the Arbys sale-leaseback obligations capitalized lease obligations and operating leases

require or required periodic financial reporting of certain subsidiary entities within Arbys or of individual restaurants

which in many cases have not been prepared or reported Arbys has negotiated waivers and alternative covenants with

their most significant lessors which substitute consolidated financial reporting of Arbys for that of individual

subsidiary entities and which modifj restaurant level reporting requirements for more than half of the affected

leases Nevertheless as of January 2011 Arbys was nor in compliance and remains nor in compliance with the

reporting requirements under those leases for which waivers and alternative financial reporting covenants have not

been negotiated However none of the lessors has asserted that Arbys is in default of any of those lease agreements

The Companies do nor believe that such non-compliance will have material adverse effect on their consolidated

financial position or results of operations

Wendys U.S advertising fund has revolving line of credit of $25000 Neither the Companies nor Wendys
is the guarantor of the debt The advertising fund facility was established to fund the advertising fund operations The

full amount of the line was available under this line of credit as of January 2011

Ar January 2011 one of Wendys Canadian subsidiaries had revolving credit facility of C$6000 which

bears interest at the Bank of Montreal Prime Rate Wendys guarantees this debt The availability under this facility as

of January 2011 was C$5745

12 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Companies financial instruments for which the

disclosure of fair values is required were as follows

Year End 2010

Wendys/Arbys
Restaurants Corporate Wendys/Arbys

Financial assets

Carrying Amount
Cash and cash equivalents $198686 $313822 $512508

Restricted cash
equivalentv

Current 1068 1068

Non-current 3562 685 4247
Non-current cost investments 3775 4817 8592

Interest rate swaps 9623 9623

Fair Value

Cash and cash
equivalents $198686 $313822 $512508

Restricted cash
equivalents

Current 1068 1068

Non-current 3562 685 4247

Non-current cost investments 5555 14540 20095

Interest rate swaps 9623 9623
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Year End 2009

Wendys/Arhys
Restaurants Corporate Wendys/Arbys

Financial assets

Carrying Amount

Cash and cash equivalents $538864 $52855 S591719

Restricted cash equivalents

Current 1114 1114

Non-current 5352 890 6242

Shortterm investment 263 263

DFR Notes receivable 25696 25696

Non current cost investments 4664 4880 9544

Interest rare swaps 1589 1589

Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents $538864 $52855 $591719

Restricted cash equivalents

Current 1114 11 14

Non current 5352 890 6242

Short term investment 263 263

DFR Notes receivable 28655 28655

Non-cut rent cost investments 5973 5382 11355

Interest rate swaps 1589 1589

Year End

2010 2009

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial liabilities

Longterm debt including current portion

Senior Notes 553258 620370 551779 610200

ferm Loan 495226 505000

Senior secured term loan 251488 252904

6.20u scum1 notes 217855 229500 204303 223425

6.25o senior notes 193618 199200

Sale-leasebaclc
obligations 121884 128171 125176 118634

Capitalized lease obligations 86670 91015 89886 86706

7o debentures 81204 86500 80081 85500

Other 3634 3806 5579 5543

TI otal Wendys/Arbys Restaurants longterm

debt including curtent portion 1559731 1664362 1501910 1582112

6.54o aircraft term loan 12671 13010 18901 18790

5o convertible notes
___________

2100 2100

Total IVendys/Arbys longterm debt

including cut-tent portion $1572402 $1677372 $1522911 $1603002

Guarantees of

Lease obligations for restaurants not operated by the

Companies 294 294 382 382

Wendys franchisee loans obligations 373 373 592 592
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The carrying amounrs approximated fair value due to the short term maturities of the cash equivalents or

restricted cash equivalents

Fair value of these investments was based entirely on statements of account received from investment managers or

investees which were principally based on quoted market or broker/dealer prices Fo the extent that some of these

investments including the underlying investments in investment limited partnerships
do not have available

quoted market or broker/dealer prices
the Companies relied on valuations performed by the investment

managers or investees in valuing those investments or third-party appraisals

The fair values were based on information provided by the bank counterparries that is model driven and whose

inputs were observable or whose significant value drivers were obsrvable

The fair values were based on quoted market prices The senior secured term loan and 6.25% senior notes were

tepaid in 2010 as discussed above in Note 11 Long-term Debt

The DFR Notes were repaid during 2010 as further described in Note DFR Notes

The fair values were determined by discounting the future scheduled principal payments using an interest rate

assuming the same original issuance spread over current U.S Treasury bond yield for securities with similar

durations

The convertible notes were repurchased in 2010 as discussed above in Note 11 Long term Debt

The fair value was assumed to reasonably approximate the
carrying amount We have accrued liabilities for these

lease obligations based on weighted average
risk

percentage

Wendys provided loan
guarantees to various lenders on behalf of franchisees entering into pooled debt facility

arrangements
for new store development and equipment financing Wendys has accrued liability for the fair

value of these
guarantees

the calculation for which was based upon weighed average
risk

percentage
established

at the inception of each program

The carrying amounts of current accounts notes receivable and non-current notes receivable approximated fair

value due to the effect of related allowances for doubtful accounts and notes receivable The carrying amounts of

accounts payable and accrued
expenses approximated fair value due to the short term maturities of those items

Valuation techniques under the accounting guidance related to fair value measurements were based on

observable and unobservable inputs Observable inputs reflected readily obtainable data from independent sources

while unobservable inputs reflected our market assumptions These inputs are classified into the following hierarchy

Leve/ Inputs Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Leve/ InputsQuoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical or

similar assets or liabilities in markets that are nor active and model-derived valuations whose inputs are

observable or whose significant value drivers are observable

Leve/ Inputs Pricing inputs are unobservable for the assets or liabilities and include situations where there is

little if any market activity for the assets or liabilities The inputs into the determination of fair value require

significant management judgment or estimation

The following table presents the Companies financial assets and liabilities other than cash and cash

equivalents measured at fair value on recurring basis as of January 2011 by the valuation hierarchy as defined in

the fair value guidance

Fair Value Measurements
January

2011 Level Level Level

Interest rate swaps included in Deferred costs and other assets $9623 $9623
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The following table
presents

the fair values for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value during 2010 and

2009 on non-recurring basis Total losses include losses recognized from all non-recurring fair value measurements

during the
year

ended January 2011 and January 2010 The carrying value of properties presented in the table

below substantially represents
the remaining carrying value of land for properties that were impaired related to the

Wendys and Arbys restaurant segments See Note 17 for more information on the impairment of our long-lived

assets

Fair Value Measurements
January 2010

2011 Level Level Level Total Losses

Properties $1975 $1975 $58465

Other intangible assets 11012

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 1975 1975 69477

Properties

Wendys/Arbys $1975 $1975 $69477

Fair Value Measurements

January 2009

2010 Level Level Level Total Losses

Properties $6625 $6625 $72282

Other intangible assets 7674

Wendyc/Arhyc ResraIlr2nrc 6675 6625 79956

Aircraft .-- 2176

Wendys/Arbys $6625 $6625 $82132

Derivative instruments

The Companies primary objective for entering into derivative instruments is to manage their exposdre to

changes in interest rates as well as to maintain an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debt

During the third
quarter

of 2009 we entered into eight interest rate swaps
with notional amounts totaling

$361000 to swap the fixed rate interest rates on the 6.20% and 6.25% Wendys senior notes for floating rates The

interest rate swaps were designated as fair value hedges of the related debt and qualifr to be accounted for under the

short-cut method according to the applicable guidance

During the first quarter of 2010 we entered into an interest rate swap with notional amount of $39000 on

Wendys 6.20% senior notes At its inception the interest rate swap was designated as an effective fair value hedge

and is tested for effectiveness quarterly

In connection with the redemption of the Wendys 6.25% senior notes as discussed above in Note 11Long-

term Debt we cancelled four interest rate swaps
with notional amounts totaling $175000 Upon cancellation we

recognized gain of$1875 in the second quarter of 2010 which is included in Interest expense for the year ended

January 2011

At January 2011 the fair value of the interest rate swaps on the 6.20% Wendys senior notes was $9623 and

has been included in Deferred costs and other assets and as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the 6.20%

Wendys senior notes

At December 28 2008 Wendys/Arbys also had the following derivative instruments put options on

equiry securities and total return swaps on equiry securities Wendys/Arbys did not designate these derivatives as

hedging instruments and accordingly these derivative instruments were recorded at fair value with changes in fair

value recorded in Wendys/Arbys results of operations
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Prior to their expiration through October 2008 we also had three interest rate swap agreements the Term
Loan Swap Agreements related to an Arbys term loan The Term Loan Swap Agreements hedged portion of the

related term loan interest rate risk
exposure Interest payments under the Arbys term loan were based on London

InterBank Offered Rate LIBOR plus spread These
hedges of interest rate risk relating to the Arbys term loan

had been designated as effective cash flow hedges at inception and were tested on an ongoing quarterly basis through

their expiration dates There was no ineffectiveness from these hedges through their expiration in 2008 Accordingly

gains and losses from changes in the fair value of the
hedges were included in the Unrealized loss on cash flow

hedges component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss

The
following items were recognized by the Companies related to derivative activity during each of the periods

presented below

2010 2009 2008

Interest income expense

Interest rate swaps $7880 2865
Term Loan Swap Agreements 1780

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants $7880 $2865 $1780

Aircraft term loan swap agreement 17

Investment income expense net

Put and call option combinations on equity securities 286 2411
Total return swaps on equity securities 5165

Put options 1036

Total Wendys/Arbys $7880 $3151 3515

Includes gain of$1875 on the cancellation of four interest rate swaps discussed above

The following is summary of the components of the net change in unrealized gains on cash flow hedges

included in comprehensive income loss

2008

Net unrealized holding losses arising during the
year 1529

Reclassifications of prior year unrealized holding gains into net loss 1780

251

Income tax provision 98
Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 153

Other

Total Wendys/Arbys 155

13 Income Taxes

Loss income from continuing operations before income taxes is set forth below

Wendys/Arbys

2010 2009 2008

Domestic $37877 $34438 $583679

Foreign 15882 14305 2427

$21995 $20133 $581252
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Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

2010 2009 2008

Domestic $33305 $02718 $430634

Foreign 15882 14305 2427

$07423 1587 $428207

The benefit from provision for income taxes from continuing operations is set forth below

Wendys/Arbys

2010 2009 2008

U.S.Fcdcral

State 5009 10318 4017
Foreign principally Canada 7100 6160 1965

Currenr tax provision 12109 16478 5982

U.S Federal 25003 8066 90465

Srate 2720 28985 14608

Foreign principally Canada 2056 3076 203

Deferred tax benefit 29779 40127 105276

Income tax benefit .. $17670 23649 99294

Wendys/Arbys Restautants

2010 2009 2008

U.S Federal 3382 $46062 $5427
State 7249 8328 3064
Foteign principally Canada 7100 6089 1965

Current tax provision benefit 10967 60479 398

U.S Federal 19896 46919 54299

State 3800 18626 8221

Foreign principally Canada 2056 2996 203

Deferred tax benefit 25752 68541 62723

Income tax benefit $14785 8062 $63121
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Deferred tax assets liabilities are set fotth below

Wendys/Arbys Wendys /Arbys Restanrants

Year End Year End

2010 2009 2010 2009

Defetred tax assets

Operating and capital loss carryforwards .. 99354 $110637 $105818 $106364

Tax ciedir carryforwards 62518 33841 13951 15963

Accrued compensation and related

benefits 37512 34327 35333 32252

Unfavorable leases 31009 34595 31009 34595

Other 71M4 R1449 6369 67681

Valuation allowances 88363 87231 95850 96031

Total deferred tax assets 213694 207618 153940 160824

Deferred tax liabilities

Intangible assets 462627 471816 46261 471816
Owned and leased fixed assets net of related

obligations 100198 110033 95588 104707
Other 28773 34750 29130 39724

Total deferred tax liabilities 591598 616599 587345 616247

$39o4 8408081 S433405 $45c423

Wendys/Arbys decrease in net deferred tax liabilities is principally the result of recognizing foreign tax credits

on the repatriation of
foreign eatnings intangible

and fixed asset differences including impairments retirements of

long-term debt and
jobs credit carryforwards partially offset by decrease in deferred tax assets resulting

from the

utilization of net operating loss carryforwards Wendys/Arbys Restaurants decrease in net deferred tax liabilities is

principally
the result of

intangible and fixed asset differences including impairments and retirements of long term

debt

Wendys/Arbys loss and credit carryforwards have limited carryforward periods and will expire if unused U.S

Federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $117837 at Januan 2011 expire beginning in 2024 The

utilization of these losses is limited but the 2011 limitation exceeds the remaining net operating loss carry forwaid

capital loss carryforward of $199057 expires in 2011 Tax credits of $62518 at January 2011 principally

consisting
of

foreign tax credits and jobs credits expire beginning in 2017 State net operating loss carryforwards

are subject to various limitations including carryforward periods and begin expiring in 2011 As of January 2011

Wendys/Arbys has net deferred tax asset net of U.S Federal taxes of $26904 related to state net operating
losses

Wendys/Arby Restaurants carryforwards at January 2011 consist of capital loss carryforward of $208284

which will expire in 2011 capital loss carryforward of $15406 which will expire in 2014 tax credits of 813951

principally consisting of foreign tax credits which expire beginning in 2018 and state net operating loss carryforwards

subject to various limitations including carryforward periods and begin expiring in 2011 As of January 2011

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants has dcferred tax asset net 0f U.S Fcdcral taxcs of $21688 related to stare net

operating losses

Wendys/Arbys \aluation allowances of $88363 and $87231 as of January 2011 and Januaiy 2010

respectively relate to capital loss and state net operating loss carryforwards Valuation allowances increased $1132

and $6345 in 2010 and 2009 respectively principally related to changes in state net operating losses Additionally

2009 includes $3265 reduction related to capital losses utilized to offset 2009 capital gains The 2009 reduction

was considered in
merger

related fair value see Note Wendys/Arbys Restaurants valuation allowances of

$95850 and $96031 as of January 2011 and January 2010 respectively relate to capital loss and state net
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operating loss carryforwards Valuation allowances decreased increased $181 and $12494 in 2010 and 2009

respectively principally related to changes in state net operating losses In making our determination of the need for

valuation allowances we reviewed available positive and negative evidence as well as prudent and feasible tax planning

strategies regarding our ability to realize the benefit of the related deferred tax assets

For U.S Federal income tax purposes during the years prior to 2009 we deducted $117939 relating to the

exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock Wendys/Arbys has not recognized the $42661 tax benefit

relating to these deductions because it has no income taxes currently payable against which the benefits can be realized

as result of its net operating loss and credit carryforwards When such benefits are realized against future income

taxes payable by Wendys/Arbys it will recognize them in future periods as reduction of current income taxes

payable with an equal offsetting increase in Additional paid-in capital

U.S income taxes and foreign withholding taxes are provided on unremirted earnings of foreign subsidiaries

primarily Canadian which are not essentially permanent in duration As of January 2011 the Companies have

unremitted earnings of 1600 with corresponding U.S deferred income tax liability of $200

The Wendys Merger qualified as tax-free reorganization Based on the
merger exchange ratio the former

shareholders of Wendys owned approximately 800o of the total stock of Wendys/Arbys outstanding immediately

after the Wendys Merger Therefore the Wendys Merger was treated as reverse acquisition fot U.S Federal income

tax purposes
As result of the reverse acquisition Wendys/Arbys and its subsidiaries became

pait
of the Wendys

consolidated
group

with Wendys/Arbys as its new parent
In addition Wendys/Arhys had short taxable year in

2008 ending on the date of the Wendys Merger Also as result of the Wendys Merger for U.S Fedeial tax

purposes
theie sas an ownership change at Wendys/Arbys which places limit on the amount of companys net

operating losses that can be deducted annually

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S Federal
statutory rate to reported income tax is set forth

below

Wendys/Arbys

2010 2009 2008

Income tax benefit at the U.S Federal statutory rate 7699 7047 $20343
State income tax provision benefit net of U.S Federal income

tax effect 1489 2505 6884

Presiously unrecognized state net operating losses net of related

valuation allowance 9629

Foreign and U.S tax effects of foreign operations 7692 623 9241

Impairment of non-deductible goodwill 99696
Canadian tax iate changes 2000

Loss on DFR common stock with no tax benefit 20259

Jobs tax credits net 3469 3792 1805

Valuation allowance changes 198 1165

Non deductible expenses 1162 1354 1921
Adjustments related to prior year tax matters 1035 1603 706
Other net 624 155 508

$17670 $23649 99294

In connection with the fourth quarter 2009 dissolution of our captive insurance company the likelihood of

realization of certain previously unrecognized state net operating losses is no longer remote Accordingly an

$18152 deferred tax asset and related $8523 partial valuation allowance was recognized

Includes previously unrecognized benefit in 2010 and 2008 of foreign tax credits net of foreign income and

withholding taxes on the repatriation of foreign earnings
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Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

Income tax benefit provision at the U.S Federal statutory rate

State income taxes provision benefit net of U.S Federal

income tax effect

Previously unrecognized state net operating losses net of related

valuation allowance

Foreign and U.S tax effects of foreign operations

Impairment of non-deductible goodwill

Canadian tax rate changes

Johs tax credits net

Valuation allowance changes

Non-deductible
expenses

Adjustments related to prior year tax matters

Other net

In connection with the fourth
quarter

2009 dissolution of our captive insurance company the likelihood of

realization of certain previously unrecognized state net operating losses is no longer remote Accordingly

$18152 deferred tax asset and related $8523 partial valuation allowance was recognized

Includes previously unrecognized benefit in 2010 and 2008 of foreign tax credits net of foreign income and

withholding taxes on the repatriation of foreign earnings

Wendys/Arbys participates in the Internal Revenue Service the IRS Compliance Assurance Process

CAP As part of CAP tax years are audited on contemporaneous basis so that all or most issues are resolved prior

to the filing of the tax return As such our December 28 2008 and January 2010 tax returns along with the

Wendys pre-merger tax returns have been settled Our U.S Federal income tax returns for 2007 and September 29

2008 are not currently under examination Certain of Wendys/Arbys state income tax returns from its 1998 fiscal

year and forward remain subject to examination We believe that adequate provisions have been made for any

liabilities including interest and penalties that may result from the completion of these examinations

As disclosed in Note Wendys/Arbys Restaurants is included in the consolidated Federal and certain state

income tax returns of Wendys/Arbys However Wendys/Arbys Restaurants provides for Federal and state income

taxes on the same basis as if consolidated returns were filed separate from Wendys/Arbys Amounts payable for

Federal and certain state income taxes are settled by Wendys/Arbys Restaurants to Wendys/Arbys under tax

sharing agreement During 2010 and 2009 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants made tax sharing payments to Wendys

Arbys of $0 and $10417 respectively As of January 2011 and January 2010 the net amount due to Wendys

Arbys for Federal and state income taxes was $37977 and $41841 respectively

2010 2009 2008

6098 555 $149872

2242 2935 3352

9629

7692 623 9241

99696

2000

3469 3792 1805

198 581

607 792 676

126 3279 1152
699 160 375

$14785 8062 63121
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Uncertain Tax Positions

As of January 2011 Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had unrecogniaed tax benefits of

$36434 and $26249 respectively of which if resolved favorably would reduce income tax expense by $25200 and

$17100 respectively reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of
unrecognized tax benefits follows

Wendys/Arbys

Beginning balance

Additions

Wendys unrecognized tax benefits at the
merger

date

Tax positions related to the current year

Tax positions of priur years

Reductions

Tax positions of prior years

Settlements

Lapse of statute of limitation

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Additions

Wendys unrecognized tax benefits at the
merger

date

Tax positions related to the current year

Tax positions of prior years

Reductions

Tax positions of prior years

Settlements

Lapse of statute of limitations

Ending balance

19 6627

4921 18

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

2010 2009 2008

$28414 $31717 5846

24916

19 613 996

4921 1651 2357

3900 2383 1466
416 1045 372

2789 2139 560

$26249 $28414 $31717

The amount included in the tables above for 2008 of $24916 has been corrected from the prior year presentation

of$16816 such revision had no impact on the Companies Consolidated Financial Statements

During 2011 we believe it is reasonably possible we will reduce unrecognized tax benefits by up to $7022

primarily as result of the completion of certain state tax audits

During 2010 2009 and 2008 Wendys/Arbys recognized $1004 $414 and $390 of interest reductions

expense and $425 $888 and $1307 of penalty reductions expense respectively related to uncertain tax positions

Wendys/Arbys has approximately $5005 and $4262 accrued for interest and $1451 and $1026 accrued for

penalties as of January 2011 and January 2010 respectively

During 2010 2009 and 2008 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants recognized $940 $315 and $792 of interest

reductions expense and $425 $535 and $954 of penalty reductions expense respectively related to uncertain tax

positions Wendys/Arbys Restaurants has approximately $4741 and $4062 accrued for interest and $1204 and

$779 accrued for penalties as of January 2011 and January 2010 respectively

2010 2009

$39118 $38421

2008

$12266

24916

996

4362

2982
578

559

$38421

4419
416

2789

$36434

4241
1407
2139

$39118
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14 Stockholders Equity

Wendy s/A rby

Our common stock and common srock held in
treasury activity for 2010 2009 and 2008 was as follows

Common Stock Treasury Stock

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Class prior to September 29 2008

Common Stock subsequent to Common Common Common

September 29 2008 Stock Stock Stock Class

Number of shares at beginning of
year 470424 470424 64025 17492 1220 667 174

Net effect of Class conversion 29551

Stock icsuance related to Wendys

Merger 376776

Common shares issued

Upon exercises of stock options net 383 524

Upon grant of restricted stock and for

directors fees 16 470 52 63 213

Repurchase of common stock for

Treasury 35406 16911

Other
_____

56 63 619 41

Number of shares at end of
year 470424 470424 470424 52050 17492 1220

Preferred Stock

There were 100000 shares authorized and no shares issued of preferred stock throughout the 2010 2009 and

2008 fiscal
years

Restricted Net Assets of Subsidiaries

Restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiaries were $1776630 representing approximately 82% of

Wendys/Arbys consolidated stockholders equity as of January 2011 and consisted of net assets of Wendys
Arbys restaurant business segments which were restricted as to transfer to WendysArbys in the form of cash

dividends loans or advances under the covenants of the Credit Agreement As of January 2011 there was $25622

available for the payment of dividends directly to WendysArbys from WendysArbys restricted subsidiaries

15 Share-Based Compensation

WendysAsbys maintains several equity plans the Equity Plans including those assumed in the Wendys

Merger discussed below which collectively provide or provided for the grant of stock options restricted shares of

WetidysArbys Common Stock tandem stock appreciation rights restricted share units and performance shares

collectively the Grants to certain officers other key employees non-employee directors and

consultants WendysArbys has not granted any
tandem stock appreciation rights Since the establishment of

WendysArbys Restaurants substantially all Grants have been made to employees of WendysArbys Restaurants

The Equity Plans also provide for the
grant

0f shases of WexsdysArbys common stuck tu nuts-employee

directors During 2010 WendysArbys implemented the 2010 Omnibus Award Plan the 2010 Plan for the

issuance of equity instruments as described above All equity grants during 2010 were issued from the 2010 Plan and

it is the only equity plan from which all future equity instruments may be granted As of January 2011 there were

approximately 66133 shares of Common Stock available for future
grants

under the 2010 Plan

Effective with the Wendys Merger WendysArbys also assumed the
existing Wendys equity plans the

Wendys Plans which collectively provided for the
grant

of stock options restricted shares stock
appreciation rights

or restricted stock units for certain employees and non-employee directors to acquire common shares of
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Wendys Ptirsuanr rn the
merger agreemenr each

outstanding Wendys option as of the
merger

date was converted

into 4.25 options for one share of Wendys/Arbys Common Stock We performed valuations on the Wendys options

both before and after the Conversion and determined that the value of the options after the Conversion was $1923

higher than the pre merger
value included in the consideration in the Wendys Merger As such we recorded

additional compensation expense in 2008 for this amount

All discussions below related to option and restricted share activity for prior years
include options or restricted

shares for Class Common Stock which if they were still outstanding as of the date of the Wendys Merger

represent options exercisable into Common Stock or restricted Common Stock

Stock Options

Prior to the date of the Conversion Wendys/Arbys outstanding stock options were exercisable for either

package the Package Options of one share of Class Common Stock and two shares of Class Common Stock

one share of Class Common Stock the Class Options or one share of Class Common Stock the

Class Options As of the date of the Wendys Merger Wendys/Arbys converted to single class of common

stock As such all stock options outstanding subsequent to the date of the Wendys Merger including those under

the Wendys Plans are now exercisable for one share of Common Stock three shares of Common Stock for Package

Options

The tables below summarize 2010 activity and include certain additional information for Wendys/Arhys

outstanding stock options

Package Options Common Stock Options

Weighted Weighted

Average Aggregate Average Aggregate

Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic

Options Price Value Options Price Value

Outstanding atJanuary 2010 195 $23.82 22880 $7.15 $2504

Granted 6617 $3.92

Exercised 409 $3.42 488

Forfeited /expired 62 $22.16 1414 $7.46

Outstanding at January 2011a 133 $24.59 27674 $6.42 $6063

Vested or expected to vest at January 2011b 133 $24.59 26519 $6.50 $5586

Exercisable atJanuary 2011c 133 $24.59 15857 $7.75 $1190

The iveighted average contractual life for the Package Options and Common Stock Options that were

outstanding at January 2011 was 1.5 years and 7.5 years respectively

The weighted average contractual life for the
Package Options and Common Stock options that were vested or

expected to vest at January 2011 was 1.5 years and 7.5 years respectively

The weighted average
contractual life for the Package Options and Common Stock Options that were exercisable

at January 2011 was 1.5 years and 6.6
years respectively
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The weighted average
fair value per share as of the

grant
date as calculated under the Black-Scholes Model for

stock options granted during 2010 2009 and 2008 which were all granted at exercise prices equal to the market ptice

of Wendys/Arbys Common Stock or Class common stock on the
grant date were as follows

Common Stoclc Class

Options Options

2010 $1.47 N/A

2009 $1.83 N/A

2008 $2.12 $2.20

The fair value of stock options on the date of grant and as of the Merget Date fot options assumed in 2008 was

calculated utili7ing the following weighted average assumptions

2010 2009 2008

Common Common Common
Stoclc Stock Stock Class

Options Options Options Options

Risk-free interest rate 2.01o 2.46o 2.130o 3.78o

Expected option life in years 5.4 5.1 6.2 7.5

Expected volatility 45.2o 49.6o 47.0% 36.0o

Expected dividend yield 1.53o 1.35% l.29o 2.53o

The risk-free interest rate represents the U.S Treasury zero-coupon
bond yield approximating the expected

option
life of stock options granted duting the respective years The expected option life represents the period

of time

that the stock options granted during the period are expected to he outstanding based on historical exercise trends for

similar grants The expected volatility is based on the historical market
puce volatility of the classes of common stock

for the related
options granted during

the
years The expected dividend yield represents Wendys/Arby annualized

average yield for regulat quarterly dividends declared
prior to the respective stock option grant dates

The Black Scholes Model has limitations on its effectiveness including that it was developed
for use in

estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable and that the

model requires the use of highly subjective assumptions including expected stock price volatility Employee stock

option
awards have characteustics significantly

different from those of traded options
and

changes in the subjective

input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates

The Companies current outstanding stock options have maximum contractual terms of ten years and with

certain exceptions vest ratably over three years
All of the options under the Wendys Plans that were gianted prior to

2008 vested immediately as of the date of the Wendys Merger Options granted under the Wendys Plans during

2008 regardless of whether they were granted before or after the merger vest ratably over thu cc years
from the date of

grant
with certain exceptions

Wendys/Atbys reduced the exercise prices of all outstanding stock options for the DFR dividend distributed to

shareholders of record as of March 29 2008 The exercise prices were reduced by $0.39 for each of the Package

Options and by $0.13 for each of the Common Stock Options and Class Options

Restricted Shares

Wendys/Arbys issues restricted share awards RSAs and restricted share units RSUs For the
purposes

of

our disclosures the term Restricted Shares applies to RSAs and RSUs collectively unless otherwise noted

118



WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

The following table summarizes the activity of Wendys/Arbys non-vested restricted shares for 2010

Common Stock

Weighted

Avetage

Shates Fair Value

Nonvested at January 2010 1481 $5.00

Granted 192 $4.44

Vested 606 $5.54

Forfeited 14 $4.44

Nonvested at January 2011 1053 $4.59

Peiformance Shares

Under the 2010 Plan Wendys/Arbys grants performance-based awards to certain officers and key

employees The vesting of these awards is contingent upon meeting defined operational goal performance

condition or Common Stock share prices market condition

The fair value of performance condition awards was determined using the
average

of the high and low trading

prices of our Common Stock on the date of grant Compensation cost recorded for performance condition awards is

reevaluated at each reporting period based on the probability of the achievement of the goal There was no

compensation cost recorded during 2010 for the performance condition awards as Wendys/Arbys believes that the

achievement uf the defined operational goal is not probable

The fair value of market condition awards was estimated on the date of the
grant using the Monte Carlo

simulation model The Monte Carlo simulation model utilizes multiple input variables to estimate the probability

that the market conditions will be achieved as noted in the table below

Risk-free interest rate 0.93%

Expected life in years 2.98

Expected volatility 55.0%

Expected dividend yield 0.0%

The Monte Carlo method assumes reinvestment of dividends

Compensation cost is recorded ratably for market condition awards during the vesting period and is not

reversed except for forfeitures at the vesting date without regard as to whether the market condition is met

The following table summarizes the activity of Wendys/Arbys non-vested performance shares for 2010

Performance Condition Awards Market Condition Awatds

Weighted Weighted

Avetage Fair Average Fair

Shares Value Shares Value

Nonvested at January 2010

Granted 1209 $3.91 833 $5.56

Vested

Forfeited $3.91 $5.56

Nonvested at January 2011 1207 $3.91 832 $5.56

119



WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Share-Based Compensation Expense

Wendy s/Arby

Total share-based compensation expense and related income tax benefit recognized in Wendys/Arbys

consolidated statements of operations were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Compensation expense
related to stock options 9782 $12497 5953

Compensation expense
related to the effect of the Conversion on Wendys stock

options 1923

Compensation expense
telared to Restricted Shares 3229 2797 1247

Compcnsation expensc
related to Market Condition Performance Sharcs 693

Compensation expense
credited to Stockholders Equity 13704 15294 9123

Compensation expense
related to Restricted Shares that was not credited to

Stockholders Equity 160

Compensation expense
related to dividends and related interest on the Restricted

Shares 13

Total share-based
compensation expense

included in General and

administrative 13707 15467 9129

Less Income tax benefit 4995 5629 3363

Share-hased cnmpensarion expense net nf income tax henefir 8712 9838 5766

Represents amounts paid to terminated employees in lieu of
receiving

vested Restricted Shares to which they

were entitled

Dividends of $38 $25 and $65 that accrued on the Restricted Shares were charged to Accumulated deficit in

2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

As of January 2011 there was $16544 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-

based compensation grants
for Wendys/Arbys The unrecognized expense

for Wendys/Arbys will be recogni7ed

over weighted average period of .85 years

Wendy s/Arby Restaurants

Total share-based compensation expense
and related income tax benefit recognized in Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants consolidated statements of operations were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Compensation expense
related to Wendys/Arbys stock options 9648 $11139 7523

Compensation expense
related to Restricted Shares 2458 2431 1247

Compensation expense
related to Market Condition Performance Shares 684

Compensation expense
related to Restricted Shares that was not credited to

Stockholders Equity 160

Total share-based compensation expense included in General and

administrative 12790 13730 8770
Less Income tax benefit 4646 4969 3231

Share based compensation expense net of income tax benefit 8144 8761 5539

Represents amounts paid to terminated employees in lieu of receiving vested Restricted Shares to which they

were entitled
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As of January 2011 there was $15814 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-

based compensation grants for Wendys/Arbys Restaurants The unrecognized expense
for Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants will be recognized over weighted average period of 1.87 years

16 Facilities Relocation and Restructuring

The facilities relocation and restructuring charges are summarized below

2009 2008

Wendys Restaurants segment 8088 $3101

Arbys Restaurants segment 72 120

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 8016 3221

Corporate 3008 692

Total Wendys/Arbys $11024 $3913

The Companies incurred restructuring charges in 2009 and 2008 primarily related to severance as result of

the Wendys Merger We do not expect to incur
any

additional restructuring charges with
respect to the Wendys

Merger The Wendys/Arbys Corporate charges for 2008 related to costs incurred under prior restructuring plan

that was completed in 2008

The components of facilities relocation and restructuring charges in 2010 and 2009 and an analysis of related

activity in the facilities relocation and restructuring accrual were as follows

2010

Balance Balance Total

January January Incurred

2010 Adjustments Payments 2011 to Dste

Wendys restaurant segment

Cash obligations

Severancecosts $5630 $111 $5387 $132 11189

Total Wendys restaurant segment 5630 111 5387 132 11189

Arbys restaurant segment

Cash obligations

Employee relocation costs 4579

Other 7471

12050

Non-cash charges 719

Total Arbys restaurant segment 12769

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 5630 111 5387 132 23958

Corporate

Cash ohligarinn5c

Severance and retention incentive compensation 500 133 92 275 87630
Non-cash charges 835

Total Corporate 500 133 92 275 88465

Total Wendys/Arbys $6130 $244 $5479 $407 $112423
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2009

Balance Balance Total

December 28 January Incurred

2008 Provisions Payments 2010 to Date

Wendys restaurant segment

Cash obligations

Severancecosts $3101 8088 $5559 $5630 11189

Total Wendys restaurant segment 3101 8088 5559 5630 11189

Arbys restaurant segment

Cash obligations

Employee relocation costs 72 72 4579

Other 7471

72 72 12050

Non-cash charges 719

Total Arbys restaurant
segment

72 72 12769

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 3173 8016 5559 5630 23958

Corporate

Cash obligations

Severance and retention incentive

compensation 962 3008 3470 500 87630

Nun-cash chargus 835

Total Corporate 962 3008 3470 500 88465

Total Wendys/Arbys $4135 $11024 $9029 $6130 $112423

17 Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The following is summary of our impairment of long-lived assets losses by business segment

2010 2009 2008

Wendyc rectaurant segment

Impairment of company-owned restaurants

Properties $21201 $21263 1578

Intangible assets 5125 2180
________

26326 23443 1578

Arbys restaurant segment

Impairment of company-owned restaurants

Properties 37264 51019 6906

Intangible assets 5887 5494 1096

43151 56513 8002

Total Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 69477 79956 9580

Aircraft
_______

2176 9623

Total Wendys/Arbys $69477 $82132 $19203

The Wendys and Arbys company-owned restaurant impairment losses in each year predominantly reflected

impairment charges on all restaurant level assets resulting from the deterioration in operating performance of certain

restaurants additional charges for capital improvements in restaurants impaired in prior year
which did not
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subsequently tecovet and wtite-downs in the catrying value of surplus propetties and ptopetties held for sale

Additionally in 2010 the Wendys impaitment losses included write-downs in the carrying value of options to

putchase propetty

During 2009 Wendys/Ashys disposed of one of its owned aitcraft and tecorded additional impairment in

2009 based on the sale ptice At December 28 2008 Wendys/Arbys classified the aitcraft as held-for-sale and

recorded an impairment chatge to teflect its estimated fair value as result of an apptaisal related to its potential sale

All of these impaitment losses represented the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the affected

assets and are included in Impairment of long-lived assets The fair values of impaired assets discussed above for the

Wendys and Arbys testautant segments wete genetally estimated based on the
present

values of the associated cash

flows and on matket value with
tespect to land Level inputs

18 Investment Income Expense Net

Wendy VA rby

Interest income

Distributions including dividends

Gain on DFR Notes

Realized gains net

Unrealized losses net

Fee on early withdrawal of Equities Account

Other
_____ ______ ______

Decline in fair value of DFR common stock

Allowance for doubtful accounts for DFR Notes

Decline in fair value of available-for-sale securities primarily held in the Equities

Account

Decline in fair value of cost method investments

20 Discontinued Operations

Wendy s/A rby

Prior to 2007 we sold the srock of the companies comprising our former premium beverage and soft drink

concentrate business segments and the stock or the principal assets of the companies comprising its former utility and

municipal services and refrigeration business segments Wendys/Ashys has accounted for all of these operations as

discontinued operations

2010 2009 2008

14 249 $1285

248 205 2818

4909

179 2948 8460

1128

89
5500

910 1997

$5261 $3008 9438

19 Other Than Temporary Losses on Investments

Wendy s/Arby

2009 2008

68086

21227

801 13109

3115 10319

$3916 $112741
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Income from discontinued operations net of taxes for 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following

2009 2008

Income from discontinued operations before income taxes 671 242

Reversals of tax reserves due to tax settlements 1143 1701

Provision for benefit from income taxes 268 274

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes $1546 $2217

21 Retirement Benefit Plans

401k Plans

Subject to certain restrictions the Companies have 401k defined contribution plan the 401k Plan for

all of its employees who meet certain minimum requirements and elect to participate Effective January 2010 there

were prior existing 401k Plans the Prior Plans that were combined into the 401k Plan The 401k Plan

permits employees to contribute up to 75% of their compensation subject to certain limitations and provides for

matching contributions of employee contributions up to 4% of compensation and for discretionary profit sharing

contributions

Under the Prior Plans employees could contribute various percentages of their compensation ranging up to

maximum of 5Oo or 75% depending on the respective plan subject to certain limitations The Prior Plans provided

for matching contributions of employee contributions up to 6% depending on the respective plan Some of these

Prior Plans also
permitted or required profit sharing contributions

In connection with the matching and profit sharing contributions the Companies provided compensation

expense in 2010 2009 and 2008 as follows

2010 2009 2008

Wendys/Ashys Restaurants $12467 $11796 $4616

Corporate _______
898 213

Wendys/Arbys $12467 $12694 $4829

Pension Plans

Wendys had two domestic defined benefit plans which were assumed in connection with the Wendys Merger

the Wendys Pension Plans The benefits under the Wendys Pension Plans were frozen prior to the Wendys

Merger In accordance with the terms of the Merger Wendys obtained an actuarial valuation of the unfunded

pension liability as of September 28 2008 Wendys received approval for the termination of the Wendys Pension

Plans by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and the Internal Revenue Service by the fourth
quarter

of

2008 We made lump sum distributions and purchased annuities for the approved termination of the Wendys
Pension Plans in the fourth

quarter
of 2008 and paid $304 for certain plan settlements in the first

quarter
of

2009 In December 2010 final payment of $296 was made to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation for one of

the pension plans

Wendy s/Arby

Wendys/Ashys maintains two domestic defined benefit plans the benefits under which were frozen in 1988

and for which Wendys/Ashys has no unrecognized prior service cost Ashys employees who were eligible to

participate through 1988 the Eligible Ashys Employees are covered under one of these plans The measurement

date used by Wendys/Ashys in determining amounts related to its defined benefit plans is its current fiscal year end

based on the roll forward of an actuarial report
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The balance of the accumulated benefit obligations and the fair value of the plans assers at January 2011 was

$3983 and $2669 respectively of which $1227 and $839 respectively was recorded by Wendys/Arbys

Resraurants related to the Eligible Arbys Employees As of January 2010 the balance of the accumulated benefit

obligarions and the fair value of the plans assets was $3920 and $2714 respectively of which $1123 and $820

respectively was recorded by Wendys/Arbys Restaurants related to rhe Eligible Arbys Employees As of January

2011 and January 2010 each of the plans had accumulated benefit obligations in excess of the fair value of the

assets of the respective plan Wendys/Arbys recognixed $221 $243 and $121 in benefit plan expenses
included in

General and administrative in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively of which $64 $68 and $42 was recorded by

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants related to the Eligible Arbys Employees Wendys/Arbyss future required contributions

to the plan are not expected to be material

Multiemployer Pension Plan

The unionized employees at The New Bakery Co of Ohio Inc the Bakery 100% owned subsidiary of

Wendys were covered by the Bakery and Confectionery Union and Industry International Pension Fund the

Union Pension Fund an underfunded union sponsored mulriemployer pension plan Generally the Bakery had no

obligation to this plan other than to remit contributions based on hours worked by covered unionized employees In

the fourth
quarter

of 2009 the Bakery terminated its participation in the Union Pension Fund and formally notified

the plans trustees of its withdrawal from that plan This decision required Wendys to assume withdrawal liabiliry of

$4975 in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Employee Retiiement Income Security Act as

amended to reflect this obligation which has been included in Cost of sales and Acciued
expenses

and other

current liabilities In addition the unionized employees became eligible to paiticipate in the 40 1k Plan

In the fourth
quarter

of 2010 the terms of new collective bargaining agreement the New CBA were

agreed to by the Bakery and Bakers Local No 57 Bakery Confectionery Tobacco Workers Grain Millers

International Union of America AFL-CIO Included in the terms of the New CBA the Bakery agreed to participate

in the Union Pension Fund as if it had not previously withdrawn its participation and the unioni7ed employees would

no longer be eligible to contribute to the 401k Plan Accordingly the withdrawal liabiliry recorded during the

fourth
quatter

of 2009 was reversed during the fourth
quarter

of 2010 and credited to Cost of sales The other

terms of the New CBA resulted in additional
expense to Wendys of approximately $900 which is included in Cost

of sales in the fourth
quarter

of 2010

Wendy Executive Plans

In accordance with the Wendys Merger agreement amounts due under key executive
agreements

and

supplemental executive retirement plans the SERP weje funded into restricted account The corresponding

liabilities were included in Accrued
expenses

and other current liabilities and Other liabilities and in
aggregate

and were approximately $5391 and $6397 as of January 2011 and January 2010 respectively

Effective January 2011 participation in the SERP was frozen and current participants balances will only earn

interest

22 Lease Commitments

The Companies lease real
properry

leasehold interests and restaurant transportation and office

equipment Some leases which relate to restaurant operations provide for contingent rentals based on sales

volume Certain leases also provide for payments of other costs such as real estate taxes insurance and common area

maintenance which arc nor included in rental
expense or the future minimum rental

payments set forth below
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Rental
expense

under
operating leases consists of the following components

1262

1506

244

11246

158463

19581

$138882

2010

Corporate Wendys/Arbys

$1262 $147217

Wendys/Arbys
Restauraots

$145955

11246

157201

18075

$139126

Minimum rentals

Contingent rentals

Less sublease income

Minimum rentals

Contingent rentals

Less sublease income

Minimum rentals

Contingent rentals

Less sublease income

2009

Weodys/Arbys
Restaurants Corporate Weodys/Arbys

$151217 $1723 $152940

12364 12364

163581 1723 165304

20089 1580 21669

$143492 143 $143635

2008

Wendys/Arbys
Restaurants Corporate Weodys/Arbys

$94069 $1849 95918

4989 4989

99058 1849 100907

4771 1371 6142

$94287 478 94765
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The Companies future minimum rental
payments

and rental receipts for non-cancelable leases including

rental receipts for leased properties owned by the Companies having an initial lease term in excess of one year as of

January 2011 are as follows

Rents Payments Renta Receipts

Sale- Sale

Leaseback Capitalized Operating Leaseback Capitalized Opetating Owned

Fiscal Year Obigstions Leases Leases Obligations Leases Leases Properties

2011 14948 15856 150465 966 291 $12501 7064

2012 15406 12372 140592 966 291 11271 7001

2013 14824 12729 131518 946 291 9541 6590

201 1481q 12899 120996 931 291 8q93 6393

2015 15640 13912 112363 887 291 7551 6113

Thereafter 137459 108766 1032878 3440 1279 36175 45731

Total minimum payments 213091 176534 $1688812 $8136 $2734 $85532 $78892

Less amounts representing interest with

interest rates of between 3% and 22o 91207 89864

Present value of minimum sale leaseback

and capitalized lease payments $121884 86670

In addition to the amounts presented in the table above Wendys/Arbys has rental payments of $1605 and

$673 and rental receipts of$1360 and $567 in 2011 and 2012 both respectively under the lease for Wendys

Arbys former corporate headquarters and of the sublease for office space on two of the floors covered under the

lease to personnel from management company formed by our Chairman who was our former Chief Executive

Officer and our Vice Chairman who was our former President and Chief Operating Officer and director

who was our former Vice Chairman the Management Company

As of January 2011 the Companies had $106578 of Favorable leases net of accumulated amortization

included in Other intangible assets and $82499 of unfavorable leases included in Other liabilities or $24079 of

net favorable leases The fttture minimum rental
payments set forth above reflect the rent expense to be recognized

over the lease terms and accordingly have been increased by the $24079 of net favorable leases net of $40941

of Straight-Line Rent and $2207 which
represents amounts advanced by landlords for improvements of leased

facilities and reimbursed through future rent payments less payments to lessees for the right to assume leases which

have below market rent Estimated sublease future rental receipts exclude sublessor rental obligations for closed

locations

Properties leased by the Companies to third parties under capitalized leases and operating leases as of January

2011 and January 2010 include

Year End

2010 2009

Land 27434 $26325

Buildings and improvements 6q825 58450

Office restaurant and transportation equipment 4133 4437

96392 89212

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 18344 9885

78048 $79327

The
present values of minimum sale-leaseback and capitalized lease payments are included either with Long

term debt or Current portion of long-term debt as applicable
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23 Guarantees and Other Commitments and Contingencies

Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

Wendys has guaranteed the performance of certain leases and other obligations primarily from company-

owned restaurant locations now operated by franchisees amounting to $67284 These leases extend through

2030 We have not received
any notice of default related to these leases as of January 2011 In the event of default

by franchise owner Wendys generally retains the right to acquire possession of the related restaurant

locations Wendys is contingently liable for certain other leases which have been assigned to unrelated third patties

amounting to $9804 These leases expire on various dates which extend through 2021

RTM Restaurant Group RTM subsidiary of the Companies guarantees the performance of the lease

obligations of eight FM restaurants formerly operated by affiliates of RTM as of January 2011 the Affiliate

Lease Guarantees The former RTM stockholders have indemnified us with respect to the guarantee of the

remaining lease obligations In addition RTM temains contingently liable for 10 leases for restaurants sold by RTM

priot to our acquisition of RTM in 2005 the RTM Acquisition if the respective purchasers do not make the

requited lease payments collectively with the Affiliate Lease Guarantees the Lease Guarantees The Lease

Guarantees which extend through 2020 could aggregate maximum of approximately $4169 as of January 2011

including approximately $2716 under the Affiliate Lease Guarantees assuming all scheduled lease payments have

been made by the respective tenants through January 2011 The estimated fair value of the Lease Guarantees as of

the date of the RTM Acquisition was recorded as liability and is being amortized to Other income expense net

based on the decline in the net present value of those probability adjusted payments in excess of any actual payments

made uver tiiiie There rcmaius an uiiamuitized carrying amuunt of $294 jucluded iu Other liabilities as uf

January 2011 with respect to the Lease Guarantees

Wendys is self insured for most workers compensation losses and purchases insurance for general liability and

automotive liability losses all subject to $500 per occurrence self-retention limits Arbys purchases insurance for most

workers compensation general liabiliry and automotive liability losses subject to $500 $100 and $0 self-retention

limits respectively Both Wendys and Arbys determine their liabilities for claims incurred but not reported for the

insurance liabilities on an actuarial basis Wendys and Arbys are self-insured for health care claims fdr eligible

participating employees subject to certain deductibles and limitations and determines its liability for health care

claims incurred but not reported based on historical claims runoff data

Wendys provided loan guarantees to various lenders on behalf of franchisees entering into pooled
debt facility

arrangements for new store development
and equipment financing Wendys has accrued liabiliry for the fair value

of these
guarantees the calculation for which was based upon weighed average risk percentage established at the

inception of each program Wendys potential recourse for the
aggregate amount of these loans amounted to $12998

as of January 2011 Duting 2010 Wendys recourse obligation associated with defaulted loans was $450 and

Wendys has not entered into any new loan guarantees since the Merger Date There remains an unamortized
carrying

amount of $373 included in Other liabilities as ofJanuary 2011 with respect to the loan
guarantees

The following letters of credit with various patties were outstanding as of January 2011

Year End

2010

Weiidys

Arbys 7660

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 32437

Corporate 669

Wendys/Arbys $33106

However our management does not expect any material loss to result from these letters of credit because we do

not believe performance will be required
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Purchase and Capital Commitments

Beverage Agreements

Wendys and Arbys have entered into beverage agreements
with certain beverage vendors to provide fountain

beverage products and certain marketing support funding to the Companies and their franchisees These agreements

require minimum purchases of fountain beverage syrup Syrup by the Companies and their franchisees at certain

preferred prices until the total contractual gallon volume
usage

has been reached In connection with these contracts

the Companies and their national advertising funds on behalf of the Companies franchisees received certain upfront

fees at the inception of the contract which are being amortized based on Syrup usage over the contract term In

addition these agreements provide various annual fees paid to us based on the vendors expectation of annual Syrup

usage
of the Companies which are amortized over annual

usage as reduction of Cost of Sales costs The

unamortized amounts of upfront fees are included in Deferred income and
usage

that exceeds estimated amounts

are included in Accounts and notes receivable

Beverage purchases made by the Companies under these various
agreements during 2010 2009 and 2008 were

approximately $28264 $27932 and $13908 respectively Future purchases by the Companies under these beverage

purchase requirements are estimated to be approximately $28806 per year over the next five years Based on current

preferred prices and the current ratio of sales at company-owned restaurants to franchised restaurants the total

remaining Companies beverage requirements are approximately $227550 over the remaining life of the contracts As

of January 2011 $1001 is due from beverage vendors and included in Accounts and notes receivables for the

difference in Syrup usage
in 2010 over originally estimated annual

usage amounts plus other contract provisions and

$1635 is included in Deferred income relating to the remaining unamortized upfront fees

Advertising Commitments

Arbys had purchase commitments of approximately $2814 related to execution of advertising strategy

including agency
fees and media buy obligations for 2011 Because most media purchase commitments can be

canceled within 90 days of scheduled broadcast the Companies do not believe that termination of these agreements

would have significant impact on the Companies operations All of Wendys advertising commitments at January

2011 were incurred by the Wendys National Advertising Program Inc

Capital Expenditures Commitments

As of January 2011 the Companies have $18195 of outstanding commitments for capital expenditures of

which $14542 is expected to be paid in 2011

Effective February 2011 certain lenders are offering financing to Wendys United States franchisees to purchase

new equipment and smallwares and modil5r other equipment needed to implement Wendys new hamburger product

roll out Wendys has agreed to subsidize portion of the interest which is estimated to be approximately $1500

that would otherwise be payable by the franchisees participating in this financing program The program is expected

to end in September 2011

AFA Dues Subsidy

The AFA Service Corporation AFA an independent membership corporation in which every domestic

Arbys franchisee is required to participate was formed to create advertising and perform marketing for the Arbys

system Effective January 2011 and for the remainder of 2011 the AFA Board has approved tiered dues rate

structure for the payment of the advertising and marketing service fee ranging between 1.25% and 3.5% of
gross

monthly sales In addition Arbys agreed to partially subsidize the top two rate tiers in 2011 thereby decreasing the

franchisees effective dues contribution rate percentages to 2.6% and 3.1% This subsidy will require payments by

Arbys of approximately $2900 to AFA for 2011 The 2010 subsidy for the
top two tiers paid by Arbys was

approximately $2635
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24 Transactions with Related Parties

The following is summary of transactions between the Companies and their related parties

2010 2009 2008

Strategic Sourcing Group agreement 5145

Wendys Co-op Agreement 15500

Subleases with related parties 346 213 227
Interest income on revolving credit facility 463
AFA dues subsidy 2635

Advisory fees 2465 5368

Charitable contributions to the Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption 1000

Charitable contributions to Foundation 500 500 500

Wendy s/A rby

Advisory fees $1000

Services Agreement 3500 9500

Sublease income 1632 1886 1633
Executive use of corporate aircraft 120 613 3028
Sale of helicopter interest 1860
Equities Account 38

Withdrawal Agreement 37401

Liquidation Services Agreement 441 239

Distributions to co-investment shareholders 795 2014

Transactions with Purchasing Cooperatives Foundation and AFA

On April 2010 the Wendys independent purchasing cooperative Quality Supply Chain Co-op QSCC
and the Arbys independent purchasing cooperative ARCOP in consultation with Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants established Strategic Sourcing Group Co-op LLC SSG SSG was formed to manage and operate

purchasing programs
which combine the purchasing power of both Wendys and Arbys company-owned and

franchised restaurants to create buying efficiencies for certain non-perishable goods equipment and services

In order to facilitate the orderly transition of this purchasing function for the Companies North America

operations Wendys/Arby Restaurants transferred certain contracts assets and certain Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants purchasing employees to SSG in the second quarter of 2010 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had

committed to pay approximately $5145 of SSG expenses which were expensed in 2010 and included in

General and administrative and was to be paid over 24 month period through March 2012 We made

payments
of $2000 in 2010

Should sale of Arbys occur as discussed in Note under the change of control provisions in the
agreement

that

established SSG the activities of SSG would be wound up In the wind up process
the assets personnel and

functions of SSG would be transferred to QSCC and ARCOP as such parties and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

agree
In contemplation of possible sale the parties are in discussion regarding the dissolution of SSG and

transferring SSGs assets personnel and functions to QSCC and ARCOP

During the 2009 fourth quarter Wendys entered into purchasing co-op relationship agreement the Co-op

Agreement to establish QSCC QSCC manages food and related product purchases and distribution services for

the Wendys system in the United States and Canada Through QSCC Wendys and Wendys franchisees

purchase food proprietary paper
and operating supplies under national contracts with pricing based upon total

system volume

QSCCs supply chain management facilitates continuity of supply and provides consolidated purchasing

efficiencies while monitoring and seeking to minimize possible obsolete inventory throughout the Wendys North

America supply chain The systems purchasing function for 2009 and prior was performed and paid for by
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Wendys In order to facilitate the orderly transition of the 2010 purchasing
function fot North America

operations Wendys transferred certain contracts assets and certain Wendys purchasing employees to QSCC in

the first quarter of 2010 Pursuant to the terms of the Co-op Agreement Wendys was required to pay $15500

to QSCC over an 18 month
period through May 2011 in order to provide funding for start-up costs operating

expenses and cash reserves The
required payments by Wendys under the Co-op Agreement were expensed in the

fourth quarter of 2009 and included in General and administrative Wendys made payments
of $15195 in

2010 In connection with the
ongoing operations of QSCC during 2010 QSCC reimbursed Wendys $913 for

amounts Wendys had paid primarily for payroll-related expenses
for certain Canadian QSCC purchasing

employees

ARCOP subleased approximately 4500
square

feet of the
corporate headquarters office space

from Arbys in

2010 and 2680 square
feet in 2009 and 2008 The Ashys Foundation Inc the Foundation not-for-profit

charitable foundation in which Arbys has non-controlling representation on the board of directors subleased

approximately 3800 square feet of the corporate headquarters
office

space from Arbys in 2010 2009 and 2008

Effective January 2010 QSCC subleased approximately 9333 square
feet of office

space
from

Wendys Effective April 2010 the SSG leased 2300 square
feet of office

space
from Arbys The Companies

received $104 $106 and $111 of sublease income from ARCOP in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively $105

$107 and $116 of sublease income from Foundation in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively $113 of sublease

income from QSCC in 2010 and $24 of sublease income from SSG in 2010

In December 2009 and as amended in February and August 2010 AFA entered into revolving loan
agreement

with Arbys The terms of this agreement allow AFA to have
revolving loans of up to $14000 outstanding with

an expiration
date of March 2012 and bearing interest at 7.5% per annum In February 2011 the maximum

principal amount of revolving
loans was reduced to $11000 As of January 2011 and January 2010 the

outstanding revolving
loan balance was $4458 and $5089 respectively Arhys received interest income of $463

and $4 in 2010 and 2009 respectively which is included in Other income expense

Beginning in January 2010 and
through March 2010 Ashys and most domestic Arbys franchisees paid 1.2% of

sales as member dues to AFA Beginning in April 2010 and for the remainder of 2010 the AFA Board approved

dues increase based on tiered rate structure for the payment of the
advertising

and marketing service fee

ranging
between 1.4% and 3.60o of sales As result the

average Ashys advertising
and marketing service fee

percentage
from April 2010 to the end of the 2010 fiscal

year was approximately 2.3% In addition Ashys

partially suhsidiaed the
top two rate tiers in 2010 thereby decreasing franchisees effective advertising and

marketing service fee
percentages

This subsidy required payments by Ashys of $2635 to AFA in 2010

Transactions with the Management Company

Wendys/Ashys and the Management Company entered into new services agreement the New Services

Agreement which commenced on July 2009 and will continue until June 30 2011 unless sooner

terminated Under the New Services Agreement the Management Company assists us with strategic merger
and

acquisition consultation corporate
finance and investment banking services and related legal matters Pursuant to

the terms of this agreement Wendys/Arbys is paying the Management Company service fee of $250
per

quarter payable in advance commencing July 2009 In addition in the event the Management Company

provides substantial assistance to us in connection with
merger or acquisition corporate

finance and/or similar

transaction that is consummated at any
time during the period commencing on the date the New Services

Agreement was executed and ending six months following the expiration of its term Wendys/Ashys will

negotiate success fee to be paid to the Management Company which is reasonable and customary for such

transactions In addition Wendys/Ashys incurred service fees of $1000 in 2010 which are included in

General and administrative

The Companies paid approximately $2465 and $5368 in 2010 and 2009 respectively in fees for corporate

finance advisory services under the New Services Agreement in connection with the negotiation and execution of

the Credit Agreement in 2010 and the issuance of the Senior Notes in 2009
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In connection with its 2007 resttuctuting Wendys/Arbys entered into an agreement
with the Management

Company fot the provision of services under
two-year transition services agreement the Services Agreement

effective June 30 2007 pursuant to which the Management Company provided Wendys/Ashys with
range

of

professional and strategic services Under the Services Agreement which expired on June 30 2009 and was

superseded by the New Services Agreement Wendys/Ashys paid the Management Company $3000 per quarter

for the first
year

of services and $1750 per quarter
for the second

year
of services Wendys/Arbys incurred

$3500 and $9500 of such service fees for 2009 and 2008 respectively which are included in General and

administrative

In July 2008 and July 2007 Wendys/Arbys entered into agreements under which the Management Company is

subleasing the Subleases office space on two of the floors of the Companys former New York

headquarters Under the terms of the Subleases the Management Company paid Wendys/Arbys approximately

$157 and $153 in 2009 and 2008 respectively per month which included an amount equal to the rent

Wendys/Arbys pays plus fixed amount reflecting portion
of the increase in the then fair market value of

Wendys/Arbys leasehold interest as well as amounts for property taxes and the other costs related to the use of

the space During the second quarter of 2010 Wendys/Ashys and the Management Company entered into an

amendment to the sublease effective April 2010 pursuant to which the Management Companys early

termination right was cancelled in exchange for reduction in rent Under the terms of the amended sublease the

sublease is not cancelable prior to the
expiration

of the
prime lease and the Management Company pays rent to

Wendys/Arbys in an amount that covers substantially all of the Companys rent obligations
under the

prime

lease for the subleased space Wendys/Arbys recognixed $1632 $1886 and $1633 from the Management

Company under the Subleases for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively which has been recorded as reduction of

General and administrative

In August 2007 Wendys/Arbys entered into time share agreements under which the Chairman and then Chief

Executive Officer and the Vice Chairman and then President and Chief Operating Officer of Wendys/Arbys

the Former Executives and the Management Company used two Wendys/Arbys corporate aircraft in

exchange for payment of certain incremental flight and related costs of such aircraft Those time share agreements

expired during the second
quarter

of 2009 and in the third quarter of 2009 one of the aircraft was sold to an

unrelated third
party

Such reimbursements for 2009 and 2008 amounted to $553 and $3028 and have been

recognixed as reduction of General and administrative

In June 2009 Wendys/Arbys and TASCO LLC an affiliate 0f the Management Company TASCO
entered into an aircraft lease

agreement the Aircraft Lease Agreement for the other aircraft that was previously

under the time share
agreement

mentioned above The Aircraft Lease Agreement originally provided that

Wendys/Arbys would lease such
corporate

aircraft to TASCO from July 2009 until June 30 2010 Under the

Aircraft Lease Agreement TASCO pays $10 per
month for such aircraft plus substantially all operating costs of

the aircraft including all costs of fuel inspection servicing and
storage as well as operational and flight crew costs

relating to the
operation

of the aircraft and all transit maintenance costs and other maintenance costs required as

result of TASCOs
usage

of the aircraft Wendys/Arbys continues to be responsible for calendar-based

maintenance and
any extraordinary and unscheduled repairs and/or maintenance for the aircraft as well as

insurance and other costs The Aircraft Lease Agreement may be terminated by Wendys/Arbys without penalty

in the event it sells the aircraft to third
party siihject to righr of first refusal in favor of rhe Management

Company with
respect to such sale

On June 24 2010 Wendys/Arbys and TASCO renewed the Aircraft Lease Agreement for an additional one

year period expiring June 30 2011 We received lease income of$120 and $60 in 2010 and 2009 respectively

under this agreement which is included as an offset to General and administrative

The Management Company assumed Wendys/Ashys 25% fractional interest in helicopter on October 2008

for $1860 which is the amount Wendys/Ashys would have received under the relevant agreement if it exercised

its right to sell the helicopter interest on October 2008 which is equal to the then fair value less remarketing
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fee The Management Company paid
the monthly management fee and all other costs telated to the helicopter

intetest to the owner on behalf of Wendys/Arbys from July 2007 unril October 2008

In 2005 the Company invested $75000 in brokerage accounts the Equities Account which were managed

by the Management Company The Equities Account was invested principally in equity securities cash

equivalents and equity derivatives of limited number of publicly-traded companies In addition the Equities

Account sold securities short and invested in market put options in order to lessen the impact of significant

market downturns On September 12 2008 251 shares of Wendys common stock which were included in the

Equities Account were sold to the Management Company at the closing market value as of the day the Company
decided to sell the shares The sale resulted in loss of $38

On June 10 2009 Wendys/Arbys and the Management Company entered into withdrawal
agreement the

Withdrawal Agreement which provided that Wendys/Arbys would be permitted to withdraw all amounts in

the Equities Account on an accelerated basis the Early Withdrawal effective no later than June 26 2009 Prior

to the Withdrawal Agreement and as result of an investment management agreement
with the Management

Company which was terminated on June 26 2009 Wendys/Arbys had not been permitted to withdraw
any

amounts from the Equities Account until December 31 2010 although $47000 was released from the Equities

Account in 2008 subject to an obligation to return that amount to the Equities Account by specified
date In

consideration for
obtaining

such Early Withdrawal right Wendys/Arbys agreed to pay
the Management

Company $5500 the Withdrawal Fee was not required to return the $47000 referred to above and was no

longer obligated to pay
investment management and incentive fees to the Management Company The Equities

Account investments were liquidated in June 2009 for $37401 the Equities Sale of which $31901 was

received by Wendys/Arbys net of the Withdrawal Fee and for which Wendys/Arbys realized gain of $2280

in 2009 which are both included in Investment income expense net

On June 10 2009 Wendys/Arbys and the Management Company entered into liquidation services agreement

the Liquidation Services Agreement pursuant to which the Management Company assists us in the sale

liquidation or other disposition of our cost investments and DFR Notes the Legacy Assets which are not related

to the Equities Account As of the date of the Liquidation Services Agreement the Legacy Assets were valued at

$36600 the Target Amount of which $5138 was owned by Wendys/Atbys Restaurants The Liquidation

Services Agreement which expires June 30 2011 required Wendys/Arbys to pay
the Management Company fee

of $900 in two installments in June 2009 and 2010 which is being amortized over the term of the agreement $441

and $239 were amortized and recorded in General and administrative in 2010 and 2009 respectively In addition

in the event that
any or 211 nf the

egacy
Assets are sold liquidated or otherwise disposed of and the

aggregate net

proceeds to us are in excess of the Target Amount we would be requited to pay
the Management Company

success fee equal to 10% of the
aggregate net proceeds in excess of the Target Amount Assuming current

liquidation of all
remaining Legacy Assets the aggregate proceeds $32209 as of January 2011 primarily

related

to the cancellation and
repayment

of the DFR Notes would not be expected to be in excess of the Target Amount

Transactions with Other Related Parties

In 2008 the Companies pledged $1000 to be paid in equal annual installments over five
year period

commencing in 2008 to be donated to the Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption related party The amount

pledged was recorded in General and administrative in 2008

During the 2010 2009 and 2008 the Companies made charitable contributions of $500 to Foundation

primarily utilizing funds reimbursed to it by one of the beverage companies used by Arbys as provided by their

contract Such payments are included in General and administrative

As part of its overall retention efforts Wendys/Arbys provided certain of its Former Executives and current and

former
employees the opportunity to co-invest with Wendys/Ashys in certain investments Wendys/Arbys and

certain of its former management have one remaining co-investment 280 BT which is limited
liability holding

company principally owned by Wendys/Arbys and former company management that among other things
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invested in operating companies During 2009 and 2008 Wendys/Arbys received distributions of $795 and

$2014 respectively from the liquidation of certain of the investments owned by 280 BT The minority portions of

these distributions of $156 and $402 in 2009 and 2008 respectively were further distributed to 280 BTs minority

shareholders No distributions were received in 2010 The ownership percentages as of January 2011 were 80.1%
11 .20o and 8.7% for Wendys/Arbys the former officers of Wendys/Arbys and other investors respectively

On September 29 2008 David Karam minority shareholder director and former president of Cedar

Enterprises Inc which directly or through affiliates is Wendys franchisee
operator

of 146 Wendys restaurants as

of January 2011 and 133 as of January 2010 and December 28 2008 became President of Wendys In

connection with Mr Karams employment Mr Karam resigned as director and
president

of Cedar Enterprises Inc

but retained his minority ownership After the Wendys Merger the Companies recorded $7315 $6240 and $1801

in royalties and $5471 $4633 and $1339 in advertising fees in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively from Cedar

Enterprises and its affiliates as franchisee of Wendys Cedar Enterprises Inc and its affiliates also received $125
$175 and $75 in remodeling incentives in 2010 2009 and 2008 the period from September 29 2008 through

December 28 2008 respectively from Wendys pursuant to program generally available to Wendys franchisees

and $774 in 2010 related to funding
for equipment related to their participation in product development testing

Mr Karam was also minority investor in two other Wendys franchisee operators Emerald Food Inc and

Diamond Foods L.L.C which at the time were operators of 44 and 16 Wendys restaurants respectively

Mr Karam disposed of his interests in these companies effective November 2008

Wendy s/Arby ii Restaurants

The following is summary of transactions between Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and Wendys/Arbys

2010 2009 2008

Dividends paid $443700 $115000

Cost allocation to restaurant segments 34085
Advances paid 155000

Capital contributions received 150177
Other transactions

Share-based compensation 12790 13570 8770

Payments for Federal and state income tax 10417 17000

Expense net credit under management service agreements 5017 5017 1504

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants paid cash dividends to Wendys/Arbys which were charged to Invested

equity During the 2010 second
quarter

dividends paid to Wendys/Arbys included $325000 as specifically

permitted under the terms of the Credit Agreement

For the first quarter of 2009 WendyJArbys charged the restaurant segments $34085 for support services Prior

to that date the restaurant segments had directly incurred such costs These costs are included in General and

administrative During 2009 we settled $20526 of such support center costs in cash through our intercompany

account with Wendys/Arbys

On the first day of the second
quarter

of 2009 we established shared service center in Atlanta Georgia As

result support center costs from that date have been directly incurred by Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and were

allocated to the restaurant segments based on budgeted revenues

During the fourth
quarter

of 2008 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants advanced an aggregate of$155000 to Wendys

Arbys WendysArbys used such advances principally to fund $150177 of capital contributions to

Arbys Arbys used portion of these capital contributions to prepay the prior Arbys amended term loan in an

aggregate principal amount of$143200 These advances by WendysArbys Restaurants do not bear interest and

WendysArbys does not currently intend to repay
such advances Accordingly the $155000 of advances were

reflected as reduction of Invested equity
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Wendys/Arbys Restaurants provides share based compensarion wirh respect to Wendys/Arbys Common Stock

to certain employees Such compensation cost is allocared by Wendys/Arbys to Wendys/Arhys Restauranrs and

is correspondingly recorded as capital conrributions from Wendys/Arbys

Wendys/Arhys Restaurants made payments to Wendys/Arbys under tax sharing agreement as discussed in

more detail in Note 13 which were settled in cash with Wendys/Arbys

Wendys/Aibys Restaurants receives certain management services including legal accounting tax insurance

financial and other management services from Wendys/Arbys In connection with the RTM Acquisition Arbys

entered into management services agreement
with Wendys/Arbys effective July 25 2005 that provides for an

initial annual fixed fee of $4500 plus
annual cost of

living adjustments beginning January 2006 Such fees are

included in General and administrative Amounts incurred under such service arrangements
and other

incidental amounts are settled through Wendys/Arbys Restaurants
intercompany account with Wendys

Arbys As result of the 2005 agreement
with Wendys/Arbys described above Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

results of operations may not be indicative of those that would be achieved if they had operated on stand alone

basis

In 2008 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants also provided services to Wendys/Arbys Costs of the services that were

allocated to Wendys/Arbys were based on actual direct costs incurred The reimbursement of these costs totaled

$6472 for 2008 and is included as reduction of General and administrative

25 Legal and Environmental Matters

We are involved in litigation and claims incidental to our current and prior businesses As of January 2011

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had reserves for all of its legal and environmental matters aggregating $3739 which are

included in the $3855 reserved by Wendys/Arbys for all legal and environmental matters Although the outcome of

these matters cannot be predicted with certainty and some of these matters may be disposed of unfavorably to us

based on currently available information including legal defenses available to us and given the aforementioned

reserves and our insurance
coverage we do not believe that the outcome of these legal and environmental matters will

have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations

26 Advertising Costs and Funds

Since the Wendys Merger the Companies participate in three national advertising
funds the Advertising

Funds established to collect and administer funds contributed for use in advertising
and promotional programs

Contributions to the
Advertising Funds are required

from both company-owned and franchise restaurants and ate

based on percentage
of restaurant sales In addition to the contributions to the various Advertising Funds company-

owned and franchise restaurants make additional contributions to other local and
regional advertising programs

Restricted assets and related liabilities of the Advettising Funds at January 2011 and January 2010 are as

follows

Year End

2010 2009

Cash and cash equivalents $23102 21856

Accounts and notes receivable 42672 42l9S

Other assets 10779 16425

Total assets $76553 80476

Accounts payable 3724 $15299

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 76897 79121

Members deficit 4068 13944

Total liabilities and deficit $76553 80476
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The Companies advertising expenses in 2010 2009 and 2008 totaled $169704 $182008 and $110849

respectively

27 Business Segments

The Companies manage and internally report
rheir operations in two segments

the operation and

franchising of Wendys restaurants and the operation and franchising of Arhys restaurants We evaluate
segment

performance and allocate resources based on each segments operating profit loss

The Wendys restaurants segment is operated through franchised and company-owned Wendys quick service

restaurants specializing in hamburger sandwiches The franchised restaurants are principally located throughout the

United States and to lesser extent in 23 foreign countries and territories with the largest number in Canada

Company-owned restaurants are located in 30 states with the largest number in Florida Illinois Pennsylvania Ohio

and Texas Wendys restaurants offer an extensive menu featuring hamburgers filet of chicken breast sandwiches

chicken
nuggets chili side dishes freshly prepared salads soft drinks milk Frosty desserts floats and kids meals

In addition the restaurants sell variety of promotional products on limited basis The Bakery is producer of buns

for Wendys restaurants and to lesser extent for outside parties including certain distributors to the Arbys system

The Arbys restaurants segment
is operated through franchised and company-owned Arbys quick service

restaurants specializing in slow-roasted toast beef sandwiches The franchised restaurants are principally located

throughout the United States and to much lesser extent in four other countries principally in Canada Company-

owned restaurants are located in 27 states with the largest number in Michigan Ohio Indiana Georgia and Florida

Arbys restaurants also offer an extensive menu of chicken turkey and ham sandwiches side dishes snacks soft

drinks and milk including its Market Fresh sandwiches salads wraps
and toasted subs

We had no customers which accounted for 10% or more of consolidated revenues in 2010 2009 or 2008 As of

January 2011 the Wendys restaurants segment
had one main in-line distributor of food packaging and beverage

products excluding produce and breads that serviced approximately 67% of its company-owned and franchised

restaurants and two additional in-line distributors that in the
aggregate

serviced approximately 20% of its company-

owned and franchised restaurants As of January 2011 Arbys restaurants segment
had one main in-line distributor

of food packaging and beverage products excluding produce breads and beverage products that serviced

approximately 48% of Arbys company-owned and franchised restaurants and four additional in-line distributors that

in the aggregate serviced approximately 47% of Arbys company-owned and franchised restaurants We believe that

our vulnerability to risk concentrations in our restaurant segments related to significant vendors and sources of its raw

materials is mitigated as we believe that there are other vendors who would be able to service our requirements

However if disruption of service from any of our main in-line distributors was to occur we could experience short-

term increases in our costs while distribution channels were adjusted

Because our restaurant operations are generally located throughout the United States and to much lesser

extent Canada and other foreign countries and territories we believe the risk of geographic concentration is not

significant Our restaurant segments could also be adversely affected by changing consumer preferences resulting from

concerns over nutritional or safety aspects of beef poultry French Fries or other products we sell or the effects of food

safety events or disease outbreaks Out exposure to foreign exchange risk is primarily related to fluctuations in the

Canadian dollar relative to the U.S dollar for Canadian operations in the Wendys restaurant segment However our

exposure to Canadian dollar foreign currency risk is mitigated by the fact that less than 10% of our restaurants are in

Canada
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The following is summary of the Companies segment
information

2010 2009 2008

Revenues

Sales

Wendys $2079106 $2134242 530843

Arbys 966236 1064106 1131448

Corporate eliminations 25

Total 3045317 3198348 1662291

Franchise revenues

Wendys 296395 302853 74588

Arbys 74739 79634 8882

Corporate eliminations

Total 371097 382487 160470

Total revenues

Wendys 2375501 2437095 605431

Arbys 1040975 1143740 1217.330

Corporate eliminations 62

Total $3416414 $3580835 $1822761

Depreciation and amortization

Wendys 113064 128048 23852

Arbys 55326 56188 61206

Shared services center 11.920 4.270

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 180310 188506 85058

Corporate 1862 1745 3257

Wendys/Arbys 182172 190251 88315

Impairment of long-lived assets

Wendys 26326 23443 1578

Arbys 43151 56513 8002

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 69477 79956 9580

Corporate 2176 9623

Wendys/Ashys 69477 82132 19203

Segment operating profit loss

Wendys 204911 167753 30788

Arbys 50685 29248 395304

Corporate eliminations

Shared services centet 11920 8553
__________

Wendys/Ashys Restautants 142300 129952 364516

Corporate 9912 17976 49134

Wendys/Arbys 132388 111976 413650

Wendy s/A rby Restaurants

Segment operating profit loss 142300 129952 364516
Unallocated items

Interest
expense 136193 125392 66925

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 26197
Other income expense net 2667 293 3234

Loss income from continuing operations before income taxes 17423 1587 428207
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2010 2009 2008

Wendy s/Arby

Segment opetating profit loss 132388 111976 $413650
Unallocated items

Interest expense 137229 126708 67009
Loss on early extinguishment

of debt 26197
Investment income expense net 5261 3008 9438

Other than temporary losses on investments 3916 112741
Other income net 3782 1523 2710

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 21995 20133 $58 1252

Year End

2010 2009

Total assets

Wendys $3725108 $3996371

Arbys 522569 562192

Wendys/Ashys Restaurants corporate 169020 305327

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 4416697 4863890

Corporate 315957 111526

Wcndys/Asbys $4732654 $4975416

Wendy s/A rby Restaurants and Wendy s/Arby

Equity method investment 98631 97476

2010 2009

Cash capital expenditures

Wendys 73317 55155

Ashys 57577 29646

Wendys/Ashys Restaurants corporate 17075 17113

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 147969 101914

Corporate

Wendys/Ashys 147969 101914

S.ales
include sales of bakery items and kids meal promotion items sold to franchisees

The Wendys/Ashys Restaurants
corporate capital expenditures are primarily related to our shared services center

Income for our equity investment in TimWen is included in the Wendys restaurants segment

In the first
quarter

of 2009 Wendys/Ashys began charging the restaurant segments
for

support
services based

upon budgeted segment revenues Prior to that date the restaurant segments
had directly incurred such costs

Commencing with the second
quarter

of 2009 Wendys/Ashys established shared service center in Atlanta and

allocates its operating costs to the restaurant segments
based also on budgeted segment revenues
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Revenues and long-lived asset information by geographic area are as follows

Other

U.S Canada International Total

2010

Revenues

Wendys restaurants $2117062 $244654 $13785 $2375501

Arbys restaurants 1037959 2827 189 1040975

Corporate eliminations 62
_________ _______

62

Consolidated revenue $3154959 $247481 $13974 $3416414

Long-lived assets

Wendys restaurants $1084516 61172 19 $1145707

Arbys restaurants 382392 382398

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants corporate 13748 13748

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 1480656 61178 19 1541853

Corporate 9408 9408

Wendys/Arbys $1490064 61178 19 $1551261

2009

Revenues

Wendys restaurants $2190003 $233359 $13 $2437095

Arbys restaurants 1140860 2725 155 1143740

Consolidated revenue $3330863 $236084 $13888 $3580835

Long-lived assets

Wendys restaurants $1114057 63393 32 $1177482

Arbys restaurants 419748 419755

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants corporate 10621 10621

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants 1544426 63400 32 1607858

Corporate 11390 _______ ______ 11390

Wendys/Arbys $1555816 63400 32 $1619248

2008

Revenues

Wendys restaurants 548792 53201 3438 605431

Arbys restaurants 1213774 3419 137 1217330

Consolidated revenue $1762566 $56620 3575 $1822761
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28 Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

The table below sets forth summary unaudited consolidated quarterly financial information for 2010 and

2009 The Companies report on fiscal year typically consisting of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to

December 31 With the exception of the fourth quarter of 2009 which had 14 weeks the remainder of the

Companies fiscal quartets in 2010 and 2009 contained 13 weeks

Wendy VArby

Revenues

Cost of sales

Operating profit loss

Loss income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations

Net loss income

Basic and diluted loss income per share

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net loss income

Revenues

Cost of sales

perating profit

Net loss income

Basic and diluted loss income per
share amounts for the

quartets
have been calculated separately on consistent

basis with the annual calculations Basic and diluted loss income per
share are being presented together since

diluted loss income per share was the same as basic loss income per
share for all periods presented See Note

Income Loss Per Share for additional information

Revenues

Cost of sales

Operating profit

Net loss income

Basic and diluted loss income per share

2010 Quarter Ended

April July October January 2011

$837447 $877021 $861214 $840732

641422 659084 667063 643192

26333 72663 20345 13047

3400 10742 909 10758

.0l$ .03 .03

2009 Quarter Ended

March 29 June28 September27 January 2010

$863984 $912687 $903221 $900943

675942 686462 684071 682009

13934 56507 56822 15287

10924 14892 14266 14718
422 1124

10924 14892 14688 13594

.02 .03 .03 .03$$

.02 .03 .03 .03

2010 Quarter Ended

April July October January 2011b

$837447 $877021 $861214 $840732

641422 659084 66063 643192

28254 75087 22438 16521

2560 9375 357 9810

Wendy YArby Restaurants

2009 Quarter Ended

March 29 June 28 September27 January 2010

Revenuec

Cost of sales

Operating profit loss

Net loss income

$863984

675942

17978

6080

$912687

686462

68865

24255

$903221

684071

58532

14220

$900943

682005

15423

22746
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The nperating prnfit was materially affected by impaitment of long-lived assets in 2010 The impact of the

impairment of long-lived assets on net loss income for the first second third and fourth
quarters

of 2010 was

$7193 $1497 $16994 and $17393 respectively after income tax benefits of $4408 $917 $10415

and $10660 respectively

Net loss income for Wendys/Arbys was also affected by income recognized in the second
quarter

of 2010 on

the
repayment

and cancellation of the DFR notes of $3044 after income tax expense of$1865

The operating profit loss was materially affected by impairment of long-lived assets in 2009 The impact of the

impairment of long lived assets on net loss income for the first second third and fourth
quarters

of 2009 was

$4266 $4045 $9627 and $31635 respectively after income tax benefits of $2614 $2479 $5901

and $19389 respectively During the second quarter of 2009 Wendys/Arbys net income was impacted by

additional impairment of long-lived assets of $1349 after income tax benefit of $827

29 Guarantor/Non-Guarantor

Wendy s/Arby Restaurants

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants is the issuer of and certain of its domestic subsidiaries have guaranteed amounts

outstanding under our 1Oo Senior Notes Each of the guaranteeing subsidiaries is direct or indirect 100% owned

subsidiary of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants and each has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the 10% Senior Notes

on joint and several basis

The following are included in the presentation of our Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of

January 2011 and January 2010 Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the
years

ended

January 2011 January 2010 and December 28 2008 and Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash

Flows for the
years

ended January 2011 January 2010 and December 28 2008 to reflect

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants the Parent

the 10o Senior Notes
guarantor

subsidiaries as group

the 10o Senior Notes
non-guarantor

subsidiaries as group

elimination entries necessary to combine the Parent with the guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries and

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants on consolidated basis

Substantially all of our domestic restricted subsidiaries are guarantors of the 10% Senior Notes Certain of our

subsidiaries including our foreign subsidiaries and national advertising funds do not guarantee the 10% Senior

Notes

For purposes of presentation of such consolidating information investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by

the Parent on the Equity Method as if Wendys/Arbys Restaurants had existed as separate legal entiry by the

beginning of the earliest period presented The elimination entries are principally necessary to eliminate intercompany

balances and transactions
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

January 2011

Guarantor Non guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

ASSETS
Cuttent assets

Cash and cash equivalents 79355 88936 30395 198686

Accounts and notes receivable 320 79404 3628 83352

Inventories 21558 1136 22694

Prepaid expenses
and othet cuttent

assets 3900 19446 686 24032
Deferted income tax benefit 17634 27218 215 45067

Advertising funds restricted assets 76553 76553

Total current assets 101209 236562 112613 450384

Properties 13748 1466769 61336 1541853
Other intangible assets 21453 1310092 27029 1358574
Goodwill 841156 47765 888921

Investments 102406 102406

Notes receivable 12612 12612

Deferred costs and other assets 32610 28662 675 61947
Ncr investment in subsidiaries 2cc926 246578 2806104
Deferred income tax benefit 86423 97 86520
Duefromaffiliares 59618 17893 77511

_________

Total assets $2874587 $4142431 $369814 $2970135 $4416697

LIABILITIES AND INVESTED EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt 5228 11587 232 17047

Accounts payable 4624 70901 5623 81148

Accrued
expenses

and other current

liabilities 38871 195282 10147 244300

Advertising funds restricted

liabilities 76553 76553

Total current liabilities 48723 277770 92555 419048

Long-term
debt 1043623 495505 3556 1542684

Due to affiliates 108319 77511 30808
Deferred income 10888 572 11460

Deferred income taxes 548088 16904 86520 478472
Other liabilities 5611 142335 9649 157595

Invested equity

Member interest $0.01 par value

1000 shares authorixed one share

issued and
outstanding

Orhercapital 2.423459 3244428 199014 3.443507 2473459
Accumulated deficit retained

earnings 499500 537633 39594 498039 499500
Advances to Wendys/Arbys 155000 155000 155000 155000
Accumulated other comprehensive

income 7671 7671 7970 15641 7671

Total invested equity 1776630 2559526 246578 2806104 1776630

Total liabilities and invested

equity $2874587 $4142431 $369814 $2970135 $4416697
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

January 2010

Guarantor Non-guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 237607 268762 32495 538864

Accounts and notes receivable 29 84291 3287 87607
Inventories 21870 1154 23024

Prepaid expenses
and other current

assets 4918 22320 599 2837
Deferred income tax benefit 14160 33204 192 47556

Advertising funds restricted assets 80476 80476

Total current assets 256714 430447 118203 805364

Properties 10621 1533633 63574 1607858
Other intangible assets 18026 1346725 28132 1392883
Coodwill 841156 45140 886296

Investments 4664 97476 102140

Notes receivable 13599 13599

Deferred costs and other assets 19966 35098 686 55750

Net investment in subsidiaries 2371674 236447 2608121
Deferred income tax benefit 79.325 92 79.4171

Due from affiliates 45415 15188 60603
_________

Total assets $2801741 $4441799 $368491 $2748141 $4863890

LIABILITIES AND INVESTED EQUITY
Current liabilities

Currentportion oflong-term debt .. 216 15761 201 16178

Accounts payable 5665 83762 6412 95839
Accrued

expenses and other current

liabilities 40459 217281 10441 268181

Advertising funds testricted

liabilities 80476
___________

80476

Total current liabilities 46340 316804 97530 460674

Long-term debt 552146 930776 2810 1485732
Due to affiliates 103518 60603 42915
Deferred income 12494 701 13195

Deferred income taxes 561237 21159 79417 502979

Other liabilities 5348 145296 9844 160488

Invested equity

Member interest $0.01 par value

1000 shares authorized one share

issued and
outstanding

Other capital 2854775 3091081 210230 3301311 2854775

Accumulated deficit retained

earnings 496862 559401 30913 528488 496862
Advances to Wendys/Arbys 155000 155000 155000 155000
Accumulated other comprehensive

loss 5006 5006 4696 9702 5006
Total invested equity 2197907 2371674 236447 2608121 2197907

Total liabilities and invested

equity $2801741 $4441799 $368491 $2748141 $4863890
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Total

$2819480 $225837 $3045317

349189 21908 371097

_______
3168669 247745 3416414

2q159q8 19q813 2blO
395069 13350 408419

157463 10927 180310

65609 3868 69477

12540 7393 5147

_______
3046629 215565

_______
3274114

122040 32180 142300

57098 358 136193
26197 26197
17393 14884 2667

_______
11864

68002 16938 F423

_______
48556 5074 14785

________
19446 11864

_______
2638

Total

$2982887 $215461 $3198348

_______
361716 20771

_______
382487

________
3344603 236232 3580835

2538821 189659 2728480

433115 9571 442686

174001 10235 188506

79956 79956

3330 403 8016

________
10987 7748

_______
3239

________
3240210 202120 3450883

104393 34112 129952

93193 135 125392
12039 15036 2973

________
16213

________ __________

39452 18941 1587

________
92342 2728 8062

________
52890 16213 9649

Guarantor Non guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended January 2011

Revenues

Sales

Franchise revenues

Costs and
expenses

Cost of sales

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of long lived assets

Other operating expense income net

Operating loss profit

Interest
expense

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Other income expense net

Equity in income of subsidiaries

Luss ineume bcfure inLume taxes

Benefit from provision for income taxes

Net loss income

11920

11920

11920
78737

158

19446

71053
68415

2638

Eliminations

31310

31310

$3l310

Eliminations

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended January 2010

Guarantor Non guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

Revenues

Sales

Franchise revenues

Costs and expenses

Cost of sales

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of other long-lived assets

Facilities relocation and restructuring

Other operating expense income net

Operating loss profit

Interest expense

Other income expense net

Equity in loss income of subsidiaries

Loss income before income taxes

Benefit from provision for income taxes

Net income loss

4270

4283

8553

8553
32064

24

52890

93483
103132

9649

36677

36677

$36677
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 28 2008

3o9927

210777

82979

460075

9580

3221

_________
2455

2139014

372956

66839

6809

_________
2962

430024

_________
64938

_________
365086

1415530

213161

85058

460075

9580

3221

652

2187277

364516

66925

3234

428207

63121

365086

Guarantor Non-guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

$1612915

________
153143

1766058

Total

$1662291

160470

1822761

Revenues

Sales

Franchise revenues

Cosrs and
expenses

Cost of sales

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Goodwill impairment

Impairment of other long-lived assets

Facilities relocation and restructuring

Other operating expense income net

Operating loss profit

Interest expense

Other income expense net

Equity in loss income of subsidiaries

Loss income before income taxes

Benefit from provision for income taxes

Net loss income

$49376

7327

56703

456U3

2384

2079

1803

48263

8440

86
3575

4779

1817

2962

365086

365086

$365086

362124

362124

$362124
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended January 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss income

Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Equity in income from operations of subsidiaries

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of long-lived assets

Accretion of long term debt

Distributions received from joint venture

Share-based compensation provision

Write-off and amortization of deferred financing

costs

Provision for doubtful accounts

Non-cash rent expense credit

Tax sharing receivable from payable to affiliate

net

Tax sharing receipts from payments to affiliate

net

Net recognition of deferred vendor incentive

Other operating transactions with affiliates

Equity in earnings in joint venture

Deferred income tax benefit net

Other net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts and notes receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses
and other current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued
expenses

and other current

liabilities

Net cash used in provided by operating

activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures

Pinceedc frnm dispncitionc

Cost of acquisitions less cash acquired

Other net

Ncr cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayments of long-term debt

Deferted financing costs

Capital contributions from Parent

Dividends paid to Parent

Dividends paid to Wendys/Arbys

Redemption of preferred stock

Other net

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash used before effect of exchange rate changes on

cash

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

146

497500

2716
16353

520335

11864
157463

65609

13311

8839

7245

9932
9839

50788

56000
587

15140

5300
1035

4190
311

213
15268

23418

240048

124395
660

3123
147

121711

375000 375000

31310

10927 180310
3868 69477

15016

13980 13980
12790

11763

238 9694

505 9334

1052

587
8032
9459

25752
504

4193
394

755

14184

_______ _______
27962

231254

147969
660

3123

_______
1263

_______
144169

497661

466461
16353

Non-

Guarantor guarantor

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

2638 19446 $11864

Eliminations Total

$31310 2638

19446
11920

1705

3951

4518

49736

56000

20370

18351
2406

61

1017

2341

3808

30552

17075

17075

2802
9459
2101
1875

58

83

49
1257

736

21758

6499

1116

5383

209

19877

20086

3711
1611

2100
32495

30395

161

463536

520335

443700

21

110625

158252

158252
237607

79355

19877

298163

179826

179826
268762

88936

443700

21

428874

341789
1611

340178
538864

$198686



WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended January 2010

Cash flows from continuing operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash

provided by continuing operating activities

Equity in loss income from continuing operations

of subsidiaries

Depreciation and amortization

Impairmcnt of uthcr long-livcd assets

Tax sharing receivable from payable to Wendysf

Arbys net

Tax sharing payments to Wendys/Arbys
Write-off and amortization of deferred financing

costs

Distributions received from joint venture

Share-based compensation provision

Non-cash rent expense

Accretion of long-term debt

Provision for doubtflil accounts

Deferred income tax benefit provision net

Other operating transactions with affiliates

Equity in earnings in joint venture

Net recognition of vendor incentive

Other net

Changes in operating assets and liabiliries

Accounts and notes receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses
and other current assets

Accounts payable accrued
expenses

and other

current liabilities

Net cash used in provided by

continuing operating activities

Cash flows from continuing investing activities

Capital expenditures

Proceeds from dispositions

Cost of acquisitions less cash acquired

Other net

Net cash used in continuing investing

activities

Cash flows from continuing financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayments of long-term debt

Deferred financing costs

Capital contributions from Parent

Dividends paid to Wendys/Arbys

Net cash provided by used in

continuing financing activities

Net cash provided by continuing operations

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net cash provided by continuing operations

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued

operations

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

607507

209482
38399

115000

Non

Psrent

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

9649 52890 $16213 36677 9649

52890 16213 36677
4270 174001

79956

10235 188506

995G

9648 50061

10417
40413

10417

1632 14164

14583

15796

14583

3550 10020

12618

13570

12618

718

94686

9682

8279

28906

110
2761

10400

8169

68541
33506

559

48279

791
11429

659
8499

5317

14114

8499
791

5553

29 7770
1859

120

20

7679
1879

4918 5307 732 1121

43095 42353 539 1281

27542 324127 25096 321681

17113 80458
10472

2357
192

4343
410

101914
10882

2357
192

17113 72151 3933 93197

551061 56160 286

52 209198 232
21247 17152

132500 132500

115000

282262 37690 54 244626

237607 214286 21217

2725

473110

2725

237607 214286 23942 475835

51 51

237607 214235

54527

23942

8553

475784

63080

237607 268762 $32495 538864
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WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMBINED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCONTINUED
In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 28 2008

Non-

Parent

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash flows from continuing operating activities

Net loss income $365086 $365086 2962 362124 $365086
Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash

provided by continuing operating activities

Equity in loss income from continuing operations

of subsidiaries 365086 2962 362124
Depreciation and amortization

Impairmciit uf uthcr lung-livLd assets

Tax sharing payments to WendysfArbys

82979

9580

17000

2079 85058

9580

17000
Write off and amortization of deferred financing

costs 3753 3753
Distributions received from joint venture 2864 2864

Share based compensation provision 8770 8770
Non cash rent expense 3103 3103
Accretion of long term debt 2452 2452

Provision for doubtful accounts 556 114 670

Deferred income tax benefit net 62519 204 62723
Other operating transactions with affiliates 10859 5596 5263

Equity in earnings in joint venture

Net ieeognition of vendor incentive 6459
1974 1974

6459
Goodwill impairmeor 460075 460075

Other net 17163 12811 4352

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts and notes receivable 2670 1303 1367
Inventories 70 70 140
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14135 5665 19800
Accounts payable accrued

expenses
and other

current liabilities 40780 9246 50026

Net cash provided by used in

continuing operating activities 115879 14914 100965

Cash flows from continuing investing activities

Capital expenditures

Proceeds from dispositions

Cost of acquisitions less cash acquired

102904
1322

9622

3020 105924
1322

9622
Increase in cash from the Wendys merger 171421 28364 199785

Other net 129 129

Net cash provided by continuing

investing activities 60088 25344 85432

Cash flows from continuing financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayments of notes payable and long-term

debt

17753

175521

17753

175521
Capital contributions from Wendys/Arbys 150177 150177

Advances to Wendys/Arbys 155000 155000
Other net 659 659

Net cash used in continuing financing

activities 163250 163250

Net cash provided by continuing operations before effect of

exchange rate changes on cash

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

12717 10430

4123
23147

4123

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

12717
41810

6307

2246

19024

44056

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 54527 8553 63080
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Discsure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The management of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants under the supervision and with the

participation of their Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the effectiveness of the design

and operation of their disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e or 15d-15e under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act as of January 2011 Based on such

evaluations the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of January 2011 the

disclosure controls and procedures of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants were effective in recording

processing summarixing and reporting on timely basis information required ro be disclosed by each company in

the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act and ensuring that information required to be disclosed

by each company in such reports is accumulated and communicated to management including the Chief Executive

Officer and our Chief Financial Officer ac appropriare to allow
timely decisions regarding required dicclnciire

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants is responsible for establishing
and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15ffl of the Exchange

Act The management of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants under the supervision
and with the

participation
of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer carried out an assessment of the effectiveness

of our internal control over financial reporting for Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants as of January

2011 The assessment was performed using the criteria for effective internal control reflected in the Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organixarions of the Treadway Commission COSO

Based on the assessment of the
system

of internal control for Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

the management of each company believes that as of January 2011 internal control over financial reporting of

Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Resraurants were effective

Wendys/A rbys

Our independent registered public accounting firm Deloitre Touche LLP has issued an attestation report

dated March 2011 on Wendys/Arbys internal control over financial reporting

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the internal control over financial reporting of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants made during the
quarter

that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect their internal

control over financial reporting

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any control system including the potential for human

error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures Additionally judgments in decision-

making can be faulty and breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake An effective control system can

provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the control objectives of the system are adequately

met Accordingly the management of Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys Restaurants including their Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer does nor expect that the control system can prevent or detect all error

or fraud Finally projections of any evaluation or assessment of effectiveness of control system to future periods are

subject ro the risks that over time controls may become inadequate because of changes in an entitys operating

environment or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

Atlanta Georgia

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc and subsidiaries

the Company as of January 2011 based on criteria established in Internal 6ontrol Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of internal control over financial reporting included in Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial
reporting

based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oveisight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perforn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and effected

by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regatding the

teliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exteinal purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly teflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance thar ttansacrions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on

the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be

prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of
any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material
respects

effective internal control over financial

reporting as of January 2011 based on the criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the

year ended January 2011 and our report
dated March 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial

statements and financial statement schedule

Is Deloitte Touche LLP

Atlanta Georgia

March 2011

150



Item 9B Other Info nnation

In January 2011 Wendys/Arbys announced that it is exploting strategic alternatives for the Arbys brand

including sale of the brand To incent key members of senior management to remain with Wendys/Arbys while

strategic alternatives are under consideration to provide an orderly transition if the Arbys brand is sold and with

respect to Stephen Hare Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer to incentivize Mr Hare to remain

emplnyed fnr at least three
years

if Arbys is sold and the headquarters is moved to Ohio the Wendys/Arbys

Compensation Committee has authorized Wendys/Arbys to enter into retention agreements
with Mr Hare and Nils

Okeson Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

The retention agreement with Mr Hare would provide that if Arbys is sold Mr Hare would consent under

the terms of the December 18 2008 letter
agreement

between Wendys/Arbys and Mr Hare to relocate to Ohio and

that he would not assert that triggering event had occurred under such letter
agreement

due to his being required

to relocate to Ohio or due to the sale of Arbys

Within 30 days following sale of Arbys Mr Hare would receive $750000 If within three
years

of receiving

this cash award Mr Hare voluntarily terminates his employment or his mployment is terminated without cause as

defined in the December 18 2008 letter agreement by Wendys/Arbys he would be required to pay
back

pro rata

portion of the net amount received If Wendys/Arbys does not renew Mr Hares employment under the

December 18 2008 letter agreement which is subject to one year renewable terms or if he remains employed by

Wendys/Arbys for three years after receiving the cash award he would not have to pay
back

any
of the cash award

Within 30 days following sale of Arbys Mr Hare would be awarded restricted stock with value of

$750000 The restricted stock would vest three years after it is awarded the Stated Vesting Date However if

Mr Hares employment is involuntarily terminated by Wendys/Arbys without cause prior to the Stated Vesting

Date the restricted stock would vest on prorated basis If Wendys/Arbys does not renew Mr Hares employment

under the December 18 2008 letter agreement all of the restricted stock would vest on his last day of employment

If Arbys is sold Mr Hare would receive cash deal success bonus of$ 100000 plus 0.15% of the consideration

received by Wendys/Arbys Consideration would exclude all liabilities for indebtedness of Arbys assumed by the

buyer Payment of the deal success fee would be made when consideration for the Arbys sale is paid to the seller

Wendys/Arbys would also provide for Mr Hares relocation from Atlanta in accordance with Wendys/Arbys

standard relocation policy which does not include loss protection on the sale of an executives home as well as

$130000 moving bonus payable within 30 days of sale of Arbys If Mr Hare voluntarily terminates his

employment within 12 months of starting the relocation
process

he would be
required to pay

back benefits received

under the relocation policy

If Arbys is not sold Mr Hare would not be required to relocate to Ohio and no benefits would be payable

under the retention agreement The December 18 2008 letter
agreement

with Mr Hare will remain in effect and the

provisions of the retention agreement are in addition to any
other separation payments or benefits for which Mr Hare

would be eligible in the event that Wendys/Arbys terminated his employment without cause or elected not to renew

the letter agreement

The retention agreement with Mr Okeson would provide that Mr Okeson
agrees to remain employed with

Wendys/Arbys for period of months after sale of Arbys and that he would be paid retention bonus in cash of

$500000 one-third of which would be payable within days of the sale of Arbys with the remainder payable

months thereafter If Mr Okeson voluntarily terminates employment with Wendys/Arbys or is terminated with

cause as defined in the December 18 2008 letter agreement between Wendys/Arbys and Mr Okeson prior to

months after the sale of Arbys he would not receive any further retention bonus payments under the retention

agreement If Mr Okesons employment is involuntarily terminated without cause before either payment date he

would receive the
remaining payments

If Arbys is sold and Mr Okeson remains employed through the date months after such sale or if his

employment is terminated without cause prior to that date he would receive the compensation described in the

December 18 2008 letter
agreement

and
any currently outstanding stock options or time based restricted stock

awards would vest and Mr Okeson would have 18 months to exercise vested stock options

The December 18 2008 letter
agreement

with Mr Okeson will remain in effect and the provisions of the

retention agreement are in addition to any
other separation payments or benefits for which Mr Okeson would be

eligible in the event that Wendys/Arbys terminated his employment without cause
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PART III

Items 10111213 and 14

The information for Wendys/Arbys required by Items 10 11 12 and 13 and for the Companies by Item 14

will he furnished on or prior to May 2011 and is hereby incorporated by reference by an amendment hereto or

pursuant to definitive
proxy statement involving the election of directors

pursuant to Regulation 14A that will

contain such information Notwithstanding the foregoing information
appearing in the section Audit Committee

Report shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

See Index to Financial Statements Item

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule ICondensed Balance Sheets Parent Company Onlyas of
January 2010 and December 28 2008

Condensed Statements of Operations Parent Company Onlyfor the fiscal years ended January 2010
December 28 2008 and December 30 2007 Condensed Statements of Cash Flows Parent Company Onlyfor the

fiscal
years

ended January 2010 December 28 2008 and December 30 2007

All other schedules have been omitted since they are either not applicable or the information is contained

elsewhere in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Exhibits

Copies of the following exhibits ate available at charge of $.25 per page upon written request to the Secretary

of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc at 1155 Perimeter Center West Atlanta Georgia 30338 Exhibits that are

incorporated by reference to documents filed previously by Wendys/Arbys under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended are filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under File No 00 1-02207 File

No 333-161613 for documents filed by Wendys/Arbys Restaurants or File No 001-081 16 for documents filed by

Wendys International Inc Exhibits listed below are exhibits of both Wendys/Arbys and Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants unless otherwise noted

EXHIBIT
NO DESCRIPTION

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of April 23 2008 by and among Triarc Companies Inc

Green Merger Sub Inc and Wendys International Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1

to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 29 2008 SEC file no 00 1-02207

2.2 Side Letter Agreement dated August 14 2008 by and among Triarc Companies Inc Green Merger

Sub Inc and Wendys International Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to Triarcs

Registration Statement on Form S-4 Amendment No filed on August 15 2008 Reg no

333-151336

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of December 17 2007 by and among Deerfield Triarc Capital

Corp DFR Merger Company LLC Deerfield Company LLC and solely for the purposes set forth

therein Triarc Companies Inc in such
capacity the Sellers Representative incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Triarcs Current Report on Form filed on December 21 2007 SEC file

no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc as filed with the

eeretary of State of the State of Delaware on May 28 200i incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

3.1 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Current Repott on Form 8-K filed on June 2009 SEC file no

001-02207

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc as amended and restated as of May 28

2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Wendys/Ashys Groups Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on June 2009 SEC file no 00 1-02207

3.3 Certificate of Formation of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC as amended to date incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Wendys/Arbys Restaurants Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on

August 28 2009 Reg No 333-161613 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants only

3.4 Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants LLC incorporated by ieference to Exhibit 3.2 to Wendys/Ashys Restaurants
Registration

Statement on Form S-4 filed on August 28 2009 Reg no 333-161613 Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

only

4.1 Indenture dated as of November 13 2001 between Wendys International Inc and Bank One
National Association incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4i of the Wendys International Inc

Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 30 2001 SEC file no 001-08116

4.2 Indenture dared as of June 23 2009 among Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC the guarantors named

therein and U.S Bank National Association as Trustee incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1

to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 28 2009 SEC file no 00 1-02207

4.3 Form of Exchange Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit of Exhibit 4.1 to Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on August 28 2009 Reg no 333-161613

4.4 Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 2009 among Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC the

guaranrors
named therein and U.S Bank National Association as Trustee incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Wendys/Ashys Groups Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended June 28 2009

SEC file no 00 1-02207
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EXHIBIT
NO DESCRIPTION

4.5 Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 21 2009 among Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC the

guarantor named therein and U.S Bank National Association as Trustee incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Wendys/Arbys Restaurants Form 0-Q for the
quarter

ended April 2010

SEC file no 333-161613

4.6
Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 2010 among Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC the

guarantor named therein and U.S Bank National Association as Trusree

10.1 Triarc Companies Inc Amended and Restated 1997 Equity Participation Plan incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 19 2005

SEC file no 00102207

10.2 Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Triarc Companies Inc Amended and

Restated 1997 Equity Participation Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Triarcs

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 16 1998 SEC file no 00102207

10.3 Triarc Companies Inc Amended and Restated 1998 Equity Participation Plan incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 19 2005

SEC file no 00102207

10.4 Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Triarc Companies Inc Amended and

Restated 1998 Equity Participation Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarcs

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 13 1998 SEC file no 00102207

10.5 Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Amended and Restated 2002 Equity Participation Plan as amended

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 28 2008 SEC file no 00l02207

10.6 Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Amended and

Restated 2002 Equity Participation Plan as amended incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.6

to Wendys/Arbys Groups Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008

SEC file no 00102207

10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Amended and Restated

2002 Equity Participation Plan as amended incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to

Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 28 2008

SEC file no 001O2207

10.8 Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group
Inc Amended and Restated 2002 Equity Participation Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.7 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form lO-Q for the quarter
ended June 28 2009

SEC file no 00102207

10.9 Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Amended and

Restated 2002 Equity Participation Plan as amended incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended September 27 2009

SEC file no 00102207

10.10 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Amended and

Restated 2002 Equity Participation Plan as amended incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-Q for rhe
quarrer

ended September 27 2009

SEC file no 001022O7

10.11 Wendys/Ashys Group Inc 2010 Omnibus Award Plan incorporated by reference to Annex of the

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement SEC file no 00102207

10.12 Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group Inc 2010

Omnibus Award Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form

10-Q for the
quarter

ended July 2010 SEC file no 00102207
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EXHIBIT
NO DESCRIPTION

10.13 Form of Long Term Performance Unit Award Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group Inc 2010

Omnibus Award Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form

10-Q for the
quarter

ended July 2010 SEC file no 00102207

10.14 Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Wendys/Arbys Group

Inc 2010 Omnibus Award Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Wendys/Arbys Groups

Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended July 2010 SEC file no 001 02207

10.15 1999 Executive Bonus Plan incorporated
herein

by reference to Exhibit to Triarcs 1999 Proxy

Statement SEC file no 00102207

10.16 Amendment to the Triarc Companies Inc 1999 Executive Bonus Plan dated as of June 22 2004

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

June 2005 SEC file no 00102207

10.17 Amendment to the Triarc Companies Inc 1999 Executive Bonus Plan effective as of March 26 2007

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

June 2007 SEC file no 00l02207

10.18 Wendys International Inc 2003 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

100 of the Wendys International Inc Form l0-Q for the quarter ended April 2006

SEC file no 001-08 16
10.19 Amendments to the Wendys International Inc 2003 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-K for the
yeat

ended December 28

2008 SEC file no 00l02207

10.20 Wendys International Inc 2007 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Annex to

the Wendys International Inc Definitive 2007 Proxy Statement dated March 12 2007

SEC file no 001-08 16
10.2 First Amendment to the Wendys International Inc 2007 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10d of the Wendys International Inc Form l0-Q for the
quarter

ended

September 30 2007 SEC file no 001-081 16
10.22 Amendments to the Wendys International Inc 2007 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 28 2008 SEC file no 00l02207

10.23 Form uf Stuck Optiun Award Letter fur U.S Grantees undei th Wendys Internariunal Inc 2007

Stock Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Wendys/Arbys Groups

Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended September 27 2009 SEC file no 00l02207

10.24 Form of Stock Unit Award Agreement under the Wendys International Inc 2007 Stock Incentive

Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form l0-Q for the

quarter
ended September 27 2009 SEC file no 00102207

10.25 Form of letter amending non-qualified stock
options granted under the Wendys International Inc

2007 Stock Incentive Plan on May 2007 and May 2008 to certain former directors of Wendys

International Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Wendys/Arbys Groups

Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended September 27 2009 SEC file no 00l02207

10.26 Wendys International Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10f of the Wendys International Inc Form 10-K for the year ended December 29 2002

SEC file no 00l081l6

10.27 First Amendment to the Wendys International Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 100 of the Wendys International Inc Form 10-K for the

year
ended December 31 2006 SEC file no 00l08ll6
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EXHIBIT
DESCRIPTION

10.28 Amended and Restated Wendys Intetnational Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan No

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-K for the year

ended January 2010 SEC file no 00 1-02207

10.29 Amended and Restated Wendys International Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan No

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Wendys/Ashys Groups Form 10-K for the
year

ended January 2010 SEC file no 00 1-02207

10.30 Wendys/Arbys Group Inc 2009 Directors Deferred Compensation Plan effective as of May 28

2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended June 28 2009 SEC file no 00102207

10.31 Amendment No to the Wendys/Ashys Group Inc 2009 Directors Deferred Compensation Plan

effective as of May 27 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Wendys/Arbys Groups

Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended July 2010 SEC fik no 00102207

10.32 Credit Agreement dated as of May 24 2010 among Wendys/Ashys Restaurants LLC as borrower

Bank of America N.A as administrative agent Citicorp North America Inc as syndication agent

Wells Fargo Bank National Association as documentation agent
and the lenders and issuers

parry

thereto incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wendys/Ashys Groups Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on May 25 2010 SEC file no 00 1-02207

10.33 Amendment No dated as of July 12 2010 to the Credit Agreement dated as of May 24 2010

among Wendys/Ashys Restaurants LLC as borrower Bank of America N.A as administrative agent

Citicorp North America Inc as syndication agent Wells Fargo Bank National Association as

documentation agent and the lenders and issuers parry thereto incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended July 2010

SEC file no uo1-02207

10.34 Securiry Agreement dated as of May 24 2010 among Wendys/Ashys Restaurants LLC the

guarantors from time to time parry thereto as pledgors and Bank of America N.A as administrative

agent incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Wendys/Ashys Groups Currenr Report on

Form 8-K filed on May 25 2010 SEC file no 00 1-02207

10.35 Assignment of Rights Agreement between Wendys International Inc and Mr David Thomas

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10c of the Wendys International Inc Form 10-K for the

year
ended December 31 2000 SEC file no 001-08116

10.36 Form of Guaranry Agreement dated as of March 23 1999 among National Propane Corporation

Triarc Companies Inc and Nelson Peltx and Peter May incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.30 to Triarcs Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended January 1999

SEC file no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.37 Indemniry Agreement dated as of October 25 2000 between Cadhury Schweppes plc and Triarc

Companies Inc incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarcs Current Report on Form

8-K filed on November 2000 SEC file no 00 1-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.38 Amended and Restated Investment Management Agreement dated as of April 30 2007 between

TCMG-MA LLC and Trian Fund Management L.P incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 30 2007 SEC file no 001-02207

Wendys/Ashys only

10.39 Withdrawal Agreement dated June 10 2009 between TCMG-MA LLC and Trian Fund Management

L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on June 11 2009 SEC file no 00 1-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.40 Separation Agreement dated as of April 30 2007 between Triarc Companies Inc and Nelson Peltz

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

April 30 2007 SEC file no 00102207
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EXHIBIT
NO DESCRIPTION

10.41 Letter Agreement dated as of December 28 2007 between Triarc Companies Inc and Nelson Peltz

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

January 2008 SEC file no 00102207

10.42 Separation Agreement dated as of April 30 2007 between Triarc Companies Inc and Peter May

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

April 30 2007 SEC file no 00102207.t

10.43 Letter Agreement dated as of December 28 2007 between Triarc Companies Inc and Peter May

incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

January 2008 SEC file no 00102207

10.44 Agreement dated June 10 2009 between Wendys/Arbys Group Inc and Trian Fund Management

L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on June 11 2009 SEC file no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.45 Liquidation Services Agreement dated June 10 2009 between Wendys/Arbys Group Inc and Trian

Fund Management L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Wendys/Arbys Groups

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 11 2009 SEC file no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.46 Letter Agreement dated as of December 28 2007 between Triarc Companies Inc and Trian Fund

Management L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarcs Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on January 2008 SEC file no 00 1-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.47 Assignment and Assumption of Lease dated as of June 30 2007 between Triarc Companies Inc and

Trian Fund Management L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarcs Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on August 10 2007 SEC file no 00 1-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.48 Bill of Sale dated July 31 2007 by Triarc Companies Inc to Trian Fund Management L.P

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

August 10 2007 SEC file no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.49 Agreement of Sublease between Triarc Companies Inc and Trian Fund Management L.P

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

August 10 2007 SEC file no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.50 First Amendment to Agreement of Sublease between Wendys/Arbys Group Inc f/k/a Triarc

Companies Inc and Trian Fund Management L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10

to Wendys/Arbys Groups Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended July 2010 SEC file no 001-02207

Wendys/Arbys only

10.51 Form of Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement between Triarc Companies Inc and each of Trian Fund

Management L.P Nelson Pelrz Peter May and Edward Garden incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 10 2007 SEC file

no 00 1-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.52 Aircraft Lease Agreement dated June 10 2009 between Wendys/Arbys Group Inc and TASCO
LLC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on June 11 2009 SEC file no 00 1-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.53 Amendment No to Aircraft Lease Agreement dated June 10 2009 between Wendys/Ashys Group
Inc and TASCO LLC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Wendys/Arbys Groups

Form l0-Q for the
quarter

ended July 2010 SEC file no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.54 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 23 1993 between DWG Corporation
and DWG

Acquisition Group L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to Wendys/Arbys Groups

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28 2008 SEC file no 001-02207

Wendys/Arbys only
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EXHIBIT

DESCRIPTION

10.55 Letter Agreement dated August 2007 between Triarc Companies Inc and Trian Fund Management

L.P incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

August 10 2007 SEC file no 00 1-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.S6 Agreement dated November 200R by and between Wendys/Arbys Grnup Inc and Trian Partners

L.P Trian Partners Master Fund L.P Trian Partners Parallel Fund L.P Trian Partners Parallel

Fund II L.P Trian Fund Management L.P Nelson Pelta Peter May and Edward Garden

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wendys/Arbys Groups Current Report on Form

8-K filed on November 12 2008 SEC file no 001-02207 Wendys/Arbys only

10.57 Amendment No to Agreement dated as of April 2009 among Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Trian

Partners L.P Trian Partners Master Fund L.P Trian Partners Parallel Fund L.P Trian Partners

Parallel Fund II L.P Trian Fund Management L.P Trian Fund Management GP LLC Nelson

Pelta Peter May and Edward Garden incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

Wendys/Arbys Groups Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2009 SEC file no 00 1-02207

Wendys/Arbys only

10.58 Consulting and Employment Agreement dated July 25 2008 between Triarc Companies Inc and

David Karam incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Triarcs Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on July 25 2008 SEC file no 00102207

10.59 Amended and Restated Letter Agreement dated as of December 18 2008 between Thomas Garrett

and Arbys Restaurant Group Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Wendys/Arbys

Groups Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008 SEC file no 00102207

10.60 Amended and Restated Letter Agreement dated as of December 18 2008 between Sharron Barton and

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Wendys/Arbys

Groups Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008 SEC file no 00102207

10.61 Amended and Restated Letter Agreement dated as of December 18 2008 between Nils Okeson and

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Wendys/Arbys

Groups Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008 SEC file no 00102207

10.62 Amended and Restated Letter Agreement dated as of December 18 2008 between Stephen Hare and

Wendys/Ashys Group Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Wendys/Ashys

Groups Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008 SEC file no 00102207

10.63 Amended and Restated Letter Agreement dated as of December 18 2008 between Roland Smith and

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Wendys/Arbys

Groups Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 28 2008 SEC file no 001.02207

10.64 Letter Agreement dated as of May 11 2010 between Hala Moddelmog and Wendys/Arbys Group

Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Wendys/Ashys Groups Current Report on Form

8-K filed on May 14 2010 SEC file no 00102207

10.65 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Wendys/Ashys Group Inc and certain officers

directors and employees thereof incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to Wendys/Ashys

Groups Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 28 2008

SEC file no O0l.02207

10.66 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ashys Restaurant Group Inc and certain directors

officers and employees thereof incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to Triarcs Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 30 2007 SEC file no 00102207

10.67 Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers and employees of Wendys International Inc and its

subsidiaries incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Wendys International Inc Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on July 12 2005 SEC file no 001-081 16
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NO DESCRIPTION

10.68 Form of Firsr Amendment to Indemnification Agreement between Wendys International Inc and its

direcrors and certain officers and employees incorporared herein by reference to Exhibit 10b of the

Wendys International Inc Form 10-Q for the
quarter

ended June 29 2008

SEC file no 001-081 16.t

10.69 Tax Sharing Agreement dated as of May 26 2009 among Wendys/Arbys Croup Inc and certain of

its subsidiaries
parry thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to Wendys/Arbys

Restaurants Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on August 28 2009 Reg no 333-161613

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants only

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.t

23.1 Consent of Deloitre Touche LLP.t

23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.t

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Wendys/Arbys pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.t

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Wendys/Arbys pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxlcy Act of 2002.t

31.3 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants
pursuant to Section 302 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.4 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants
pursuant to Section 302 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.t

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Wendys/Arbys pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.t

99.1 Audited Financial Statements of TimWen Partnership.t

101.INS XBRL Instance Documentt

l01.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documentt

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documentt

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documentt

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documentt

Filed herewith

Identifies management contract or compensatory plan or
arrangement

In accordance with
Regulation S-T the XBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report on

Form 10-K shall be deemed to be furnished and not filed

Instruments defining
the

rights of holders of certain issues of long-term debt of the Companies and their consolidated

subsidiaries have not been filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K because the authorized principal amount of any one of

such issues does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Companies and their subsidiaries on consolidated basis

The Companies agree to furnish
copy

of each of such instruments to the Commission upon request
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has

duly caused this
report to he signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC

Registrant

Dated March 2011 By
Is ROLAND SMITH

Roland Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below on

March 2011 by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated

Signature Titles

Is ROLAND SMITH President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Roland Smith Principal Executive Officer

Is STEPHEN HARE Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Stephen Hare Principal Financial Officer

Is STEVEN GRAHAM Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Steven Graham Principal Accounting Officer

Is NELSON PELTz Chairman and Director

Nelson Pelti

Is PETER MAY Vice Chairman and Director

Peter May

/5/ CLwE CHAJET Director

Clive Chajet

Is EDWARD GARDEN Director

Edward Garden

Is JANET HILL Director

Janet Hill

Is JOSEPH LEVATO Director

Joseph Levato

Is RANDOLPH LEWIS Director

Randolph Lewis

Is PETER ROTHSCHILD Director

Peter Rothschild

/5/ DAVID SCHWAB II Director

David Schwab II

Is RAYMOND TROUBH Director

Raymond Troubh

Is JACK WASSERMAN Director

Jack Wasserman
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WENDYS/ARBYS RESTAURANTS LLC

Registrant

Dated Match 2011 By Is ROLAND SMITH

Roland Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the
requirements

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
repott

has been signed below on

Match 2011 by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated

Signature Titles

Is ROLAND SMITH President Chief Executive Officer and Manager

Roland Smith Principal Executive Officer

Is STEPHEN HARE Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and

Stephen Hare Manager Principal Financial Officer

Is STEVEN GRAHAM Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Steven Graham Principal Accounting Officer

Is NIL5 OKE50N Manager

Nils Okeson

/5 JOSEPH LEVATO Manager

Joseph Levato

Is DAVID SCHWAB II Manager

David Schwab II

Is RAYMOND TROUBH Manager

Raymond Troubh

/5 JACK WASSERMAN Manager

Jack Wasserman
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SCHEDULE

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Parent Company Only
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

January January

2011 2010

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 313622 51973

Amounts due from subsidiaries 75456 40525

Deferred income tax benefit and other 1250 21705

Total current assets 390328 114203

Note receivable related
party net 25696

Investments in consolidated subsidiaries 1791475 2379976

Amounts due from subsidiary 26773

Properties 9408 11391

Deferred income tax benefit and other 64985 24802

Total assets $2256196 $2582841

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Intercompany demand note payable 50000

Amounts due to subsidiaries 63019 158879

Current portion of long-term debt 1368 5949

Deferred income taxes and other current liabilities 11813 10429

Total current liabilities 76200 225257

Long-term debt 11303 15052

Other liabilities 5519 6193

Stockholders equity

Common stock $0.10 par value 1500000 shares authorized

470424 shares issued 47042 47042

Additional paid-in capital 2771126 76 1433

Accumulated deficit 412464 380480
Common stock held in treasury at cost 249547 85971
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 7017 5685

Total stockholders equity 2163174 2336339

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $2256196 $2582841

Consists of 6.54% term loan on our owned aircraft in the amount of$12671 and $18901 at January 2011

and January 2010 respectively and 5% convertible notes in the amount of $2100 as of January 2010

which were repaid during 2010
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SCHEDULE Continued

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Parent Company Only
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In Thousands

Year Ended

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

Income

Equity in loss income from continuing operations
of subsidiaries $2175 8970 $451158

Investment income loss 4913 61 21565

2738 9031 472723

Costs and expenses

General and administrative 8087 11568 38674

Depreciation and amortization 1863 1745 2212

Impairment of long-lived assets 2671

Facilities relocation and restructuring 3008 692

Intercompany interest expense 420 1392

Other income expense net 517 1141 1789

9433 15600 47430

Loss from continuing operations before benefit from income taxes 6695 6569 520153
Benefit from income taxes 2370 10085 38195

Loss income from continuing operations 4325 3516 481958

Equity in income from discontinued operations of subsidiaries 1546 2217

Net loss income $4325 $5062 $479741
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SCHEDULE Continued

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Parent Company Only
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended

Cash flows from continuing operating activities

Net loss income

Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash provided by used

in continuing operating activities

Dividends from subsidiaries

Equity in loss income from continuing operations of subsidiaries

Other operating transactions with Wendys/Arbys Restaurants

LLC

Tax sharing payments received from subsidiaries

Depreciation and amortization

Share-based compensation provision

Write-off and amortization of deferred financing costs

Cancellation of intercompany debts net

Operating investment adjustments net see below

Deferred income tax benefit net

Tax sharing receivable from subsidiaries net

Equity in income from discontinued operations of subsidiaries

Impairment of long-lived assets

Other net

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other current assets

Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by used in continuing operating

activities 438577 104935
_________

Cash flows from continuing investing activities

Net repayments
from subsidiaries

Investment activities see below

Cost of
merger

with Wendys

Capital expenditures

Other net

Net cash provided by used in continuing investing

activities

Cash flows from continuing financing activities

Repurchases of common stock

Dividends paid

Repayments of long-term debt

Proceeds from long-term debt

Advances from Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC

Capital contribution to Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC

Proceeds from intercompany loan

Other

Net cash used in provided by continuing financing

activities

Net cash provided by continuing operations

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

4325 5062

443700 115000

2175 8970

8032 14114
10417

1863 1745

914 1555

16 25

23212
4909
4027 67241

1052 65366
1546

2200

231 1467

4033 5381

$479741

451158

17000

2212

358

5132

22838

21359

2217
2671

5772

797

20355

27278

987 31901 10577

30752

608 18403
1065

205 165 884

31944 31458 8007

173537 72927
27621 27976 30538
8330 889 2361

20000

155000

150177
47000

616 5918 152

208872 107710 38772

261649 28683

3570
3487

1318

261649 25113 2169

51973 26860 24691

$313622 51973 26860
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SCHEDULE Continued

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Parent Company Only
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Continued

Year Ended

January January December 28
2011 2010 2008

Detail of cash flows related to investments

Operating investment adjustments

Income on collection of notes receivable 4909
Net recognized losses including other than temporary losses 22838

4909 $23838

Investing investment activities net

Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable $30752

$30752
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SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

dated as of December 2010

among

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC

The Guarantor Party Hereto

and

U.S Bank National Association

as Trustee

10.00%

Senior Notes due

2016

EXHIBIT 4.6



THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE this Supplemental Indenture enteted into as of December

2010 among Wendys/Atbys Restautants LLC Delawate limited liability company the Company Wendys
Restautants of New Yotk LLC Delawate limited liability company the Undersigned and U.S Bank National

Association as ttustee the Trustee

RECITALS

WHEREAS the Company the Guatantots patty theteto and the Ttustee enteted into the Indentute dated as

of June 23 2009 as supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 2009 and the Supplemental

Indenture dated as of Decembet 21 2009 as so supplemented the Indenture relating to the Companys 0.00o

Senior Notes due 2016 the Notes

WHEREAS as condition to the Trustee entering into the Indenture and the purchase of the Notes by the

Holders the Company agreed pursuant to the Indenture to cause any newly acquired or created Restricted Subsidiary

other than except in certain circumstances Regulated Subsidiary that guarantees or is borrower under the Credit

Agreement to provide Guarantees in certain circumstances

AGREEMENT

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained and intending

to be legally bound the parties to this Supplemental Indenture hereby agree as follows

Section Capitalized terms used herein and nor otherwise defined herein are used as defined in the Indenture

Section The Undersigned by its execution of this Supplemental Indenture agrees to be Guarantor under

the Indenture and to be bound by the terms of the Indenture applicable to Guarantors including but not limited to

Article 10 thereof

Section This Supplemental Indenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the

State of New York

Section This Supplemental Indenture may be signed in various counterparts which together will constitute

one and the same instrument

Section This Supplemental Indenture is an amendment supplemental to the Indenture and the Indenture

and this Supplemental Indenture will henceforth be read together



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties heteto have caused this Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed as

of the date first above written

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC as Issuer

By Is Daniel Collins

Name Daniel Collins

Title Senior Vice President

Treasurer Assistant Secretary

Wendys Restaurants of New York LLC as Guarantor

By Is Daniel Collins

Name Daniel Collins

Title Senior Vice President

Treasurer Assistant Secretary

U.S Bank National Association as Trustee

By Is Jack Ellerin

Name Jack Ellerin

Title Vice President

Page to Supplemental Indenturel





EXHIBIT 21.1

WENDYS/ARBYS GROUP INC

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES AS OF

january 2011

State or Jurisdiction

Subsidiary Under Which Organized

Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC formerly Wendys International Holdings LLC Delaware

Arbys Restaurant Group Inc Delaware

RTM Acquisition Company LLC Georgia

Wendys/Arbys Support Center LLC Delaware

Sybra LLC Michigan

RTM Partners LLC Georgia

RTM Development Company LLC Delaware

RTM Operating Company LLC Delaware

RTM Operating Company of Canada Inc Ontario

Arbys Restaurant LLC Delaware

RTM LLC Georgia

RTMSC LLC South Carolina

RTM Savannah LLC Georgia

RTM Georgia LLC Georgia

Franchise Associates LLC Minnesota

RTM Alabama LLC Alabama

RTM West LLC California

RTM Sea-Tac LLC Washington

RTM Mid America LLC Indiana

RTM Indianapolis LLC Ohio

RTM Gulf Coast LLC Alabama

RTM Portland LLC Oregon

ARG Resources LLC Georgia

ARG Services Inc Colorado

Arbys LLC Delaware

Arbys of Canada Inc Ontario

Arbys IP Holder Trust Delaware

Wendys International Inc Ohio

Wendys/Arbys International Inc Delaware

Wendys/Arbys International Services Inc Delaware

Wendys Restaurants Asia Limited Hong Kong

Wendys Old Fashioned Hamburger Restaurants Pty Ltd Australia

Restaurant Finance Corporation Ohio

CafØ Express LLC Delaware

BDJ71112LLC Ohio

Wendy Restaurant Inc Delaware

Wendys Old Fashioned Hamburgers of New York Inc Ohio

Wendys Restaurants of New York LLC Delaware

Oldemark LLC Vermont

Wendys of Denver Inc Colorado

The New Bakery Co of Ohio Inc Ohio

Wendys of N.E Florida Inc Florida

Wendys Restaurants of Canada Inc Ontario

Wendys Canadian Advertising Program Inc Ontario

TIMWEN Partnership Ontario

The Wendys National Advertising Program Inc Ohio

256 Gift Card Inc Colorado



State or Jurisdiction

Subsidiary Under Which Organized

SEPSCO LLC Delaware

Home Furnishing Acquisirion Corporarion Delaware

Triarc Acquisition LLC Delaware

Jurl Holdings LLC Delaware

RCAC LLC Delaware

Madison Wesr Associates Corp Delaware

280 BT Holdings LLC New York

Cirrus Acquisition Corporation Florida

Adams Packing Association Inc Delaware

TXL Corp South Carolina

500o owned by Wendys Restaurants of Canada Inc

99.70o capital interest owned by Wendys/Ashys Group Inc the Company Certain members of

management of the Company have been granted an equity interest in Jut Holdings LLC Jurl representing
in

the
aggregate 0.300o capital interest in Jurl and up to 50o profits interest in Jurls interest in Jurlique

80.100 owned by Madison West Associates Corp Madison West 11 .30o owned by affiliates of the Company
and 8.6o owned by unaffiliated third parties



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorpotation by refetence in Registration Statement Nos 333-50051 333-82069

333-97S9 333-155273 and 333-1S7170 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement No 333-155272 on Form S-3 of

Wendys/Ashys Group Inc the Company of our reports
dated March 2011 relating to the consolidated

financial statements and financial statement schedule of Wendys/Ashys Group Inc and the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K of Wendys

Ashys Group Inc for the
year

ended January 2011

/5/ Deloirte Touche LLP

Atlanta Georgia

Match 2011



EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement Nos 333-5005

333 82069 333 97569 333 155273 and 333 167170 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement No 333-155272 on

Form S-3 of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc of our report dated March 2011 relating to the financial statements of

TIMWEN Partnership which
appears

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

Is PricewarerhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto Canada

March 32011



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

Roland Smith
certifjt

that

have reviewed this annual repott on Fotm 10 of Wendys/Arbys Gtoup Inc

Based on my knowledge this tepott does not contain
any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

matetial fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances undet which such statements wete

made not misleading
with

respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this
report

fairly present in all material tespects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the
periods presented in this report

The registrants other certif5ring officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15W and 15d15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material infotmation relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be
designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the
registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred
during

the
registrants most recent fiscal quarter the tegistrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annual
report

that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants iqternal

control over financial
reporting and

The
registrants other certiing officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the
registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing
the

equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation

of internal control over

financial
reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarixe and
report

financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial
reporting

Date March 32011

Is ROLAND SMITH

Roland Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

Stephen Hare certi that

have reviewed this annual
report on Form 10-K of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain
any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this
report

The registrants other certifjing officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and l5d-15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 150 and 5d- 15W for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal
quarter

in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifring officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2011

Is STEPHEN HARE

Stephen Hare

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 31.3

CERTIFICATIONS

Roland Smith certi0r that

have reviewed this annual
report on Form 10 of Wendys/Arhys Restaurants LLC

Based on my knowledge this
report

does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material
respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certiring officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 150 and 5d- 15W for the registrant and have

Designed
such disclosure controls and

procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this
report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the
preparation

of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this
report

based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this
report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal
quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter
in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants inçernal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifjring officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and
report

financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2011

Is ROLAND SMITH

Roland Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.4

CERTI FICATIONS

Stephen Hare certi that

have reviewed this annual
report on Form 10-K of Wendys/Arbys Restaurants LLC

Based on my knowledge rhis
report

does nor contain
any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were

made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this
report

fairly present in all material
respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this
report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this
report

is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this
report

based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this
report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal
quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter
in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing rhe equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and
report

financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2011

Is STEPHEN HAl

Stephen Hare

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002 subsections and of section 1350 chapter 63

of title 18 United States Code each of the undersigned officers of Wendys/Arbys Group Inc Delaware

corporation the Company does hereby certifr to the best of such officers knowledge that

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended January 2011 the Form 10-K of the Company

fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents
in all material

respects
the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company

Date March 2011

Is ROLAND SMITH

Roland Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer

Date March 2011

Is STEPHEN HAiic

Stephen Hare

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer





STOCK PERFORMANCE

The following performance graph shows Wendys/Arbys Group Inc cumulative total shareholder returns lie price

appreciation and reinvestment of dividends and other disbursementsl of our Lommon Stock relative to the SP
Midcap 400 Index and to specified Peer Group of other companies with restaurant operations for the five-year

period ended December 31 2010 The stockholder returns set forth below assume an initial investment of $100

and that all dividends have been reinvested

On September 29 2008 Wendys International Inc became wholly owned subsidiary of Triarc Companies Inc and

Triarc changed its name to Wendys/Arbys Group Inc IWendys/ArbysI Also in conjunction with the merger

Wendys/Arbys assumed the WEN symbol on the New York Stock Exchange NYSEI As such historical stock

price information through and including September 29 2008 reflect results of the Triarc Class Common Stock which

traded on the NYSE under the symbol TRY

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE FIVE YEAR TOTAL RETURN
iWendnu/Arbns Group us SP Midcap 400 indee and Specified Peer Greupi
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Wendys/Arbys Group 5P Midcap 400 Peer Group

The companies which comprise the Peer Group are AFC Enterprises inc Bob Evens Farms irc Brinker internationai inc CEC Entertainment inc

chipotie Mesican Grit inc Cracker Barrei Oid Cnentry Stnre inc Darden Restaurants inc Bennys Corporation DineEquity inc Jack in The Bos

inc Mcoonaids Corporation Changs Chine Bistro inc Ruby Tuesday inc Sonic Corp Starbuck Corporation The Cheesecake Factory

incorporated YUMi Brands inc and wendys internationai inc BurBer King Hoiding inc and CKE Restaurants inc no ionger have pubiiciy traded

stock and have thus been omitted from the Peer Group Those companies were inciuded in the Peer Group used in the Companys 200B Annuai

Report

The stock price performance graph does not constitute ohciting materiai and shouid not be deemed fund or incorporated by reference into any

Wendys/Arbys Group inc fAng under The Securities Act of 1B33 as amended or The Securit es Eschange Act of 1B34 as amended escept to the

extent wendys/Arbys Group inc specificaty incnrporates the stock price graph by reference into such other fAng

Source Research Bate Group inc
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Board of Directors

Nelson Peltz 24.6

Chairman Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

Chief Executive Officer and Founding Partner

Trian Fund Management

Pefer May 246

Vice Chairman Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

President and Founding Partner

Trian Fund Management L.R

Clive Chajet 36.8

Chairman Chajet Consultancy L.L

Edward Garden

Vice Chairman and Founding Partner

Trian Fund Management L.R

Janet Hill 3.8

Principal Hill Family Advisors

Joseph Levato 1348

Former Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer Triarc Companies Inc

Randolph Lewis
Senior Vice President

Supply Chain and Logistics Walgreen Co

Peter Rothschild 17

Managing Member of

Oaroth Capital L.L.C

David Schwab 1113618

Senior Counsel

Cowan Liebowitz Latman RC

Roland Smith 26

President and Chief Executive Officer

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

Raymond Troubh 17

Financial Consultant and Oirector of various

public companies

Jack Wasserman 1358

Attorney-at Law

WEN
DYS

ARBYS
GROUP

SEIVNGFPF5H1DA AL

Executive Officers

Roland Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer

Stephen Hare

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

David Karam

President Wendys

Hala Moddelmog

President Arbys

Darrell van Ligten

President International

John Barker

Senior Vice President and

Chief Communications Officer

Sharron Barton

Senior Vice President and

Chief Administrative Officer

Steven Graham

Senior Vice President and

Chief Accounting Officer

Nile Dkeson

Senior Vice President

General Counsel and Secretary

NYSE and SEC Certifications

The Company has filed with the New York

Stock Exchange INYSEl the 2010 certifi

cation of its Chief Executive Officer required

by Section 303A.12 of the NYSE Listed

Company Manual confirming that the

Company has complied with the NYSE

corporate governance listing standards

Additionally the certifications of the

Companys Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer required to be filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commis

sion lSEC pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 are included

as Exhibits to the Companys Annual Report

on Form 10 for the fiscal year ended

January 2011 copy of which lincluding

the SEC certificational ie included herein

Wendys/Arbys Group Inc

1155 Perimeter Center West

Atlanta GA 30338

IR7RI t14 cnn

www.wendyaarbya com

Stockholder Information

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Ichange of address or registration lost stock

certificate and other account related mattersl

American Stock Transfer Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

Plaza Level

New York NY 10038

Toll free 18771 681 8121 or

17181 921 8200

Fax 17181 236 2641

mail info@amatock com

www.amstock.com

Common Stock Listing

WEN
Fflfli

NYSE

Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

Deloitte Touche LLP

191 Peachtree Street NE

Atlanta GA 30303

Investor Inquiries

Stockholders securities analysts investment

managers and others seeking information

about the Company may either go to the

Companys Web site www.wendyaarbys

com or contact the Company directly

as follows

Analysts/Institutional lnvestors/

Stockholders

John Barker

Chief Communications Officer

16781 514 6900

john.barker@wendysarbys.com

Kay Sharpton

Vice President Investor Relations

16781 514 5292

kay.sharpton@wendysarbye.com

DIRECTORS OFFICERS CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Office

-o

Member of Audit committee

Member of capital aod Investment committee

Member of Compeooatioo Committee

Member of Corporate Social Responsibi ity Comm ttee

Member of ERISA committee

Member of Execotive Committee

Member of Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Member of Performance Compensation Subcommittee

P71 ___
FSC PRiNTED WiTH1ØoY

INKjammoIscon
_______________

Pope from

rooponaibio sources



WENDYS
ARBYS
GROUP

SERVING FRESH IDEAS GAl

Wendys/Arbys Group strives to deliver sustainable business

results while making responsible choices for society and

the environment We are continuously improving our

stewardship in five key areas People Quality Food
Community Environmental Sustainability and Supply Chain

Practices To learn more about our Corporate Responsibility

efforts visit www.wendysarbys.com/responsibility

Our Commitmentto Giving Back

Caring abDut our communities is importantand its the right thing to do

Thats why we focus our resources in two key areas

Promoting foster care adoption

Expanding youth-mentoring opportunities

Social responsibility has been key part of our heritage since the founding of both

Wendys and Arbys more than 40 years ago With the commitment of our employ

ees franchisees suppliers customers and our stockholders we are actively

involved in supporting our signature programs through two primary foundations

Dave Thomas Foundation for Adoption and Arbys Foundation

LJ
DAVE THOMAS
FOUNDATION
FOR ADOPTIONS

hId pRBYs FOUNDAT/ON

www DaveThomasFoundation og www Atbyshoundation og


